
 

MEETING AGENDA 

 

 

Wednesday, August 27, 2025  
                         Page No. 
8:30  Call to Order – Brent Fisher, Chair 

Roll Call 
Approval of Agenda  
Review of Guiding Principles  
Ethics Disclosure 
Approval of April Minutes  

• May 21, 2025 Full Board Meeting 15  
Current Bylaws 44  

 
8:35  Mission Moment                   

• Jamie Phillips, DD Case Manager YKHC 
• Kim Champney, Alaska Association on Developmental Disabilities  

 
8:50 CEO Update      

• Mary Wilson, CEO 
 
9:05  Trustee Training – Executive Branch Ethics Act           handout  

• Gene Hickey, Department of Law 
 
9:35 Statutory Advisors  handout  

• Kermit Wilson, Advisory Board on Alcohol &   
Drug Abuse/ Alaska Mental Health Board   

• Martin Lange, Alaska Commission on Aging  
• Patrick Reinhart, Governor's Council on Disabilities and Special Education 

 
10:35 Break  
 
10:50  Public Comment   
  For Public Comment Guidelines, click here 

*Note: Anyone interested in providing public comment are  
encouraged to pre-register by emailing public.comment@mhtrust.org  
by 5pm the previous day.  

While pre-registration is not required, public comment will begin  
with those who have preregistered. If after 10 minutes no one has  
called in to provide public comment, the meeting will resume. 

Meeting: Board of Trustees 
Date: August 27-28, 2025 
Time: 8:30 AM 
Location: Trust Authority Building, 3745 Community Park Loop, Anchorage, AK 
Teleconference: Zoom Link; Meeting ID: 862 3388 1875; Passcode: 907  

Call-in number +1 253 215 8782; alaskamentalhealthtrust.org   
Trustees: Brent Fisher (Chair), Corri Feige, Kevin Fimon, Anita Halterman, Josie Hickel, 

Agnes Moran, John Morris 

1

https://alaskamentalhealthtrust.org/wp-content/uploads/2020/07/Public-Comment-Guidelines-May2025.pdf
mailto:public.comment@mhtrust.org
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/86233881875?pwd=S9tEksIkiKGu0DJyEkCBtqD346BqFT.1
https://alaskamentalhealthtrust.org/


11:50  Audit Update  
Executive session – (if necessary)     

 In accordance with the Open Meetings Act, AS 44.62.310(c). 

12:05 Lunch Break 

12:40 Updated Commercial Drive FY26 Budget 55 
• Julee Farley, Chief Finance Officer

12:50 Finance Committee Report /Approvals 57 
• Beneficiary Facilities
• FY26 Budget Ratification
• FY 26 Budget amendments
• FY 26 Payout Authorization
• Trust Authority Office Agency Budget FY 27
• Trust Land Office Agency Budget FY 27
• Trust Conference Sponsorships; Supplemental Information 62 

Trust Land Office Agency Budget FY27 64 
• Sarah Morrison, Chief Business Officer

1:35 Resource Management Report 70 

Consultations 
• Disposal of Trust Parcels – MHT 9400897
• Disposal of Trust Parcel  – MHT 9101417
• Perpetual Non-Exclusive Easement – MHT 9101418

Below Market Lease Approval – Alaska Behavioral Health, Fairbanks 73 
• Eric Boyer, Senior Program Officer, and Heather Phelps, Program Officer
• Jeff Green, Deputy Director

2:15 Break  

 2:30 Trust Authority Building Scenario Selection 100 
• Agnew Beck Consulting, Inc.
• Jusdi Warner, Executive Director

3:30 Facility Maintenance & Operational Budget Approvals 
• Denardo Budget Funding Request 126 
• Trust Authority Building Budget Funding Request 128 

4:00  Historic Wolf Creek Boatworks 
Executive session – (if necessary)     

 In accordance with the Open Meetings Act, AS 44.62.310(c). 

4:45 Recess 

2



 

 
Thursday, August 28, 2025 

 
             Page No. 

  
8:30  Call to Order  
  Announcements 
 
8:35 Department of Health  130 

• Heidi Hedberg, Commissioner  
• Emily Ricci, Deputy Commissioner 
• Betsy Wood, DOH 

o Federal and State Impacts 
 
9:35 Department of Family & Community Services 

• Tracy Dompeling, Deputy Commissioner and Chrissy Vogeley, Senior Policy Advisor 
 
10:05  Break  
 
10:20 Program and Planning Committee Report/Update 145   

• Katie Baldwin-Johnson, Chief Operating Officer  
   
 Consent Agenda Approval, Partnership Grants less than $75k 148  

• OpiAID- Compassionate Technology for Opioid Use Disorder 151  
• Native Village of Dot Lake- Domestic Violence Safe Housing and Counseling 152  
• United Way of Anchorage- Home for Good- Qualitative evaluation 153  

of permanent supportive housing project   
• Battle Dawgs - Operation Arctic Renewal: Outdoor-Based Suicide 154   

Prevention for Veterans 
• Anchorage School District - Pop Up Playgroups 155   
• Interior Community Health Center - Dental Grant 156   
• Mat-Su Health Services - Dental Grant 157  
• SE Alaska Kin Support Pilot- Haa Yaitxu Saiai 158  
• Cook Inlet Counseling - Sage/Saltbox Implementation 159   
• Alaska Association on Developmental Disabilities –  160  

Complex Care – Providers United to Create Options  
• FOCUS, Inc. - Phone Replacement System 162  
• Interior Aids Association   163  
• The ARC of Anchorage- Workforce Sustainability Partnership with Goodlife 164 

University 
• Frontier Community Services, Inc.- Goodlife at FCS  165         

  
  

 
  
  
 Consent Agenda Approval, Focus Area Grants over $75K 166  

• NAMI Juneau - Peer Support in Juneau & Southeast Alaska 172 
• NAMI Anchorage FY25  173 3



 

• NAMI Alaska – A Lifeline for Alaskans 174 
• The Alaska Mental Health Consumer Web – The Alaska Mental 175 
• Polaris House – Clubhouse Support for Rehabilitation and Recovery 177 
• Northern Hope – Northern Hope Center Mental Health Drop-In Center 178 
• North Star Community Foundation 179 
• Valley Charities 180 
• Mat-Su Health Foundation 182 
• Anchorage Neighborhood Housing Services 184 
• Alaska AIDS Assistance Association 186 
• Community Connections 187  
• All Alaska Pediatric Partnership 189 
• Alaska Association for Infant and Early Childhood Mental Health 191 
• Association for the Education on Young Children - SE Alaska 193 
• Presbyterian Hospitality House 194 
• The Alaska Safety Alliance- Re-envisioned Alaska’s     195 
• Alaska Brain Injury Consortium- Roads to Recovery  196 

  
 Consent Approvals over $500k   197 

• Maniilaq Association  198 
• Alaska Addiction Rehabilitation Services     200 

 
11:50  Lunch Break  
     
12:20  Grant Amendments  

• NAMI Anchorage FY25 201 
• Valley Charities FY25  203 

 
12:35  FY27 Budget Approval               205  

• Trust FY27 Budget Deliberation 
o FY27 Proposed Budget Detail Report  210 

• Request for Recommendations (RFR)  305 
o Governor's Council on Disabilities and Special Education 307 
o Alaska Commission on Aging 314 

3:00  Break 
 
3:15  FY27 Budget Approval Continued 
 
4:00  Board Elections  
 
4:15  Trustee Comments  
 
4:30  Adjourn  
  
Additional Documents: 

• Audit and Risk Committee Report   321 
  

4



 

1 
 

 
Future Meeting Dates 

Full Board of Trustees / Program & Planning /  
Resource Management / Audit & Risk / Finance 

 

(Updated – August 2025) 
 

 
 
• Full Board of Trustees    August 27-28, 2025  (Wed, Thu) – Anchorage 
 
 
• Program & Planning Committee  October 15, 2025  (Wed) 
• Audit & Risk Committee   October 16, 2025  (Thu) 
• Finance Committee    October 16, 2025  (Thu)  
• Resource Mgt Committee   October 16, 2025  (Thu) 
• Full Board of Trustees    November 19-20, 2025 (Wed, Thu) – Anchorage 
 
 
• Program & Planning Committee January 21, 2026  (Wed) 
• Finance Committee    January 22, 2026  (Thu)  
• Resource Mgt Committee   January 22, 2026  (Thu) 
• Audit and Risk Committee   January 22, 2026  (Thu) 
• Full Board of Trustees    February 18-19, 2026 (Wed, Thu) – Juneau 
 
• Program & Planning Committee April 22, 2026  (Wed) 
• Finance Committee    April 23, 2026  (Thu)  
• Resource Mgt Committee   April 23, 2026  (Thu) 
• Audit and Risk Committee   April 23, 2026  (Thu) 
• Full Board of Trustees    May 20-21, 2026  (Wed, Thu)– location TBD 
 
• Program & Planning Committee July 28, 2026  (Wed) (T) 
• Finance Committee    July 29, 2026  (Thu) (T)  
• Audit and Risk Committee   July 29, 2026  (Thu) (T) 
• Resource Mgt Committee   July 30, 2026  (Thu) (T) 
• Full Board of Trustees    August 26-27, 2026 (Wed, Thu) – Anchorage 
 

 
 

 

5



 

2 
 

 
 

Future Meeting Dates 
 

Statutory Advisory Boards 
 

(Updated – August 2025) 
 

 
 

 
 
Alaska Commission on Aging 

ACOA:  https://aging.alaska.gov  
Executive Director:  Martin Lange, (907) 465-4793, martin.lange@alaska.gov  
 

• September 16-18, 2025/Virtual 
• December 2-3, 2025 – Virtual 
• February 24-26, 2026 - TBD 

 
Alaska Mental Health Board / Advisory Board on Alcoholism and Drug Abuse 

AMHB: http://health.alaska.gov/amhb/Pages/default.aspx  
ABADA:  https://health.alaska.gov/abada/Pages/default.aspx   
Executive Director:  Kermit Wilson, (907) 465-4650, kermit.wilson@alaska.gov   
 

• TBD 
 
Governor’s Council on Disabilities and Special Education 

GCDSE: http://health.alaska.gov/gcdse/Pages/default.aspx  
Executive Director:  Patrick Reinhart, (907)269-8990,  patrick.reinhart@alaska.gov 
 

• Triennial Meeting, Oct 6-7 Hybrid/Anchorage 
• Disability and Aging Summit Oct 14-15, 2025, Anchorage 
• Triennial Meeting, Feb 10-12, Hybrid/Juneau 

6

https://aging.alaska.gov/
mailto:martin.lange@alaska.gov
http://health.alaska.gov/amhb/Pages/default.aspx
https://health.alaska.gov/abada/Pages/default.aspx
mailto:kermit.wilson@alaska.gov
http://health.alaska.gov/gcdse/Pages/default.aspx
mailto:patrick.reinhart@alaska.gov


 

Trustee Committee Assignments 
 

Updated June 2025 
 

 
 
Executive Committee 
• Brent Fisher, Chair 
• Agnes Moran, Vice Chair 
• Anita Halterman, Secretary 
• Mary Wilson, staff  
 
Audit & Risk Committee 
• Kevin Fimon, Chair 
• Corri Feige 
• Anita Halterman 
• Brent Fisher, non-voting 
• Julee Farley, staff  
 
Finance Committee 
• John Morris, Chair  
• Kevin Fimon 
• Anita Halterman 
• Brent Fisher, non-voting 
• Julee Farley, staff  
 

 
Program & Planning Committee 
• Agnes Moran, Chair 
• Kevin Fimon 
• Corri Feige 
• Brent Fisher, non-voting 
• Katie Baldwin, staff 
 
Resource Management Committee 
• Corri Feige, Chair 
• Anita Halterman 
• Josie Hickel 
• Brent Fisher, non-voting 
• Jusdi Warner, staff 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

7



 

 

The Trust’s 

Guiding Principles /  

Mission Statement / 

Trust Budget 

Process Flowcharts 

 

 

 

 

8



 

 

 

Trust Guiding Principles 
 
 

 
 
 

To improve the lives of Trust beneficiaries, The Trust is 
committed to: 
 
Education of the public and policymakers on beneficiary needs; 
 
Collaboration with consumers and partner advocates; 
 
Maximizing beneficiary input into programs; 
 
Continually improving results for beneficiaries; 
 
Prioritizing services for beneficiaries at risk of institutionalization 
or needing long-term, intensive care; 
 
Useful and timely data for evaluating program results; 
 
Inclusion of early intervention and prevention components in 
programs; 
 
Provision of reasonably necessary beneficiary services based on 
ability to pay. 
 
 
 
Approved 5-12-09, Board of Trustee meeting 

 

9



 

 

 

Trust Mission Statement 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
The Alaska Mental Health Trust Authority (The Trust) 
administers the Mental Health Trust to improve the 
lives of beneficiaries. Trustees have a fiduciary 
responsibility to protect and enhance trust assets in 
perpetuity for the beneficiaries. The Trust provides 
leadership in advocacy, planning, implementing and 
funding of the Comprehensive Integrated Mental 
Health Program; and acts as a catalyst for change. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Approved 5-12-09, Board of Trustee meeting 
 

 

10



 

          Alaska Mental Health Trust Authority Budget Process 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 

Governor’s Office 
Office of Management & Budget 

(OMB) 

Alaska  
Legislature 

(Legislative Finance) 

Mental Health  
Budget Bill 

MHTAAR Operating 
(Mental Health Trust Authority 

Authorized Receipts) 

MHTAAR Capital 
(vehicles, long-life facilities, research / 

demonstration projects, 5 years to spend) 

State General Funds 
Mental Health Budget 

(GF / MH) 

Trustees 
Authority  

Grants 

Focus Area 
Budget Recommendations 

Alaska Mental Health Trust Authority Staff 
Recommendations for Ongoing Projects 

Requests for Recommendations 
Outside Focus Areas 

Trust Investment Areas: 
Housing and Home & Community Based Services, 
Beneficiary Employment & Engagement, Disability Justice, 
Mental Health & Addition Intervention, Behavioral Health 
Crisis Response, Early Childhood Intervention & 
Prevention, Work Force Development 

Statutory Advisors:  Governor’s Council on Disabilities & 
Special Education, Alaska Mental Health Board, Advisory 
Board on Alcohol & Drug Abuse, Alaska Commission on Aging 

Stakeholder / Public Input 

10/28/2024 11



 
 

            Annual Mental Health Budget Bill Process 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 

June – July 
• Trustees issue Request for 

Recommendations (RFR) for the 
next fiscal year 

• Partner boards prepare RFR 
budgets 

July 
• Focus Area Workgroups prepare 

budgets 

August 
• RFR budgets due to COO 
• CFO prepare budget spreadsheets 
• Program & Planning Committee 

hears partner board and focus 
area proposals for budget 
recommendations 

August - December 
• Trust coordinates with 

Commissioners and their 
department directors regarding 
their funding requests for the next 
fiscal year 

September 
• Trustees meet to discuss partner board and focus area 

budget recommendations and approve budget 
recommendations for the next fiscal year 

• Budget recommendations sent to Governor, Office of 
Management and Budget (OMB) and Legislative Audit 
(due Sept 15) 

September - December 
• Governor approves or modifies 

budget and sends to Legislature 
as Mental Health Budget Bill (due 
Dec 15) 

January - April 
• Legislature in session 
• Trust works with Legislature on 

budget recommendations 
• Mental Health Budget Bill 

adopted 

May 
• Trustees approval final budget 

for next fiscal year 

Note:  timeline represents those items in the green boxes in the chart 
entitled “Alaska Mental Health Budget Process” 

01/23/2019 

12



 

Grant Approval Process for Authority Grant Funds 
All annual budgets are approved by the full board of trustees at the September meeting 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Partnerships 

Focus Area 
Funding 

Allocations 

Trust 
Administered 
Mini-Grants 

Emergency 
Grants 

A Letter of Interest is 
submitted from 

potential grantee. 

Trust program team 
reviews the Letter of 
Interest. If the team 
finds the proposal 

eligible, the grantee is 
invited to submit an 

application. 

Requests are forwarded to 
and approved by the full 

board of trustees. 

Trust program officers 
and focus area work 
groups recommend 

annual specific 
allocations from focus 

area fund levels. 

Funding from annual  
project budgets can be 
designated throughout 

the year. 

Applications are 
submitted monthly 

Applications are reviews 
by the Proposal 

Evaluation Committee 
and awarded monthly. 

The potential grantee 
submits a letter 

requesting emergency 
funding. 

The emergency request 
panel is convened within 
two weeks to determine if 

the request qualifies. 

Note:  this chart depicts those items included in the teal box labeled “Authority Grants” 
on the chart entitled “Alaska Mental Health Trust Authority Budget Process” 

Revised:  11/15/2024 

Requests are forwarded to 
and approved by the full 

board of trustees. 

13



TRUSTEES JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN

Scheduled full board meeting & prep

Scheduled committee meetings & prep

APOC filing due 3/15

Officer elections

Board evaluations

CEO evaluation

LEGISLATURE JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN

Budget finalization with departments

Trust advocacy trainings

House/Senate Finance budget presentation

Legislative session

PROGRAM JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN

Focus area budget updates, stakeholder mtg

Request for recommendations (RFR) issued

Statements of Intent / grant agreements

Trust/DBH quarterly meetings

Small projects

Grant quarterly reports

Rural Outreach (every 2yrs)

LAND OFFICE JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN

Resource field season

Real estate BOV/appraisals

Fall land sale

Quarterly reports

Ft. Knox audit (every 2yrs)

ADMINISTRATION JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN

Fiscal year end & re-appropriation

External audit

Operating budget due 9/15

Trust annual report

Contract renewals

OMB measures

Asset allocation annual review

ADVISORY BOARDS JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN

Statutory Advisory Board - ACoA

Statutory Advisory Board - AMHB/ABADA

Statutory Advisory Board - GCDSE

Alaska Mental Health Trust Annual Calendar

rev. 202014



Alaska Mental Health Trust Authority  1  Full Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes 
  May 21, 2025 
 

ALASKA MENTAL HEALTH TRUST AUTHORITY 
FULL BOARD COMMITTEE MEETING 

HYBRID/ZOOM 
May 21, 2025 

8:00 a.m. 
 

Originating: 
Wedgewood Resort – Borealis Ballroom 

212 Wedgewood Drive 
Fairbanks, Alaska   99701 

 
Trustees Present: 
Brent Fisher, Chair 
John Morris (virtually) 
Anita Halterman 
Kevin Fimon 
Corri Feige 
Josie Hickel 
      
Trust Staff Present:    
Mary Wilson 
Allison Biastock 
Katie Baldwin-Johnson 
Shannon Cochran 
Valette Keller 
Julee Farley 
Luke Lind 
Carrie Predeger 
Michael Baldwin 
Eric Boyer 
Kat Roch 
Kelda Barstad 
Tina Voelker-Ross 
Eliza Muse 
Debbie Delong 
Heather Phelps 
 
Trust Land Office Staff Present: 
Jusdi Warner 
Jeff Green 
David MacDonald 
Sarah Morrison 
Cole Hendrickson 
Mariana Sanchez 
Katie Vachris 
 
Also Participating:    
Karen Health; Lance Johnson; Art Delaune; Philip Tafs; Michael Goh; Brenda McFarlane; 
Lynette Falke; Richard Bishop; Wendy Cloyd; Jeanette Branson; Nenette Rogers; Allan Popper; 
Natalie Condon; Michael Sanders; Brenda Stanfill; Sarah Koogle; Mary Bishop; Liz Sewell; Iris 

15



Alaska Mental Health Trust Authority  2  Full Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes 
  May 21, 2025 
 

Matthews; Kyle Dexter; Kermit Wilson; Leah Van Kirk; Yasmin Radbod; Patrick Reinhart; Jena 
Crafton; Lori Grassgreen; Steve Center; Steve Sikes; Julia Moriarty. 
 
 
     PROCEEDINGS 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
CHAIR FISHER called the meeting to order and called the roll.  He introduced Josie Hickel, the 
newest trustee, and added that they were happy to have her on the Board. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

MOTION:  A motion was made to remove all of the grants from the agenda, including 
those in the consent agenda, until the Program & Planning Committee has had an 
opportunity to review them.  The motion was made by TRUSTEE MORAN; seconded by 
TRUSTEE FEIGE. 

 
CHAIR FISHER asked for a motion to approve the agenda with that amendment. 
 

MOTION:  A motion to approve the agenda, as amended, was made by TRUSTEE 
MORAN; seconded by TRUSTEE FEIGE. 

 
MR. HICKEY stated that a vote on the amendment should be taken first and then the amended 
agenda. 
 
CHAIR FISHER called the vote on the suggested amendment. 

 
After the roll-call vote, the MOTION was APPROVED.  (Trustee Feige, yes;  
Trustee Fimon, yes; Trustee Halterman, yes; Trustee Hickel, yes; Trustee Moran, yes; 
Trustee Morris, yes; Chair Fisher, yes.) 

 
CHAIR FISHER called for the vote for the amended agenda. 
 

After the roll-call vote, the MOTION was APPROVED.  (Trustee Feige, yes;  
Trustee Fimon, yes; Trustee Halterman, yes; Trustee Hickel, yes; Trustee Moran, yes; 
Trustee Morris, yes; Chair Fisher, yes.) 

 
ETHICS DISCLOSURES 
CHAIR FISHER asked for any ethics disclosures. 
 
TRUSTEE HICKEL stated that she was unsure about this because of the amendment just made.  
There was a grant for the Alaska Safety Alliance.  She stated that she was on that board from 
approximately 2009 until 2014.  She was chair of that board for a couple years, and is currently 
listed as chair emeritus, but is no longer involved with that organization, and has not been since 
2014. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
CHAIR FISHER moved to the approval of the February 5 and 6, 2025, minutes. 
 

16



Alaska Mental Health Trust Authority  3  Full Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes 
  May 21, 2025 
 

MOTION: A motion to approve the minutes of February 5 and 6, 2025, was made by  
TRUSTEE FIMON; seconded by TRUSTEE FEIGE. 
 
After the roll-call vote, the MOTION was APPROVED.  (Trustee Feige, yes;  
Trustee Fimon, yes; Trustee Halterman, yes; Trustee Hickel, yes; Trustee Moran, yes; 
Trustee Morris, yes; Chair Fisher, yes.) 
 

CHAIR FISHER moved the Special Full Board meeting minutes for March 28, 2025. 
 

MOTION:  A motion to approve the minutes from March 28, 2025, was made by 
TRUSTEE FIMON; seconded by TRUSTEE MORAN. 
 
After the roll-call vote, the MOTION was APPROVED.  (Trustee Feige, yes;  
Trustee Fimon, yes; Trustee Halterman, yes; Trustee Hickel, yes; Trustee Moran, yes; 
Trustee Morris, yes; Chair Fisher, yes.) 

 
CHAIR FISHER continued to the CEO update, and recognized Mary Wilson. 
 
CEO UPDATE 
CEO WILSON stated that Ms. Baldwin-Johnson wanted clarification on the previous 
amendment. 
 
COO BALDWIN-JOHNSON was seeking clarification on process.  The motion was to remove 
all of the grant review until a future Program & Planning Committee meeting.  She asked if that 
was the structure the Board is giving staff guidance on, that all proposals need to go through the 
Program & Planning Committee meeting before they come to the Board.  She was not sure that 
had been really clear with the new governance instructions. 
 
TRUSTEE MORAN stated that was her intention.  She was not aware of what would be on the 
agenda until hours before the agenda was published.  She would like to have more opportunity 
for the committee to review.  She noted that the Board has a fiduciary responsibility. 
 
COO BALDWIN-JOHNSON replied that was a good clarification for staff to have, because staff 
was operating on the assumption that all grants came to the Full Board.  But if the desire is to 
have the Program & Planning Committee review those, they would be happy to oblige. 
 
CHAIR FISHER asked for any other comments on the issue. 
 
TRUSTEE HALTERMAN stated that there may be a need to look at the bylaws because of the 
possibility of being a bit haphazard about the grants in the past.  She wants to make sure the 
bylaws reflect what was just done, because she did not think that they do.   
 
MR. HICKEY stated that he would look at that to make sure it is in compliance with the motion 
that was made.  
 
CEO WILSON stated that they had some staff strategic planning a month ago and shared some  
of the pictures sent in that were inspirational to them as members of the staff and the Trust.  They  
came together as a team and identified some staff priorities based on feedback from the trustees,  

17



Alaska Mental Health Trust Authority  4  Full Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes 
  May 21, 2025 
 

advocates, grantees, beneficiaries, and they did some good team-building.  She continued that the 
team had been engaging with partners, including at various beneficiary-related events, for 
instance, the Key Campaign, an event in Juneau for Alaskans with intellectual and 
developmental disabilities and their care givers and families.  Ms. Voelker-Ross attended and did 
a great job on behalf of the Trust.  CEO Wilson presented the Direct Provider of the Year Award 
at The Full Lives Conference hosted by the University of Anchorage; and Mr. Boyer presented a 
keynote address on the Behavioral Health Crisis Response Initiative at a recent Pathways to 
Recovery Conference, which was co-hosted by ANTHC and Alaska Office of Substance Misuse 
and Addiction Prevention in Anchorage.  She moved to the Legislature and stated that 
Legislative leadership, particularly the Senate, made it clear that an austere budget was 
necessary, and they are not seeing a lot of new spending.  She continued that the Governor would 
get the budget and have his ability to approve, reduce, or veto lines in it before June 30th, and she 
would keep the Board posted.  Lastly, there is potential to reduce Federal funding on programs 
that impact beneficiaries, including Medicaid.  There is not a lot of detail yet.  She moved to the 
aging Trust Authority building and that a decision about its future would be with trustees soon.  
The TLO contracted Agnew::Beck to conduct an analysis of the options that were presented to 
the Board last year and to generate any new options that are appropriate.  She continued that as 
part of the FY27 budget development process they fielded the stakeholder survey.  It was 
distributed, with the request to recipients to share with their networks.  257 people responded, 
which was not as high as last year, but still was valuable feedback.  Staff are summarizing the 
results which will be shared with trustees and partners in the future, and will be considered as 
part of the FY27 budget development process.  Next, the intellectual and developmental 
disabilities and the behavioral health mini-grant programs were updated, which she detailed.  She 
continued to the upcoming strategy planning, and shared some of the details.   
 
TRUSTEE HALTERMAN asked staff if they had looked at how the SAMHSA grants, which 
have an impact on the beneficiary-serving organizations, would be impacted statewide. 
 
TRUSTEE MORAN added that the community development block grants are also at risk of 
being cut, and that is how a lot of the organizations utilize funding to do facilities. 
 
CEO WILSON replied that she was meeting with leaders of nonprofits to share information, as 
well as with the Department of Health to try to keep all updated.   
 
TRUSTEE MORAN asked if staff had a chance to assess the impact on having a number of  
recommendations for additional funding included in the bare-bones budget. 
 
COO BALDWIN-JOHNSON clarified for additional MHTAAR funding and added that that 
conversation had not been had.  She continued that there are some options and some flexibility in 
2026 with award grant dollars. 
 
CHAIR FISHER asked about any contact from beneficiary organizations about any future needs.   
 
COO BALDWIN-JOHNSON replied that some of the grantees are very concerned, and we 
intend to engage in those conversations more directly and intently.  She reminded all that the  
intent of Trust funds is not to supplant State funds, but this is just an unusual and difficult time. 
 
CHAIR FISHER called a break until 8:40, when Public Comment begins. 

18



Alaska Mental Health Trust Authority  5  Full Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes 
  May 21, 2025 
 

 
(Break.) 
 
PUBLIC COMMET 
CHAIR FISHER called the board meeting to order and read the rules of Public Comment.  He 
introduced Shannon Cochran, the facilitator, who would recognize each person invited to speak.   
 
MS. COCHRAN recognized Karen Heath, in the room. 
 
MS. HEATH stated that she is the director of the University of Alaska Center for Human 
Development.  She continued that, this year, CHT programs have provided training and 
resources to thousands of Trust beneficiaries, their families, and service providers.  As a result of 
these supports, beneficiaries had access to guidance, education, and funding to grow their own 
businesses.  Providers are better prepared to help beneficiaries to explore healthy relationships 
and identify abuse.  She shared a brief report of some of the activities, and she thanked the 
trustees for providing the funding to address these needs over the years that accomplished the 
important work for Trust beneficiaries.  She respectfully asked that the Trust flat-fund them in 
FY27. 
 
MS. COCHRAN recognized Lance Johnson, online. 
 
MR. JOHNSON stated that he is the COO for the Alaska Behavioral Health Association and 
appreciated the opportunity to offer some comments to the Board and staff.  He thanked the 
Alaska Mental Health Trust Authority for the support over the years in his work as a behavioral 
health provider, and the work with health corporations to help establish a behavioral health 
treatment center, as well as the help with the Alaska Behavioral Health Association in 
developing a clinical supervisor academy to increase the competencies of the providers across 
the state.  He continued that increasing competencies is very important to the behavioral health 
provider field in the training and development of those competencies.  There are requirements by 
the State of Alaska for providers to have certain certifications, which he spoke about.  The 
Alaska Training Cooperative through the Center for Human Development at UAA, has been a 
vital partner in offering the trainings and the help to build the competencies in helping providers 
meet the requirements.  He stated appreciation to the Trust for supporting the Alaska Training 
Cooperative, and he encouraged continued support for them.    
 
MS. COCHRAN stated that Art Delaune was next, and then Philip Tafs. 
 
MR. DELAUNE welcomed all to Fairbanks and stated that he is a long-term Fairbanks resident 
with a family of five children.  Two of his youngest children experience developmental 
disabilities, both diagnosed with fetal alcohol spectrum disorder.  In addition, his youngest son 
has severe mental health issues; and his next older brother has substance abuse issues, and is 
currently in rehab.  His wife is a senior, experienced a traumatic brain injury and is also a Trust 
beneficiary.  He continued that he was there to thank the Trust for all the resources, benefits and 
services they helped produce in the State of Alaska.  Because of the need to support his sons and 
family, he was appointed to the Governor’s Council on Disabilities and Special Education where 
he focuses on the Legislature and advocacy for people, like his family, that are unable to 
advocate for themselves.  He asked the Trust for support and help in advocating to pass those 
bills for people with developmental disabilities, as well as the shared-vision statement passed  

19



Alaska Mental Health Trust Authority  6  Full Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes 
  May 21, 2025 
 

into law in 2018, and supportive decision-making agreements passed the same year.  These are  
important in that they allow people with developmental disabilities to live more independently.   
He added that he is concerned about the future.  He concluded by thanking the Trust, again, for 
the continued support. 
 
MS. COCHRAN recognized Philip Tafs, followed by Mike Goh. 
 
MR. TAFS stated that he is the owner of a small APA clinic in Anchorage, and is also the 
president-elect for the Alaska Association for Behavioral Analysis.  He was there to advocate for 
and answer questions on a grant that was before the Trust around complex care within the State.  
He continued that it is a small amount of funding to pull together some of the loose threads out 
there.  The complex care system is struggling very much, but it feels like it is starting to come 
back within the state.  This funding will help to pull together some comments and things that are 
happening within the system that sometimes get lost.  It is important funding.  He also discussed 
a bit about the Center for Human Development capacity-building process and their preventions 
program, which is also losing Federal funding.   Because of that program, there are now 87 
behavioral analysts in Alaska; the backbone of the complex behavior collaborative.   
 
MS. COCHRAN recognized Mike Goh, followed online by Walter Macistan. 
 
MR. GOH stated that he is there to express his opposition to the Mental Health Trust contract for 
transport with a particular emphasis on the importance of responsibility and liabilities of a 
landowner of Alaska.  He did purchase land from the Trust, and is also grateful for the services 
that the Mental Health Trust provides for the State.   In Alaska, landowners must be acutely 
aware of the potential liabilities associated with their actions, especially when it comes to 
activities that can impact local communities, wildlife, and ecosystems.  It is not just a legal 
obligation, but also a moral one.  He talked about the moose population around Lake 
Minchumina, which has been historically low.  Introducing transports into this area would lead to 
an increased disturbance to wildlife habitats, and subsistence resources vital to the local 
communities.  This increased disturbance can cause serious repercussions for the Mental Health 
Trust.  This is not about protecting assets, but also about safeguarding the cultural and ecological 
integrity of the community.  There is also a lack of community and tribal consultation in the 
process, which raises further liability concerns.  He urged the Board and the Mental Health Trust 
to carefully consider the liabilities associated with the contract.  The responsibilities of Alaska 
land ownership are profound, and he asked to work together to insure that the actions reflect the 
commitment to the stewardship and respect for the land and people who call it home. 
 
MS. COCHRAN recognized Walter Macistan, online.  Hearing no response, she then recognized 
Brenda McFarland, in the room. 
 
MS. McFARLAND stated that she works as the Crisis Now coordinator in Fairbanks, funded by 
the Trust.  She welcomed all and continued that she was there to testify about the longevity of 
funding mobile crisis teams.  She talked briefly about her background and experience.  She 
stated that the problem has always been that when a person actually sought help, the right help 
was never available.  She continued that Crisis Now is solving some of the problems faced, and 
it needs the Trust to fully commit to this challenge.  Needed are crisis teams that can serve whole 
regions either by telehealth or by going in person.  Needed are regional stabilization centers that 
accept 100 percent of the time.  It is not just individuals and family members and community 

20



Alaska Mental Health Trust Authority  7  Full Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes 
  May 21, 2025 
 

workers; it is first responders getting burned out by this.  She added that it took three years to get 
Alaska State Troopers to sign an agreement, which is the typical length of a grant cycle.  They 
are just starting, and are raving about it.  This is saving lives, and is really saving first 
responders’ mental health, as well. 
 
MS. COCHRAN recognized Lynette Falke, followed by Richard Bishop. 
 
MS. CLOYD stated that she was Wendy Cloyd, and that she was with Lynette Falke.  She works 
at Fairbanks Resource Agency and is a board member for Key Coalition of Alaska.  She is a 
parent and guardian of three individuals served by the Trust, who have intellectual and 
developmental disabilities, and they were there together to ask for the Trust to continue funding 
the Alaska Training Cooperative.  It plays a vital role in Alaska’s behavioral health and 
developmental disability systems by providing essential training and workforce development for 
the direct-support professionals who serve Mental Health Trust beneficiaries. 
 
MS. FALKE stated that she is with Fairbanks Resource Agency, as well.  The agency has been  
providing resources to individuals with intellectual and developmental disabilities for nearly 60  
years.  The Trust has been involved in a key part in helping assist the workforce, primarily by the 
impact, but also by AKTC that allows their DSPs to provide to the beneficiaries.  It is a great 
impact on a basic everyday level.  This year they have helped with five stipends to the Whole 
Lives Conference that have supported their DSPs.  She stated that $685,000 is needed, with that 
impacting the providers to all of the beneficiaries.  She added appreciation for their support and 
knows that they will continue to provide that. 
 
CHAIR FISHER stated that there were some audio difficulties and called a ten-minute break. 
 
(Pause.)   
 
CHAIR FISHER resumed the public comment period, and asked Ms. Cochran to continue. 
 
MS. COCHRAN recognized Richard Bishop, followed by Mary Bishop. 
 
MR. BISHOP stated that he lives in Fairbanks and is a retired wildlife biologist.  He praised and 
appreciated the Trust.  He continued that he was very concerned about the application for, and 
perhaps approval of, a permit for a commercial operation on Trust lands near Lake Minchumina.  
He was not clear on the details, but added that it is an activity not well adapted to the area where 
the application had been made.  He explained that it is an area of moderate productivity 
ecologically, of modest populations of wildlife, in particular, moose.  The resources there are 
used extensively by residents and visitors, friends and families.  He thought that the resources 
would be at great risk, and it is not a good idea for the country.  He hoped that the Trust Land 
Authority would look at vast areas of Trust lands that are not that far away where such an 
operation could be established with minimum effects on the wildlife or local populations.  He 
asked for some careful consideration to potential side effects of potential high-volume extractive 
uses of, particularly, the living resources from the Trust’s land.   
 
MS. COCHRAN recognized Mary Bishop, followed by Devon Doss. 
 
MS. BISHOP stated that she was the other half of Richard Bishop and knows that the Mental  

21



Alaska Mental Health Trust Authority  8  Full Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes 
  May 21, 2025 
 

Health Trust Authority has lots of land that needs management, and is in need of money for a  
very worthy cause.  Perhaps the Minchumina land deal was a new type of effort to raise money, 
but it was not approached correctly and resulted in a lot of upset people.  The land is not being 
sold but leased for a long period of time, with the potential for renewal of the lease.  She 
suggested going about it in a different way and offered her help in how to lease land to people 
who want to go hunting, because they are hunters.  But not the way this was done. 
 
CHAIR FISHER thanked Mrs. Bishop. 
 
MS. COCHRAN stated that Devon Doss was next and believed that would complete public 
comment for those here in the room.  She asked for any individuals online to raise their hands. 
 
MS. BRANSON stated that she was on the phone, and is Jeanette Branson.  She was calling from 
Anchorage and has been a caregiver for the last two years for her husband who has dementia and 
has entered into a new world of being a Trust beneficiary.  She has been a mental health aide for 
a long time.  She encouraged the Trust to continue supporting groups that provide help for 
people that are brand new in one of these situations like dementia or mental illness. She did not 
know where to turn or how to handle it.  Both NAMI and Alzheimer Support Association have 
helped her immensely.  She is still on NAMI’s board which is doing amazing work reaching out 
to young families through the school and in the pilot program.  She is proud to be part of that 
organization.  She thanked the Trust for what they do and for the opportunity to speak. 
 
MS. COCHRAN gave another call for anyone online wishing to provide public comment. 
 
CHAIR FISHER concluded Public Comment.  He stated that if anyone wished to give public 
comment, written comments are always welcome and may be submitted to the trustees at any 
time.  He shared the e-mail, as well as the address for mail.  He recognized Executive Director 
Warner for the Resource Management Report. 
 
RESOURCE MANAGEMENT REPORT 
E.D. WARNER began by requesting a trustee to read a motion into the record. 
 
TRUSTEE FEIGE stated that the following actions were proposed to the Full Board by the 
Resource Management Committee at the April 23, 2025, meeting. 
 

MOTION:  The Alaska Mental Health Trust Authority Board of Trustees concur with 
creating a pool of approximately 28 subdivision lots and small-to-large tract parcels to be 
subdivided that may be disposed of through the TLO’s statewide land sales program.  
The motion was made by TRUSTEE FEIGE; seconded by TRUSTEE HALTERMAN. 

 
CHAIR FISHER asked for a summary, and then a discussion. 
 
E.D. WARNER stated that this is done on an annual basis which frontloads the competitive land 
sale, and those parcels are also available for other ways of disposal through a land sale, a 
negotiated sale, the competitive land sale, or the OTC; but first is that competitive land sale.  She 
added that there was a technical error in the consultation about the acreage for parcel CRN 2556.  
The acreage listed was incorrect and the accurate acreage is 64.138 acres. 
 

22



Alaska Mental Health Trust Authority  9  Full Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes 
  May 21, 2025 
 

CHAIR FISHER asked for any questions or comments from the trustees.  There being none, he 
called the vote. 
 

After the roll-call vote, the MOTION was APPROVED.  (Trustee Feige, yes;  
Trustee Fimon, yes; Trustee Halterman, yes; Trustee Hickel, yes; Trustee Moran, yes; 
Trustee Morris, yes; Chair Fisher, yes.) 

 
TRUSTEE FEIGE stated that the next motion is for a negotiated sale of MHT 91-01408. 
 

MOTION:  The Alaska Mental Health Trust Authority Board of Trustees concur with 
disposal of Trust parcel C-20931 of approximately 14 acres through a negotiated sale or 
subsequent disposal.  The motion was made by TRUSTEE FEIGE; seconded by 
TRUSTEE MORAN. 

 
E.D. WARNER summarized that this is a negotiated land sale that is being sold for 52.47 percent  
above the appraised fair-market value.  It is slated to go to Sundance Mining Group, LLC, which  
proposes consolidating their land holdings and to continue their operation outside of Hollis. 
 
CHAIR FISHER asked for any comments or questions.  There being none, he called the vote. 
 

After the roll-call vote, the MOTION was APPROVED.  (Trustee Feige, yes;  
Trustee Fimon, yes; Trustee Halterman, yes; Trustee Hickel, yes; Trustee Moran, yes; 
Trustee Morris, yes; Chair Fisher, yes.) 

 
TRUSTEE FEIGE moved to the consultation on utility easement, MHT 9201031. 
 

MOTION:  The Alaska Mental Health Trust Board of Trustees concur with the disposal 
of a portion of Trust parcels SM-1523 and SM-1524 through a turn of nonexclusive 
easement to Chugach Electric Association.  The motion was made by TRUSTEE FEIGE; 
seconded by TRUSTEE HALTERMAN. 

 
E.D. WARNER stated that this is on the Community Park Loop parcel in Anchorage where the 
Trust Authority building sits.  Chugach Electric Association is taking an area line and burying it 
underground. 
  
CHAIR FISHER asked for any questions.  There being none, he called the vote. 

 
After the roll-call vote, the MOTION was APPROVED.  (Trustee Feige, yes;  
Trustee Fimon, yes; Trustee Halterman, yes; Trustee Hickel, yes; Trustee Moran, yes; 
Trustee Morris, yes; Chair Fisher, yes.) 

 
TRUSTEE FEIGE stated that next was another utility easement, MHT 201032. 
 

MOTION:  The Alaska Mental Health Board of Trustees concur with the disposal of a 
portion of Trust parcels S20524, S20554, S20556, S20560, and S20562, through a 30-
year term nonexclusive easement to Matanuska Electric Association.  The motion was 
made by TRUSTEE FEIGE; seconded by TRUSTEE MORAN. 

 

23



Alaska Mental Health Trust Authority  10  Full Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes 
  May 21, 2025 
 

E.D. WARNER explained that this is a transmission and distribution line out in Mat-Su Valley.  
It is north of the Parks Highway, west of Wasilla, and east of Meadow Lakes.  It is a 30-year 
term with an anticipated revenue of just over $226,000. 
 
CHAIR FISHER asked for any questions or comments. 
 
TRUSTEE FEIGE asked Ms. Warner to speak to, for education purposes, the aspects of this 
being a nonexclusive easement. 
 
E.D. WARNER explained that nonexclusive means that although they will have the 
authorization for this easement, there are other things that can be done on that land. 
 
CHAIR FISHER asked for any other comments.  There being none, he called the vote. 
 

After the roll-call vote, the MOTION was APPROVED.  (Trustee Feige, yes;  
Trustee Fimon, yes; Trustee Halterman, yes; Trustee Hickel, yes; Trustee Moran, yes;  
Trustee Morris, yes; Chair Fisher, yes.) 

 
TRUSTEE FEIGE moved on to MHT 9400899, also a utility easement. 
 

MOTION:  The Alaska Mental Health Trust Authority Board of Trustees concur with 
the disposal of a portion of Trust parcels F20286, F20288, F20289, F20298, F20299, 
F20309.001, F20309.002, F70015, and F70536, as depicted in exhibits, through a 30-year 
term nonexclusive easement to Doyon Limited, Inc.  The motion was made by 
TRUSTEE FEIGE; seconded by TRUSTEE HALTERMAN. 

 
E.D. WARNER stated that this is a fiber optic line that will bring high-speed fiber connectivity 
into the Yukon.  That is the goal of the overall project. 
 
CHAIR FISHER asked for any comments.  There being none, he called the vote. 
 

After the roll-call vote, the MOTION was APPROVED.  (Trustee Feige, yes;  
Trustee Fimon, yes; Trustee Halterman, yes; Trustee Hickel, yes; Trustee Moran, yes; 
Trustee Morris, yes; Chair Fisher, yes.) 

 
TRUSTEE FEIGE stated that the last consultation was a negotiated oil and gas lease, MST 
9300102. 
 

MOTION:  The Alaska Mental Health Trust Authority Board of Trustees concur with 
the negotiated lease of Trust land parcels S50560, S50561, SM-2434, SM-2435, SM-
2436, SM-2437, SM-2438, SM-2439, SM-2440-01, SM-2441, SM-2442, SM-2443, SM-
2445-B, and SM-2450 near Houston, Alaska, for the exploration and development of oil 
and gas resources.  The motion was made by TRUSTEE FEIGE; seconded by TRUSTEE 
HALTERMAN. 

 
E.D. WARNER stated that this was out in the Mat-Su Valley and is a five-year term.  However, 
it can be continued indefinitely by production. 
 

24



Alaska Mental Health Trust Authority  11  Full Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes 
  May 21, 2025 
 

CHAIR FISHER asked for any comments or questions.  There being none, he called the vote. 
 

After the roll-call vote, the MOTION was APPROVED.  (Trustee Feige, yes;  
Trustee Fimon, yes; Trustee Halterman, yes; Trustee Hickel, yes; Trustee Moran, yes; 
Trustee Morris, yes; Chair Fisher, yes.) 

 
TRUSTEE FEIGE apologized as she turned the page and found two more.  This is for a mineral 
lease, MHT 9400921. 
 

MOTION:  The Alaska Mental Health Trust Authority Board of Trustees concurs with 
the negotiated lease of Trust mineral estate of F20410 on Dome Creek for the processing 
of placer gold, as proposed.  The motion was made by TRUSTEE FEIGE; seconded by 
TRUSTEE MORAN. 

 
E.D. WARNER stated that this is a placer lease in the Greater Fairbanks Mining District.  They 
are working on extracting placer gold from the historic stockpile tailings. 
 
CHAIR FISHER asked for any other questions or comments.  Hearing none, he called the vote. 
 

After the roll-call vote, the MOTION was APPROVED.  (Trustee Feige, yes;  
Trustee Fimon, yes; Trustee Halterman, yes; Trustee Hickel, yes; Trustee Moran, yes; 
Trustee Morris, yes; Chair Fisher, yes.) 

 
TRUSTEE FEIGE stated that this last one is a consultation for a ground lease, MHT 9400917. 
 

MOTION:  The Alaska Mental Health Trust Authority Board of Trustees concur with 
the negotiated surface lease for waste rock storage for a portion of Mental Health Parcel 
F70015 to Fairbanks Gold Mining, Inc., to facilitate the continued operations at the Fort 
Knox Mine.  The motion was made by TRUSTEE FEIGE; seconded by TRUSTEE 
HICKEL. 

 
E.D. WARNER stated that they need to expand their waste rock disposal to continue their 
operations.  It will be a ten-year term, unless reclamation happens before that.   She continued 
that after the Resource Management Committee meeting, they were approached with a need for 
an additional 120 acres, still a portion of the same parcel.  The motion remains the same; it is just 
a larger footprint, which also means more money. 
 
CHAIR FISHER asked for any other questions.  There being none, he called the vote. 
 

After the roll-call vote, the MOTION was APPROVED.  (Trustee Feige, yes;  
Trustee Fimon, yes; Trustee Halterman, yes; Trustee Hickel, yes; Trustee Moran, yes; 
Trustee Morris, yes; Chair Fisher, yes.) 

 
PROMONTORY POINT 
CHAIR FISHER moved to Promontory Point.   
 
TRUSTEE FIEGE stated that she had a motion to go into Executive Session. 
 

25



Alaska Mental Health Trust Authority  12  Full Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes 
  May 21, 2025 
 

MOTION:  A motion that the Alaska Mental Health Trust Authority Board of Trustees 
enter into Executive Session pursuant to the Alaska Open Meetings Act, AS 
44.62.310(c)(1) and (c) (3), to discuss the disposition of the Promontory Point property in 
Texas, and a separate issue.  The discussion on the promontory point disposition will 
include matters that will have an immediate material effect on the finances of the Trust 
and legal advice from our counsel.  The second issue will involve discussion with counsel 
and staff concerning possible litigation.  Identifying the subject of the possible litigation 
would defeat the purpose of discussing it in private.  Accordingly, the subject is not 
required to be identified in the motion under AS 44.62.310(b).  The motion was made by 
TRUSTEE FIEGE; seconded by TRUSTEE HALTERMAN. 
 
After the roll-call vote, the MOTION was APPROVED.  (Trustee Feige, yes;  
Trustee Fimon, yes; Trustee Halterman, yes; Trustee Hickel, yes; Trustee Moran, yes; 
Trustee Morris, yes; Chair Fisher, yes.) 

 
CEO WILSON introduced RCLCO, consultants who will be in the Executive Session, as  
well.    
 
(Executive Session from 9:54 a.m. until 11:17 a.m.) 
 
TRUSTEE FEIGE and her fellow trustees returned to the Full Board of Trustees’ meeting from 
the Executive Session.  She stated that during the Executive Session, the Board of Trustees only 
discussed the items identified in the motion to move into Executive Session.  The Board of 
Trustees did not take any action while in Executive Session other than to give direction to our 
counsel. 
 
CHAIR FISHER stated that what they did not do was introduce RCLCO, a consultant and 
property consultant group that were contracted by the Trust about a month ago.  They will 
introduce themselves so everyone is aware who they are and what role they will fulfill for the 
Trust with regard to commercial real estate. 
 
MR. POPPER stated that RCLCO stands for Robert Charles Lesser & Company.  The firm has 
been around for 60 years and has grown to over $100 billion in real estate equity value.  They 
serve investors in multiple countries and resource overseas investments across a really broad 
variety of property types and risks spectrums.  They have over 100 employees across a half 
dozen regional offices, including in Austin, Texas.  He continued that the firm is an SEC-
registered advisor.  They do not own assets, but oversee a $14.5 billion real asset portfolio.  In 
collaboration with their clients, they set strategy, recommend managers to implement.  They 
work on business plan execution and approve budgets and financing and approve major leases 
and sales.   He stated that their broad scope of work with the Alaska Mental Health Trust, which 
was started a month ago today, is to provide asset management and reporting for the properties, 
including oversight of the property managers and brokers, and to position the properties for 
economically optimized disposition.  They will also manage the disposition process.  He 
continued that one of the first items on their list is to review the budgets and the business plan, 
and they started this assignment in time to work on the budget, which is the item for discussion.   
 
CFO FARLEY asked Mr. Popper to introduce himself and Natalie. 
 

26



Alaska Mental Health Trust Authority  13  Full Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes 
  May 21, 2025 
 

MR. POPPER stated that he is the director of property operations for RCLCO and has been with 
the firm about 4.5 years.  He has 30-plus years of real estate experience starting out as a lender 
for big real estate projects in New York City, and he worked in asset management, loan 
workouts, and operations of real estate.  He is very familiar with the product type and is a very 
skilled and accomplished real estate professional.  He stated that Natalie has been with the firm 
for two years, and he asked her to introduce herself. 
 
MS. CONDON stated that she started her career in 2018 after graduating, studying finance at Cal 
Poly of San Francisco, at PNC Bank working in their servicing asset management for a couple of 
years, and then switched to a real estate developer.  She started at RCLCO about two years ago, 
helping with asset management stuff, serving portfolios, including student housing, office, and 
retail and multifamily.  She stated that she is excited to be working on this portfolio. 
 
CHAIR FISHER thanked them and stated appreciation for the introduction.  There being no  
other comments or questions, he moved into real estate property budgets. 
 
REAL ESTATE PROPERTY BUDGETS 
MR. POPPER began with a quick overview on the budget process, explaining it in greater detail.  
They reviewed the actuals, added the budget expenses, the operating expenses, leasing costs and 
such, and then noted that trustees have been presented with the final product.  The overall budget 
reflects occupancy for the portfolio starting at 54.8 percent leased on July 1st and growing 
incrementally for new and renewal leasing to 62 percent.  He continued through the presentation, 
and added that this was his first budget with the trustees and that he would be happy to address 
any questions. 
 
TRUSTEE MORRIS noticed that Commercial Drive was not on the spreadsheet.  He asked if 
they were not helping with this property, and if so, what was the reason for having the whole 
portfolio except one. 
 
CFO FARLEY replied that that property would continue to be managed by the Land Office, and 
that property’s budget would be presented in their budget documents.   
 
TRUSTEE MORRIS asked why the consultant was engaged to manage most of the portfolio, but 
not all of the portfolio. 
 
CEO WILSON explained that at the Resource Management Committee meeting it was decided 
and elected through the trustees to have that property remain with the TLO to manage.   
 
CHAIR FISHER stated that there were a couple of motions, and began with the Promontory 
Point loan payoff, which was discussed in Executive Session. 
 
TRUSTEE FIMON thanked Mr. Popper for the presentation.  He continued that the Promontory 
Point property currently had an unpaid balance in the amount of $8,346,649, and due to some 
credits, a net amount of $6,770,000 is due to be paid on or before July 1st, 2025. 
 

MOTION:  The Alaska Mental Health Board of Trustees authorizes the CFO to utilize 
budget reserves funds to satisfy the loan balance due on July 1, 2025, for Promontory 
Point in the amount of $6,770,000.  Further, the CEO is authorized to approve payment 

27



Alaska Mental Health Trust Authority  14  Full Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes 
  May 21, 2025 
 

of the loan balance on or before July 1, 2025, as may be required by the lender.  The 
motion was made by TRUSTEE FIMON; seconded by TRUSTEE MORAN. 
 
After the roll-call vote, the MOTION was APPROVED.  (Trustee Feige, yes;  
Trustee Fimon, yes; Trustee Halterman, yes; Trustee Hickel, yes; Trustee Moran, yes; 
Trustee Morris, yes; Chair Fisher, yes.) 
 
MOTION:  The Alaska Mental Health Board of Trustees approves the Fiscal Yeat ‘26 
expenditures for Promontory Point, Amber Oaks, and North Park totaling $7,765,459.  
The expenditures are to be paid by the property manager for Amber Oaks and North Park 
from rents, cash reserves, and other income collected from the property.  The 
expenditures for Promontory Point shall be paid via the Central Facilities Fund, and the 
CEO, as manager, is authorized to expend Central Facility Funds for Promontory Point 
expenditures and any expenditures for North Park and Amber Oaks resulting from a 
shortfall in revenue.  The motion was made by TRUSTEE FIMON; seconded by 
TRUSTEE MORAN. 
 

TRUSTEE MORRIS asked if this motion was open-ended and limited, or if it has a cap on 
maximum outlay. 
 
CFO FARLEY replied that the maximum outlay is the amount listed in the motion.  She added 
that the outlay was limited to $7,765,459. 
 

After the roll-call vote, the MOTION was APPROVED.  (Trustee Feige, yes;  
Trustee Fimon, yes; Trustee Halterman, yes; Trustee Hickel, yes; Trustee Moran, yes; 
Trustee Morris, yes; Chair Fisher, yes.) 

 
CHAIR FISHER asked if there was anything else on the real estate property budgets, or anything 
else in this part of the agenda. 
 
E.D. WARNER replied that there were two proposed motions in the packet, and asked for a 
trustee to read it into the record. 
 

MOTION:  The Alaska Mental Health Trust Authority Board of Trustees approve the 
incremental building expenditures for the program-related real estate portfolio totaling 
$1,004,521, budgeted for fiscal year 2026.  The expenditures are to be paid by the 
property managers from rents, cash reserves and other income collected from the 
properties and/or Central Facilities Fund.  The motion was made by TRUSTEE MORAN; 
seconded by TRUSTEE HALTERMAN. 

 
E.D. WARNER asked David MacDonald to continue. 
 
MR. MacDONALD stated that they were asking for a total of $1,004,521 to operate the 
program-related real estate portfolio.  Specifically, this includes the Cordova Asset, the Trust 
Authority Building asset, the property on Nichols Street, which is occupied by Assets, Inc.  It 
also includes the sobering center and Fahrenkamp properties in Fairbanks.  He noted that the last 
two properties are on individual leases right now.  However, they were submitting a below- 
market lease with Alaska Behavioral.  Those were put into the budget because of the timing of 

28



Alaska Mental Health Trust Authority  15  Full Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes 
  May 21, 2025 
 

that lease.  Once that lease is complete and approved, those two properties’ budgets will drop off.  
He explained the rest of the budget, and asked for any questions.   
 
TRUSTEE MORRIS stated that he was surprised to hear that the other tenants in the building 
were moving out.  He asked when and why that was happening. 
 
MR. MacDONALD replied that the specific tenant is Colliers, and those assets have been sold 
off and rolling to the below-market deals, they were given less business, and it was less 
important for them to be across the hallway. 
 
TRUSTEE MORRIS misunderstood and asked if all the kids in the school and the Trust 
Authority Building would still be there. 
 
MR. MacDONALD apologized and stated that he was referring to the turnover in the Cordova  
building.  He continued that the Trust Authority Building had not been adequately maintained.  
There is potential building system catastrophic failure, and we are not in a position to guarantee 
the space that the school district would be habitable.  He explained that that was the reason for 
the Agnew::Beck study.  He added that the school would be moving out at the end of June when 
their lease runs out.  He noted that the building is operating on a day-by-day basis.   
 
TRUSTEE MORRIS stated that the assessment is that it is safe today, but they do not know if it 
will be safe during the term of the lease. 
 
MR. MacDONALD replied that they cannot make any long-term commitments to the building 
being a functioning building.   
 
CEO WILSON stated that she toured the building, and it does not look like it is about to fall 
down, but looking behind the scenes shows some definite issues.  It is not catastrophic.  The 
issue is that if something goes wrong with the heat and it is freezing in there, no one can stay 
there.   
 
TRUSTEE HALTERMAN added that this has to do with the HVAC system that is failing.   
 
MR. MacDONALD noted that with the lack of income, there would be expenses to the building.   
He estimated that approximately $365,000 would be needed from the CFF to get it through the 
year. 
 
CHAIR FISHER thanked him for the notification and called the vote. 
 

After the roll-call vote, the MOTION was APPROVED.  (Trustee Feige, yes;  
Trustee Fimon, yes; Trustee Halterman, yes; Trustee Hickel, yes; Trustee Moran, yes; 
Trustee Morris, yes; Chair Fisher, yes.) 
 
MOTION:  The Alaska Mental Health Trust Authority Board of Trustees approves the 
incremental building expenditure for 2618 Commercial Drive totaling $836,004, 
budgeted for fiscal year 2026.  The expenditures are to be paid by the property manager 
from rents, cash reserves and other income collected from the property and the Central 

29



Alaska Mental Health Trust Authority  16  Full Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes 
  May 21, 2025 
 

Facility Fund.  The motion was made by TRUSTEE FIMON; seconded by TRUSTEE 
MORAN. 
 

MR. MacDONALD stated that this was solely for the 2618 Commercial Drive property.  The 
$836,004 is $700,000 greater than last year.  The reason for that pertains to the lease that 
Cummins, Inc., has, which expires next fiscal year.  There is $210,000 for the lease-up, and also 
$500,000 for the expenditures, which is primarily for replacement of the roof, which is old and in 
poor condition.  To continue on in the lease and continue to provide revenues from that property, 
those sums will need to be expended.  He noted that this is not asking for a CFF draw at this 
time.   
 
TRUSTEE MORAN asked if the sale does not go as anticipated, if this will be back before the 
Board to make that CFF draw. 
 
MR. MacDONALD replied yes. 
 
TRUSTEE MORRIS stated that it appears that the bulk of the request is for fiscal year ‘26, so 
not an urgent need, but something for the future.   
 
E.D. WARNER stated that this budget year is for fiscal year ’26, beginning July 1st.  We need 
this to be done in order to know the budget we are working with through this potential disposal 
in the negotiations.  She continued that approval was needed before they can obligate money.   
 
TRUSTEE MORAN asked if staff actively solicited offers on this property. 
 
MR. MacDONALD replied that there were multiple offers, and there is a negotiation underway.  
For the property, the lease is the most critical at this stage. 
 
CHAIR FISHER asked for any other questions.  There being none, he called the vote. 
 

After the roll-call vote, the MOTION was APPROVED.  (Trustee Feige, yes;  
Trustee Fimon, yes; Trustee Halterman, yes; Trustee Hickel, yes; Trustee Moran, yes; 
Trustee Morris, no; Chair Fisher, yes.) 

 
CHAIR FISHER called ten minutes to get lunch to bring back to the table, and then to proceed 
with the agenda. 
 
(Lunch break.) 
 
FINANCE COMMITTEE REPORT 
CFO FARLEY stated that the committee met on April 23 and noted on the third paragraph of the 
memo that there is a reference to FY26, which is a motion tied to FY25.  She shared some good 
news about the staff development:  Kat Roch, budget controller, recently obtained a certification 
from the Government Finance Officers Association.  She is now a CPFO, Certified Public 
Finance Officer, which is a designation that is the CPA equivalent in public finance that consists 
of seven tests.  She studied budgeting, reporting, and a multitude of other areas of expertise.  She 
has been at the Trust for ten years, and is a great resource with a lot of experience in public 
finance.  Another important point is that she has taken the full authorized FY25 payout from the 

30



Alaska Mental Health Trust Authority  17  Full Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes 
  May 21, 2025 
 

budget reserves managed by APFC.  This has been done in full in two parts, and will be looked 
at in November when trustees approve the FY26 payout.  She continued that there were two 
motions passed at the recent meeting.  The first one was on the spending analysis which was 
presented by Steve Center and Julia Moriarty from Callan. 
 

MOTION:  The Alaska Mental Health Trust Authority Board of Trustees approves an 
annual withdrawal rate of 4.5 percent.  The CFO shall update the Asset Management 
Policy Statement with this rate and present an updated Asset Management Policy for 
approval at the next meeting of the Finance Committee.  This payout of 4.5 percent shall 
first become effective for the development of the fiscal year ’27 budget.  The motion was 
made by TRUSTEE HALTERMAN; seconded by TRUSTEE FIMON. 

 
CFO FARLEY stated that if there were any questions, Steve Center is available online.  He 
presented the report in full, and it was included in trustees’ materials.   
 
TRUSTEE FEIGE stated that the trustees wanted to take a very conservative approach to the 
spending rate.  She had some reservations about increasing even by .25 percent at this juncture, 
just for conservative reasons.  She asked for a quick update on what Callan is seeing relative to 
markets, and to reframe around this spending rate. 
 
CHAIR FISHER called a five-minute break. 
 
(Break.) 
 
CHAIR FISHER stated they were back online, and asked Trustee Feige to continue. 
 
TRUSTEE FEIGE asked Mr. Center to remind the trustees of the discussion at the committee 
around the increase from 4.25 percent to 4.5 percent.   
 
MR. CENTER stated that he presented along with his colleague, Julia Moriarty, who had to drop 
for another client meeting.  The initial findings actually covered the ability for the Alaska Mental 
Health Trust Authority to increase their spend rate from 4.25 percent all the way up to 4.75.  
Much of this was driven by the overall asset allocation structure of the Permanent Fund, along 
with the assets held by DOR.  The expected return of those assets as a whole is high enough to 
accommodate a higher spend even with the projected 10-year inflation rate of 2.5 percent.  He 
explained in greater detail and stated that with the asset allocation structure of the Alaska Mental 
Health Trust Authority, they were very comfortable with increasing the spending rate.   
 
CHAIR FISHER stated that during the committee meeting there was quite a discussion on the 
amounts and the recommendations.  The recommendations are what is possible to take out versus 
what should be taken out and what the need is for the beneficiaries.  All of those have to be taken 
into account.  
 
CHAIR FISHER asked Trustee Morris if he had any questions. 
 
TRUSTEE MORRIS replied that he did not have any questions.  For the reason that was  
discussed extensively at the committee meeting, he stated that he does not support making this  
change at this time.   

31



Alaska Mental Health Trust Authority  18  Full Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes 
  May 21, 2025 
 

 
CHAIR FISHER asked for any other comments.  There being none, he called the vote. 
 

After the roll-call vote, the MOTION was APPROVED.  (Trustee Feige, yes;  
Trustee Fimon, yes; Trustee Halterman, yes; Trustee Hickel, yes; Trustee Moran, no; 
Trustee Morris, no; Chair Fisher, yes.) 

 
CFO FARLEY stated there was one more motion for consideration.  The committee reviewed 
the investment allocation for the budget reserves managed by the Department of Revenue, which 
is an annual process.  There is a new recommended asset allocation, and she asked for the 
motion. 
 

MOTION:  The Alaska Mental Health Trust Authority’s Board of Trustees approves the 
following asset allocation for budget reserves managed by the State of Alaska 
Department of Revenue, effective July 1, 2025.  For the asset allocation broad U.S. 
equity, the target holding is 28 percent; target range is plus or minus 5 percent.  For 
international equity asset allocation, the target holding is 22 percent; target range is plus 
or minus 5 percent.  For the asset allocation of core U.S. fixed income, the target holding 
is 49 percent; the target range plus or minus 5 percent.  For the asset allocation of cash 
equivalents, the target holding is 1 percent; target range negative 1 percent plus 2 percent.  
Just to note, that on a core U.S. fixed income, it may include up to 12 percent in tactical 
fixed income.  The motion was made by TRUSTEE HALTERMAN; seconded by 
TRUSTEE FIMON. 

 
CFO FARLEY stated that Steve Sikes is the investment officer, but he is no longer on the line.  
She continued that this asset allocation was recommended by Callan and represents a lower-risk 
profile.  We hold a more fixed income on this.  That is part of the reason Callan lowered their 
recommended payout rate from the Phase 1. 
 
CHAIR FISHER asked for any questions.  There being none, he called the vote. 
 

After the roll-call vote, the MOTION was APPROVED.  (Trustee Feige, yes;  
Trustee Fimon, yes; Trustee Halterman, yes; Trustee Hickel, yes; Trustee Moran, yes; 
Trustee Morris, yes; Chair Fisher, yes.) 

 
FY26 BUDGET AMENDMENTS 
CHAIR FISHER moved into the budget amendments presentation.  
  

MOTION:  The Board of Trustees approves amending the FY26 budget to update the 
following budget area:  Non-focus Area Allocations:  Allocate the FY26 mini-grants for 
beneficiaries experiencing mental illness, chronic alcoholism, substance use disorder, and 
intellectual and developmental disabilities to Information Insights.  This modification 
does not alter the total amount of the FY26 budget.  The motion was made by TRUSTEE 
HALTERMAN; seconded by TRUSTEE FIMON. 

 
COO BALDWIN-JOHNSON explained that this is just naming the contractor though a 
competitive process.  It does not change any dollar figures, and it is a simple amendment.   
 

32



Alaska Mental Health Trust Authority  19  Full Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes 
  May 21, 2025 
 

TRUSTEE MORAN stated that there had been discussions on how the payment to the contract is  
very low, which makes this an unappealing project for folks.  She talked about revisiting that. 
 
COO BALDWIN-JOHNSON stated that the question is to adjust the amount paid to the 
contractor, and she referred to Luke Lind about it. 
 
MR. LIND replied that the procurement process for that was done.  If we went out for a new  
Contract, then the upper threshold of the potential contract amount could be set. 
 
TRUSTEE MORAN asked about the duration of this contract. 
 
MS. KELLER replied that it is a one-year contract with one more one-year renewal. 
 
CHAIR FISHER asked for any other questions.  There being none, he called the vote.   

 
After the roll-call vote, the MOTION was APPROVED.  (Trustee Feige, yes;  
Trustee Fimon, yes; Trustee Halterman, yes; Trustee Hickel, yes; Trustee Moran, yes; 
Chair Fisher, yes.) 

 
FY27 BUDGET PROCESS 
COO BALDWIN-JOHNSON gave an update on the steps for the FY27 budget development.  
There is an obligation to develop a two-year budget cycle, and we are approaching the second 
year for 2027.  There is also an obligation to submit the budget by September 15th, and to make 
recommendations for the MHTAAR receipts, as well as GF recommendations.   She also talked 
about the request for recommendations process. 
 
MR. LIND described what was involved with the recommendation process. 
 
TRUSTEE HALTERMAN stated that the process was changed.  She observed the need for some 
education on how the advisers weigh in on the budget.  Staff does vet the requests through the 
advisers, and it would be beneficial for all trustees to have a recurring training on how the budget 
deliberation process works out so they understand some of the risks associated with allowing 
people to come late in the budget process to start making demands, which may not be 
appropriate requests.  She added that she would like to see this better managed in the future. 
 
COO BALDWIN-JOHNSON appreciated those comments which is what is behind the 
formalizing of the process and making sure that is communicated to the advisers.   
 
TRUSTEE MORAN cautioned on being consistent with what the advisory boards are required to 
do for justification.   
 
MR. LIND moved to the budget spreadsheet and stated that it is a draft of an updated budget 
spreadsheet, just organized a little differently.  He went through the draft, answering questions as 
he explained the different sections.   
 
TRUSTEE MORAN stated that she was not opposed to this.  She wanted to be sure that there  
was some way the trustees could know if there is overspending in one area so that those  
resources are not exhausted when there are other areas that need considerations. 

33



Alaska Mental Health Trust Authority  20  Full Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes 
  May 21, 2025 
 

 
COO BALDWIN-JOHNSON noted that as an important comment.   
 
CHAIR FISHER stated that they should understand how a partnership line item is being 
expended by different categories and focus areas, and it should be tracked. 
 
COO BALDWIN-JOHNSON agreed, and stated that they would want to plan to track that 
connected to the ways of tracking in the strategy document. 
 
CEO WILSON thanked Mr. Lind and Ms. Baldwin-Johnson.  Understanding the budget-making 
and strategic process is daunting, and they are really looking for it to be simple and flexible, but 
still adhere to what is possible within the statutory regulations, how to be a good partner, and 
improving mental health in the State of Alaska.  This is a first pass, and is a lot simpler when 
looking at this. 
 
CHAIR FISHER asked for any other comments. 
 
TRUSTEE FIMON agreed with what was stated, but noted that the best way for the public is to 
see action and sometimes reaction in getting the information out.  He felt that when they were 
working on that and making adjustments, the public got to see, react, and we heard some things.   
 
MS. BALDWIN-JOHNSON stated that it will be a balance because direct public comment 
cannot be replaced or the advocacy from individuals there to advocate.  She continued that staff 
wants to structure it and try to improve the process. 
 
CHAIR FISHER thought that was all good, and added they want to support the staff with the 
process.   
 
MAYOR’S WELCOME 
CHAIR FISHER stated that there was a representative from the City of Fairbanks here to 
welcome us, and stated his appreciation for the good weather provided.  He recognized Michael 
Sanders. 
 
MR. SANDERS stated that he has talked to the trustees several times over the last many years 
and continued that this is a special event for him.  He continued that he is the chief of staff for 
the City of Fairbanks, and it is truly an honor to be the person representing the City to welcome 
the Alaska Mental Health Trust Authority to Fairbanks.  His very first job in the city was a Trust-
funded position: the housing and homeless coordinator back in 2017.  It has been quite the 
journey.  Since the Trust funded that position, this community has reduced homelessness by 17 
percent.  He contributed a lot of this to Kelda Barstad, one of the program officers for the Trust.  
With her guidance, and the Trust funding, they developed a rapid rehousing program that for 
years was the best housing intervention that the State had.  It worked exceptionally well.  He 
stated that we stayed with what works.  In 2019, Kelda introduced him to Katie Baldwin, Eric 
Boyer, and Travis Welch.  They wanted to come to Fairbanks to talk about Crisis Now.  He will 
never forget on Halloween Day in 2019, City Hall was absolutely packed with folks that showed 
up to hear about Crisis Now from the Trust.  It was the first public meeting in Fairbanks about 
Crisis Now, and City Hall was packed.  Anyone who has been in Fairbanks on Halloween knows 
that City Hall is packed with little kids in the afternoon.  At that point, he was still the housing 

34



Alaska Mental Health Trust Authority  21  Full Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes 
  May 21, 2025 
 

guy, and he worried about the capacity in the chamber.  In 2021, the Trust, the Center for Living, 
Alaska Behavioral, and the City launched a mobile crisis team that follows the crisis model to a 
T.  It has been overwhelmingly successful.  The City is currently dispatching it through the 911 
dispatch center, and will ultimately go to 988.  He continued that the next phase for Crisis in 
Fairbanks needs to be the stabilization center.  It will work here because they are going to follow 
the model and because there is a population of Trust beneficiaries that have fallen through the 
cracks on a daily basis.  The City is doing what it can.  He noted that there is nothing that the 
Alaska Mental Health Trust Authority could do that is more important than what Crisis Now 
provides.  He thanked trustees for all the support given to the City of Fairbanks and the entire 
community.   He also talked about the reentry program and Marsha Oss, their entry coordinator 
funded by the Trust.  They have served hundreds, if not thousands, of Trust beneficiaries.  This 
year she has housed 140 justice-involved individuals, so far.   He thanked the trustees, and gave 
them a warm welcome to Fairbanks. 
 
CHAIR FISHER thanked Mr. Sanders, and continued to the community panel. 
 
COMMUNITY PANEL 
CHAIR FISHER stated that on the community panel is Brenda McFarlane, Crisis Now 
community coordinator in the city of Fairbanks; Sarah Koogle, director of adult services, Alaska 
Behavioral Health; and Dr. Kyle Dexter, behavioral health aide director, Tanana Chiefs 
Conference.  He welcomed them and thanked them for joining the trustees today. 
 
MR. BOYER thanked the panelists and stated that he would ask questions.  He began with  
Dr. Dexter and asked him to introduce himself. 
 
DR. DEXTER stated that he is a clinical psychologist from Fairbanks.  He went to Denali, then 
Orion, West Valley, attended UAA for undergrad, and completed his doctoral program through 
UAF; the joint program with UAA.  Currently, he is the behavioral health aide program manager 
for TCC.  He provides clinical supervision, managerial support for behavioral health aides, and is 
involved in the reentry program at TCC.  He continued that his success is because of their 
people.  The behavioral health aides are life-long community members of their own villages.  
They possess unique insight, expertise, and knowledge into their own communities, indigenous 
culture, and the specific needs of their villages.   
 
TRUSTEE FEIGE asked how many communities he services under the TCC umbrella, and how 
many aides does he have. 
 
DR. DEXTER replied that TCC serves approximately 42 communities with a full spectrum of 
services; not just mental health.  Twenty of those communities have agreements with TCC to 
provide behavioral health services.  There are eight full-time behavioral health aides in the 
various communities, and a lot of agencies.  They send clinicians to those 20 villages to provide 
care on a quarterly basis. 
 
MR. BOYER stated that it was great to hear about someone home-grown coming up through the 
system.  Trustees should know that previous trustees have approved funding that supported that 
community clinical psyche program through UAF and UAA.  He recognized Sarah Koogle. 
 
MS. KOOGLE stated that she is the clinical director at Alaska Behavioral Health at Fairbanks  

35



Alaska Mental Health Trust Authority  22  Full Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes 
  May 21, 2025 
 

and has been with Alaska Behavioral Health for 10-plus years.  She has also worked at other  
agencies around town.  When they first started talking about a mobile crisis team, they kept 
hearing that is was being done backwards, and they needed the stabilization center.  They made it 
work, but it showed that the gap was the lack of a stabilization center.  She added that Fairbankds 
is special because they do a great job with very little resources.  Alaska Behavioral Health has 
done a tremendous job as far as growth in Fairbanks.  They have the mobile crisis team, partial 
hospitalization, and did intensive case management for a while.  Their adult mental health 
treatment center is called Tamarack, and they are only looking to expand with a stabilization 
center.  There is the need for a lot of resources to help out.  They need a building; staff, because 
of a lot of vacancies.  There is the need for program management because they do things through 
fidelity at Alaska Behavioral Health, which is one of the reasons that their mobile crisis team is 
so successful.  They also need their partnerships within the community.   
 
MR. BOYER thanked Ms. Koogle, and introduced Brenda McFarlane. 
 
MS. McFARLANE works at the City of Fairbanks with the grant funded by the Trust.  It has 
been a really good fit for supporting the work of crisis services.  She likes that the position is 
located from a neutral party.  They are able to forward all the opportunities that come through to 
agencies, and support agencies willing to do the no-wrong-door model.  She has worked at 
emergency shelters and knows that sometimes a person in your location needs sedation, but there 
is not medical staff available.  She encourages no-wrong-door.  She shared that in 2024 the 
mobile crisis team had 800 requests for service from the Fairbanks Emergency and 
Communication Center.  They are increasing their call volume; another success.  She stated that 
the biggest success has been getting Alaska State Troopers to fully engage with the mobile crisis 
teams.   
 
TRUSTEE MORAN asked with the new and ever-changing Federal funding environments, what 
is their biggest fear and what is the biggest thing the Trust should be looking out to support their 
system. 
 
MS. McFARLANE stated that she wanted money from Murkowski for the stabilization center 
and did not have to go to the Trust.  She wanted to go to the Trust for the operations gap.  When 
that fell apart, it was a big disappointment for the stabilization center.  She wanted to stick with 
the Trust for operation funds rather than capital. 
 
MS. KOOGLE replied that is a question that all of the employees at AKBH have been asking 
senior leadership.  Alaska Behavioral Health is fiscally responsible, but they have had stuff 
slashed from the budget; and they continue monitoring, but are ceasing BHC.  They have been 
impacted by the changing federal environment. 
 
DR. DEXTER replied that he does not really know or have a full insight into the financial aspect 
or the implication.  He supervises a primarily rural team with a lot of openings.  If they closed a 
position, there may be funding available.  He added that he is not the best person to reply to the 
question. 
 
TRUSTEE MORAN asked if they were seeing any abatement at all of the fentanyl issues. 
 
MS. KOOGLE replied that the best people from her team to answer are in the back. 

36



Alaska Mental Health Trust Authority  23  Full Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes 
  May 21, 2025 
 

 
A SPEAKER replied that, through her experiences, just being able to have Narcan on hand and 
know that family members have it or have access to it has been really impactful in the types of 
calls they get.  Personally, she has found that she is not responding to the same houses for the 
same issues over and over.  Sometimes those same houses, but for different presenting concerns. 
 
DR. DEXTER replied that he could not speak to fentanyl specifically, but overall substance use 
concerns have experienced a decrease.  That may be in part to the hard work done to expand 
services, reduce barriers to access to care, and the ability to receive quicker services.  He was not  
sure that there was an overall decrease. 
 
MR. BOYER thanked them for their flexibility and taking the time to come.  He continued that 
this helps staff and the trustees to be able to have an idea of what is dealt with and what is seen.  
He hoped they would be at the reception at Lavelle’s at 5:30 to have some more conversations. 
 
DR. DEXTER stated that the first time he ever presented to the Trust, he was a graduate student 
and thinks the program was requesting additional funding for an assistantship.  He did not know 
the ultimate outcome, but the Trust invested in the program, and it really did produce 
psychologists that were committed to providing care in Alaska and stayed in Alaska.  He thanked 
them for that.   
 
CHAIR FISHER thanked Mr. Boyer, and thanked the panel for sharing their experiences.   
 
STATUTORY ADVISERS 
COO BALDWIN-JOHNSON stated that the statutory advisers were online and would present 
remotely.  First on the agenda is Kermit Wilson, and Leah Van Kirk with the Department of 
Health.  Mr. Wilson will present on behalf of the Alaska Mental Health Board and the Advisory 
Board on Alcoholism and Drug Abuse. 
 
MR. WILSON stated that he was the new executive director for the boards and the Suicide 
Prevention Council.  He has been on the job six weeks, and his report comes from his research 
and reading to understand the history of the boards and council over the last quarter.  He would 
be going through six elements:  leadership, purpose, stakeholder engagement, alignment, 
stakeholder report, and moving forward.  He gave a brief background on himself and his family.  
He was grateful for the support of partners that helped open doors throughout the whole year, 
and he recognized them.  He stated that the organization structure of the board is complex and, 
while appointed by the Governor, they also sit within the Division of Behavioral Health for 
budgeting, staffing, and managing State employees.  He continued that it is important to keep an 
eye on their purpose and mission, which brings focus and directs the work.  The purpose of the 
board is just to advocate, advise, plan, and coordinate behavioral health services.  He went 
through their duties and functions and continued through their direct partnership with affiliated 
partners and stakeholders.   
 
MS. VAN KIRK stated that she was working with the boards as they move forward.  One of the 
things done this past quarter was trying to focus on how they were building and reviewing 
partnerships in alignment across the Division, the Department, the boards, the Alaska Mental 
Health Trust Authority, and the executive committee.  She talked about a meeting on March 6th 
and highlighted some of the outcomes.  She provided some advocacy updates that occurred  

37



Alaska Mental Health Trust Authority  24  Full Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes 
  May 21, 2025 
 

during the last quarter.   
 
MR. WILSON gave an advocacy update, and he noted that the boards wrote letters signed by the 
board chairs and delivered to the Legislature.  He was able to participate in public testimony on a 
couple of other changes.  He talked about different site visits, and the effective work done by the 
residential youth services. 
 
MS. VAN KIRK spoke about the overall communications that includes timelines related to the  
work over the year.  All of this is to support how to work the goals in, how the boards integrate 
and intersect with the comp plan, and how their roles and responsibilities align and contribute to 
that work.   
 
MR. WILSON talked about some of the staffing updates and one of the administrative order 
plans impacting that.  They had 21 applicants vetted; which was whittled down to seven; and that 
moved down to two.  They came highly recommended, great credentials, great history, ready to 
go and able to be hired.  The advocacy coordinator and the public health informaticist were 
posted on Workplace Alaska.  He stated that they were in a challenging time and when you are 
challenged you have to get creative.  Their upcoming meeting is on Zoom, June 12th, 9:00 a.m. to 
2 p.m.  They are also planning a fall meeting for Kodiak. 
 
COO BALDWIN-JOHNSON stated that next on the agenda was Yasmin Radbod with the 
Alaska Commission on Aging. 
 
ALASKA COMMISSION ON AGING 
MS. RADBOD stated that she was the rural outreach coordinator for the Trust, and had been for 
several years.  She has moved into the program coordinator position at the Alaska Commission 
on Aging.  She shared their visit to YK Delta while at Bethel for the Cama-I Festival at the end 
of March.  They traveled with Dr. Steffi Kim from UAA in Anchorage who does dementia 
education and research.  It was a fantastic trip.  She added that there was a lot of great feedback 
from this trip.  She highlighted how their overall senior population was increasing, especially the 
Alaska Native senior population.  She projected that the population projecting through 2055 
shows that the 55-plus population will continue to grow for the next decade, and then will slow.  
By the middle of the 2030s, the Department of Labor estimates that the current 115,000 will 
increase to around 135,000 individuals age 65 and older.  Seniors will rise from the current 16 
percent to 18 percent, and after that the total will decline somewhat with an increased death rate, 
plus a smaller generation entering their senior years, bottoming out in the 2040s at around 
128,000.   There will be more services and more supports for individuals, especially the older 
they are.  She continued that the Alzheimer’s Association recently put out their 2025 facts and 
figures; their annual update.  She noted that the Alzheimer’s Association is working on funding a 
part-time position in Alaska in the next six to nine months.  Their regional coordinator is super 
engaged and ready to get that position rolling, and will have them work closely with us, as well.  
She stated that what they recommended to Alzheimer’s Resource of Alaska was a referral 
system.  The link shows that in Nova Scotia they have a simple online form that a doctor can fill 
out to make a referral for a client to get services from their Alzheimer’s Society.  She would love 
to see a similar system in Alaska that would really help connecting people to the resources they 
need sooner.   Alaska was represented among applicants to the Dementia Innovation Grant 
through the Alzheimer’s Association.  The funding was half of what it was last year, but they did 
have an applicant representing Alaska.  She continued that Alaska did apply for a Hospice 

38



Alaska Mental Health Trust Authority  25  Full Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes 
  May 21, 2025 
 

organization and they were waiting to see if that works out.  Alzheimer’s Association has a job 
opening for a public policy director in Alaska.  Elizabeth Bowling moved to something else in 
government affairs and will be missed.  She also highly recommended looking at the 
Congressional Budget Office proposed budget plan.  She added that they were also working at 
canceling their freeze on travel, and were putting a focus on publication and a new statewide 
senior services summary.  She is also working on getting tribal authorization to use Title VI data. 
 
TRUSTEE HICKEL was curious about the comments about the anticipated growing population 
of people who identify as Alaska Native.  She looked at two points of data, and one was positive 
health factors leading to greater longevity.  The other factor is the dilution of shares to the Alaska 
Native corporations, because as they open their roles, more people are being accepted as 
shareholders, which probably leads to them identifying as Alaska Native.   
 
MS. RADBOD stated that she will check with the Department of Labor and Workforce 
Development.   
 
GOVERNOR’S COUNCIL ON DISABILITIES AND SPECIAL EDUCATION 
COO BALDWIN-JOHNSON introduced Patrick Reinhart, the executive director for the 
Governor’s Council on Disabilities and Special Education, and Jena Crafton, the chair of the 
Governor’s Council on Disabilities and Special Education. 
 
MR. REINHART recognized that their chair, Jena Crafton, is coming to the end of her term.  She 
is the first person with an intellectual and a developmental disability to serve as the chair in 50 
years.  She has been an unbelievable leader and great advocate.  He does not think that ending 
her chairmanship will end her advocacy any time soon.  He addressed a couple of activities, 
including an overview of the legislative session, Federal budget issues. 
 
MS. CRAFTON reported that on April 15, six people were drawn for the IDD label.  IDD is 
intellectual disabilities, with 11 for ISW, Individualized Supports Waiver.  Since July, 76 people 
were drawn from IDD; 106 were ISW.   Currently, there are 2,130 people on IDD waivers; and 
594 on ISW.   Then 249 people on IDD registry only; 41 people on the ISW register only; 193 
people for both waivers. 
 
MR. REINHART stated that there is a link in the presentation to the 2024 IDD Registry Report 
put out by the Department of Health, Senior Disability Services.  The numbers are unduplicated 
except for people on both the IDD and the ISW waivers.   
 
MS. CRAFTON talked about the Key Campaign.  They met with all the senators, representatives 
at the Capitol in Juneau and went to the Governor’s Mansion to meet with the Lieutenant 
Governor.  It was a big turnout and a lot of fun.  Senator Murkowski also showed up to present, 
and she also got a little flower from the hospital agency for always helping out with disabilities.   
 
MR. REINHART stated that they are working on the housing initiatives within the Council and 
are trying to do a PSA about housing options for people with IDD.  That is an area that their 
committee inclusion supports committee wants to work on.  They are working on realizing that 
shared vision.  That work being done with multiple partners and groups across the state is called 
Shared Vision 2.0.  He talked a bit about beneficiary employment news.  Years ago, the Trust 
helped to start this project, but it is no longer funded by the Trust.  They still support it; and 14 

39



Alaska Mental Health Trust Authority  26  Full Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes 
  May 21, 2025 
 

interns in the ‘23-‘24 cohort are already employed.  He mentioned that the micro-enterprise 
reviews were done in April.  They had eight applicants, and seven were approved for $28,000.  
One was a traumatic brain injury; two were developmental disability; four were mental illness; 
and one substance-use disorder.  Multiple presentations by state conferences like Full Lives 
about employment, the Alaska Special Education Conference and other events were done at  
places like the Mat-Su Job Fair.  He asked Ms. Crafton to talk about what’s happening. 
 
MS. CRAFTON stated that the Spring Council Meeting is May 28th and 29th at the Anchorage 
Governor’s Office, and will meet from 9:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m.  The Fall Council meeting is 
October 6 and 7; and Winter Council Meeting will be February 3rd to 5th in Juneau. 
 
MR. REINHART stated that he listened to the discussion about the higher percentage of payout 
being considered.  He strongly urged trustees to go to the highest level they could.  He also 
commented on a few of the other discussions and presentations.  He added that there was only 
one developmental disability group in the budget, which is ADDs, an perhaps a proposal in there 
on a provider-led initiative to address complex-care consumers. 
 
CHAIR FISHER called a break. 
 
(Break.) 
 
CHAIR FISHER called the meeting back to order and moved to a contract approval and a grant 
budget amendment.  He noted that there is the need to have an election for a board secretary.  He 
recognized Ms. Baldwin-Johnson. 
 
COO BALDWIN-JOHNSON began with the contract approval memo, and asked for the motion 
to be read. 
 

MOTION:  The Board of Trustees approve $60,000 for the Mental Health Supports in 
Schools Community of Practice Facilitator Contract.  These funds will come from the 
Partnership/Designated Grants line of the FY25 budget.  The motion was made by 
TRUSTEE MORAN; seconded by TRUSTEE FIMON. 

 
MS. VOELKER-ROSS stated that the Trust issued a request for proposal for this work in 
January of 2024.  The Stellar Group was the successful offeror, and the initial contractor began 
in February 2024, with three one-year renewal options.  The request is to approve funding for the 
first of these contract renewal options.  The contract focuses on facilitating a community of 
practice with school districts and community behavioral health providers.  The community of 
practice associated with this contract is focused on developing mental health supports in schools 
through a multi-tiered system that incorporates community organizations and families.  Mental 
health supports in schools have impact points in prevention and intervention.   This programming 
will not only reach Trust beneficiaries, but will reach a wide range of students, such as students 
who may be hesitant to reach out for mental health support.   
 
MS. KELLER clarified that this is an approval for the continuation of a one-year renewal of a  
contract that was awarded last January.  The contract has three one-year renewal options, and  
this is the first of those three renewals.   
 

40



Alaska Mental Health Trust Authority  27  Full Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes 
  May 21, 2025 
 

MS. VOELKER-ROSS introduced Iris Matthews from the Stellar Group who implemented the  
contract and finished it up recently.  She asked her for some of the school information. 
 
MS. MATTHEWS stated that she is the president of the Stellar Group, and the firm has been 
facilitating the Mental Health in Schools Community of Practice.  The last community of 
practice session with the schools was on Friday, and they did a post-evaluation survey.  The 
results were quite positive from the participants.  They reported that the presentations were 
enjoyed.  She continued that they invited different school districts to present on different aspects 
of their services to create that peer learning community and the community of practice.  She also 
asked if they were satisfied with their experiences, and 100 percent of the respondents said that 
they were.  They felt it was a place where they were able to speak about their own experiences, 
and they had the opportunity to contribute to discussions.  They all reported that they looked 
forward to attending and that the topics were interesting and relevant to their work.  Overall, it 
was found that they were quite satisfied and enjoyed being part of a learning community, and to 
begin to be able to learn from each other, ask questions, and share their experiences. 
 
CHAIR FISHER stated that, if the Board decides to renew the contract, he would request a report 
so that the satisfaction is of the organizations that received this service in the future. 
 
MS. MATTHEWS added that one of their deliverables is an annual report which was submitted 
just today.  That will definitely be provided in the future. 
 
MS. VOELKER-ROSS added that in the packet there is a section of initial contract outcomes to 
review.   
 
TRUSTEE MORAN shared her experiences in starting a mental health program that actually 
placed mental health counselors in the high school initially.  That was successfully placed into 
elementary schools.  In looking at this contract, she thinks that they are teaching these people 
how to do that within their own community.    
 
CHAIR FISHER asked for any other questions.  There being none, he called the vote. 
 

After the roll-call vote, the MOTION was APPROVED.  (Trustee Feige, yes;  
Trustee Fimon, yes; Trustee Halterman, yes; Trustee Hickel, yes; Trustee Moran, yes; 
Chair Fisher, yes.)  

 
COO BALDWIN-JOHNSON moved to the next item, an Authority Grant budget amendment to 
the Association of Alaska School Boards. 
 

MOTION:  The Board of Trustees approves a budget amendment for FY25 Project 
Transform/Mental Health Consultation in Schools Grant with the Association of Alaska 
School Boards.  The motion was made by TRUSTEE FIMON; seconded by TRUSTEE 
HALTERMAN.  

 
MR. LIND stated that they are bringing any requested budget amendments to the trustees  
for consideration.  The basics on this one is they were requested to do a budget modification to  
make some changes.  It does not impact the deliverables or the project scope.  It is merely 
moving some budget lines to help AASB manage these funds and some other funds they receive.   

41



Alaska Mental Health Trust Authority  28  Full Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes 
  May 21, 2025 
 

 
CHAIR FISHER called the vote. 
 

After the roll-call vote, the MOTION was APPROVED.  (Trustee Feige, yes;  
Trustee Fimon, yes; Trustee Halterman, yes; Trustee Hickel, yes; Trustee Moran, yes; 
Chair Fisher, yes.) 

 
CHAIR FISHER moved to the next agenda item, which is an election.  They were in need of a 
new secretary.  He asked for a nomination for secretary. 
 

MOTION:  A motion was made to nominate TRUSTEE HALTERMAN as secretary for 
the Alaska Mental Health Trust Authority; the motion was made by TRUSTEE FEIGE; 
seconded by TRUSTEE FIMON. 

 
CHAIR FISHER asked for any more nominations three times.  He called a vote on Trustee Anita 
Halterman becoming the secretary of the Board. 
 

After the roll-call vote, the MOTION was APPROVED.  (Trustee Feige, yes;  
Trustee Fimon, yes; Trustee Halterman, yes; Trustee Hickel, yes; Trustee Moran, yes; 
Chair Fisher, yes.) 

 
CHAIR FISHER congratulated Trustee Halterman.  He stated that that was the last item of 
business in a public forum.  He continued that they would move into Executive Session and 
would be discussing how to make adjustments for emergency needs of the beneficiaries and 
beneficiary organizations.   
 

MOTION:  A motion was made that the Alaska Mental Health Trust Authority Board of 
Trustees enter into Executive Session pursuant to the Alaska Open Meetings Act AS 
44.62.310(c)(1) and (3) to discuss with staff and counsel the Trust’s options regarding the 
recent Federal Government cutbacks in funding.  The discussion will include matters that 
will have an immediate material effect on the finances of the Trust and legal advice from 
counsel.  The motion was made by TRUSTEE HALTERMAN; seconded by TRUSTEE 
FIMON.  
 
After the roll-vote, the MOTION was APPROVED.  (Trustee Feige, yes;  
Trustee Fimon, yes; Trustee Halterman, yes; Trustee Hickel, yes; Trustee Moran, yes; 
Chair Fisher, yes.) 

 
(Executive Session from 3:42 p.m. until 4:46 p.m.) 
 
TRUSTEE HALTERMAN stated, for the record, that she and her fellow trustees are returning to 
the Full Board of Trustees’ meeting from the Executive Session.  During the Executive Session, 
the Board of Trustees only discussed the items identified in the motion to move into Executive 
Session.  The Board of Trustees did not take any action while in Executive Session other than to 
give direction to counsel. 

 
MOTION:  A motion to adjourn the meeting was made by TRUSTEE MORAN. 
 

42



Alaska Mental Health Trust Authority  29  Full Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes 
  May 21, 2025 
 

After the roll-call vote, the MOTION was APPROVED.  (Trustee Feige, yes;  
Trustee Fimon, yes; Trustee Halterman, yes; Trustee Hickel, yes; Trustee Moran, yes; 
Chair Fisher, yes.) 

 
(Alaska Full Board of Trustees meeting adjourned at 4:47 p.m.) 

43



 

Page 1 
 

ALASKA MENTAL HEALTH TRUST AUTHORITY 

BYLAWS 

 

ARTICLE I 

NAME 

 

The name of this organization is the Alaska Mental Health Trust Authority. 

 

ARTICLE II 

PURPOSE OF THE AUTHORITY 

 

The Alaska Mental Health Trust Authority acts in the best interest of the beneficiaries of the trust. 

It is accountable to: 

 

 (a) Provide for sound governance, fiduciary oversight and direction in achieving the 

mission of the Trust Authority; 

 

 (b) Ensure an integrated, comprehensive mental health program for the State of Alaska in 

partnership with the Department of Health and the Department of Family and Community 

Services; and 

 

 (c) Preserve, protect, and grow the trust corpus and administer trust assets. 

 

ARTICLE III 

BOARD OF TRUSTEE MEMBERSHIP AND TERMS OF OFFICE 

 

Section 1. Trust Authority board of trustees composition: 

 

(a) The Trust Authority shall be governed by its board of trustees. 

 

(b) The Trust Authority board of trustees, hereafter referred to as the board, consists of seven 

members appointed by the governor in accordance with AS 44.25.210 and confirmed by the 

legislature. 

 

Section 2. Term of office, vacancies, and removal: 

 

(a) The members of the board serve staggered five-year terms. A member shall continue to 

serve until the member's successor is appointed and confirmed by the legislature. 

 

(b) A vacancy occurring in the membership of the board shall be filled within 60 days by 

appointment of the governor for the unexpired portion of the vacated term. 

 

(c) The governor may remove a member of the board only for cause per AS 44.25.220. 

 

(d) Except for a trustee who has served two consecutive five-year terms, a member of the 

44



 

Page 2 
 

board may be reappointed. A member of the board who has served two consecutive five-year 

terms is not eligible for reappointment to the board until one year has intervened as per 

AS 44.25.220(d). 

 

ARTICLE IV 

BOARD OF TRUSTEE DUTIES 

 

Section 1. The role of the board is to: 

 

(a) Set the vision for the organization; 

 

(b) Set policies for the organization, including adoption of regulations as appropriate under 

AS 44.25.240; 

 

 (c) Adopt charters that define the role, authority, operating procedures, duties, and 

responsibilities of the board and standing committees; and 

 

 (d) Approve contractual agreements with advisors as defined in statute and the settlement 

agreement, specifically Alaska Permanent Fund Corporation (APFC), Department of Natural 

Resources (DNR), and Statutory Advisory Boards. 

 

 (e) Fulfill the duties listed in AS 37.14.007(b)(1)-(12). 

 

Section 2. The board will conduct business in accordance with AS 44.25.250. 

 

ARTICLE V 

OFFICERS AND DUTIES 

 

Section 1. The board, by a majority vote of its membership, shall annually elect a Chair, Vice 

Chair, and Secretary from its membership. 

 

Section 2. The officers will be elected by a majority vote at the annual budget approval meeting, 

and officers’ terms of office commence upon adjournment of that meeting. Officers’ terms of 

office end effective at adjournment of the meeting in which new officers are elected. 

 

Section 3. Officers may be re-elected to the office in which they serve by vote of the membership 

of the board as above. The board’s intention is to allow board members the opportunity to serve in 

officer roles in support of ongoing board development. To that end, no member may serve more 

than 2 consecutive terms in the same office except as provided for by affirmative vote of 5 board 

members. 

 

Section 4. If the office of the Chair becomes vacant, the Vice Chair succeeds to the office of the 

Chair and serves until an election held at the next board meeting. The newly elected Chair will 

serve until the next annual election. 

 

45



 

Page 3 
 

Section 5. Except for the office of Chair, if an office of the board becomes vacant, an election 

shall be held to fill the vacancy at the next regular meeting following the vacancy. The officer will 

serve until the next annual election. 

 

Section 6. The duties of the officers shall be as follows: 

 

(a) Chair 

 

1. Call all meetings. Preside at all meetings. 

 

2. Appoint chairs of committees and appoint members of ad hoc committees.  

 

3. Serve as ex-officio non-voting member of all committees, but may not concurrently 

serve as board Chair and chair of any standing committee, with the exception of the 

Executive Committee. 

 

4. Act as primary spokesperson for the board. 

 

5. Act as one of the official spokespersons for the Trust Authority, together with the 

Chief Executive Officer (CEO)  and others as directed by the Board. The Chair of the Board 

shall have the authority to designate another Trustee to act as the official spokesperson for the 

Trust Authority in the Chair’s discretion. 

 

(b) Vice Chair 

 

1. Assist the Chair in the discharge of his/her duties. 

 

2. Perform the duties of the Chair in the absence or incapacity of the Chair. 

 

3. Perform other duties as assigned by the board. 

 

(c) Secretary 

 

Assume duties of the Chair when Chair and Vice Chair are unavailable. Perform other duties as 

assigned by the board. 

 

Assure that the records of board proceedings are maintained in accordance with these bylaws and 

in accordance with AS 37.14.007(b)(2) and the Records Management Act (AS 40.21). 

 

ARTICLE VI 

MEETINGS 

 

Section 1. The board will hold four regular meetings each fiscal year. Committees will meet as 

necessary to accomplish their responsibilities. 

 

 

46



 

Page 4 
 

Section 2. Special or emergency meetings of the board may be held at such time and place as the 

Chair may order; or upon the written request to the Chair of any four trustees. 

 

Section 3. Reasonable public notice of board and committee meetings shall be provided in 

accordance with AS 44.62.310. Meetings of the board and its committees are subject to the Open 

Meetings Act, AS 44.62.310 and 44.62.312. 

 

Section 4. A quorum at all board meetings shall consist of four board members. A quorum at 

committee meetings is a majority of the committee’s members. 

 

Section 5. No member of the board may designate a proxy. 

 

Section 6. The board will schedule at least one period for public comment during each regularly 

scheduled board meeting. 

 

Section 7. Formal actions by the board are accomplished through adoption of motions. 

 

ARTICLE VII 

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD 

 

There will be five standing committees of the board. Standing committee chairs  will be appointed 

by the Chair after polling the board regarding individual trustee’s interest and ability to serve. 

Standing committee chairs will appoint the members to that standing committee after polling 

individual trustee’s interest and ability to serve. A member may serve as chair of only one standing 

committee at any time except as a stand-in until the next regularly scheduled board meeting. 

Standing committees will have a minimum of 3 committee members. The board chair may 

designate ad hoc committees to accomplish special purposes. Persons other than board members 

may serve on the board's ad hoc committees; however, such persons may not be voting members 

of such committees, only appointed board members may vote on committee actions. Committee 

recommendations will be reported to the board for action at the next regular board meeting. 

 

Section 1. The Executive Committee of the board is composed of three board officers, the Chair, 

the Vice Chair, and the Secretary. The Executive Committee will: 

 

 (a) Ensure development of policies for governing the Trust Authority for approval by the 

board. 

 

 (b) Oversee implementation of governance policies at the direction of and on behalf of the 

board in accordance with law and the committee charter adopted by the board. 

 

 (c) The Executive Committee will meet only as needed. 

 

Section 2. The Resource Management Committee will, in consultation with the CEO and the TLO 

ED: 

 

47



 

Page 5 
 

 (a) Ensure development of policies for protecting, enhancing, and managing the trust’s non-

cash resources in the best interests of the beneficiaries for approval by the board. 

 

 (b) Oversee implementation of plans at the direction of and on behalf of the board in 

accordance with law and the committee charter adopted by the board. 

 

Section 3. The Program and Planning Committee will, in consultation with the CEO and Chief 

Operating Officer.: 

 

 (a) Ensure development of policies to meet needs and improve the circumstances of 

beneficiaries; and recommends to the board for approval. 

 

 (b) Oversee implementation of plans at the direction of and on behalf of the board in 

accordance with Trust Authority statutes and regulations and the committee charter adopted by the 

board. 

 

Section 4. The Finance Committee will, in consultation with the CEO and Chief Financial Officer 

(CFO): 

 

 (a) Ensure development of policies for investment and fiscal management for approval by 

the board. 

 

(b) Oversee implementation of approved investment and fiscal management policies on 

behalf of the board in accordance with Trust Authority statutes and regulations and the committee 

charter adopted by the board. 

 

Section 5. The Audit and Risk Committee will, in consultation with the CEO and CFO: 

 

 (a) Ensure development of policies for managing the annual audit process and identifying 

and addressing organizational risk for approval by the board. 

 

 (b) Oversee implementation of approved audit and risk management policies on behalf of 

the board in accordance with Trust Authority statutes and regulations and the committee charter 

adopted by the board. 

 

ARTICLE VIII 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 

 

Section 1. The board shall select and employ a Chief Executive Officer as provided by law. 

 

Section 2. The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for day-to-day operations of the Trust 

Authority including planning, organizing, coordinating, and directing all activities necessary to 

enable the Trust Authority to exercise its powers and duties, and fulfill the purpose of the Trust 

Authority. The CEO will operate and conduct the business and affairs of the Trust Authority 

according to the statutes, regulations, bylaws, policies, and charters adopted by the board. The 

48



 

Page 6 
 

CEO duties and responsibilities shall be set forth in a CEO Job description to be adopted by the 

board. 

 

Section 3. The Chief Executive Officer shall oversee administration of the contract with the Trust 

Land Office on behalf of the Trust Authority to ensure compliance with AS 37.14.009(a)(2). 

 

Section 4. The board will evaluate the Chief Executive Officer's performance annually in writing. 

The board will define the process for conducting annual reviews and include it in the Board’s 

Governance Manual. 

 

Section 5. The CEO serves at the pleasure of the Board. Termination of employment of 

the Chief Executive Officer is by majority vote of 

the board. 

 

ARTICLE IX 

PARLIAMENTARY AUTHORITY 

 

Unless otherwise provided by law or these bylaws, the board’s procedures shall be governed by 

Robert's Rules of Order Newly Revised. The Chair may appoint an appropriate person to serve as 

parliamentarian. 

 

ARTICLE X 

ETHICS 

 

Board members are required to comply with the Alaska Executive Branch Ethics Act (AS 39.52) 

and AS 44.25.210(c)(2). 

 

ARTICLE XI 

AMENDMENT OF BYLAWS 

 

These bylaws may be amended at any meeting of the board. Amendment of these bylaws requires 

5 affirmative votes of board members provided that written notice and copies of the proposed 

amendment have been submitted to the members 30 days prior to the meeting, or by unanimous 

vote without notice. 

 

ARTICLE XII 

DEFINITIONS 

 

In these bylaws, 

 

The Alaska Mental Health Trust means the sum of all assets owned by the Alaska Mental 

Health Trust as established by the Alaska Mental Health Trust Enabling Act, P.L. 84-830, 70 Stat. 

709 (1956) and the Mental Health Settlement Agreement (June 10, 1994), including cash and non-

cash assets. 

 

49



 

Page 7 
 

The Alaska Mental Health Trust Authority (the Trust Authority) means the entity charged 

with administering the trust, as trustee, is governed by a seven-member board. (AS 37.14.007, 

AS 44.25.200, AS 44.25.210) 

 

The Trust Land Office (TLO) means the unit of the Alaska Department of Natural Resources 

that is charged with managing the trust’s natural resources, land, and other fixed assets. 

(AS 44.37.050) 

 

Regular Meeting means each of the four board meetings required to be held each year.  

 

Special Meeting means any board meeting other than a regular meeting, including an emergency 

meeting. 

 

Emergency Meeting means any board meeting conducted for the purpose of addressing time 

sensitive matters that may not be capable of resolution within the statutory or delegated authority 

of the Executive Committee or the CEO. If an emergency meeting is conducted on less than the 

customary public notice, public notice shall be published as soon as practicable. If the agenda of 

an emergency meeting is not available in advance, the agenda will be published as soon as 

practicable after the emergency meeting. 

 

Approved by the Board of Trustees of the Alaska Mental Health Trust Authority on November 

13, 2024 and by motion of the Board effective on January 1, 2025. 

 

 

 

              

Brent Fisher, Chair     Rhonda Boyles, Secretary 

 

50



Trustee Training - 
Executive Branch 

Ethics Act

51



 
Statutory Advisor 

Update 
 

• Alaska Mental Health Board /  
Advisory Board on Alcoholism & 
Drug Abuse  

• Alaska Commission on Aging 
• Governor’s Council on Disabilities 

and Special Education 
 
 

 

52



3745 Community Park Loop, Ste. 200 • Anchorage, AK 99508 • Tel: 907-269-7960 • Fax: 907-269-7969 • alaskamentalhealthtrust.org 

 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT GUIDELINES 
PURPOSE The public comment period allows individuals to inform and advise the Alaska Mental Health 

Trust Board of Trustees about issues relating to Trust beneficiaries, grants, lands, assets, or other 
Trust business. It is not a hearing.  
 

WHEN  Public comment periods are provided during all regular meetings of the full board of trustees. 
Full board meetings usually are held in late January, May, September, and November.  

 A public comment period may be available during other trustee meetings based upon 
recommendations by staff or trustees. 

 Meeting schedules, agenda, materials, and participation information are posted on the Trust’s 
website: https://alaskamentalhealthtrust.org. 

  
PROTOCOL  Individuals wishing to provide public comment are encouraged to sign up in advance.   

 Individuals are invited to speak for up to three minutes.  
 A speaker may be granted the latitude to speak longer than the 3-minute time limit only by the 

Chair or by a motion adopted by the Full Board of Trustees. 
 Speakers must be respectful of the board of trustees and all meeting attendees and are not 

permitted to criticize or attack others. The Chair maintains the right to stop public comments 
that contain inappropriate or inflammatory language or behavior. 

 If after 10 minutes no one has called in to provide public comment, the meeting will resume. 
 

FREQUENTLY ASKED QUESTIONS 
How can I 
provide 
comments during 
the meeting? 

 Sign up in advance by emailing public.comment@mhtrust.org by 5 p.m. the night before the 
meeting. 

 Indicate if you will be commenting in-person or remotely and include your full name, 
telephone number, organization (if applicable), and the topic of your public comment. 

 While pre-registration is not required, public comment will begin with those who have pre-
registered.  

 If you are participating remotely, please ensure you are connected to the meeting at the 
beginning of the public comment period and ready to speak when the Chair calls your name. 

 
What if I cannot 
provide comment 
during the 
meeting? 

 If you are unable to attend the public comment period, or if public comment concludes before 
you have a chance to provide public comment, written comments may be sent at any time via 
email or mail:   

 Email: public.comment@mhtrust.org  
 Mail: 3745 Community Park Loop Suite 200, Anchorage AK 99508 
 

What is the 
process for 
commenting on 
Trust land 
projects?  

Trust land is managed by the Trust Land Office (TLO) on behalf of the Trust Authority, and 
written public comment is sought on a per-project basis. Public notices with instructions for 
submitting public comment are posted on the Trust Land Office website, through the State of 
Alaska Online Public Notices, and in local newspapers. Following the comment period, the TLO 
may affirm, revise or rescind the best interest decision regarding the project.  
 

For additional 
information: 

Allison Biastock, Chief Communications Officer  
907-334-2531 or allison.biastock@alaska.gov 
 

53

https://alaskamentalhealthtrust.org/
mailto:public.comment@mhtrust.org
https://alaskamentalhealthtrust.org/trust-land-office/
http://aws.state.ak.us/OnlinePublicNotices/
http://aws.state.ak.us/OnlinePublicNotices/
mailto:allison.biastock@alaska.gov


Audit Update 

54



Updated 
Commercial Drive 

FY26 Budget

55



The Alaska Mental Health Board of Trustees approves the revised Fiscal Year ‘26 expenditures 
for Commercial Drive totaling $839,390.  The expenditures are to be paid by the property 
manager from rents, cash reserves, and other income collected from the property.  Should 
additional funds be needed to fund the approved budgeted amount, the CEO, as manager, is 
authorized to expend Central Facility Funds for Commercial Drive expenditures.  

Background 
The TLO presented, and the Trustees approved, the FY26 budget of $836,004 for Commercial 
Drive on May 21, 2025. After management of Commercial Drive was transferred to RCLCO, 
RCLCO developed an updated FY26 budget and projected cash flow for the property. Although 
the net increase to the budget is relatively minor amount of $3,386, the specific line items that 
will be reported in the budget-to-actual monthly reporting have changed materially. Adopting a 
revised budget reflects the asset manager’s expectations for the property and will ensure more 
meaningful budget-to-actual reporting in FY26. Trustees received the revised FY26 budget with 
detail via email on July 24, 2025.  

Additionally, staff is including the CEO authorization to expend Central Facility Funds (CFF) for 
Trustee approved Commercial Drive expenditures. This authorization was previously granted for 
the other Commercial Real Estate properties managed by RCLCO.  

FY26 Expenditure Budget - Commercial Drive 
 approved by Trustees 

May 2025  
 revised RCLCO 

budget  difference 

Owner expenses     61,862 132,866 71,004 

Lease-Up Costs (capitalized)   210,237 142,619 (67,618) 

Other Capital Expenditures   500,000 500,000                -   

Debt Service     63,905 63,905                -   

Total   836,004 839,390 3,386 

To: Brent Fisher, Chair 
Through: Mary Wilson, Chief Executive Officer 
From: Julee Farley, Chief Financial Officer 
Date: August 27, 2025 
Re: Commercial Drive Updated FY26 Budget and CFF Authority to CEO 

56



Finance Committee 
Report/Approvals 

57



P. 1         8/1/2025 Finance Committee Report 

Meeting Summary 
The Finance Committee met on August 1, 2025. The meeting was attended in person by 
Committee members John Morris (chair), and Committee members Kevin Fimon , Anita 
Halterman, and via telephone by Brent Fisher (ex-officio.) Other Trustees in attendance 
included Corrie Feige, Josie Hick, and Agnes Moran. 

Financial Update 
Julee Farley, CFO, and Kat Roch, Budget Controller, presented the FY25 financial dashboard 
through May 2025 in an expanded format.  At this point in the year, Trust Authority operation 
expenditures are at $4M with a projected full-year lapse of $190k. Year-to-date expenditures on 
Program Activities is $15.5M which includes $6M of MHTAAR and $9.6M of Authority Grants, 
with a projected full-year lapse of $1M. Grants expended in the current year for FY21-FY24 
budget years was an additional $6.2M.  

Continuing, CFO Farley reported the TLO had expended $3.8M, or 70% of their FY26 budget. 
Year-to-date income is $4M and principal earnings are $5.3M, excluding $620k of FY26 
revenue. TLO capital project data, including project expenditures, principal and income 
revenues by project, were presented. Some projects are still in the development phase and are 
not yet earning revenues. The Trust Land Exchange with the USFS was funded for $5M by the 
Trust and has generated $10.6M in principal and income through May 2025. Future earnings 
associated with capital projects will be reported as it is earned and will be separate from other 
principal and income generated by the TLO.  

FY25 Year-to-date Performance Review 
CFO Farley reported APFC investment earnings of $53M, DOR earnings of $7.4M, and $2.2M of 
CRE distributions to the Trust through May 2025. Investment earnings do not include the CRE 
sales proceeds per presentation by Bikky Shrestha, BDO partner, at the Audit & Risk 
Committee. Total invested Trust assets at the end of May, including CRE, was $846M.  

The Budget Reserves coverage ratio has increased to 432% due strong investment earnings and 
the net proceeds of two sold CRE properties that was transferred to Budget Reserves. Following 

To: Brent Fisher, Chair 
Through: Mary Wilson, Chief Executive Officer 
From: Julee Farley, Chief Financial Officer 
Date: August 27, 2025 
Re: Finance Committee Report 

58



 
   

 

P. 2         8/1/2025 Finance Committee Report 

the successful approvals for the payout and beneficiary facilities set aside, the budget reserve 
ratio will be approximately 374%.  
 
FY27 Revenue Calculation 
The estimated total available funding for FY27 is $46,268,800 which is a $4.7M increase from 
FY26. 77% of this revenue is determined by the recently approved payout rate of 4.5% applied to 
the average of the FY21-FY24 net asset values, resulting in a payout of $34,290,600. Lapsed 
appropriations contribute $3,375,00, or 8%; the TLO income generates $4,296,200, or 10%; and 
interest income will generate an estimated $2,440,000, or 5%.  
 
Commercial Real Estate Update with RCLCO 
The Finance Committee went into executive session to hear an update from the CRE investment 
manager, RCLCO, presented by Natalie Condon, Senior Associate with RCLCO.  
 
Board Action Required. The Finance Committee approved the 
following motions: 
 
Motion 1: Beneficiary Facilities 

Funding for two program related investments was approved by Trustees in November 2018. 
Trust Authority staff, Trustees and the TLO works closely with Trust funded non-profits 
through the Trust’s Beneficiary Projects Initiative but, at the current time, the project is not 
under active development. Removing this set aside will increase available Budget Reserves by 
$3,655,000 to meet the target of 400% of the annual withdrawal. Staff recommends the 
removal of this set aside. 

 
The Finance Committee recommends the removal of the $3,655,000 set aside of Budget 
Reserves which was approved by the Board of Trustees on November 14, 2018, for Program 
Related Investment.  

 
Motion 2: FY26 Budget Ratification and Amendment Recommendations 

Trustees previously approved $21,060,200 in MHTAAR and MHT Admin funds for the 
FY2026 Mental Health Budget Bill. Following that approval, the legislature appropriated 
$440,200 in additional MHTAAR and MHT Admin funds. These additional funds were 
appropriated to account for salary, health insurance and PERS adjustments. The Trust staff 
request that the Finance Committee recommend that the Board of Trustees approve this 
additional funding. 
 

The Finance Committee recommends that the full Board of Trustees ratifies the 
Legislature’s FY26 MHTAAR and MHT Admin budget amounts as appropriated and 
therefore increases previous FY26 Trustee authorization by $440,200. 

 
Motion 3: FY26 Budget Amendment on Sponsorships 

Staff proposes allocating funds for conference sponsorships. These funds will be administered 
through sponsorship agreements vs. small grant awards, as has been the previous method. 

59



 
   

 

P. 3         8/1/2025 Finance Committee Report 

Funds will support up to 12 beneficiary-related conferences at a sponsorship level not to exceed 
$2,500 per event. The Chief Communications Officer will administer these funds as part of the 
Trust's communications efforts. Staff will provide further information on this process at a 
future meeting.  
 

The Finance Committee recommends that the full Board of Trustees amend the FY26 
budget to move $30,000 from the FY26 Rural & Community Outreach line to a new line 
for Conference/Sponsorships. 

 

 
Motion 4: FY26 Budget Amendment on Allocations 

The FY26 budget as approved by Trustees on August 29, 2024, contains 13 budget lines of   
unallocated funding, commonly referred to as “buckets”, that total $9,115,000. 
This motion will eliminate ten of these budget lines, totaling $7,165,000, and transfer the 
funding to a new budget line, Trust Focus Area Strategy Implementation. All grants allocated 
from this new budget line will be approved by the full board of Trustees following review by the 
Program and Planning Committee. 
 

The Finance Committee recommends that the full Board of Trustees amends the FY26 
budget to 
remove the following unallocated budget lines: 
• Comprehensive Program Planning & Consultative Services 
• Treatment Access and Recovery Supports 
• Crisis Continuum of Care 
• HCBS System Sustainability 
• SHARP Access 
• Evidence Based and Promising Employment and Engagement Practices 
• Screening & intervention for infants, children and youth, or their families 
• Infant, Early Childhood & Youth Mental Health Capacity Building 
• Improve social determinants of health for children, youth, and their families 
• Foster Care, Child Welfare, and Kinship Programs 
These ten budget lines, totaling $7,165,000 will be removed from the budget and the funds 
will be 
added to a new budget line named Trust Focus Area Strategy Implementations. The total 
budget 
amount for FY26 will remain unchanged. 

 

 
Motion 5: FY26 Payout Authorization 
The revenue determination for supporting the Trust’s annual budget is outlined in the Asset 
Management Policy Statement. The Trust's primary funding is based on a "spending policy" 

60



 
   

 

P. 4         8/1/2025 Finance Committee Report 

that allows the Trust to draw 4.25% of the four-year average net asset value (NAV) of 1) principal 
and budget reserve year-end investment balances managed by the Alaska Permanent Fund 
Corporation (APFC) and 2) the budget reserve year-end investment balance managed by the 
Department of Revenue. The spending policy establishes that this withdrawal (or "payout") 
comes from APFC budget reserves. Note: the recently approved 4.5% payout rate will first 
become effective for FY27. 

 
The Finance Committee recommends that the full board of trustees authorize the transfer 
of $30,253,297 from the Alaska Permanent Fund Corporation Budget Reserve account to 
the Mental Health Settlement Income Account to finance the FY2026 Budget. The CFO may 
fulfill this motion with one lump sum or multiple transfers, and the full transfer must be 
made prior to June 30, 2026. The CFO will report to the Finance Committee when 
transfer(s) are made. 

*A memo with additional information requested by Trustees during discussion on 
this motion is attached.  

 
Motion 6: Trust Authority Office Agency Budget FY27 

Staff recommends the approval of the proposed FY27 Trust Authority Office Agency budget 
based on anticipated activity levels of the Trust. Trust staff requests that the Finance 
Committee recommend that the full Board of Trustees approve the MHT Agency funds as 
detailed in the attached document. The FY27 proposed budget reflects a net increase of 
$298,500, or 5%, over the FY26 Trust Authority Office MHT Agency budget. 
 

The Finance Committee recommends that the full Board of Trustees approve the FY27 
Trust Authority Office MHT Agency budget of $5,771,800. 

 

 
Motion 7: Trust Land Office Agency Budget FY27* 
The Trust Land Office (TLO) recommends the approval for the FY27 agency budget. The TLO 
develops an annual operating budget request based on anticipated activities and staffing 
requirements. The proposed FY27 budget reflects a net increase of $556,700 or 10% over the 
FY26 Management Plan budget. Starting in FY27, the TLO agency budget includes maintenance 
and operations expense for the Trust Authority Building and Cordova Building. 
 

The Finance Committee recommends that the Alaska Mental Health Trust Authority board 
of trustees approve the Trust Land Office agency budget for FY27 in the amount of 
$6,278,300 

 
*As discussed at the Finance Committee, the TLO has prepared an 
amended agency budget for Board of Trustee approval. See attached 
memo.  

 
The next scheduled meeting of the Finance Committee is October 16, 2025. 

61



 

           

 

MEMO 
 
To:   Board of Trustees 
From:   Mary Wilson, CEO 
Date:   August 13, 2025 
Re:   Trust Conference Sponsorships; Supplemental Information 
 
During the July 2025 Finance Committee discussion of FY26 budget amendments, staff brought 
forward a proposed $30,000 increment for conference sponsorships, designed to support 
conferences with sponsorships not to exceed $2,500 per event. In lieu of treating these 
sponsorships as grants, they would be administered as part of the communications program and 
procured directly with event organizers. As noted in the original proposal, conferences supported 
through these funds will focus on Trust beneficiary-related topics, and/or the beneficiary 
workforce.  
 
In response to committee members’ request for more information, here is some additional detail 
on what is being proposed.  
 
• While sponsorships will be administered through the Chief Communications Officer, the CEO 

will also approve each sponsorship prior to a sponsorship agreement being executed. 
 
• Determinations as to which events to sponsor will be made in coordination with the Trust 

program team and considering the conference topic’s connection to Trust beneficiaries/the 
beneficiary workforce/Trust areas of focus, benefits of the sponsorship (logo placement, 
exhibitor table, etc.), opportunities to improve beneficiary-serving entities’ awareness of Trust 
grant opportunities and supports, and how a sponsorship could increase positive perceptions of 
the Trust.  
 

• Procured conference sponsorships will be included in quarterly reporting to the board, along 
with other authority Grant fund spending, and conferences will also be included in the board’s 
communication program updates offered at board meetings.  

 
• Below are some Conferences the Trust has supported through conference sponsorships; it is 

offered to illustrate the type of events these sponsorships will support.  
 

- Alaska Children’s Alliance, Alaska Conference on Child Maltreatment 
- All Alaska Pediatric Partnership, All Alaska Pediatric Symposium  
- Anchorage Association for the Education of Young Children, Anchorage AEYC Early 

Childhood Conference 
- Special Olympics Alaska, Alaska Disability & Aging Summit  
- NAMI Alaska, NAMI Alaska/American Foundation for Suicide Prevention -Alaska Chapter 

Together for Mental Health Symposium  
- First Alaskans Institute, Annual Elders & Youth Conference  
- Alaska Public Health Association, Alaska Health Summit Conference  
- Foundation Health, LLC., Fairbanks at 50+ Summit: The Art and Science of Aging 

62



- Association of Alaska School Boards, Youth Leadership Institute-Cultural Healing and 
Resiliency Track  

- Cook Inlet Tribal Council, Inc., Native Youth Olympic Games 
- Alaska Eating Disorders Alliance, Temperament-Based Treatment with Support Conference  
- Child Care Connection, Inc., Quality Child Care Creates Futures - A Summit on the 

Economic Impact of Early Care and Learning  
- Anchorage Association for the Education of Young Children, Anchorage AEYC Conference  
- Stone Soup Group, Hope Grows (Parents Conference)  
- Catholic Social Services, Alaska Resettlement Conference  
- Alaska Eating Disorders Alliance, Immersive Eating Disorder Essentials  

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

63



 

 
The Trust Land Office (TLO) seeks the approval of the Board of Trustees for the FY27 agency budget. 
The TLO develops an annual operating budget request based on anticipated activities and staffing 
requirements. Please see Exhibit 1 for a breakout of the proposed line items. The proposed FY27 
budget reflects a net increase of $573,200 or 10% over the FY26 Management Plan budget.  This 
request includes a $16,500 partial restoration of the FY26 travel budget, which carries forward into 
FY27. This increases the FY27 TLO operating budget request recommended by the Finance Committee 
in the August 1, 2025 meeting by the same amount.  
 
The table below outlines the primary drivers of the year-over-year budget changes:  
 

Budget Line FY2027 Proposed Budget  
Over/(Under) FY2026  

Mgmt. Plan 

Year-Over-Year  
Component Changes 

Personal Services (Line 1000) $93,400 
3% 

Merit increases/general staffing 

Travel (Line 2000) - No Change 
Services (Line 3000) $479,800 

26% 
Maintenance and operations 
expenses for Trust Authority 
Building and Cordova Building 

Commodities - No change 
Total $573,200 

10% 
 

 

 
 

2600 Cordova Street 
Anchorage, Alaska 99503 

Phone: 907-269-8658 
Fax: 907-269-8605 

 

To: Brent Fisher 
Board Chair 

Approval 
Thru: Mary Wilson, Chief Executive Officer 
From: Jusdi Warner, Executive Director 
Date: 8/27/2025 
Re: FY27 Agency Budget – Item 1 
Fiscal Year: 2027 
Amount: $6,294,800 

Proposed Finance Committee Motion: 

“The Alaska Mental Health Trust Authority board of trustees approves the Trust Land Office agency 
budget for FY27 in the amount of $6,294,800.” 

Background:  

64



 
The proposed FY27 TLO budget does not include any estimates for changes in benefits such as PERS, 
health insurance, or COLA. Per SB259, there will be a yet-to-be determined COLA in FY27 based off 
CPI. The final amount will be calculated by OMB during the budget process. The Trust Authority will 
seek ratification of the final amount for both offices for FY27 similarly to what is being done for FY26. 
This budget request includes estimates for the costs related to merit increases and general staffing 
needs.  
 
There is no anticipated increase in travel expenditures. Expenditures in this area support the TLO’s 
active management of Trust land that includes stewardship and revenue generation. The TLO travel 
budget originally approved by trustees for FY26 was $169,800. The TLO made reductions totaling 
$50,800 in an effort to comply and show good faith with to the  Administrative Order 358. The travel 
budget was further reduced, by $10,500, after submission. In total, the TLO travel budget was 
reduced by $61,300 from what was approved by trustees. In recent days guidance has been provided 
that the Commissioners have received the delegated authority to approve in-state travel outside of 
the approved travel plan.  Therefore the final FY26 travel budget is $125,000 to account for additional 
travel that may arise outside of the approved travel plan. This is a reduction of $44,800 from what 
was previously approved by trustees.  The amount was carried forward into the FY27 budget request.  
 
Services expenditures include costs for private-sector consultants such as appraisals, surveys, and 
development, as well as economic development, software, and other operating expenses. The 
Services category also includes costs paid by the TLO to other State of Alaska offices for items such as 
IT support, legal services, and financial services.  The increase in FY27 is due to the inclusion of 
operating expenses for the two buildings where the Trust Authority and Trust Land Office have their 
offices. The cost also includes maintenance and operations (M&E) for other tenants. HB 55 called for 
the inclusion of M&O costs for state agencies to conform to AS 37.07.020 (e). Currently these costs 
are offset by commercial real estate revenues as well as revenues generated from the Cordova 
building.  In this budget the TLO is requesting the M&O for the Cordova building (where the TLO 
office is located), as well as M&O costs at the Trust Authority Building to provide office space and 
fund related costs for the Trust Authority. If this was not included in the TLO agency budget the 
agency budget would have reflected a $322,600 decrease. 
 
Supplies include typical office supplies such as computers as well as supplies related to field work 
such as signage and safety equipment.  
 
Exhibit(s): 
Exhibit 1 – FY27 Trust Land Office Budget Proposal 

65



Expenditures

FY25 Actuals FY25 Mgmt Plan
FY26 Trustee 

Approved 
Budget

FY26 Mgmt 
Plan

FY27 
Proposal

FY26-27             
% Change

1000 Personal Services1,2             3,172,657             3,778,200         3,892,500       3,719,500       3,812,900 3%
2000 Travel3 132,902               169,800              169,800           125,000         125,000         0%
3000 Services4 $1,381,900 1,408,400           1,432,800        1,815,600      2,295,400      26%
4000 Supplies 68,530                 60,700                61,500             61,500           61,500           0%

Total5 4,755,989           5,417,100           5,556,600       5,721,600      6,294,800      10%
                Total FY27 Increase  w/ PRRE Op Ex.7              573,200

            Total FY27 Increase w/o PRRE Op Ex.8 (322,600)

Full Time Employees 19                         19                        19                     17                   17                   

Revenue

FY25 Actuals
FY26 Trustee 

Approved 
Budget

FY26 
Management 

Plan

FY27 
Proposal

FY26-27             
%Change

Principal 6,344,055           6,613,000           8,438,000        9,295,500      10%
Income 28,886,718         17,561,913         3,631,175        3,784,699      4%

Total6 35,230,774         24,174,913        12,069,175     13,080,199   8%

(1) FY26 accounts for Governor's Budget adjustments and a vacancy factor.

(2) HB270 adds an increment of $165,00.00 for Exempt employee COLA salary increases.

(3) FY26 and FY27 travel plans reduced due to Administrative Order 358.

(4) FY25 actuals include encumbered funds for ongoing projects. 

(5) FY25 actual expenditures are not final until after re-appropriation ends August 31.

(6) FY25 income numbers are not final until the re-appropriation period ends August 31. 

(7) FY27 expenses include $895,800 in the Services line for operating costs for the Trust Authority building and Cordova building. 

(8) The FY27 expense increase without the operating costs for the Trust Authority building and Cordova building. 

TRUST LAND OFFICE AGENCY BUDGET
FY27 Proposal

FY26 TRUSTEE REQUEST:
$6,294,800.00

66



FY25 YTD as 
of 

6/30/2025

FY26 
Approved

FY26 Mgmt 
Plan

Comments
FY27 

Proposal
26‐27       

% Change

INSTATE TRAVEL $104,021 $137,377 $125,000 Site inspection, revenue generation, resource development, compliance, risk mitigation, professional development $125,000 0%
OUT OF STATE TRAVEL $28,881 $30,400 ‐                     Revenue generation, resource development, professional development ‐                     ‐

TOTALS $132,902 $167,777 $125,000 $125,000 0%

TRAVEL
2000 TRAVEL

67



FY25 YTD as of 
6/30/2025

FY26 Trustee 
Approved

FY26 Mgmt 
Plan

FY27 Proposal
FY25 Mgmt 
Plan to FY26 
Difference

NON-INTERAGENCY SERVICES
EDUCATION SERVICES 42,852 55,300                 13,100              13,100                 -                      
FINANCIAL SERVICES 142,165 85,000                 305,000           75,000                 (230,000)      
LEGAL & JUDICIAL SVC 1,640                  47,000                 25,000              25,000                 -                      
INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 52,454 116,020               74,420              74,420                 -                      
TELECOMMUNICATIONS 12,195 19,530                 25,530              25,530                 -                      
DELIVERY SERVICES 4,321                  9,550                   9,550                9,550                   -                      
ADVERTISING/PROMOTIONS 14,865 27,000 21,000 21,000 -                      
STRUCTURE/INFRA/LAND 264,700 656,890 677,000 712,000 35,000          
REPAIRS/MTCE-STRUCTURE 0 20,000                 20,000              20,000                 -                      
RENTALS/LEASES 2,208 9,400                   6,900                6,900                   -                      
EQUIPMENT/MACHINERY 295 1,500                   1,500                1,500                   -                      
OTHER SERVICES 3,848 45,000 295,990 75,000 (220,990)      
PRRE REAL ESTATE OPERATING 0 0 0 895,837 895,837        

INTERAGENCY SERVICES 184,986 340,610               340,610           340,610               -                      
726,528             1,432,800           1,815,600        2,295,447           479,847        

SERVICES

TOTALS

68



FY25 YTD as 
of 6/30/2025

FY26 Trustee 
Approved

FY26 Mgmt 
Plan

FY27 
Proposal

FY26 Mgmt 
Plan to FY27 
Difference

BUSINESS 37,773             44,705           44,705           44,705           0%
HOUSEHOLD/INSTITUTNL 4,918               4,000              4,000              4,000              0%
SAFETY 1,161               3,500              3,500              3,500              0%
REPAIR/MAINTENANCE (Maintain)/EQUIPMENT 3,105               9,275              9,275              9,275              0%

46,957             61,480           61,480           61,480           0%

COMMODITIES

TOTALS

69



Resource 
Management 

Report

70



Memorandum     
 
 
To:                Brent Fisher, Chair of the Board of Trustees 
Through: Corri Feige, Resource Management Committee Chair 
From:  Jusdi Warner, Executive Director 
Date:  August 27, 2025 
Subject:   August 1, 2025 – Resource Management Committee Summary 

 
The Resource Management Committee met on August 1, 2025, and received an extensive update of key 
TLO activities from the Executive Director Report. The committee was presented with current updates 
on the Icy Cape Project that included an Executive Session, a presentation on the history of Trust lands, 
as well as an update on subdivisions, timber and roads. Agnew Beck Consulting, Inc. presented 10 
strategic scenarios for trustees to consider regarding the future of the Trust Authority Building.   
Additionally, the committee received three (3) Consultations presented by TLO staff. The consultations 
require full board concurrence and will move forward to the Board of Trustees for approval. 
 
Board Action Required: The following proposed actions requiring full Board of Trustees’ concurrence were 
recommended to the full board of trustees at the August 1 RMC Meeting: 
 
Meeting Summary: 
 

1. Consultation – Disposal of Trust Parcels FM-0596 and FM-0597 – MHT 9400897 
MOTION: “The Resource Management Committee recommends that the Alaska Mental 
Health Trust Authority board of trustees concur with the disposal of Trust parcels FM-0596 and 
FM-0597 through a negotiated sale or subsequent disposal.” 

 
Anticipated Revenues/Benefits: This proposal provides the Executive Director with an opportunity to 
dispose of the subject parcels for a cumulative price of $474,521.00. This is 143.36% of the appraised 
fair market value of the parcels which is comprised of a 30.00% premium for the fee estate and a 
13.36% premium for the mineral estate. In addition, the applicant intends to pay outright for the 
parcels, enabling the full land payment to be invested to generate further return to the Trust corpus. 

 
2. Consultation – Disposal of Trust Parcels CRM-2764 Lots 3 &4 MHT 9101417 

MOTION: “The Resource Management Committee recommends that the Alaska Mental Health 
Trust Authority board of trustees concur with the decision to dispose of a portion of Trust parcel 
CRM-2764 Lots 3 & 4, through a negotiated sale or subsequent disposal.” 

 
Anticipated Revenues/Benefits: This proposal provides the Executive Director with an opportunity to 
dispose of the subject property for a cumulative price of $269,330.96. This is 155.00% of the appraised 
fair market value of the parcels. In addition, the applicant intends to pay outright for the parcels, 
enabling the full land payment to be invested to generate further return to the Trust corpus. 

71



Brent Fisher, Chair of the Board of Trustees    
Resource Management Committee Summary  
August 1, 2025 

 
3. Consultation – Disposal of Trust Parcels FM-0596 and FM-0597 – MHT 9400897 

MOTION: “The Resource Management Committee recommends that the Alaska Mental 
Health Trust Authority board of trustees concur with the decision to dispose of a portion of 
Trust parcel CRM-7059 through a perpetual non-exclusive easement.” 

 
Anticipated Revenues/Benefits: The two easement sections: Easement Section 1 and Easement 
Section 2, were appraised by a third-party licensed appraisal company in May of 2025. Revenue is 
consistent with the appraisal and will be assessed as a one-time payment. 

• Easement Sec. 1      $21,800 
• Easement Sec.  2     $33,000 

              Total: $54,003 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
cc:  Board of Trustees 

Mary Wilson, CEO Alaska Mental Health Trust Authority 

72



Memorandum 
To:   Brent Fischer, Chair of the Board of Trustees 
Through: Dr. Mary Wilson, Chief Executive Officer 
From: Jusdi Warner, Executive Director 
Date: August 27, 2025 
Subject: April 23, 2025 – Resource Management Committee Meeting 

Alaska Behavioral Less than Fair Market Value Request Summary 

The Resource Management Committee met on April 23, 2025, and received additional information, as 
requested on April 9, 2025, that was jointly presented by TLO and TA staff. The RMC recommended to 
the full board of trustees the proposed action to issue a Less than Fair Market Value Lease to Anchorage 
Community Mental Health Services, Inc dba Alaska Behavioral Health. 

The recommendation requires full board approval and will move to the board of trustees for approval at 
the August 27, 2025, full board of trustees meeting after the completion of the 30-day public notice. 

Board Action Required: The following proposed action requiring full board of trustees’ approval was 
recommended to the full board of trustees at the April 23, 2025, RMC Meeting: 

Meeting Summary:

1. Approval – Alaska Behavioral Health Less than Fair Market Lease

Anticipated Revenues/Benefits: Alaska Behavioral Health requests a below fair market lease 
agreement for an approximately 6.14-acre portion of Tract A, Alaska Land Survey No. 86-29, which is 
the location of the two properties located at 1423 Peger Road (Fahrenkamp Center) and 1300 Moore 
Street (Denardo Sobering Center), Fairbanks, Alaska. Alaska Behavioral Health currently houses a 
certified community behavioral health center at the Fahrenkamp Center located at 1423 Peger Road 
under a current lease agreement with the Trust for the last 17 years. Tanana Chiefs Conference had a 
sobering center at 1300 Moore Street and their lease with the Trust ended on July 31,2025. Tanana 
Chiefs Conference is relocating its sobering center to its Detox Center on Younkers Court. Alaska 
Behavioral Health would like to expand services at the 1300 Moore St. location to include short-term 
crisis stabilization and intensive outpatient and partial hospitalization programs. Alaska Behavioral 
Health serves 100% trust beneficiaries and is committed to serving trust beneficiaries at these two 
locations. Staff recommend an annual lease rent of $37,000 for a 10-year lease with a 10% rent 

MOTION: The Alaska Mental Health Trust Board of Trustees approves the annual lease rent of
$37,000, with a 10% rent increase every 5 years, for a 10-year ground lease for an approximately
6.14 acre portion of Tract A, Alaska Land Survey No. 86-29, containing 8.544 acres, more or less,
according to the survey plat filed in the Fairbanks Recording District, Fourth Judicial District, State of
Alaska on February 14, 1989, as Plat No.89- 18, in Fairbanks, Alaska to Anchorage Community
Mental Health Services, Inc dba Alaska Behavioral Health.

73



Page 2 of 2 

increase every 5 years. This would result in a minimum of $366,745 “granted” in-kind annually and 
$3,667,450 “granted” in-kind for the term of the agreement. 

cc: Board of Trustees 
Dr. Mary Wilson, CEO Alaska Mental Health Trust Authority 

74



 

MEMO

To: Corri Feige– Resource Management Committee Chair 

Date: April 23, 2025 

Re: Request to Lease Trust Land at Less than Fair Market Value 
Additional Requested Information 

Grant Amount 
(In-Kind): 

$366,745 annually – the annual in-kind grant amount is 
determined by the difference between the fair market rent 
($403,745) of the property and the below market rent ($37,000) 
amount  

Grant Term: Proposed 10-year lease, with a 10% rent increase every 5 years 

Grantee: Anchorage Community Mental Health Services, Inc. dba Alaska 
Behavioral Health 

Project Title: Alaska Behavioral Health Less than Fair Market Value Lease 

Assigned Program Staff: Heather Phelps 
 

PROJECT UPDATE 

On 4/9/25, the Resource Management Committee met to discuss the Alaska Behavioral Health 
Request to Lease Trust Land at Less than Fair Market Value. The committee requested that the 
Trust Land Office and the Alaska Mental Health Authority provide additional information 
regarding the project. 

1) What other methodologies do other states use to determine the rate for less than
fair market value disposals?

The Trust is a unique entity within the United States, with no specific comparable organizations 
elsewhere.  As a result, it proved difficult to gather insight from or land trusts or foundations 
operating in different states. 

The TLO reached out to other state trust land management offices through the National 
Association of State Trust Lands to inquire about the methods and analysis other states may use 
for the disposal of trust lands below fair market value for beneficiary uses. No responses have 
been received, but the TLO will keep pursuing update the committee at a future meeting when 
responses are received. 

RMC 4/
23

/25
 M

ee
tin

g

75



 

The Trust Authority has not identified another foundation with land assets that must be used 
specifically to support mental health and vulnerable populations. Many land trusts associated 
with foundations that intersect with non-profit organizations are focused on conservation or 
community housing.  

2) Provide additional information on history of less than fair market value
disposals and how the Trust has landed on the range of 1%?

The four previous applications, starting in 2016, for the Trust’s less than fair market value 
disposal process have all utilized annual rents of approximately, but not less than, one percent of 
the appraised fair market value. The state of Alaska, under AS 38.05.810, has the authority to 
issue public and charitable leases to non-profit corporations operating exclusively for charitable, 
religious, scientific, or educational purposes on general state land through the Division of Mining, 
Land & Water. The annual rental for these uses on state land may not be less than one percent of 
the fair market value. It is reasonable that the Trust has historically set a similar minimum to the 
state for its less than fair market value disposals to an exclusively beneficiary serving 
organization. 

3) How does the Trust internally track below fair market value leases?

Below-market leases have not historically been tracked as “in-kind” grants.  To meet this request, 
the process for tracking going forward includes the following:  

A record for each Below Market Lease will be entered into the TAO grant database with: 

• A brief description from the Trustee approval documents.
• A one-year grant term (preferably 7/1 to 6/30 for ease of tracking) noting full duration of

approved term (10 years, 15 years etc.).
• An “in-kind grant” amount that is the difference between the annual fair market value rent

and the annual below fair market rent amount.
• Special coding to make sure that these will be:

o Easily tracked
o Easily differentiated from MHTAAR and Authority Grants in Trust reporting

Each year the TAO will verify with the TLO that the leases have been renewed, confirm the fair 
market value vs. the below fair market lease amount and renew the record in the grants-tracking 
database accordingly. 

For external reporting, the Trust will include a special section in the yearly grant investment 
report that provides an annual summary of each active below market value lease with an in-kind 
dollar amount and identified beneficiary-serving recipient.   

RMC 4/
23

/25
 M

ee
tin

g

76



 

4) Provide more information to explain the requested amount of $24,000. Since the
combined properties are $301,000, why is there a need for a decrease in the
below fair market value?

A lesser below fair market amount provides the agency the ability to redirect those funds to 
operations or capital improvements. Alaska Behavioral Health provided the following 
information for the RMC: 

AKBH currently has two SAMHSA grants for Certified Community Behavioral Health Clinics 
(CCBHC) that will end on 9/29/2026.  One grant is specifically for our clinic in Wasilla and is 
funded at $1 million per year.  The other is for Anchorage and Fairbanks and is also funded at $1 
million per year. There is a very low probability of either of these grants being available in the 
future, though slightly higher for the Wasilla funding than for the Anchorage/Fairbanks award.  

Comprehensive Behavioral Health Treatment and Recovery Grants from the State of Alaska make 
up a large portion of AKBH’s funding.  Current funding for Fairbanks is a little over $2.4 Million.  
AKBH expects to see that amount shrink this next fiscal year and doesn’t expect it to increase in 
any future years. 

In FY2024 AKBH had a Projects for Assistance in Transition from Homelessness (PATH) grant in 
Fairbanks funded at $147K.  In FY2025, the State awarded that grant to a provider in Juneau 
instead.  

AKBH is always looking for new grant opportunities at both the federal and state levels. The 
current outlook does not look promising at either level. Despite funding decreases, AKBH will 
focus on maintaining or increasing services. A Below-Market Lease would allow us to spend more 
money providing services than we would otherwise be spending on rent. 

Additionally, Alaska Behavioral Health has stated that a ten-year lease rather than a 30-year 
lease may make more sense, as there are many unknowns and variables regarding how behavioral 
health services will be reimbursed in the future.  

5) Explain how this request fits with Crisis Now for Fairbanks and the potential
plans for the utilization of the other side of the Denardo Center.

Crisis Now 

The City of Fairbanks has supported crisis services since 2019 when the Trust proposed a 
systemic method to improve crisis care across Alaska.  Support for crisis services in Fairbanks 
includes law enforcement, the fire department, tribal partners, behavioral health providers, 
community providers, and the mayor.  The City of Fairbanks has prioritized requests for state, 
federal, and other foundation funds for crisis stabilization services.  Alaska Behavioral Health has 
partnered with the city for the last three and a half years with a mobile crisis team, and the city 
supports Alaska Behavioral Health in establishing a crisis stabilization center.  This center will 
have the capacity to receive drop-offs from first responders, including the Mobile Crisis Team, 
and accept walk-ins. The proposed crisis stabilization center would add a necessary component to 

RMC 4/
23

/25
 M

ee
tin

g

77



 

the crisis care continuum in Fairbanks, which already includes the Fairbanks Emergency 
Communications Center for dispatching, the Mobile Crisis Team, and a voluntary crisis center.  
The City of Fairbanks supports a Crisis Stabilization Center, which is operated on the Crisis Now 
principle of ‘No Wrong Door’ to accept 100% of referrals from law enforcement, emergency 
services, providers, and the public.  The Mayor of Fairbanks has submitted a letter of support for 
this project. 

Denardo Center 

The following was submitted by Alaska Behavioral Health: We believe that one side of the 
Denardo Center would be conducive in its present configuration to operating an adult partial 
hospitalization program.  It may need some cosmetic remodeling, but not substantial structural 
changes.  The other side may be suitable for a temporary home for 23- hour Crisis Stabilization 
Center.  The licensing standards for this level of care have not been finalized, and so there remain 
several unknown factors.  Another factor that is yet to be known for Crisis Stabilization is what 
the demand is, and therefore what capacity will be needed.  If the Denardo building is not a 
suitable long-term site, we would develop Crisis Stabilization at another site and most likely use 
that side of the building in a manner that would allow us to expand existing services. If we were to 
secure a lease on the Denardo Center, we would start planning immediately with the goal of 
utilizing the space as soon as it was available and usable.  There are too many unknowns at this 
point to predict construction timelines.   

6) What are the advisor’s thoughts about the below fair market lease?

On 4/18/25, the Trust met with AMHB/ABADA Executive Director and GCDSE staff and 
discussed the below fair market lease proposal.  The Trust was unable to consult with ACOA due 
to staff being on leave.  The Trust provided an overview of the request and asked for advisory 
board input.   The advisory boards are very supportive of the Trust proposing below fair market 
leases for beneficiary-serving organizations, especially when there is an opportunity to better 
serve communities with Trust resources that further support the Trust's mission.  

 BUDGET 

Grantee 
Initial 
Appraised 
Value 

Annual 
LTFMV 
Rent 

LTFMV Rent 
Percent of 
Appraised 
Value 

Initial 
Appraised 
Annual 
FMV Rent 

Term 

Total 
“granted" 
in-kind 
annually 

Total 
“granted" 
in-kind 
for term 

Alaska 
Behavioral 
Health  

 $ 
3,700,000  $ 37,000 1.000%  $ 403,745 10  $ 366,745  $ 3,667,450 

Attached Exhibits: 
1. Trust Authority Less than Fair Market Value Process Outline
2. Letter of Support for Alaska Behavioral Health Crisis Stabilization Center

RMC 4/
23

/25
 M

ee
tin

g

78



 
   

 

 

           

MEMO 

             
             
To: Corri Feige– Resource Management Committee Chair 

 
Date: April 9, 2025 
Re: Request to Lease Trust Land at Less than Fair Market Value 
Fiscal year: FY26 
Grantee: Anchorage Community Mental Health Services, Inc dba Alaska 

Behavioral Health 
Project Title: Alaska Behavioral Health Less than Fair Market Value Lease 

 

 

 
REQUESTED MOTION: 

The Resource Management Committee recommends the Full Board approve the annual lease rent 
of $24,000, with a 10% rent increase every 5 years, for a 30-year ground lease for an 
approximately 6.14 acre portion of Tract A, Alaska Land Survey No. 86-29, containing 8.544 
acres, more or less, according to the survey plat filed in the Fairbanks Recording District, 
Fourth Judicial District, State of Alaska on February 14, 1989, as Plat No.89- 18, in 
Fairbanks, Alaska to Anchorage Community Mental Health Services, Inc dba Alaska Behavioral 
Health 

 
Assigned Program Staff:  Heather Phelps 

 
 

 
 STAFF ANALYSIS 

 
Alaska Behavioral Health requests a long-term single lease at less than fair market value for the two 
properties located at 1423 Peger Road (Fahrenkamp Center) and 1300 Moore Street (Denardo 
Sobering Center), Fairbanks, Alaska.  Alaska Behavioral Health currently houses a certified 
community behavioral health center at the Fahrenkamp Center located at 1423 Peger Road under 
their current lease agreement with the Trust for the last 17 years.  Tanana Chiefs Conference has a 
sobering center at the 1300 Moore Street address and their lease with the Trust ends on July 31st, 
2025. Tanana Chiefs Conference is relocating its sobering center to its Detox Center on Younkers 
Court.  Alaska Behavioral Health would like to expand services at the 1300 Moore St. location to 
include short-term crisis stabilization and intensive outpatient and partial hospitalization 
programs. Alaska Behavioral Health serves 100% trust beneficiaries and is committed to serving 
trust beneficiaries at these two locations. 

Trust Authority Office staff has determined that sufficient information was provided by the 
organization, per 20 AAC 40.710, to warrant a less than fair market value lease, and that the 

 
 
 

 
 

 

 

RMC 4/
9/2

5 M
ee

tin
g

79



 
   

 
project aligns with the Mental Health and Addiction Intervention focus area to serve Trust 
beneficiaries.  

Staff recommend the approval of a lease of Trust land at less than fair market value under 20 AAC 
40.710. 

  
 COMP PLAN IDENTIFICATION 

 
Goal Objective Comments 
Goal 5 Suicide Prevention 
 

5.2 Crisis system improvement  

 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
The following is excerpted from the prospective grantee’s application. 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
Alaska Behavioral Health sent a letter to the Trust Authority staff requesting a single long-term 
lease at less than fair market value under 11 AAC 99.110 and 20 AAC 40.710 to continue providing 
behavioral health services to Trust beneficiaries at the Fahrenkamp Center located at 1423 Peger 
Road and to expand services to 1300 Moore Street. Alaska Behavioral Health has a certified 
community behavioral health center (CCBHC) at the 1423 Peger Road location.  CCBHC services 
include integrated primary care, integrated psychiatry, assessments, walk-in crisis services, 
therapeutic clinical services, and telehealth services.  Additionally, at this location, Alaska 
Behavioral Health has a mobile crisis team that works closely with first responders in the 
Fairbanks North Star borough.  The mobile crisis team is supported from this location with 
funding from the Alaska Mental Health Trust Authority. The Fahrenkamp Center also hosts a bus 
stop on the Fairbanks North Star Borough red line to increase access for clients without 
transportation. These services at Fahrenkamp are delivered to a diverse array of clients 
experiencing mental health, behavioral health, and developmental disability challenges.  

The expansion to Denardo Center on 1300 Moore Street includes short-term crisis stabilization, 
intensive outpatient, and partial hospitalization programming. The buildings for these services 
already exist on the property and are used to provide services to Trust beneficiaries. Alaska 
Behavioral Health is adaptable to evaluating and responding to community needs using evidence-
based practice.  The long-term plans for the Center will remain flexible to allow for such 
adaptations.  

 
PARCEL DESCRIPTION 
The property will comprise portions of Trust Parcel F20213, a larger parcel of land legally 
described as: 

Tract A, Alaska Land Survey No. 86-29, containing 8.544 acres, more or less, 
according to the survey plat filed in the Fairbanks Recording District, Fourth Judicial 
District, State of Alaska on February 14, 1989, as Plat No.89- 18. 

RMC 4/
9/2

5 M
ee

tin
g

80



The specific portions of the Trust Parcel F20213 to be incorporated into the lease contemplated in 
this motion, totaling approximately 6.14 acres of land area, are shown in the following exhibit: 

The portions of the property to be leased are more commonly known by their street addresses 
1423 Peger Road and 1300 Moore Street, Fairbanks, AK. 

WHO WE SERVE 

Alaska Behavioral Health is one of three agencies in Alaska designated as a Certified Community 
Behavioral Health Center.  Alaska Behavioral Health has two CCBHC locations (Anchorage and 
Fairbanks).  Alaska Behavioral Health provides comprehensive behavioral health care services to 
Alaskans of all ages, from age 2 to 102. Alaska Behavioral Health focuses on using evidence-based 
practices to help clients improve their quality of life. Services include child and family, teen and 
young adult services, outpatient clinics, the Alaska Child Trauma Center, adult mental health 
residential treatment, intensive community-based services for adults with higher needs, mobile 
crisis services in Fairbanks, partial hospitalization programs for children and adults, and a 
medical team for psychiatry, primary care, and medication management. 

ESTIMATED NUMBERS OF BENEFICIARIES SERVED EXPERIENCING: 

Mental Illness: 781 

RMC 4/
9/2

5 M
ee

tin
g

81



 
   

 
Developmental Disabilities: 29 
Substance Abuse 70 
Traumatic Brain Injuries: 61 
Secondary Beneficiaries (family members or caregivers 
providing support to primary beneficiaries): 

972 

  
  
Attached Exhibits:  

1. Trust Authority Suitability Request Letter 
2. Trust Land Office Suitability Letter 
3. Alaska Behavioral Health Request for Less than Fair Market Letter 

 

RMC 4/
9/2

5 M
ee

tin
g

82



 
Jusdi Warner 
Executive Director, Trust Land Office 
Department of Natural Resources 
Jusdi.warner@alaska.gov 
 
February 19, 2025 
 
Trust Authority Office (TAO) staff requests the Trust Land Office (TLO) 
determine whether the Trust Land MH Parcel of the real property located at 1423 
Peger Road and 1300 Moore Street, Fairbanks, AK, is suitable for the use 
proposed by Alaska Behavioral Health (AKBH). The portions of the real property 
are legally described as Tract A, Alaska Land Survey No. 86-29, containing 8.544 
acres, more or less, according to the survey plat filed in the Fairbanks Recording 
District, Fourth Judicial District, State of Alaska on February 14, 1989, as Plat 
No.89- 18. The Trust owns the land and buildings. Area: 371,176.6 Square feet, 
8.544 acres, more or less.  The location TRACT A ASLS 86-29 was previously 
assessed as TL-957 SEC 9 T1S-R1W PLAT 89-18 2/14/89 TRACT A ASLS 86-29 
out of TL-942 T1S-R1W.  The FNSB Property Account Number is 463868.  The 
real property is generally consistent with the following exhibit below. 

 

RMC 4/
9/2

5 M
ee

tin
g

83

mailto:Jusdi.warner@alaska.gov


AKBH has provided a letter requesting a long-term single lease for the two 
properties below market value under 11 AAC 99.110 and 20 AAC 40.710.  
AKBH has the existing Fahrenkamp Center located at 1423 Peger Road under 
the current lease agreement. Alaska Behavioral Health has a long-term 
partnership with the Alaska Mental Health Trust Authority and the Land 
Trust at this location since 2017. The Fahrenkamp Center includes a certified 
community behavioral health center (CCBHC) providing integrated primary 
care, integrated psychiatry, assessments, walk-in crisis services,  
therapeutic clinical services, and telehealth services to a diverse array of 
clients experiencing mental health, behavioral health, and developmental 
disability challenges. This clinic focuses on Adult Outpatient psychotherapy 
services, also hosting a bus stop on the Fairbanks Northstar Borough (FNSB) 
Red Line Schedule to increase access for clients without transportation.  
Alaska Behavioral Health provides a Mobile Crisis Team, working closely 
with First Responders in the FNSB. The Mobile Crisis Team is supported 
from this location, with funding from the Alaska Mental Health Trust 
Authority.   
 
The property at 1300 Moore Street currently houses the Denardo Sobering 
Center through Tanana Chiefs Conference.  AKBH will use the property to 
expand efforts to address the mental health, medical, and behavioral health 
needs of beneficiaries of the Alaska Mental Health Trust Authority in the 
Fairbanks North Star area. Services in the near term would include short-
term crisis stabilization and intensive outpatient and partial hospitalization 
programs as clients require skills to transition from more intensive settings. 
Alaska Behavioral Health has proven to be adaptable to evaluating and 
responding to community needs using evidence-based practices. The long-
term plans for the Center will remain flexible to allow for such adaptations.   
 

The request is attached and summarized below:  
1. A letter from the AKBH requesting the use of Trust land at less than 

fair market value, an organization that serves the behavioral health 
needs of adults experiencing issues with mental health and substance 
misuse.  

2. The request includes the AKBH’s contact information. 
3. The request included a sufficient property description to identify the 

location and area to be used.  
4. AKBH has requested to pay less than fair market value for the long-

term lease of the land to continue providing CCBHC services, including 
adult outpatient psychotherapy services, hosting a bus stop and a 
mobile crisis team, and expanding services for crisis stabilization, 
intensive outpatient, and partial hospitalization programming.  

5. The request asks for a single 30-year lease. 
6. The request asks for a nominal annual lease fee of $24,000.  

RMC 4/
9/2

5 M
ee

tin
g

84



 
TAO staff have been working with the AKBH and Tanana Chiefs Conference 
over the last year on a plan for the property that includes TCC ending 
sobering center services at the 1300 Moore Street address on July 31st, 2025, 
and transitioning to crisis services provided through AKBH. 100% of the 
people served by AKBH are Trust beneficiaries.  
 
With the information above, the TAO staff have determined that the 
organization has provided sufficient information as guided by 20 AAC 
40.710. Please advise whether the land is suitable for the use proposed by 
AKBH and what the TLO has determined to be the estimated fair market 
rental value of the use as required by 20 AAC 40.710.  
Sincerely,  
 
Eric D. Boyer, MPH 
Senior Program Officer, TAO 
 
Cc:    Dr. Mary Wilson, CEO TAO 
          Katie Baldwin-Johnson, COO TAO 
          Jeff Green, Deputy Director TLO 
 
 

RMC 4/
9/2

5 M
ee

tin
g

85



Eric D. Boyer, MPH 

Senior Program Officer 

Alaska Mental Health Trust Authority 

eric.boyer@alaska.gov 

 

 

February 20, 2025 

 

The Trust Land Office (TLO) has reviewed the request from the Alaska Mental Health Trust 

Authority Staff, received on February 19, 2025, to determine the suitability of the proposed use 

of Trust land, estimated fair market value and annual rent of the parcel, and use requested by 

Alaska Behavioral Health (ABH). 

 

The parcel involved in the proposed use is F20213 and is legally described as: 

 

Township 1 South, Range 1 West, Fairbanks Meridian, Alaska 

Section 9: Tract A of Alaska State Land Survey No. 86-29; 

Containing 8.544 acres, more or less. According to the survey plat filed in the Fairbanks 

Recording District on February 14, 1989, as Plat 89-18. 

 

The parcel is located at the southeast corner of Airport Way and Peger Road and has two 

improved commercial office buildings currently serving beneficiaries. The primary recorded 

street address by the City of Fairbanks for the buildings are 1423 Peger Road and 1300 Moore 

Street in Fairbanks, AK. It is currently zoned GC – General Commercial District, which is 

intended “to provide for a wide variety of retail, office, wholesale, personal service and other 

general service uses for the consumer population of large segments of the community. Because 

of the potential for heavy traffic and the appearance and performance of these uses, this district is 

located on the periphery of residential areas and at the intersections of arterial and major 

collector streets and roads.” The current uses of both structures are entirely beneficiary serving 

and would remain so; therefore, it is the TLO’s conclusion that the parcel is suitable for the 

proposed use by ABH. 

 

In January of 2025, the TLO had the land value of the parcel and structures, including the fair 

market rent, appraised by Black-Smith, Bethard & Carlson, LLC. The appraisal used a sales 

approach of similar properties within the region that recently sold or leased and determined the 

fair market value of the combined structures on the parcel to be $3,700,000.00. A ground lease 

for these types of structures on the parcel in this market area was appraised to be $2.00-

2.30/Square foot, making the estimated fair market lease rental of both structures combined to be 

$403,745 annually. Please contact the TLO with any additional questions. 

 

Sincerely,  

 

 

Jusdi Warner 

Executive Director  

Trust Land Office 

2/20/2025

RMC 4/
9/2

5 M
ee

tin
g

86



Certificate Of Completion
Envelope Id: 54616415-F071-4BE4-B094-C26FF560490E Status: Completed

Subject: Complete with Docusign: TA ABH Suitability Letter 

Source Envelope: 

Document Pages: 1 Signatures: 1 Envelope Originator: 

Certificate Pages: 3 Initials: 0 Ashley Oien

AutoNav: Enabled

EnvelopeId Stamping: Disabled

Time Zone: (UTC-09:00) Alaska

PO Box 110206

Juneau, AK  99811

ashley.oien@alaska.gov

IP Address: 158.145.14.23  

Record Tracking
Status: Original

             2/20/2025 12:29:37 PM

Holder: Ashley Oien

             ashley.oien@alaska.gov

Location: DocuSign

Security Appliance Status: Connected Pool: StateLocal

Storage Appliance Status: Connected Pool: State of Alaska Location: Docusign

Signer Events Signature Timestamp
Jusdi Warner

Jusdi.Warner@alaska.gov

TLO Executive Director

Trust Land Office

Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None)

Signature Adoption: Pre-selected Style

Using IP Address: 216.137.194.29

Sent: 2/20/2025 12:30:09 PM

Viewed: 2/20/2025 12:40:39 PM 

Signed: 2/20/2025 12:40:50 PM

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Accepted: 1/22/2025 3:12:10 PM
      ID: 09390cdc-72c7-4eae-a7de-7d4f45c32f68
      Company Name: State of Alaska

In Person Signer Events Signature Timestamp

Editor Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Agent Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Intermediary Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Certified Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Carbon Copy Events Status Timestamp

Witness Events Signature Timestamp

Notary Events Signature Timestamp

Envelope Summary Events Status Timestamps
Envelope Sent Hashed/Encrypted 2/20/2025 12:30:09 PM

Certified Delivered Security Checked 2/20/2025 12:40:39 PM

Signing Complete Security Checked 2/20/2025 12:40:50 PM

Completed Security Checked 2/20/2025 12:40:50 PM

Payment Events Status Timestamps

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure

RMC 4/
9/2

5 M
ee

tin
g

87



ELECTRONIC RECORD AND SIGNATURE DISCLOSURE  

Please read this Electronic Records and Signature Disclosure (ERSD). It concerns your rights 

regarding electronically undertaking, and the conditions under which you and the State of Alaska 

agree to electronically undertake, the transaction to which it relates (the “TRANSACTION”). 

Consent to Electronically Undertake the TRANSACTION 

You can electronically undertake the TRANSACTION only if you confirm that you meet the 

following requirements by selecting the box next to “I agree to use electronic records and 

signature” (the “AGREE BOX”): 

1. you can fully access and have read this ERSD; 

2. you can fully access all of the information in the other TRANSACTION records; 

3. you can retain all of the TRANSACTION records in a form that you will be able to fully 

access for later reference; 

4. you consent to undertake the TRANSACTION electronically; and 

5. you are authorized to undertake the TRANSACTION. (Please note that falsely 

undertaking the TRANSACTION may subject you to civil liabilities and penalties and/or 

to criminal penalties.) 

If you cannot or are not willing to confirm each of these five things, do not select the AGREE 

BOX. 

Withdrawing Consent 

If you select the AGREE BOX, you can withdraw your consent to electronically undertake the 

TRANSACTION at any time before you complete the TRANSACTION: simply do not finalize 

it. The only consequence of withdrawing your consent is that you will not finalize the 

TRANSACTION. 

If you select the AGREE BOX, your consent will apply only to this TRANSACTION. You must 

separately consent to electronically undertake any other transaction with the State of Alaska. 

Paper Option for Undertaking the TRANSACTION 

You may undertake the TRANSACTION with the State of Alaska using paper records. (State of 

Alaska employees who want to undertake the TRANSACTION in paper should contact the 

agency responsible for the TRANSACTION.) Print the paper records on the website of the State 

of Alaska agency responsible for the TRANSACTION, or request them from the agency. The 

State of Alaska homepage is at http://alaska.gov/. 

Copies of TRANSACTION Records 

After completing the TRANSACTION but before closing your web browser, you should 

download the TRANSACTION records. Or you can download the records within 30 days after 

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure created on: 3/31/2020 10:41:05 PM
Parties agreed to: Jusdi Warner

RMC 4/
9/2

5 M
ee

tin
g

88



completing the TRANSACTION using the link in the DocuSign email sent to the email address 

you used to complete the TRANSACTION. The State of Alaska will not provide a paper copy of 

the TRANSACTION records as part of the TRANSACTION. Under the Alaska Public Records 

Act (APRA), AS 40.25.100–.295, you can request a copy from the agency responsible for the 

TRANSACTION, but if too much time has passed, the agency may no longer have the records 

when you make your request. If required under the APRA, the agency will charge a fee. 

Required Hardware and Software 

For the minimum system requirements to electronically undertake the TRANSACTION, 

including accessing and thereby retaining the TRANSACTION records, visit 

https://support.docusign.com/guides/signer-guide-signing-system-requirements. These 

requirements may change. In addition, you need access to an email account. 

How to Contact the State of Alaska 

To ask a question on this ERSD or the DocuSign document generated after you complete the 

TRANSACTION or on using DocuSign to electronically undertake the TRANSACTION, 

contact the Alaska Department of Administration at either of the following addresses: 

State of Alaska  

Department of Administration 

550 West 7th Avenue  

Suite 1970  

Anchorage, AK 99501  

Reference: DocuSign  

doa.commissioner@alaska.gov 

Subject: DocuSign 

To ask any other question on the TRANSACTION records or to update the information for 

contacting you electronically, contact the State of Alaska agency responsible for the 

TRANSACTION using the contact information in the TRANSACTION records or, if those 

records contain no contact information, using the contact information on the agency’s website. 

Again, the State of Alaska homepage is at http://alaska.gov/. 
RMC 4/

9/2
5 M

ee
tin

g

89



RMC 4/
9/2

5 M
ee

tin
g

90



RMC 4/
9/2

5 M
ee

tin
g

91



RMC 4/
9/2

5 M
ee

tin
g

92



CAUTION: This email originated from outside the State of Alaska mail system. Do not
click links or open attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content
is safe.

From: patricia schmidt
To: Keller, Valette A (DOR)
Subject: De Nardo Center
Date: Saturday, June 7, 2025 4:30:11 PM
Attachments: The Alaska Mental Health Trust Authority Letter .pdf

You don't often get email from trishdenardoschmidt@gmail.com. Learn why this is important

Please see the attached letter, which references the De Nardo Center, named after Ann De
Nardo, who fought for mental health care in Alaska.

Patricia De Nardo Schmidt 
1290 Gold Rush Dr 
Fairbanks, AK 99709
907 479-4891

-- 
Friends of SS Nenana 
P.O. Box 72876
Fairbanks, AK 99707
A member of the North Star Community Foundation 
Web Page: https://friendsofssnenana.com 

93

mailto:trishdenardoschmidt@gmail.com
mailto:valette.keller@alaska.gov
https://aka.ms/LearnAboutSenderIdentification
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ffriendsofssnenana.com%2F&data=05%7C02%7Cvalette.keller%40alaska.gov%7C5afd6b115d1840a0051d08dda6237b05%7C20030bf67ad942f7927359ea83fcfa38%7C0%7C0%7C638849394107889660%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C40000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=YoPQh1xq64MAT4H9qv1DahqQ%2B9elUGaQuiWH3GAbS4o%3D&reserved=0



Submit to the Alaska Mental Health Trust Authority at 3745 Community Park Loop, Suite 200, 
Anchorage, AK 99508, or by email at valette.keller@alaska.gov. 


There could be nothing more fitting than bringing this building back to its original purpose.  


The state constructed a mental health complex in Fairbanks in 1987. The De Nardo Center was 
named after my mother, Ann De Nardo, in honor of her tireless efforts to support those with mental 
illnesses.  


Ann, searching for help for her son, became an activist in pushing for services and programs in 
Fairbanks and the state of Alaska. 


Ann started the Fairbanks Alliance for the Mentally Ill (FAMI) in Fairbanks, a support and advocacy 
group for families dealing with mental illness, later changing their name to NAMI when it went 
statewide. 


They were able to provide a place for the mentally ill to live and see psychiatrists for help with their 
mental illness.  


May 18, 2003, Fairbanks Daily News Miner  
Article ID: 1399631 
Section: Today's Cole Column 
 
De Nardo responded to crisis by fighting to change system 
 
ANN DENARDO never intended to become a political activist and a community leader, but 
desperation does things to people. She once described herself before her transformation as a 
"mother living in the woods who couldn't organize a brunch for two families." 
 
Everyone who knew her would tell you that was not the case. Born in Lynn, Mass., she finished 
college in 1952, married Frank in 1953 and moved to Alaska in 1959. 
 
When Ann's son Tom was stricken with schizophrenia at 17, she ventured into a world that she knew 
nothing about. Chronic mental illness was rarely a topic of public discussion in Fairbanks and 
across Alaska and she struggled for answers. 
 
The secrecy and stigma surrounding the subject made it difficult for families, all of whom thought 
they were alone in the world. 
 
Twenty years ago DeNardo placed notices in the News-Miner and went on the radio to say she 
wanted to meet with people who had family members with a mental illness. 
 
She would have been happy had one person showed up at the first meeting, but dozens of people 
responded and it grew from there. That was the beginning of what's now known as NAMI-Fairbanks, 
a support, education and advocacy group for families dealing with mental illness. She headed the 
local group and later served as president of the statewide organization. 
 
"Fairbanks does not address the problems of chronic mental illness adequately," she wrote in early 
1983. "Indeed, our community is not aware of its existence." 
 







Submit to the Alaska Mental Health Trust Authority at 3745 Community Park Loop, Suite 200, 
Anchorage, AK 99508, or by email at valette.keller@alaska.gov. 


Through public appearances and trips at her own expense across the state and as far as 
Washington, D.C., DeNardo set about changing the way we respond to mental illness. 
 
At the time, the only option for people with chronic mental illness was the Alaska Psychiatric 
Institute in Anchorage. DeNardo became an activist, and an effective one, in pushing for services 
and programs in Fairbanks and other communities. 
 
"If it hadn't been for her, there are a lot of things that we have today that would not have happened," 
said Al Aaron, one of those who joined with DeNardo two decades ago. 
 
Jeannette Grasto, another longtime activist, said that some mentally ill people froze to death in the 
streets because there was no place for them to stay. DeNardo did much to build awareness by the 
public, state officials and policy makers. 
 
When the state built a $3.5-million mental health complex in the late 1980s, the state 
commissioner of Health and Social Services pointed to DeNardo as the "quiet force" behind the 
project. 
 
When John Pugh surprised her by announcing that one of the buildings would be named the 
"DeNardo Center" she covered her face with her hands. 
 
DeNardo was speechless. "I'm thinking of my son," she said, with tears glistening on her face. 
 
She often remarked in those years that progress was being made, but it wouldn't help her son and 
that he remained at API. "I haven't come one step closer to helping my son," she said in 1986. 
 
That changed about 10 years ago with the development of a new medicine that allowed her son to 
return to Fairbanks and live independently, much to the delight of DeNardo and her entire family. 
She died in early May at 76, knowing that she had finally made a difference for her son. 
 
"We are so glad that my mother did everything she wanted to do in life, plus the things she never 
even knew she wanted to do, the work for the mentally ill," said her daughter Patricia  Schmidt. 
 
A potlatch to celebrate her life will be Monday at 5 p.m. in the Moose Lodge off 10th Avenue. There 
will be drums, Native dancing and one of her favorite bands will play, Nostalgic Jam, with drummer 
Gary Schmidt sitting in. 
 
Her ashes will be spread across from a hunting camp on the Nowitna River, where she was happiest 
hunting with Frank and her other loved ones. 







There could be nothing more fitting than bringing this building back to its original purpose.  

The state constructed a mental health complex in Fairbanks in 1987. The De Nardo Center was 
named after my mother, Ann De Nardo, in honor of her tireless efforts to support those with mental 
illnesses.  

Ann, searching for help for her son, became an activist in pushing for services and programs in 
Fairbanks and the state of Alaska. 

Ann started the Fairbanks Alliance for the Mentally Ill (FAMI) in Fairbanks, a support and advocacy 
group for families dealing with mental illness, later changing their name to NAMI when it went 
statewide. 

They were able to provide a place for the mentally ill to live and see psychiatrists for help with their 
mental illness.  

May 18, 2003, Fairbanks Daily News Miner  
Article ID: 1399631 
Section: Today's Cole Column 
 
De Nardo responded to crisis by fighting to change system 
 
ANN DENARDO never intended to become a political activist and a community leader, but 
desperation does things to people. She once described herself before her transformation as a 
"mother living in the woods who couldn't organize a brunch for two families." 
 
Everyone who knew her would tell you that was not the case. Born in Lynn, Mass., she finished 
college in 1952, married Frank in 1953 and moved to Alaska in 1959. 
 
When Ann's son Tom was stricken with schizophrenia at 17, she ventured into a world that she knew 
nothing about. Chronic mental illness was rarely a topic of public discussion in Fairbanks and 
across Alaska and she struggled for answers. 
 
The secrecy and stigma surrounding the subject made it difficult for families, all of whom thought 
they were alone in the world. 
 
Twenty years ago DeNardo placed notices in the News-Miner and went on the radio to say she 
wanted to meet with people who had family members with a mental illness. 
 
She would have been happy had one person showed up at the first meeting, but dozens of people 
responded and it grew from there. That was the beginning of what's now known as NAMI-Fairbanks, 
a support, education and advocacy group for families dealing with mental illness. She headed the 
local group and later served as president of the statewide organization. 
 
"Fairbanks does not address the problems of chronic mental illness adequately," she wrote in early 
1983. "Indeed, our community is not aware of its existence." 
 

94



Through public appearances and trips at her own expense across the state and as far as 
Washington, D.C., DeNardo set about changing the way we respond to mental illness. 
 
At the time, the only option for people with chronic mental illness was the Alaska Psychiatric 
Institute in Anchorage. DeNardo became an activist, and an effective one, in pushing for services 
and programs in Fairbanks and other communities. 
 
"If it hadn't been for her, there are a lot of things that we have today that would not have happened," 
said Al Aaron, one of those who joined with DeNardo two decades ago. 
 
Jeannette Grasto, another longtime activist, said that some mentally ill people froze to death in the 
streets because there was no place for them to stay. DeNardo did much to build awareness by the 
public, state officials and policy makers. 
 
When the state built a $3.5-million mental health complex in the late 1980s, the state 
commissioner of Health and Social Services pointed to DeNardo as the "quiet force" behind the 
project. 
 
When John Pugh surprised her by announcing that one of the buildings would be named the 
"DeNardo Center" she covered her face with her hands. 
 
DeNardo was speechless. "I'm thinking of my son," she said, with tears glistening on her face. 
 
She often remarked in those years that progress was being made, but it wouldn't help her son and 
that he remained at API. "I haven't come one step closer to helping my son," she said in 1986. 
 
That changed about 10 years ago with the development of a new medicine that allowed her son to 
return to Fairbanks and live independently, much to the delight of DeNardo and her entire family. 
She died in early May at 76, knowing that she had finally made a difference for her son. 
 
"We are so glad that my mother did everything she wanted to do in life, plus the things she never 
even knew she wanted to do, the work for the mentally ill," said her daughter Patricia  Schmidt. 
 
A potlatch to celebrate her life will be Monday at 5 p.m. in the Moose Lodge off 10th Avenue. There 
will be drums, Native dancing and one of her favorite bands will play, Nostalgic Jam, with drummer 
Gary Schmidt sitting in. 
 
Her ashes will be spread across from a hunting camp on the Nowitna River, where she was happiest 
hunting with Frank and her other loved ones. 

95



96



97



98



99



TLO Real Estate Cost 
Effectiveness Analysis
3745 Community Park Loop Options
Prepared for: Alaska Mental Health Trust Authority 
Board of Trustees

Shanna Zuspan, Curtis Fincher, Mike Fisher, Collen File, Nate Seymour

Trust Land Office 8/27/2025

100



Consultant Project Team

A::B TLO Real Estate BCA Site Visit 2

Shanna Zuspan
Principal
Agnew::Beck Consulting
Role: Principal in Charge. Market 
Analysis, Cost Efficiency Analysis, 
Executive Summary

Mike Fisher
Associate Senior Consultant 
Northern Economics Inc.
Role: Cost Efficiency Analysis, Market 
Analysis

Curtis Fincher
Senior Associate
Agnew::Beck Consulting
Role: Project Manager, Market 
Analysis, Cost Efficiency Analysis, 
Executive Summary

Nate Seymour
Principal
Pacwest Consulting
Role: Property Assessment, Cost 
Estimating/Scheduling,
Property Condition Assessment

Colleen File
Project Analyst
Northern Economics Inc.
Role: Cost Efficiency Analysis Lead, 
Market Analysis

Client Project Team:
Jusdi Warner, David MacDonald, and Jeffrey Green.

101



Table of 
Contents

3

Project Overview & 
Approach

Overview of project and 
methods

Property Condition 
Assessment

Current Trust Authority 
Building condition

Scenario Descriptions Summary of top performing 
scenarios included in the 
analysis

Key Findings: Cost 
Effectiveness Analysis

Comparison of scenarios by 
CapEx, NOI, Net Present Value, 
and NPV + Residual Value

102



Project 
Overview

The Trust Authority Building’s 
(3745 Community Park Loop) 
mechanical equipment is at risk of 
failure and the Trust Authority must 
choose how to address the issue.

TLO selected a consulting team to 
evaluate a variety of real estate 
scenarios intended to remedy the 
problem, with the goal of 
understanding the most cost-
effective option. 

A::B TLO Real Estate BCA Site Visit 4103



Terminology

5

TLO Staff from the Trust Land Office

TAO Staff from the Trust Authority Office

TA All staff and the Board from the Alaska Mental Health Trust 
Authority

TAB Trust Authority Building; the building at 3745 Community Park 
Loop

LTCO Long term Care Ombudsman

CapEx Capital Expenses used to acquire, upgrade, or maintain 
physical assets; typically represents a significant, long-term 
investment.

NOI Net Operating Income. Revenue minus expenses, yearly.

NPV Net present value.  A way to evaluate costs and revenues over 
a period of time. CapEx + NOI through time, adjusted to 
account for inflation and rendered in present dollars. 

Disposition 
Value

The expected sale proceeds from a building that is sold at a 
point in time.

Residual 
Value

The estimated market value of a building at a point in time, 
assuming it is retained and not sold.104



Trust Authority Building (TAB) 

• ~25,000 GSF, 2 stories
• TAO and LTCO occupy 2nd floor.
• Large conference room on 1st 

floor for TA activities.
• ASD occupied 1st floor; that lease 

terminated due to inability to 
guarantee a functioning building 
for 2025/2026 school year and 1st 
floor now vacant.

• Mechanical equipment (boiler 
room + HVAC) in need of repair 
or risk building failure. 

2600 Cordova Street Building

• ~28,000 GSF, 2 stories + 
basement/lobby. 

• Home to TLO staff, VOA Alaska, a 
CPA office, and a dental office. 

• Building in good condition. 

6

Current Real Estate Situation for Staff at TAO and TLO

105



Project Methodology

1. Refine Assumptions underlying each scenario.
Understand exactly what each scenario is modelling: includes space needs, feasibility of 
remote work during renovation, approach to asset valuation, modelled time horizons, 
and more.

2. Market Analysis of commercial real estate data for Anchorage.
Interviews with local brokers and data analysis to understand market trends, costs to 
lease, costs to buy,  and tenant improvement allowances.

3. Develop a detailed Cost Estimate for each scenario. 
Includes Property Condition Assessment of Community Park Loop and site visits to 
2600 Cordova Street and for-lease office space (1835 Bragaw Office Center).

4. Cost Effectiveness Analysis. 
Model 11 different scenarios which locate the Trust Authority Office in a suitable office 
space for the next 10 to 40 years; compare their costs. 

5. Board Presentation to synthesize findings.
7

Property 
Condition 

Assessment & 
Cost Estimate

Refine 
Assumptions

Market 
Analysis

Cost 
Effectiveness 

Analysis

Board 
Presentation 

We are here

106



High Level Takeaways

Economic considerations:
• Building new or extensively renovating the Trust Authority Building is 

prohibitively expensive and not recommended. 
• Replacing the TAB’s mechanical equipment or co-locating at Cordova 

Street offer cost effective options.
• Leasing for TAO or buying another building for TAO are also cost-

effective but add to the real estate portfolio of the TA.

Non-economic considerations:
• Desirability of co-locating the Trust Authority Office (TAO) and the 

Trust Land Office (TLO).
• Medium and long term goals associated with the PLI zoned land that the 

TAB currently inhabits and its future ability to support beneficiaries.

8107



Property Condition 
Assessment

9108



TAB: Property Condition Assessment

Building Construction:
• Steel and Metal Stud Framing Construction over Slab on Grade, 

Continuous Footing/Stem wall and select Spread Footings

      Building Envelope:
• Exterior stucco and wood siding combination
• Exterior Windows (Combination fixed and operable, older in age and 

efficiency)
• Built up style roofing system consisting of single ply membrane, rigid 

insulation and concrete paver overlay

        Finishes:
• Dated finishes at Level 1 (ASD Tenant Space)

• Carpet and Vinyl Flooring, Painted GWB Walls, ACT Ceilings, Plastic Laminate 
Casework/Counter

• Updated finishes at Level 2 (Client Space)
• Glass Storefront Entrance, Carpet and LVP Flooring, Tile Bathroom, 

Painted GWB Walls, ACT Ceilings, Casework and Solid Surface Counters.

10109



TAB: Property Condition Assessment (…continued)

   Mechanical, Electrical, and Plumbing:
• Plumbing: Boiler System serves building thru radiant panels throughout

• Existing boilers are beyond life expectancy and recently requiring regular 
maintenance/repairs

• Minimal leaks with boiler piping system over the last two years

• Plumbing: Domestic system consists of Hot Water heater and DWV and 
water piping routed to installed fixtures

• Hot Water Heater recently replaced
• Domestic hot water line replaced more recently as a result of previous leaks

• Fire Sprinkler: Building appears to be fully sprinklered
• HVAC: Roof Mounted AHU supplies air thru ductwork routed to ceiling 

installed VAV boxes and grilles
• Existing AHU is beyond life expectancy and utilizes outdated refrigerant

• Electrical: Power and Data routed throughout (typical commercial office 
application), combination ceiling and accent fixtures throughout

• Building Control System is primarily original and pneumatic.

11110



Immediate Concerns and Risks

Currently the TAB is operating on one boiler. Looking ahead to winter, if 
anything went wrong with that boiler, the building would become 
uninhabitable. 
In this case, there could potentially be a 4+ month period where 
staff would need to work from home or elsewhere until the boilers 
were replaced and heat re-established by February/March 2026.
TAO could relocate into a short-term lease before this coming winter to 
mitigate this possibility, however there is significant lead time needed to 
move TAO into such a lease.
If the board decides to replace TAB’s boilers, the soonest that work could 
be completed and a comfortable building environment could be 
guaranteed is February/March 2026, and there is a risk that the project 
could take longer. 

12111



Scenarios

13112



Scenarios: 
• 11 scenarios and 6 sub-scenarios modelled and investigated. 

Scenarios initially developed by TLO and later 
refined/expanded by project team + TLO.

• Deliberately wide-ranging: intended to investigate many 
solutions to TAB’s failing mechanical equipment without 
bias.

• Top 5 most cost-effective scenarios detailed here. 
See earlier report to Resource Management Committee 
for overview of non-competitive scenarios.

14

Scenarios for Study

113



Scenario 2: TAB Mechanical Equipment Replacement

2. TAB Mechanical Equipment Replacement
• Replaces failing mechanical systems only (boilers and HVAC) and adds new control 

system.  
• No piping or ductwork replaced throughout building and therefore minimal finish 

work required. 
• Includes $835,000 reserve fund to account for unanticipated costs associated with a 

more limited renovation. 
• Timeline: 

• Boiler/Controls – February/March
• Air Handling Unit –May 2026.
• Vacating of building may not be required but could be prudent; Interim lease assumed in 

model.

15114



Scenarios 6 – 11: TAB Demolition and Relocate

6. Renovate 2600 Cordova Street for TAO 
• Interior renovation of 7,500 RSF office space currently occupied by VOA (lease 

expires March 2027). 
• Tenant improvement costs of $150/RSF. 

7. Long term lease for TAO
• Lease 7,500 RSF office space at market rate of $2.50/RSF. 
• Tenant improvement costs of $150/RSF with a $35 Tenant Improvement Allowance 

(TIA) provided by landlord. 

9.    Buy for TAO
• Purchase10,400 GSF office space at market rate of $250/GSF. 
• Improvement costs of $150/RSF. 

11.  Buy for TAO + Lease Excess Space 
• Based on actuals from two broker-selected buildings (next slide).
• Improvement costs of $150/RSF. 

16115



Comparables used for 11a and 11b: Buy for TAO + 
Lease Excess Space

17

$7.9M 
Total SF: 58,405
Cost/Sqft: $135
Rent: $2.75/RSF

$3.895M (sale pending)
Total SF: 14,900 SF
Cost/Sqft: $261
Rent: $2.60/RSF

3000 A St.

3035 C St.

116



Key Findings: Cost 
Effectiveness Analysis

18117



Evaluation

We arranged our Cost Effectiveness Analysis to output four primary 
metrics by which to evaluate the ten scenarios. These are:
1. Capital Expense (CapEx): the initial cost of construction, renovation, or 

purchase under each scenario.
2. Net Operating Income (NOI): average revenue minus expenses over 

the time horizon, averaged annually. 
3. Net Present Value (NPV): CapEx + NOI over the time horizon, 

calculated in today’s dollars. 
4. Net Present Value plus Residual Value: NPV + disposition value of 

asset assuming 2% annual appreciation. 

19118



High Level Findings

• Scenario 7: Long term lease for TAO has the lowest CapEx, and the 
highest NPV over ten years. 

• Scenario 9: Buy for TAO(10,400 sqft) has the highest NPV + Residual 
Value over ten years. 

• Scenarios that buy more space than TAO needs and lease that excess 
space have lower NPVs than buying for TAO only. 

• Scenario 2: TAB Mechanical Equipment Replacement is the only 
scenario that places in the Top 3 across three different metrics.

20

CapEx NOI NPV
NPV + 

Residual
Rank Rank Rank Rank

2 TAB Mechanical Equipment Replacement 3 4 2 2
6 Cordova: TAO to move in 2 6 3 6

7 Long term lease for TAO 1 5 1 4

9 Buy for TAO (10,400 sqft) 4 3 4 1
11a Buy for TAO + Lease Extra Space (58k sqft) 6 1 6 5

11b Buy for TAO + Lease Extra Space (15k sqft) 5 2 5 3

Scenario Name
Scenario 

#

119



Capital Expenditures Estimates

21

• Total CapEx of the top four scenarios (2, 6, 7, and 9) range from $1.2M to 
$4.2M. 

• Scenario 7: Lease for TAO has the lowest CapEx, but is the only one of the top 
four scenarios where the improvement costs are spent on a building that the TA 
does not own. 

• Scenario 6: TAO moves into Cordova is the second lowest CapEx, and 
significantly cheaper than Scenarios 2 and 9. 

Amount Note
2 TAB Mechanical Equipment Replacement $439,740 [1] $1,980,048 $835,000 $0 $0 $3,254,788 3 $133,650 24,850 gross $131
6 Cordova: TAO to move in $1,125,000 [2] $0 $0 $380,000 $0 $1,505,000 2 $400,950 7,500 leasable $201
7 Long term lease for TAO $862,500 [3] $0 $0 $380,000 $0 $1,242,500 1 $133,650 7,500 leasable $166
9 Buy for TAO (10,400 sqft) $1,245,000 [4] $0 $0 $380,000 $2,600,000 $4,225,000 4 $209,385 10,400 gross $406

11a Buy for TAO + Lease Extra Space (58k sqft) $5,633,924 [5] $0 $0 $380,000 $7,900,000 $13,913,924 6 $209,385 58,405 gross $238
11b Buy for TAO + Lease Extra Space (15k sqft) $1,788,000 [5] $0 $0 $380,000 $3,895,000 $6,056,900 5 $209,385 14,900 gross $407

[1] TIs assumed at $150/sqft with a $35 allowance from the TA to release ASD's space
[2] TIs assumed to cost $150/sqft to cover the cost of improving 7,500 sqft of Cordova St. for TAO to move in.
[3] TIs assumed to cost $150/sqft with a $35/sqft allowance resulting in $115/sqft net to cover the cost of improving 7,500 of building space for TAO to move into new building.
[4] TIs at $150/sqft to cover useable sqft including common areas and are in addition to $250/sqft acquisition costs. 
[5] TIs at $150/sqft to cover useable sqft including common areas and are in addition to sale price for two comps.

Scenario
# Scenario Name

Estimated Capital 
Expenditures

 Interim 
Lease 

Amount Type
Cost 

per Sqft

Tenant 
Improvements

Renovation
Reserve 

Fund
TAB

 Demo
Purchase 

Price
Total
CapEx Rank

Building 
Sqft

120



Average Annual Net Operating Income 

22

The NOI is a ten-year average of combined lease revenue minus combined expenses 
for TAB, Cordova Street, and other buildings included in each scenario.

• Scenario 6: TAO moves into Cordova performs poorly by this metric because 
lease revenue is displaced; the Cordova Street property currently nets 
~$250,000/year. 

• Scenario 11: Buy for TAO + Lease Extra Space performs particularly well by 
this metric, with net revenue scaling with leased space.

Rank
2 TAB Mechanical Equipment Replacement $100,968 4
6 Cordova: TAO to move in ($126,309) 6
7 Long term lease for TAO ($31,284) 5
9 Buy for TAO (10,400 sqft) $117,003 3

11a Buy for TAO + Lease Extra Space (58k sqft) $535,041 1
11b Buy for TAO + Lease Extra Space (15k sqft) $181,439 2

Scenario 
# Scenario Name NOI

121



Net Present Value (10-year Time Horizon)

23

NPV & NPV + Residual Value give us an idea of cost effectiveness over time.

• Excluding residual value, all scenarios have a negative NPV over 10 years. 
• Scenario 7: Long term Lease for TAO and Scenario 2: TAB Mech. Equip. 

Replacement have the best NPVs, with ($1.6M) and ($1.7M).

• Including residual value, Scenario 9: Buy for TAO and Scenario 2: Mech. Equip. 
Replacement are nearly tied for 1st, with an NPV + Residual Value of $3.6M.

• 11b: Buy for TAO + Lease Extra Space (15k sqft) also performs reasonably 
well: slightly larger buildings could also be considered if the board elects to buy.

Amount Rank Amount Rank
2 TAB Mechanical Equipment Replacement ($1,743,279) 2 $3,554,074 2
6 Cordova: TAO to move in ($2,639,744) 3 $1,909,165 6
7 Long term lease for TAO ($1,598,839) 1 $2,950,071 4
9 Buy for TAO (10,400 sqft) ($3,506,099) 4 $3,624,609 1

11a Buy for TAO + Lease Extra Space (58k sqft) ($10,348,446) 6 $2,526,661 5
11b Buy for TAO + Lease Extra Space (15k sqft) (4,884,679) 5 3,306,918 3

NPV + Residual Value
Scenario

# Scenario Name

Net Present Value 

122



24

Model leaders
• If the lowest CapEx and highest NPV are the board’s priorities, Scenario 7: Long Term 

lease for TAO is the top performer. 
• If NPV + Residual Value is more important, Scenario 9: Buy for TAO is the best 

performer. 
• Given that 11b: Buy for TAO + Lease Extra Space (15k sqft) also performs well, a 

range of sqft should likely be considered if the board elects to buy (i.e. 10k-20k GSF). 
• Scenario 2: TAB Mechanical Equipment Replacement performs very well overall. It is 

nearly tied for 1st in both NPV and NPV + Residual Value, and is competitive in all other metrics. 
• This scenario depends on long term goals and timeline for (PLI-zoned) Community 

Park Loop redevelopment.
• Scenario 6: TAO moves into Cordova is the least competitive of the top options, and 

should likely only be considered if co-locating TAO and TLO offers non-monetary benefits. 

123



Thank you! 

124



Facility Maintenance 
& Operational Budget 

Approvals

125



Page | 1 

 

 
Introduction: The Denardo Center (aka Fairbanks Sobering Center) is a Program-Related Real Estate 
asset serving a vital community need.  Constructed in 1986 and comprising 6,532 rentable square 
feet, the building was formerly leased to the Tanana Chiefs Conference (TCC), who operated the 
center on a lease running through July 31, 2025; this lease has expired and the tenant has vacated.  
Alaska Behavioral Health (AKBH) is interested in occupying the building and is pursuing a below-
market lease for this building and the adjacent Fahrenkamp Center, which they already occupy.  The 
below-market lease has been recommended by the Resource Management Committee to the Board 
of Trustees for approval.  The required public notice and Best Interest Decision as part of the TLO 
administrative process will run it’s course should the full board approve the below market lease.  The 
current timeline anticipates full execution of the below-market lease on or about November 1, 2025. 
 
With TCC having vacated, and an estimated commencement for the AKBH lease of November 1st, no 
rental income will be generated by the property for a period of roughly three months.  To cover the 
property during the vacancy, we have estimated the expenditures at $18,400; this includes the 

  
 

2600 Cordova Street, Suite 201 
Anchorage, Alaska 99503 

Phone: 907-269-8658 
Fax: 907-269-8605 

 

To: Brent Fisher, Board Chair 

Approval 

From: David MacDonald 
Thru: Dr. Mary Wilson 
Thru:  Jusdi Warner 
Date: August 27, 2025 
Re: Denardo Budget Funding Request  
Fiscal Year: 
Amount:  

2026 
$18,400 

Proposed Motion: 
 
Proposed Motion: “The Alaska Mental Health Trust Authority Board of Trustees approves transfer of 
up to $18,400 to fund near-term property expenditures related to the Denardo property representing 
a portion of the full amount covered in the previously approved Fiscal Year 2026 Budget.   The Board 
of Trustees directs the CFO to transfer the funds from a source determined most appropriate by the 
CFO and approved by the CEO for this purpose and to distribute these funds to the third-party 
property manager at the request of the Trust Land Office.  The transfer shall occur as soon as 
reasonably practicable.” 
 

Background:  

126



Page | 2 

 

estimated monthly expenses, a small contingency fund due to hurdles in lease execution timing, and 
the cost of refilling the fuel tank needed to heat the building.   
 
Property Description/Acreage/MH Parcel(s): Program-Related Real Estate  
 
Program Related Real Estate Properties   

 1300 Moore Street, Fairbanks, AK 
 
Trust Land Office Recommendation: The TLO recommends that it is in the Trust’s best interest to 
approve the proposed transfer. 
 
Applicable Authority: AS 37.14.009(a), AS 38.05.801, 20 AAC 40.710‐720 and 11 AAC 99. 
 
Trust Authority Approval: The motion presented in this briefing document fulfill the approval 
requirements that are applicable to the transaction. 
 
General Background:   Though vacant, the Trust Land Office needs to keep the premises in good, safe 
condition. The Trust Authority administrative office will determine fund source. 
 
Consistency with the Resource Management Strategy: The proposal is consistent with the 
“Resource Management Strategy for Trust Land” (RMS), which was adopted October 2021 in 
consultation with the Trust and provides for assuring that the real estate needs of mental health 
programs sponsored by the Alaska Mental Health Trust Authority are met as appropriate. In addition, 
11 AAC 99.020(c)(3) cites protection and enhancement of the long‐term productivity of Trust land. 
 
 
 
 

127



Page | 1 

 

 
Introduction:  The TAB (formerly the Family Resources Center) was constructed in 1985 for, and 
has been in use as a social service building for forty years. The site is an irregular-shaped interior lot 
containing approximately 177,550 square feet (SF). The structure located on the lot is a steel frame 
construction building. The gross building area is approximately 24,850 SF, plus a 748 SF roof-mounted 
clerestory and a 336 SF mechanical penthouse. Approximately 21,900 SF is unit space available for 
rent.  There is also approximately 1,000 SF of roof patio area accessible from the second story. The 
building is presently occupied by the Trust Authority and the Long-Term Care Ombudsman.  The 
ground floor of the building was formerly occupied by the Anchorage School District; this tenant has 
vacated. 
 
The building is in critical need of renovation, with the building systems at risk of failure.  In light of 
this uncertainty, we are seeking the requested funds to ensure the building’s operating expenses are 
covered to whatever extent proves necessary, with a ceiling of the $368,766 requested.  Based on 
Trustee approval of Scenarios presented 8/27/25 any funds transferred but not ultimately needed 
will be distributed back to the Trust Authority. 

  
 

2600 Cordova Street, Suite 201 
Anchorage, Alaska 99503 

Phone: 907-269-8658 
Fax: 907-269-8605 

 

To: Brent Fisher, Board Chair 

Approval 

From: David MacDonald 
Thru: Dr. Mary Wilson 
Thru:  Jusdi Warner 
Date: August 27, 2025 
Re: Trust Authority Building Budget Funding Request  
Fiscal Year: 
Amount:  

2026 
$368,766 

Proposed Motion: 
 
Proposed Motion: “The Alaska Mental Health Trust Authority Board of Trustees approves transfer of 
up to $368,766 to fund the property expenditures related to the Trust Authority Building covered in 
the previously approved Fiscal Year 2026 Budget.  The Board of Trustees directs the CFO to transfer 
the funds from a source determined most appropriate by the CFO and approved by the CEO for this 
purpose and to distribute these funds to the third-party property manager at the request of the Trust 
Land Office.  The transfer shall occur as soon as reasonably practicable.” 
 

Background:  

128



Page | 2 

 

 
Property Description/Acreage/MH Parcel(s): Program-Related Real Estate  
 
Program Related Real Estate Properties   

 3745 Community Park Loop, Anchorage, AK 
 
Trust Land Office Recommendation: The TLO recommends that it is in the Trust’s best interest to 
approve the proposed transfer. 
 
Applicable Authority: AS 37.14.009(a), AS 38.05.801, 20 AAC 40.710‐720 and 11 AAC 99. 
 
Trust Authority Approval: The motion presented in this briefing document fulfill the approval 
requirements that are applicable to the transaction. 
 
General Background:   The existing tenancies require the Trust Land Office to keep the Premises in 
tenable condition. The Trust Authority administrative office will determine fund source. 
 
Consistency with the Resource Management Strategy: The proposal is consistent with the 
“Resource Management Strategy for Trust Land” (RMS), which was adopted October 2021 in 
consultation with the Trust and provides for assuring that the real estate needs of mental health 
programs sponsored by the Alaska Mental Health Trust Authority are met as appropriate. In addition, 
11 AAC 99.020(c)(3) cites protection and enhancement of the long‐term productivity of Trust land. 
 
 
 
 

129



State of Alaska
Department of Health

Overview of Health Care Provisions in the

One Big Beautiful Bill Act

Heidi Hedberg, Commissioner
Betsy Wood, Associate Director, Office of Health Savings

1 130



Health Care Provisions in the 
One Big Beautiful Bill Act (OBBBA)

1. Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program

2. Medicaid

3. Rural Health Transformation Program

3131



Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program

Changes to the Supplemental Nutrition 
Assistance Program (SNAP):

1. Work Requirements

2. Benefit Amounts

3. State Penalties for Payment Errors

4. Administrative Cost Sharing for the State

4132



Health Care Provisions in the 
One Big Beautiful Bill Act (OBBBA)

1. Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program

2. Medicaid

3. Rural Health Transformation Program

9133



Medicaid: Alaska Impacts

 Alaska will experience different impacts 
than many other states due to the unique 
structure of our Medicaid program and the 
bill’s built-in exemptions.

 Alaska does not rely on provider taxes or 
state-directed payments, which are 
significantly affected by the bill and drive 
some of the largest projected funding 
losses elsewhere. 

10134



Medicaid

Changes to the Medicaid Program:

1. Community Engagement Requirements

2. Redeterminations

3. Medicaid Copayments

4. Retroactive Coverage

5. New Medicaid Waiver Opportunity

6. Medicaid Payment Error Penalties

11135



Health Care Provisions in the 
One Big Beautiful Bill Act (OBBBA)

1. Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program

2. Medicaid

3. Rural Health Transformation Program

18136



Rural Health Transformation Program

19

H.R. 1 (One Big Beautiful Bill Act) established the Rural 
Health Transformation Program (RHTP)

Five-year, $50 billion federal initiative to help states 
modernize and stabilize rural health care.

The RHTP is intended to fund innovative projects to 
improve rural health access and outcomes.

137



Rural Health Transformation Funding Allocation

20

$50 billion
Total RHTP Fund

$25 billion
Equal Distribution

$25 billion
Need-Based 
Distribution

138



Rural Health Transformation Timeline

 The Department of Health (DOH) will submit an application to 
CMS on behalf of the state in the fall of 2025. 

 Federal Fiscal Year (FFY) 2026–2030: annual distributions with 2 years to 
spend each allocation.

Use-it-or-lose-it: CMS begins claw-backs/redistributions in 2028 for 
unspent prior-year funds.

 Final reallocated funds (if any) must be spent by the end of FFY 2032.

FFY 2026 FFY 2027 FFY 2028 FFY 2029 FFY 2030 FFY 2031 FFY 2032

139



Rural Health Transformation Funds: Allowable Uses

23

• Up to 10% of funds may be used for administrative purposesAdministrative

• Evidence-based interventions to improve outcomesPrevention & Chronic Conditions

• Payments for health care providersDirect Provider Support

• Consumer tools, hospital and provider adoption of technologyTechnology & Telehealth

• Health care workforce recruitment & retentionWorkforce

• Software, hardware, efficiency upgradesInformation Technology & 
Cybersecurity

• Support services across the continuum from prevention to post-acute“Right-Size” Services

• Expand access to mental health and substance use disorder servicesBehavioral Health

• Support value-based and alternative payment structuresPayment Innovation

• Additional strategies as determined by CMSOther 140



Rural Health Transformation Strategy

24

Public and Stakeholder Engagement
• Request for Information (July 21-August 22) to gather early input to set priorities and shape 

Alaska’s application

Build on What Already Exists
• Draw from existing statewide and regional health plans & needs assessments – no new studies.

Partner to Distribute Funds
• Funds will be administered through statewide partners to reach recipients quickly.

Advisory Council 
• Consider leveraging an advisory council to recommend funding priorities and adjust 

Shovel-Ready & Sustainable
• Prioritize projects we can launch in FFY 2026 and that are sustainable after the funding ends.

141



Rural Health Transformation Goals

25

Meet Today’s Needs – Plan For Tomorrow

142



Department of Health

Thank You

26143



Program and Planning 
Committee Report and 

Approvals

144



 
 

          

 
Meeting Summary  
 
The Program and Planning Committee (P&P) was called to order at 8:30 a.m. on July 31, 2025. The meeting was 
attended in person by trustees Agnes Moran (chair) and Committee members Kevin Fimon, Cori Fiege and via 
telephone by Brent Fisher (ex-officio). Other Trustees in attendance included Anita Halterman and Josie Hickle.  
 
CEO Report, Mary Wilson: 

• Strategic Planning continues to move forward with a goal of unified agreement and alignment around some 
key strategies for the organization. The Trust will public notice the planning results sometime in October with 
a goal of finalizing a strategic plan in November. This timeline is tentative and subject to change. 

• Trustees were notified of the need for alternative meeting locations for upcoming trustee meetings pending 
Trust Authority Building facility plans, which will be determined by trustee action at the August board 
meeting. 

• The board committee packets will now be provided to trustees two weeks prior to the board committee 
meetings to provide trustees more time to review the materials. Additionally, in effort to reduce the volume of 
material included in the Program & Planning packet, in lieu of full proposals, the committee packet includes 
executive summaries of each grant funding proposal; each summary includes a link to the complete funding 
proposal. This new approach is a work in progress and trustee feedback is valued. 

• Heather Phelps was recognized and congratulated on being selected to serve as a member of the National 
Assessment and Treatment Planning work group for the American Society of Addiction Medicine’s work on 
guidance for correctional settings and re-entry.  This work aligns with the Trust’s work on behalf of justice-
involved beneficiaries and provides national visibility for the Trust. 

• The Trust is engaged with others to partner effectively with the state around mental health aspects of rural 
health in Alaska. As part of the Federal Reconciliation bill, Alaska has an opportunity to apply for some of the 
money tied to the Rural Transformation Program to reform access to healthcare in Alaska.  

 
Consent Agenda Partnership Grant Approval, $75,000 and less: 
A consent agenda was considered and passed by the committee to recommend to the August full board, including all 
14 partnership grant proposals. Trustees took the opportunity to ask questions about proposals included in the consent 
agenda and to clarify information about the organization, intent, and beneficiaries served.  Prior to approving the 
motion to recommend the consent agenda, trustees took time to address follow-up questions and have additional 
discussion on three proposals: Battle Dawgs – Operation Arctic Renewal: Outdoor-Based Suicide Prevention for 
Veterans, SE Alaska Kin Support Pilot - Haa Yaitxu Saiai, and the Mat-Su Health Services – Dental Grant. 
 

To: Brent Fisher, Chair 

 
Through: Mary Wilson, CEO 
From: Katie Baldwin-Johnson, Chief Operating Officer 
Date: August 27-28, 2025 
Re: Program and Planning Committee Report – July 31, 2025 

145



Following the discussion, the committee unanimously approved the consent motion, recommending the full board 
approve all 14 items:   

• OpiAID- Compassionate Technology for Opioid Use Disorder - $75,000
• Native Village of Dot Lake- Domestic Violence Safe Housing and Counseling - $60,000
• United Way of Anchorage- Home for Good- Qualitative evaluation of permanent supportive housing project -

$51,176
• Battle Dawgs - Operation Arctic Renewal: Outdoor-Based Suicide 22 Prevention for Veterans - $50,000
• Anchorage School District - Pop Up Playgroups - $50,000
• Interior Community Health Center - Dental Grant - $50,000
• Mat-Su Health Services - Dental Grant - $50,000
• SE Alaska Kin Support Pilot- Haa Yaitxu Saiai - $50,000
• Cook Inlet Counseling - Sage/Saltbox Implementation - $30,750
• Alaska Association on Developmental Disabilities – Complex Care – Providers United to Create Options -

$27,500
• FOCUS, Inc. - Phone Replacement System - $14,763
• Interior Aids Association - IAA Building Improvements” - $10,000
• The ARC of Anchorage- Workforce Sustainability Partnership with Goodlife University - $10,000
• Frontier Community Services, Inc.- Goodlife at FCS - $10,000

Full Board Action is required at the August 27, 2025, board meeting. (See page 148) 

Non-Consent Partnership and Focus Area Grant Approvals $75,000:  
The committee separately discussed 20 individual grant proposals over $75,000 not included in the consent agenda. 
Prior to individual grant presentations, staff gave an overview of the history of the Trust’s Beneficiary Project’s 
Initiative (BPI) to frame the first four grant proposals, along with some reflection on impact data of BPI grants over 
the years. The projects considered and recommended to the full board include the following 20 grant proposals:

• The Alaska Mental Health Consumer Web - $333,600
• Polaris House – Clubhouse Support for Rehabilitation and Recovery - $213,000
• NAMI Juneau – Peer Support in Juneau & Southeast Alaska - $175,000
• NAMI Anchorage – NAMI Anchorage Operating Grant - $168,000
• Northern Hope – Northern Hope Center Mental Health Drop-In Center - $160,000
• Anchorage Neighborhood Housing Services, Inc - NWAK Housing Intervention Program - $254,757
• All Alaska Pediatric Partnership – Infant & Early Child Mental - $220,500
• Alaska Aids Assistance Association - Housing Gap funding - $134,400
• The Alaska Association for Infant & Early Childhood Mental Health - Infant and Early Childhood Mental

Health Consultation Project – 113,620
• The Association for the Education of Youth Children - 4th Trimester Project, Parents as Teachers and Circles

of Security for Classrooms - $100,000
• The Alaska Safety Alliance – Re-envisioned Alaska’s New Statewide Health Workforce Coalition - $91,734
• North Star Community Foundation – Fairbanks Reentry Coalition Housing Assistance - $80,000
• Alaska Brain Injury Consortium - Roads to Recovery: Scaling Community Capacity with the Alaska Brain

Bus - $88,000
• Valley Charities – Mat-Su Reentry Coalition Housing Project - $80,000
• Presbyterian Hospitality House – “The Extra Mile” Strengthening Alaskan Families - $75,000
• Community Connections, Inc. – 1st Street Triplex Upgrades - $75,000
• NAMI Alaska – A Lifeline for Alaskans – $50,000
• Mat-Su Health Foundation – Crisis Now Implementation Coordinator - $38,003

Please note, while the committee did ultimately approve all 20 motions recommending approval to the full board,  the 
following proposals did not receive a unanimous vote:    

146



• NAMI Juneau – Peer Support in Juneau & Southeast Alaska
• NAMI Anchorage FY25
• The Alaska Mental Health Consumer Web
• Polaris House – Clubhouse Support for Rehabilitation and Recovery

Full Board Action is required at the August 27, 2025. (See page 166) 

The committee also considered two grant requests over $500,000; both were recommended to the full board for 
funding:  

• Maniilaq Association – EmPATH Unit - $900,000
• Alaska Addiction Rehabilitation Services (AARS) - Expansion Project - $750,000

Full Board Action is required at the August 27, 2025, board meeting to consider the following grant 
proposals, which exceed $500k request including. (See page 197): 

Statutory Advisors/Request for Recommendations (RFR)- MHTAAR: 

Martin Lang, Executive Director of the Alaska Commission on Aging (ACOA), presented the two recommendations 
submitted for trustee consideration for the FY27 budget, including: 

• Alaska State Plan for Senior Services - $60,000
• Alaska Senior Summit - $5,000

Patrick Reinhart, Executive Director of the Governor’s Advisory Board on Disabilities and Special Education 
(GCDSE), presented two recommendations submitted for trustee consideration for the FY27 budget, including: 

• Project SEARCH Adult site - $75,000
• Universal Changing Spaces Assistance Fund - $250,000

Trustees may consider these recommendations at the August 27, 2025, board meeting. 

FY27 Budget Recommendations: 

Staff walked through the process and timeline leading up to the FY27 budget recommendations. The Program and 
Planning Committee is presented a draft budget during their July meeting, then the budget is deliberated and adopted 
during the August full board of trustee meeting. This timeline accommodated the statutory deadline of Sept. 15 each 
year to transmit the Trust budget to the Legislative Budget and Audit Committee and the Governor.   

During the P&P committee, Trustees were oriented to the materials associated with the budget spreadsheet 
recommendations, including the FY27 Budget Narrative document. Key themes from the stakeholder engagement and 
survey were also shared. Additionally, staff highlighted some improvements that have been made to the budget 
spreadsheet to make the budget more straightforward, and to reduce challenges with lapsing budget items.  

In presenting the draft FY27 budget, staff walked through each of the budget sections, covering the general intent of 
the section and focusing in more detail on new proposed projects and changes or omissions from the FY26 approved 
budget. The August board meeting will be an opportunity for further discussion on budget recommendations and an 
opportunity for trustees to provide additional guidance or propose changes to the budget, leading to final approval and 
transmittal. 

The meeting wrapped up with trustee comments and adjourned at 4:45 p.m.  Pending agenda finalization, the 
committee’s next meeting is tentatively scheduled for October 14 & 15, 2025 in Anchorage. 

147



MEMO

To: Board of Trustees 
Date: August 28, 2025 
Re: Consent Agenda –FY25 and FY26 Partnership requests $75,000 or 

less 
Amount: 
Fund Sources: 

$541,014 
FY 25 Partnership Grants (Page 2, Line 13 of both the FY25 budget) 
FY 26 Partnership Grants (Page 2, Line 13 of both the FY26 budget) 

REQUESTED MOTION:
The Board of Trustees approves the following 14 Partnership grants totaling $541,014 as outlined in the 
table below to include: 

1. OpiAID, “OpiAID Phase 2”, $75,000
2. Native Village of Dot Lake, “Domestic Violence Safe Housing and Counseling”, $60,000
3. United Way of Anchorage, “Home for Good - Qualitative evaluation of permanent supportive

housing project”, $51,176
4. Battle Dawgs, “Operation Arctic Renewal: Outdoor-Based Suicide Prevention for Veterans”,

$50,000
5. Anchorage School District, “Pop Up Playgroups”, $50,000
6. Interior Community Health Center, “Dental Grant”, $50,000
7. Mat-Su Health Services, “Dental Grant”, $50,000
8. Kin Support Program Haa Yaitxu Saiani, “Southeast Alaska Kin Support Pilot”, $50,000
9. Cook Inlet Counseling, “Sage/Saltbox Implementation”, $32,575
10. Alaska Association on Developmental Disabilities, “Complex Care - Providers United to Create

Options”, $27,500
11. FOCUS, Inc., “Phone Replacement System”, $14,763
12. Interior AIDS Association, “IAA Building Improvements”, $10,000
13. Arc of Anchorage, “Workforce Sustainability Partnership with GoodLife University”, $10,000
14. Frontier Community Services, “Goodlife at Frontier Community Services”, $10,000

These funds will come from the Partnerships/Designated Grants line of the FY25 and FY26 budgets. 

There are 14 Partnership grant requests under $75,000 for consideration at the August 2025 Board of Trustee 
meeting.  All 14 grants were reviewed by the Program & Planning Committee during their meeting on July 31, 
2025 and recommended for Full Board approval. 

148



Individual grant memos with staff analysis, project descriptions, project budgets, grant performance measures, 
and the requested start and end dates are available via the committee packet. Attached is an executive summary of 
each proposed grant with a link to the full, detailed application memo.  

If the Trustees elect to remove one or more grant requests from the consent agenda for individual consideration, 
motions for each project are listed below.  

# Grantee 
Organization 

Project Title Primary 
Area 
Served 

Requested 
Amount 

Approval Motion Packet 
Page # 

1 OpiAID, Inc. Compassionate 
Technology Pilot 
for Opioid Use 
Disorder 

Kenai 
Peninsula 

$75,000 The Board of Trustees approve a $75,000 
FY25 Partnership grant to OpiAID, Inc. for 
the Compassionate Technology Pilot for 
OUD grant.  These funds will come from the 
Partnerships/Designated Grants line of the 
FY25 budget.  

151 

2 Native Village 
of Dot Lake 

Domestic Violence 
Safe Housing and 
Counseling 

Dot Lake 
Village 
and 
Statewide 

$60,000 The Board of Trustees approve a $60,000 
Partnership grant to the Native Village of 
Dot Lake for the Domestic Violence Safe 
Housing and Counseling grant.  These 
funds will come from the 
Partnerships/Designated Grants line of the 
FY26 budget. 

152 

3 United Way of 
Anchorage 

Home for Good - 
Qualitative 
evaluation of 
permanent 
supportive 
housing project 

Anchorage $51,176 The Board of Trustees approve a $51,176 
Partnership grant to United Way of 
Anchorage for the Home for Good - 
Qualitative evaluation of permanent 
supportive housing project.  These funds 
will come from the 
Partnerships/Designated Grants line of the 
FY26 budget. 

153 

4 Battle Dawgs Operation Arctic 
Renewal: 
Outdoor-Based 
Suicide Prevention 
for Veterans 

Mat-Su $50,000 The Board of Trustees approve a $50,000 
FY26 Partnership grant to Battle Dawgs for 
the Operation Arctic Renewal: Outdoor-
Based Suicide Prevention for Veterans 
grant.  These funds will come from the 
Partnerships/Designated Grants line of the 
FY26 budget. 

154 

5 Anchorage 
School District 

Pop Up 
Playgroups 

Anchorage $50,000 The Board of Trustees approve a $50,000 
FY25 Partnership grant to the Anchorage 
School District for the Pop Up Playgroups 
project.  These funds will come from the 
Partnerships/Designated Grants line of the 
FY25 budget. 

155 

6 Interior 
Community 
Health Center 

Interior 
Community 
Health Center 
Dental Grant 

Fairbanks $50,000 The Board of Trustees approve a $50,000 
FY26 Partnership grant to Mat-Su Health 
Services, Inc. for the Mental health Trust 
Dental Grant.  These funds will come from 
the Partnerships/Designated Grants line of 
the FY26 budget. 

156 

149



7 Mat-Su Health 
Services, Inc. 

Dental Grant Mat-Su $50,000 The Board of Trustees approve a $50,000 
FY26 Partnership grant to the Interior 
Community Health Center for the FY26 
Interior Community Health Center Dental 
Grant.  These funds will come from the 
Partnerships/Designated Grants line of the 
FY26 budget. 

157 

8 Kin Support 
Program Haa 
Yaitxu Saiani 

Southeast Alaska 
Kin Support Pilot 

Juneau $50,000 The Board of Trustees approve a $50,000 
Partnership grant to Kin Support Program 
Haa Yaitxu Saiai for the Southeast Alaska 
Kin Support Pilot grant.  These funds will 
come from the Partnerships/Designated 
Grants line of the FY26 budget 

158 

9 Cook Inlet 
Counseling, 
Inc. 

Sage/Saltbox 
Implementation 

Kenai 
Peninsula 

$32,575 The Board of Trustees approve a $32,575 
FY25 Partnership grant to Cook Inlet 
Counseling, Inc. for the Sage/Saltbox 
Implementation grant.  These funds will 
come from the Partnerships/Designated 
Grants line of the FY25 budget. 

159 

10 Alaska 
Association on 
Developmental 
Disabilities 

Complex Care - 
Providers United 
to Create Options 

Statewide $27,500 The Board of Trustees approve a $27,500 
FY26 Partnership grant to the Alaska 
Association on Developmental Disabilities 
for the Complex Care - Providers United to 
Create Options project.  These funds will 
come from the Partnerships/Designated 
Grants line of the FY26 budget. 

160 

11 FOCUS, Inc. Phone 
Replacement 
System 

Anchorage $14,763 The Board of Trustees approve a $14,763 
FY25 Partnership grant to FOCUS, Inc. for 
the Phone System Replacement grant.  
These funds will come from the 
Partnerships/Designated Grants line of the 
FY25 budget. 

162 

12 Interior AIDS 
Association 

IAA Building 
Improvements 

Fairbanks $10,000 The Board of Trustees approve a $10,000 
FY26 Partnership Grant to Interior AIDS 
Association for the IAA Building 
Improvements grant.  These funds will 
come from the Partnerships/Designated 
Grants line of the FY26 budget. 

163 

13 Arc of 
Anchorage 

Workforce 
Sustainability 
Partnership with 
Goodlife 
University 

Anchorage $10,000 The Board of Trustees approve a $10,000 
FY26 Partnership Grant to the Arc of 
Anchorage for the Workforce Sustainability 
Partnership with GoodLife University grant.  
These funds will come from the 
Partnerships/Designated Grants line of the 
FY26 budget. 

164 

14 Frontier 
Community 
Services 

Goodlife at 
Frontier 
Community 
Services 

Kenai 
Peninsula 

$10,000 The Board of Trustees approve a $10,000 
FY26 Partnership Grant to Frontier 
Community Services, Inc. for the Goodlife 
at FCS grant.  These funds will come from 
the Partnerships/Designated Grants line of 
the FY26 budget. 

165 

150



Grant Approval Memo  
    

Grantee: OpiAID, Inc. 

Request Amount: $75,000.00 

Project Title: Compassionate Technology Pilot for Opioid Use Disorder (OUD) 

Grant Term: August 28,2025 to March 31, 2027 

Fund Source: FY25 Partnerships/Designated Grants (Page 2, Line 13) 

Trust Staff: Eric Boyer 
 
Requested Motion: 

The Board of Trustees approve a $75,000 FY25 Partnership grant to OpiAID, Inc. for the Compassionate 
Technology Pilot for OUD grant.  These funds will come from the Partnerships/Designated Grants line of the 
FY25 budget. 
 

 
Staff Analysis: 

• What does this project do? 
 
Trust funds will pay for an Opioid Use Disorder (OUD) biometric monitoring system, including wrist-worn 
devices, electronic health record integration, and staff training. This pilot program will equip the staff at the 
Ninilchik Clinic to support 50-100 beneficiaries working through their OUD recovery. This program began with 
the support of a Trust grant in FY25 and was not finished due to delays in getting the electronic health record 
and technology implemented before the grant term was completed.  
 

• Who is receiving the funds? 
 
The Ninilchik Traditional Council Community Clinic offers integrated care, which includes assessment, 
treatment, and case management for beneficiaries experiencing a substance misuse disorder. The clinic service 
area reaches Soldotna south and goes to Homer.  
 

• Why is staff recommending this project? 
 
This project started last year but could not be completed due to the time it took to integrate the Clinic’s 
electronic health record with the OpiAID biometric software. The project is ready to launch fully, but the Trust 
grant agreement term has expired. So, Trust staff decided it was best to end the original grant, have OpiAID 
turn in the unspent portion of the money, and apply for new funding, a continuation of the original pilot 
project.  
 

• Will this be a multi-year project? 
 

This is a one-time funded project broken into two grant terms due to the delays mentioned previously.  
 
Trust Five Year Funding History 
 

Fiscal Year      Project Title         Amount      Status Final Expended 
FY24 OpiAID Pilot $98,500 Closed $26,588 

 

 

➢ Click Here to read the full memo with application details.  

  

151

https://alaskamentalhealthtrust.org/wp-content/uploads/2025/07/18199-OpiAID-2025-07.pdf


Grant Approval Memo  
    

Grantee: Native Village of Dot Lake 

Request Amount: $60,000.00 

Project Title: Domestic Violence Safe Housing and Counseling 

Grant Term:  7/1/2025 to 6/30/2026 

Fund Source: FY26 Partnerships/Designated Grants (Page 2, Line 13) 

Trust Staff: Heather Phelps 
 
Requested Motion: 

The Board of Trustees approve a $60,000 Partnership grant to the Native Village of Dot Lake for the Domestic 
Violence Safe Housing and Counseling grant.  These funds will come from the Partnerships/Designated Grants 
line of the FY26 budget. 
 

 
Staff Analysis: 

• What does this project do? 
Trust funds will pay for one TeeJuh Behavioral Health and Counseling Services staff member to work with 
domestic violence victims residing in safe shelter houses in the Native Village of Dot Lake.  The staff member 
will provide counseling, group counseling, education, and legal advocacy.  TeeJuh is focused on ending 
domestic violence, substance misuse and suicide.   
 

• Who is receiving the funds? 
Dot Lake Village Council will receive the funds for the staff position.  The Native Village of Dot Lake is located 
on the Alaska Highway, 50 miles northwest of Tok and 155 miles southeast of Fairbanks.  The Native Village of 
Dot Lake TeeJuh Behavioral Health Services has been providing culturally appropriate mental and behavioral 
well-being since 2021 for Indian and/or Alaska Native descent individuals statewide. They are currently 
providing services to victims in over 24 communities around the state of Alaska. In 2024, TeeJuh’s programs 
completed over 1600 client encounters with a small staff of 5 people.  
 

• Why is staff recommending this project? 
This project supports Indian and/or Alaska native descent individuals who have experienced domestic violence.  
Many victims of domestic violence are Trust beneficiaries who are experiencing mental illness, substance use 
disorder, including alcohol use, and intellectual developmental disorders.  For the last four years, Dot Lake 
Village has created programs and services for people in Native communities who have issues accessing 
behavioral health and education services.   
 

• Will this be a multi-year project? 
This is a one-time funding request. Sustainability for this project includes federal funding, state funding and 

Dot Lake Village Council funding. All behavioral health clinicians are licensed and TeeJuh is in the process of 

finalizing registration for telemedicine with the State of Alaska. TeeJuh plans to bill third-party insurance for 

services. They are not currently billing for Medicaid.   

 
 
Trust Five Year Funding History 
 
No Previous Trust Grants 
 

 

➢ Click Here to read the full memo with application details.  

  

152

https://alaskamentalhealthtrust.org/wp-content/uploads/2025/07/18450-Native-Village-of-Dot-Lake-2025-07.pdf


Grant Approval Memo  
    

Grantee: United Way of Anchorage 

Request Amount: $51,176.00 

Project Title: Home for Good - Qualitative evaluation of permanent supportive housing project 

Grant Term: 9/1/2025 to 8/30/2026 

Fund Source: FY26 Partnerships/Designated Grants (Page 2, Line 13) 

Trust Staff: Kelda Barstad 
 
Requested Motion: 

The Board of Trustees approve a $51,176 Partnership grant to United Way of Anchorage for the Home for Good 
- Qualitative evaluation of permanent supportive housing project.  These funds will come from the 
Partnerships/Designated Grants line of the FY26 budget. 
 

 
Staff Analysis: 

• What does this project do? 
Trust funds will pay for a qualitative evaluation of the Home for Good project.  
 

• Who is receiving the funds? 
United Way of Anchorage is a non-profit organization that is both a convenor, collaborator, and advocacy 
organization as well as a project incubator.  (https://liveunitedanc.org/about-us/about-us )In 2019, the United 
Way of Anchorage launched the Home for Good program with support from philanthropic organizations 
(including the Trust), the Municipality of Anchorage, and the Anchorage Coalition to End Homelessness.  
 

• Why is staff recommending this project? 
Home for Good is the first large-scale scattered-site supportive housing project implemented in Alaska and the 
only project using a pay-for-success model.  This project served 119 people in Anchorage who were chronically 
homeless, high public service utilizers, and justice-involved.  A large majority of those served are Trust 
beneficiaries.  Percent Service Use Reduction From 12 Months Pre to 12 Months Post (Pilot Cohort through 
Cohort 7) includes a 95% reduction in shelter stays, 75% reduction in Anchorage Safety Center stays, 63% 
reduction in Anchorage Police Department encounters, and 31% reduction in use of Anchorage Fire 
Department Emergency Medical Services. 
 
Quantitative data was collected throughout the project; however, the beneficiary voice is missing from this 
approach, and additional qualitative data gathering is necessary to better understand the needs of this 
population.  Often, it is a set of soft skills, a nuanced approach, or field innovation that engages an individual - 
that can be replicated, but cannot be described through quantitative data.   
 
Scattered-site supportive housing projects can be challenging to implement and operate.  The benefits of 
operating a scattered site model include greater community integration and independence.  Additional 
information from the residents will improve understanding of how to support beneficiaries in the community 
and have a deeper understanding of what worked to end the cycle of chronic homelessness for Trust 
beneficiaries who are high utilizers of multiple systems. This research will help to inform future supportive 
housing and home-based case management and behavioral health services, and homelessness outreach 
programs.  
 

• Will this be a multi-year project? 
This is a one-time funding request. 
 

Trust Five Year Funding History 
 

Fiscal Year      Project Title         Amount      Status Final Expended 
FY21 Home for Good $500,000 Closed $500,000 

 

 

➢ Click Here to read the full memo with application details.   

153

https://liveunitedanc.org/about-us/about-us
https://alaskamentalhealthtrust.org/wp-content/uploads/2025/07/18458-United-Way-of-Anchorage-2025-07.pdf


Grant Approval Memo  
    

Grantee: Battle Dawgs 

Request Amount: $50,000.00 

Project Title: Operation Arctic Renewal: Outdoor-Based Suicide Prevention for Veterans 

Grant Term: August 28, 2025 to August 31, 2026 

Fund Source: FY26 Partnerships/Designated Grants (Page 2, Line 13) 

Trust Staff: Kelda Barstad 
 
Requested Motion: 

The Board of Trustees approve a $50,000 FY26 Partnership grant to Battle Dawgs for the Operation Arctic 
Renewal: Outdoor-Based Suicide Prevention for Veterans grant.  These funds will come from the 
Partnerships/Designated Grants line of the FY26 budget. 
 

 
Staff Analysis: 

• What does this project do? 
 
Trust funds will pay for outdoor recreation experiences for Trust beneficiaries who are combat veterans such as 
camping, hiking, fishing, and glacier tours, as well as therapeutic activities like skeet shooting, archery, and 
access to a newly established Wellness Clinic offering naturopathic treatments for Post Traumatic Stress 
Disorder (PTSD) and Traumatic Brain Injuries (TBI). Grant funds will support facility, supply, equipment, and 
travel costs for the program.  
 

• Who is receiving the funds? 
 
Battle Dawgs is a 501(c)3 non-profit organization that offers free programs for veterans struggling with combat-
related injuries. Battle Dawgs focuses on serving veterans experiencing post-traumatic stress disorder, 
traumatic brain injury, service-related separation anxiety, and other mental health challenges. Programs 
include outdoor rehabilitation in Talkeetna, a wellness center, mentorship, pre-employment services, and 
leadership development. (www.battledawgs.org) 
 

• Why is staff recommending this project? 
 
The focus of this program is to encourage veterans struggling with combat-related injuries, and associated 
impacts, to experience the Alaskan outdoors and restore camaraderie and connection. Goals of the program 
include reducing the frequency and severity of mental health condition symptoms, fostering a supportive 
environment to improve overall well-being, and ultimately reducing the risk and completion of suicide for this 
population.  The target population for Operation Arctic Renewal is Alaska-based combat veterans struggling 
with post-traumatic stress disorder, traumatic brain injury, service-related separation anxiety, and other 
mental health challenges. The geographic area served is the entire state of Alaska, with travel assistance 
provided to ensure accessibility for veterans from remote communities.   
 

• Will this be a multi-year project? 
The funding request is expected to be a one-time request. 
 

Trust Five Year Funding History 
 
No previous Trust grants FY21 to FY25 

 

➢ Click Here to read the full memo with application details.  

 

  

154

http://www.battledawgs.org/
https://alaskamentalhealthtrust.org/wp-content/uploads/2025/07/18202-Battle-Dawgs-2025-07.pdf


Grant Approval Memo  
    

Grantee: Anchorage School District 

Request Amount: $50,000.00 

Project Title: Pop Up Playgroups 

Grant Term: August 28, 2025 to August 31, 2026 

Fund Source: FY25 Partnerships/Designated Grants (Page 2, Line 13) 

Trust Staff: Tina Voelker-Ross 
 
Requested Motion: 

The Board of Trustees approve a $50,000 FY25 Partnership grant to the Anchorage School District for the Pop 
Up Playgroups project.   

 
Staff Analysis: 

• What does this project do? 
Trust funds will expand the Anchorage School District’s Early Learning Program “Play to Learn” playgroups to 
include two additional weekly pop-up play groups for 40 weeks.  The goal is to be easily accessible to high-risk 
families throughout the community of Anchorage.  These pop-up playgroups provide a free, engaging 
opportunity for children (ages 0-8) and their families to participate in structured social-emotional activities 
facilitated by certified professionals.  Trust funds will go towards staffing, travel (to and from the play groups 
for staff and families), and supplies for the play groups.     
 

• Who is receiving the funds? 
The Anchorage School District's Early Learning Program offers a variety of services from the Early Intervention 
Services Center, which provides a comprehensive and community-based approach to supporting young learners 
with diverse needs. Services are delivered in various settings, including specialized Special Education Preschool 
Developmental Classrooms, Listening & Spoken Language Preschool Classrooms, and inclusive General 
Education Preschool Classrooms. With a total of over 90 classrooms, ASD’s Early Learning serves over 1,100 
students annually, in addition to all those whom we serve through play groups.   
 

• Why is staff recommending this project? 
This project will reach at-risk children and parents who may be Trust beneficiaries.  Providing the playgroups in 
shelters or other conveniently located community organizations decreases the barriers and makes them more 
accessible for these hard-to-reach families.   This project will increase protective factors through building 
parent resilience and healthy social-emotional development of young learners, which mitigates the long-term 
impacts of toxic stress that leads to adverse health outcomes. With 1 in 3 Alaskan children experiencing an 
Office of Children’s Services report before the age of 7, outreach to high-risk families is critical.  This project 
creates an accessible, safe, structured play and learn environment that engages these children and families.     
 

• Will this be a multi-year project? 
This proposal is for a single 12-month grant project.  If future funding were to be considered, an additional year 
of funding would require a new application by the Anchorage School District and Board of Trustees approval.    
 

Trust Five Year Funding History 
 

Fiscal Year      Project Title         Amount      Status Final Expended 
FY24 Early Childhood Mental Health 

Consultation Continuation 
$25,000 Closed $25,000 

FY23 ASD Mental Health Consultative Model – 
Pilot Expansion 

$50,000 Closed $47,500 

 
 
➢ Click Here to read the full memo with application details.  

 

  

155

https://alaskamentalhealthtrust.org/wp-content/uploads/2025/07/18210-ASD-Popup-Playgroups-2025-07.pdf


Grant Approval Memo  
    

Grantee: Interior Community Health Center 

Request Amount: $50,000.00 

Project Title: FY26 Interior Community Health Center Dental Grant  

Grant Term: August 28, 2025 to August 31, 2026  

Fund Source: FY26 Partnerships/Designated Grants (Page 2, Line 13) 

Trust Staff: Heather Phelps 
 
Requested Motion: 

The Board of Trustees approve a $50,000 FY26 Partnership grant to the Interior Community Health Center for 
the FY26 Interior Community Health Center Dental Grant.  These funds will come from the 
Partnerships/Designated Grants line of the FY26 budget. 
 

 
Staff Analysis: 

• What does this project do? 
 
Trust funds will pay for on-site general dentistry services for Trust beneficiaries. These funds help supplement 
ongoing oral health care, including fluoride, sealants, oral hygiene, comprehensive and limited exams, films, 
fillings, and extractions. This grant will support dental care for beneficiaries who are Medicaid ineligible and do 
not have insurance to receive dental care or whose course of treatment exceeds what Medicaid benefits will 
cover. 

 

• Who is receiving the funds? 
 
Interior Community Health Center will receive the funds. This mission-driven health center has locations in 
Fairbanks and Healy, Alaska. It provides medical, integrated behavioral health, and dental services to all 
community members.  
 

• Why is staff recommending this project? 
 
This project will serve 60 Trust beneficiaries, the majority of whom experience mental illness, developmental 
disabilities, substance use disorders, Alzheimer’s disease, and related dementias.   Potential concerns with this 
project include workforce issues.  According to the Health Resources and Services Administration website, 
there is a shortage of dental professionals in Alaska.  While there is a shortage of dental health care 
professionals, this project is recommended because it targets Trust beneficiaries.  
 
Will this be a multi-year project? 
 
Yes, the Trust has supported this project since fiscal year 2009. Outside of state grants, this project has little 
sustainability. Approval from the board of trustees will be required for each year of funding.   
 
 

Trust Five Year Funding History 
 

Fiscal Year      Project Title         Amount      Status Final Expended 
FY24 Dental Grant            $100,000                    Closed $51,453 
FY23 Dental Grant            $100,000                    Closed $100,000 
FY22 Dental Grant            $100,000                    Closed $10,727 
FY21 Dental Grant            $100,000                    Closed $56,733 

 
 
➢ Click Here to read the full memo with application details.  

  

156

https://alaskamentalhealthtrust.org/wp-content/uploads/2025/07/18180-Interior-Community-Health-Care-2025-07.pdf


Grant Approval Memo  
    

Grantee: Mat-Su Health Services, Inc. 

Request Amount: $50,000.00 

Project Title: Dental Grant 

Grant Term: August 28, 2025 to August 31, 2026 

Fund Source: FY26 Partnerships/Designated Grants (Page 2, Line 13) 

Trust Staff: Eric Boyer 
 
Requested Motion: 

The Board of Trustees approve a $50,000 Partnership grant to Mat-Su Health Services, Inc. for the Mental 
health Trust Dental Grant.  These funds will come from the Partnerships/Designated Grants line of the FY26 
budget. 
 

 
Staff Analysis: 

• What does this project do? 
 
The Trust funds will support Mat-Su Health Services in providing dental care to Trust beneficiaries who cannot 
access other funding sources. This grant supports beneficiaries for whom the course of treatment exceeds what 
Medicaid benefits will cover, or who are Medicaid ineligible.  
 

• Who is receiving the funds? 
 
Mat-Su Health Services, Inc. (MSHS) began as a community mental health center in 1977. MSHS has provided 
community health services continuously for the last 30+ years. MSHS grew to become a Federally Qualified 
Health Center to provide primary health care in October 2005. 
 

• Why is staff recommending this project? 
 
Mat-Su Health Services estimates this will help 42 Trust beneficiaries with their dental needs. This is a critical 
service to beneficiaries’ health and quality of life when no other funding streams are available.  
 

• Will this be a multi-year project? 
 

This grant funding has reoccurred over the last four years, and MSHS has utilized the grant funds to improve the 
lives of Trust beneficiaries.    
 
Trust Five Year Funding History 
 

Fiscal Year      Project Title         Amount      Status Final Expended 
FY24 Mat-Su Health Services Beneficiary Dental 

Services Grant 
$50,000 Closed $49,356 

FY23 Mat Su Health Services Beneficiary Dental 
Services Grant 

$50,000 Closed $50,000 

FY21 Mat Su Health Services Beneficiary Dental 
Services Grant 

$50,000 Closed $50,000 

 
 
➢ Click Here to read the full memo with application details.  

 

  

157

https://alaskamentalhealthtrust.org/wp-content/uploads/2025/07/18204-Mat-Su-Health-Services-2025-07.pdf


Grant Approval Memo  
    

Grantee: Kin Support Program Haa Yaitxu Saiai 

Request Amount: $50,000.00 

Project Title: Southeast Alaska Kin Support Pilot 

Grant Term: October 1, 2025 to September 30, 2026 

Fund Source: FY26 Partnerships/Designated Grants (Page 2, Line 13) 

Trust Staff: Tina Voelker-Ross 
 
Requested Motion: 

The Board of Trustees approve a $50,000 Partnership grant to Kin Support Program Haa Yaitxu Saiai for the 
Southeast Alaska Kin Support Pilot grant.  These funds will come from the Partnerships/Designated Grants 
line of the FY26 budget. 
 

 
Staff Analysis: 

• What does this project do? 
This project will support relatives (grandparents, aunts/uncles, adult siblings, etc.) who have stepped in as full-
time caregivers for the children of family members when their parents are unavailable, “kin families.” These kin 
families are raising children outside of the foster care system.  This program provides support and services for 
kin families, children and biological parents by providing case management, support (cultural connection and 
traditional activities), education (parenting classes), and connection to resources (to fulfill basic needs, 
behavioral health or addiction treatment, educational, medical, or legal needs, etc.).  Such services support the 
kin family in providing a stable home for these children, strengthen family resiliency, and eliminate the need for 
foster placements.  Trust funds are for personnel to implement the services for kin families, children, and 
parents.    
 

• Who is receiving the funds? 
Kin Support Program-Haa Yatx’u Saani is a non-profit organization established in 2024 to help “families build 
and maintain healthy intergenerational relationships that keep children and youth safe, stable, and out of the 
system.” It is in Juneau, Alaska, and serves Southeast Alaska kin families outside the foster care system. 
Referrals for the program have come from Tlingit & Haida Tribal Court, the Juneau School District, SEARHC, 
Bartlett Regional Hospital, Southeast Senior Services, OCS, other community partners, and come via word of 
mouth from client families who have benefited from the program. The program has active memorandums of 
understanding (MOUs) with SEARHC and Bartlett Regional Hospital as well.   
 

• Why is staff recommending this project? 
This project will serve a population of families and children, many of whom qualify as Trust beneficiaries or are 
at risk for becoming Trust beneficiaries, and who fall within a service gap.  These families have made informal 
family arrangements to care for the children in the extended family because their parents can no longer care for 
them due to problems with mental health issues, substance abuse, incarceration, domestic issues, social issues 
(homelessness, food insecurity), etc.  These issues often place the children at risk for Adverse Childhood 
Experiences such as abuse, neglect, or entry into the foster care system.  This project will provide support and 
services for these kin families, the children, and the biological parents. This programming helps children 
remain with extended family members, aids the family in maintaining this stable environment, and prevents 
social welfare system involvement.   Benefits of the support of kin families include the maintenance of family 
connections, the preservation of cultural identity, the reduction of trauma, and the prevention of social welfare 
involvement.   
 

• Will this be a multi-year project? 
This proposal is for a single-year grant project.  We are currently not considering multiple years of funding.  If 
future funding were to be considered, an additional year of funding would require a new application from Kin 
Support Program-Haa Yatx’u Saani and Board of Trustees approval. 
 

Trust Five Year Funding History 
 
No previous Trust grants. 
 
➢ Click Here to read the full memo with application details.   

158

https://alaskamentalhealthtrust.org/wp-content/uploads/2025/07/18440-Kin-Support-Program-2025-07.pdf


Grant Approval Memo  
    

  Grantee: Cook Inlet Counseling, Inc. 

Request Amount: $32,575.00 

Project Title: Sage/Saltbox Implementation 

Grant Term: August 28, 2025 to February 28, 2026 

Fund Source: FY25 Partnerships/Designated Grants (Page 2, Line 13) 

Trust Staff: Heather Phelps 
 
Requested Motion: 

The Board of Trustees approve a $32,575 FY25 Partnership grant to Cook Inlet Counseling, Inc. for the 
Sage/Saltbox Implementation grant.  These funds will come from the Partnerships/Designated Grants line of 
the FY25 budget. 
 

 
Staff Analysis: 

• What does this project do? 
 
Trust funds will pay for software and software implementation costs that will allow the agency to use an 
updated billing system that can interface with Alaska’s Automated Information Management System 
(AKAIMS), Medicaid, and electronic medical record connection.  100% of the funds go towards the software, 
software implementation, initial subscription, and web developer license.  It is anticipated that funding this 
project will allow Cook Inlet Counseling Inc. to decrease administrative burden, improve billing and 
communication with Trust beneficiaries, and improve client experience.   
 

• Who is receiving the funds? 
 
Cook Inlet Counseling Inc. will receive the funds. For over 40 years, Cook Inlet Counseling has supported Trust 
beneficiaries on the Kenai Peninsula. They serve approximately 350 individuals annually and provide services 
such as adult and youth outpatient treatment, case management, substance use and integrated assessments, 
and alcohol and drug information school (ADIS). 
 

• Why is staff recommending this project? 
 
Currently, Cook Inlet Counseling uses an antiquated system (pencil and paper) for billing and payroll. This 
results in redundancy, lost staff hours, and increased potential rates of data entry error. An upgrade to their 
software billing system will decrease the administrative burden and increase the time staff can spend providing 
services to Trust beneficiaries.   
 

• Will this be a multi-year project? 
 
This is a one-time funding request.  

 
Trust Five Year Funding History 
 
No Trust grants FY21 – FY25 
 

 

➢ Click Here to read the full memo with application details.  

 

  

159

https://alaskamentalhealthtrust.org/wp-content/uploads/2025/07/18200-Cook-Inlet-Counseling-2025-07.pdf


Grant Approval Memo  
    

Grantee: Alaska Association on Developmental Disabilities  

Request Amount: $27,500.00 

Project Title: Complex Care - Providers United to Create Options 

Grant Term: August 28, 2025 to February 28, 2026  

Fund Source: FY26 Partnerships/Designated Grants (Page 2, Line 13) 

Trust Staff: Eric Boyer 
 
Requested Motion: 

The Board of Trustees approve a $27,500 FY26 Partnership grant to the Alaska Association on Developmental 
Disabilities for the Complex Care - Providers United to Create Options project.  These funds will come from the 
Partnerships/Designated Grants line of the FY26 budget. 
 

 
Staff Analysis: 

• What does this project do? 
 
The Trust funds will enable  Alaska Association on Developmental Disabilities (AADD) and behavior analysis 
expert contractors to work with the current complex behavior network of stakeholders to examine the system of 
care and see how youth and adults with complex behavior are being served. This analysis will provide 
information on the system's assets and deficits. The team will use this to set up pilot projects to expand the 
array of behavior analysis services for complex needs beneficiaries at two DD/BH serving agencies.  
 

• Who is receiving the funds? 
 
TheAADD was founded over 30 years ago to unify the voice of providers to share, develop, and advocate for 
individualized community-based services for people who experience developmental disabilities. AADD is the 
largest network of agencies serving community members who experience developmental disabilities in Alaska. 
AADD has  formed strategic alliances between providers, national associations, the State of Alaska, the 
Governor’s Council on Disabilities and Special Education, and the people we serve and their communities. 
 

• Why is staff recommending this project? 
 
Youth and adult beneficiaries with complex needs cannot access care and services within the current system. 
This grant will build on current support for people with complex needs and equip the care system to deal more 
therapeutically and at the community level so that more restrictive measures are not utilized.  
 

• Will this be a multi-year project? 
 
Yes, this is Phase I. Phase II will follow after the pilot results are evaluated and a systems enhancement 
approach is determined and detailed. Results of the planning Phase I will be considered prior to the 
development of a Phase II approval for trustee consideration.  

 
Trust Five Year Funding History 
 

Fiscal Year      Project Title         Amount      Status Final Expended 
FY25   Strengthening Services by Sharing Stories 

of Lived Experience 
$25,000                    Active n/a 

FY25 Cost of Care: Collaborating on Solutions $8,250 Active n/a 
FY25 IDD System Capacity Development $65,000 Active n/a 
FY25 Building a System to Achieve Employment 

First for All 
$135,000 Active n/a 

FY24 Alaska Alliance of Direct Support 
Professionals Organizational Development 

$11,050 Closed $11,050 

FY24 Reigniting Alaska's Employment First 
Movement 

$5,000 Closed $5,000 

160



Grant Approval Memo  
    

FY24 IDD System Capacity Development $65,000 Closed $65,000 
FY23 DD System Capacity Development $65,000 Closed $65,000 
FY22 DD System Capacity Development $65,000 Closed $65,000 
FY22 Study on Care Coordination Services in 

Alaska 
$90,000 Closed $90,000 

FY21 Marketing for DSP Recruitment $21,500 Closed $21,500 
FY21 DD System Capacity Development $65,000 Closed $65,000 

 

 

➢ Click Here to read the full memo with application details.  

  

161

https://alaskamentalhealthtrust.org/wp-content/uploads/2025/07/18190-AADD-Complex-Care-2025-07.pdf


Grant Approval Memo  
    

Grantee: FOCUS, Inc. 

Request Amount: $14,763.00 

Project Title: Phone System Replacement 

Grant Term: August 28, 2025 to December 31, 2025 

Fund Source: FY25 Partnerships/Designated Grants (Page 2, Line 13) 

Trust Staff: Kelda Barstad 
 
Requested Motion: 

The Board of Trustees approve a $14,763 FY25 Partnership grant to FOCUS, Inc. for the Phone System 
Replacement grant.  These funds will come from the Partnerships/Designated Grants line of the FY25 budget. 
 

 
Staff Analysis: 

• What does this project do? 
 
Trust funds will support installing a new phone system for FOCUS, a non-profit organization that provides 
services for people with Intellectual and Developmental Disabilities (IDD). The replacement phone system cost 
will include hardware, software, and app-based phone lines, turnkey installation, set-up of SIM controller, 
configuration, testing, and end-user training.  
 

• Who is receiving the funds? 
 
FOCUS is a non-profit 501(c) (3) agency serving individuals with special needs and their families in the 
communities of Eagle River/ Chugiak/JBER, and Anchorage. They also provide early intervention services to 
families in Cordova, Tatitlek, Chenega Bay, and Valdez. FOCUS offers a wide range of support services to 
individuals with special needs from birth through adulthood, including early intervention/infant learning 
services, home and community-based services, a ‘next steps’ adult program, a pediatric and adult therapy clinic, 
and a group home.  (https://www.focusoutreach.org/about-focus-outreach/) 
 
 

• Why is staff recommending this project? 
 
FOCUS serves 126 Trust beneficiaries with Intellectual or Developmental Disabilities. The agency was planning 
to update the current phone system to resolve recent problems, but upon additional evaluation, it learned that 
the system has reached end-of-life and must be replaced. A working phone system is critical to maintaining 
daily operations and timely communications. This project will contribute to the agency's financial stability by 
funding an unanticipated expense necessary to maintain core operations.  
 

• Will this be a multi-year project? 
 
This is a one-time request. 

 
Trust Five Year Funding History 
 

Fiscal Year      Project Title         Amount      Status Final Expended 
FY23 Executive Director Leadership Transition $40,000 Closed $24,849 
FY23 Summer Camp for Youth and Adults $6,000 Closed $6,000 
FY21 Summer Camp 2021 $4,000 Closed $4,000 

 
 
➢ Click Here to read the full memo with application details.  

 

  

162

https://www.focusoutreach.org/about-focus-outreach/
https://alaskamentalhealthtrust.org/wp-content/uploads/2025/07/18027-FOCUS-Inc-2025-07.pdf


Grant Approval Memo  
    

Grantee: Interior AIDS Association 

Request Amount: $10,000.00 

Project Title: IAA Building Improvements 

Grant Term: 7/1/2025 to 6/30/2026 

Fund Source: FY26 Partnerships/Designated Grants (Page 2, Line 13) 

Trust Staff: Heather Phelps 
 
Requested Motion: 

The Board of Trustees approve a $10,000 FY26 Partnership Grant to Interior AIDS Association for the IAA 
Building Improvements grant.  These funds will come from the Partnerships/Designated Grants line of the 
FY26 budget. 
 

 
Staff Analysis: 

• What does this project do? 
Trust funds will pay for repairs to the Interior Aids Association building. The building repairs will maintain safe 
operations for Trust beneficiaries and staff until IAA can raise funds to construct a new building. Note: a 
planned Trust grant application for capital funds for their new building was withdrawn earlier this year due to 
changes in their federal funding stream.  
 

• Who is receiving the funds? 
The Interior AIDS Association will receive the funds. The Interior AIDS Association provides HIV prevention 
and programming and is the only opioid treatment program (methadone clinic) in Northern Alaska. IAA was 
founded in 1988 and currently serves 360 Trust beneficiaries, including 60 individuals in the interior 
medication-assisted treatment program (methadone clinic).  IAA also provides substance use services to 
inmates at Fairbanks Correctional Center. 
 

• Why is staff recommending this project? 
Currently in the state of Alaska, there are eight certified and one provisional opioid treatment programs 
(methadone clinics).  To be an OTP, the agency must conform to federal regulations to disperse and administer 
medications for the treatment of opioid addiction.  IAA has been an OTP since 2000 and is the only one in 
Northern Alaska.  Trust beneficiaries who participate in medication addiction services for opioid use disorder 
are only able to receive methadone in OTPs. The benefit of this project is that the Trust Beneficiaries could 
continue services without interruption.  
 

• Will this be a multi-year project? 
This is a one-time funding request. Most repairs are anticipated to be completed by 12/31/2025, extending the 
building's life by ten years. IAA program income and donations provide additional funding.   
 

Trust Five Year Funding History 
 
No previous Trust grants. 

 

➢ Click Here to read the full memo with application details.  

  

163

https://alaskamentalhealthtrust.org/wp-content/uploads/2025/07/18467-Interior-AIDS-Association-2025-07.pdf


Grant Approval Memo  
    

Grantee: Arc of Anchorage 

Request Amount: $10,000.00 

Project Title: Workforce Sustainability Partnership with GoodLife University 

Grant Term: 7/1/2025 to 11/15/2025 

Fund Source: FY26 Partnerships/Designated Grants (Page 2, Line 13) 

Trust Staff: Samantha Ponts 
 
Requested Motion: 

The Board of Trustees approve a $10,000 FY26 Partnership Grant to the Arc of Anchorage for the Workforce 
Sustainability Partnership with GoodLife University grant.  These funds will come from the 
Partnerships/Designated Grants line of the FY26 budget. 
 

 
Staff Analysis: 

• What does this project do? 
Trust funds will cover the initial implementation of Goodlife University’s proven workforce development model 
customized for Alaska. The Arc of Anchorage has already completed phases one through two with GoodLife 
University, including education and site review, and is currently waiting on analysis. The Trust funds will 
enable the critical fourth phase of implementing (1) data-driven metrics to monitor staff engagement, 
satisfaction, and turnover, and (2) a mentorship program that connects new hires with experienced staff to 
improve onboarding and increase early retention. This pilot will serve as a model for broader workforce reform 
in Alaska’s disability services system.  
 

• Who is receiving the funds? 
The Arc of Anchorage offers comprehensive disability services in Anchorage, Alaska, including community 
living services, case management, health support, employment assistance, and behavioral health programs.  
The Arc served 352 individual beneficiaries between July 1, 2024, and June 18, 2025, with a staff of between 
200 and 210. The mission of The Arc of Anchorage is to empower and celebrate the potential of individuals with 
intellectual and developmental disabilities.   
 

• Why is staff recommending this project? 
 
Direct Support Professionals (DSPs) provide essential care to individuals with intellectual and developmental 
disabilities and co-occurring behavioral health needs across Alaska. High turnover rates among DSPs directly 
impact the quality of care for vulnerable Alaskans who rely on consistent, skilled support. This pilot project 
addresses a critical workforce shortage by embedding the GoodLife University training curriculum, mentorship 
structures, and leadership academy into The Arc’s standard onboarding, training, and staff development 
processes. This project represents a collaborative funding partnership, with the Alaska Association on 
Developmental Disabilities (AADD) contributing one-third of the total project cost, The Arc of Anchorage 
providing another third, and the Trust’s grant covering the remaining third. The Arc of Anchorage and AADD 
will share results across Alaska’s disability service network.  
 
 

• Will this be a multi-year project? 
This is a one-time funding request for pilot implementation.  
 

Trust Five Year Funding History 
 

Fiscal Year      Project Title         Amount      Status Final Expended 
FY22 1115 Adult Mental Health Residential 1 & 2 $216,000 Closed $194,886 
FY21 The Arc Realignment Project $40,000 Closed $32,000 

 

 

➢ Click Here to read the full memo with application details.   

164

https://alaskamentalhealthtrust.org/wp-content/uploads/2025/07/18461-Arc-of-Anchorage-2025-07.pdf


Grant Approval Memo  
    

Grantee: Frontier Community Services, Inc. 

Request Amount: $10,000.00 

Project Title: Goodlife at FCS 

Grant Term: 5/1/2025 to 8/30/2025 

Fund Source: FY26 Partnerships/Designated Grants (Page 2, Line 13) 

Trust Staff: Samantha Ponts 
 
Requested Motion: 

The Board of Trustees approve a $10,000 FY26 Partnership Grant to Frontier Community Services, Inc. for the 
Goodlife at FCS grant.  These funds will come from the Partnerships/Designated Grants line of the FY26 
budget. 
 

 
Staff Analysis: 

• What does this project do? 
Trust funds will cover initial implementation of consulting and coaching services for Frontier Community 
Services (FCS) to pilot an innovative workforce model provided by GoodLife University consulting and 
leadership team. FCS has already completed phases one through three with GoodLife University, which 
included education, site review and analysis. Trust funds will enable the critical fourth phase of implementing 
the recommended workforce strategies. The project is expected to reduce Direct Support Professional (DSP) 
turnover, decrease recruitment and training costs, and improve service quality and financial stability for FCS 
operations. FCS and the Alaska Association on Developmental Disabilities (AADD) will continue to work closely 
throughout the implementation phase.  
 

• Who is receiving the funds? 
Frontier Community Services (FCS) is a nonprofit organization located in Soldotna. FCS programs range from 
early childhood services through Infant Learning Program to adult day services funded by the Kenai Peninsula 
Borough and the State of Alaska. FCS currently serves approximately 280 clients annually with a staff of 
between 136 and 142, including 73 Direct Support Professionals (DSPs). The mission of FCS is to provide 
quality, individualized home and community-based services for people of all ages who are at risk of, or 
experiencing a disabling condition, in order to minimize the need for institutional care.  
 

• Why is staff recommending this project? 
FCS serves seniors, children, and adults with intellectual and developmental disabilities (IDDs). There is high 
turnover among Direct Support Professionals (DSPs) in Alaska. Current FCS DSP turnover rates of 65.5% cost 
FCS approximately $340,000 annually in recruitment and training. This data highlights the urgency of 
implementing workforce stabilization strategies. This project will focus on implementing a scalable scheduling 
model designed to reduce burnout and turnover and offer financial and lifestyle incentives to attract and retain 
staff. FCS will collaborate with AADD to present and share the model with other provider agencies across the 
state. This directly supports the Trust’s strategic priority of strengthening workforce capacity through improved 
recruitment and retention to obtain and maintain knowledge, support innovation, and modernization.  
 

• Will this be a multi-year project? 
This is a one-time funding request. Once implemented, the model is designed to be self-sustaining and require no 
additional funding. 
 
Trust Five Year Funding History 
 

Fiscal Year      Project Title         Amount      Status Final Expended 
2024 Accessible Community Engagement $21,950 Closed $21,950 

 

 
 

➢ Click Here to read the full memo with application details.  

165

https://alaskamentalhealthtrust.org/wp-content/uploads/2025/07/18456-Frontier-Community-Services-2025-07.pdf


MEMO

To: Board of Trustees 
Date: August 28, 2025 
Re: Consent Agenda –FY25 and FY26 Focus Area/Priority Area 

Authority Grant Requests and Partnerships over $75,000 
Amount: 
Fund Sources: 

$2,451,414  
FY26 Beneficiary Employment & Engagement Focus Area 

• Mental Health Advocacy, Support, Education, and Public
Awareness (Page 8, Line 9)

• Clubhouse Support for Rehabilitation and Recovery (Page 8,
Line 10)

FY25 Mental Health & Addiction Intervention Focus Area 
• Child & Youth Crisis Response System of Care and Technical

Assistance (Page 5, Line 26)
FY26 Housing and Home & Community Based Services 

• Beneficiary Housing Projects & Related Services (Page 9,
Line 17)

FY25 Early Childhood Intervention & Prevention 
• Infant & Early Childhood Mental Health Capacity Building

(Page 15, Line 36)
• Improve Social Determinants of Health (Page 15, Line 39)

FY 25 Partnership Grants (Page 2, Line 13 of the FY25 budget) 
FY 26 Partnership Grants (Page 2, Line 13 of the FY26 budget) 

REQUESTED MOTION:
The Board of Trustees approves the following 18 authority grants totaling $2,451,414 as outlined 
below to include: 

From the FY26 Beneficiary Employment and Engagement Focus Area, Mental Health Advocacy, 
Support, Education, and Public Awareness budget line: 

1. NAMI Juneau, “Peer Support in Juneau & Southeast Alaska”, $175,000
2. NAMI Anchorage, “NAMI Anchorage FY26 Operating Grant”, $168,800
3. NAMI Alaska, “A Lifeline for Alaskans”, $50,000

From the FY26 Beneficiary Employment and Engagement Focus Area, Clubhouse Support for 
Rehabilitation and Recovery budget line: 

4. Alaska Mental Health Consumer Web, “Alaska Mental Health Consumer Web Grant”, $333,600

166



5. Polaris House, “Clubhouse Support for Rehabilitation and Recovery”, $213,000
6. Northern Hope Center, “Northern Hope Center Mental Health Drop-In Center”, $160,000

From the FY25 Mental Health & Addiction Intervention Focus Area, Child & Youth Crisis Response 
System of Care and Technical Assistance budget line: 

7. North Star Community Foundation, “NSCF/Fairbanks Reentry Coalition Housing Assistance”,
$80,000

8. Valley Charities, “Mat-Su Reentry Coalition Housing Project”, $80,000
9. Mat-Su Health Foundation, “Crisis Now Implementation Coordinator for Mat-Su”, $38,003

From the FY26 Housing and Home & Community Based Services Focus Area, Beneficiary Housing 
Projects & Related Services budget line: 

10. Anchorage Neighborhood Housing Services, “NWAK Housing Intervention Program”, $254,757
11. Alaska AIDS Assistance Association, “Housing Gap Funding for Trust Beneficiaries Living with

HIV”, $134,400
12. Community Connections, “1st Street Triplex Upgrades: Supported Apartment Living for People

Intellectual and Developmental Disabilities” $75,000

From the FY25 Early Childhood Intervention & Prevention priority area, Infant & Early Childhood 
Mental Health Capacity Building budget line: 

13. All Alaska Pediatric Partnership, “Infant and Early Childhood Mental Health (IECMH) Line Pilot
Project”, $220,500

14. Alaska Association for Infant and Early Childhood Mental Health, “Infant and Early Childhood
Mental Health Consultation Project”, $113,620

From the FY25 Early Childhood Intervention & Prevention priority area, Improve Social 
Determinants of Health budget line: 

15. Association for the Education on Young Children - SE Alaska, “4th Trimester Project - Parents as
Teachers and Circles of Security for Classrooms” $100,000

From both the FY25 Early Childhood Intervention & Prevention priority area, Improve Social 
Determinants of Health and the FY25 Partnerships/Designated Grants budget lines: 

16. Presbyterian Hospitality House, Inc., "The Extra Mile Strengthening Alaskan Families” $75,000.
$50,000 of these funds will come from the Keep the Kids Home line and the $25,000 will come
from the Partnerships/Designated Grants lines of the FY25 budget.

From the FY26 Partnerships/Designated Grants budget line: 

17. Alaska Safety Alliance, Re-Envisioned: Alaska’s New Statewide Health Workforce Coalition project,
$91,734

18. Alaska Brain Injury Consortium, Roads to Recovery: Scaling Community Capacity with the Alaska
Brain Bus, $88,000

167



There are 18 authority grant requests of less than $500,000 for consideration at the August 2025 Board of 
Trustee meeting. In the motion above, these grants are organized by fund source. All 18 grants were reviewed by 
the Program and Planning Committee during their meeting on July 31, 2025 and recommended for full board 
approval.  

Individual grant memos with staff analysis, project descriptions, project budgets, grant performance measures, 
and the requested start and end dates are available via the committee packet. Attached is an executive summary of 
each proposed grant with a link to the full, detailed application memo.  

If the Trustees elect to remove one or more grant requests from the consent agenda for individual consideration, 
motions for each project are listed below. The highlighted items did not receive a unanimous vote.

# Grantee 
Organization 

Project Title Primary 
Area 
Served 

Requested 
Amount 

Approval Motion Packet 
Page # 

1 NAMI Juneau Peer Support in 
Juneau & 
Southeast Alaska 

City and 
Borough of 
Juneau 

$175,000 The Board of Trustees approve a 
$175,000 FY26 Beneficiary 
Employment & Engagement grant to 
NAMI Juneau for the Peer Support in 
Juneau & Southeast Alaska project.  
These funds will come from the Mental 
Health Advocacy, Support, Education, 
and Public Awareness line of the FY26 
budget. 

172 

2 NAMI 
Anchorage 

NAMI Anchorage 
FY26 Operating 
Grant 

Anchorage $168,800 The Board of Trustees approve a 
$168,800 FY26 Beneficiary 
Employment & Engagement grant to 
NAMI Anchorage for the NAMI 
Anchorage FY26 Operating grant.  
These funds will come from the Mental 
Health Advocacy, Support, Education, 
and Public Awareness line of the FY26 
budget. 

173 

3 NAMI Alaska A Lifeline for 
Alaskans 

Statewide $50,000 The Board of Trustees approve a 
$50,000 FY26 Authority Grant to 
NAMI Alaska, Inc. for the Lifeline for 
Alaskans grant.  These funds will come 
from the Mental Health Advocacy, 
Support, Education and Public 
Awareness line of the FY26 budget. 

174 

4 Alaska Mental 
Health 
Consumer 
Web 

Alaska Mental 
Health Consumer 
Web Grant 

Anchorage $333,600 The Board of Trustees approve a 
$333,600 FY26 Beneficiary 
Employment & Engagement grant to 
the Alaska Mental Health Consumer 
Web for the Alaska Mental Health 
Consumer Web Grant project.  These 
funds will come from the Clubhouse 
Support for Rehabilitation and 
Recovery line of the FY26 budget. 

175 

5 Polaris House Clubhouse 
Support for 
Rehabilitation and 
Recovery 

City and 
Borough of 
Juneau 

$213,000 The Board of Trustees approve a 
$213,000 FY26 Beneficiary 
Employment & Engagement grant to 
Polaris House for the Clubhouse 
Support for Rehabilitation and 

177 

168

Shannon Cochran
Highlight

Shannon Cochran
Highlight

Shannon Cochran
Highlight

Shannon Cochran
Highlight



Recovery project.  These funds will 
come from the Clubhouse Support for 
Rehabilitation and Recovery line of the 
FY26 budget. 

6 Northern 
Hope Center 

Northern Hope 
Center Mental 
Health Drop-In 
Center 

Fairbanks $160,000 The Board of Trustees approve a 
$160,000 FY26 Beneficiary 
Employment & Engagement grant to 
the Northern Hope Center for the 
Northern Hope Center Mental Health 
Drop-In Center project.  These funds 
will come from the Clubhouse Support 
for Rehabilitation and Recovery line of 
the FY26 budget. 

178 

7 North Star 
Community 
Foundation 

NSCF/Fairbanks 
Reentry Coalition 
Housing 
Assistance 

Fairbanks 
and North 
Star 
Borough 

$80,000 The Board of Trustees approve a 
$80,000 Mental Health & Addiction 
Intervention focus area allocation to 
the North Star Community 
Foundation for the NSCF/Fairbanks 
Reentry Coalition Housing Assistance 
grant.  These funds will come from the 
Child & Youth Crisis Response System 
of Care and Technical Assistance line 
of the FY25 budget. 

179 

8 Valley 
Charities 

Mat-Su Reentry 
Coalition 
Housing Project 

Mat-Su 
Borough 

$80,000 The Board of Trustees approve a 
$80,000 Mental Health & Addiction 
Intervention focus area allocation to 
Valley Charities, Inc. for the Mat-Su 
Reentry Coalition Housing Project.  
These funds will come from the Child & 
Youth Crisis Response System of Care 
and Technical Assistance line of the 
FY25 budget. 

180 

9 Mat-Su Health 
Foundation 

Crisis Now 
Implementation 
Coordinator for 
Mat-Su 

Mat-Su 
Borough 

$38,003 The Board of Trustees approve a 
$38,003 Mental Health & Addiction 
Intervention focus area allocation to 
the Mat-Su Health Foundation for the 
Crisis Now Implementation 
Coordinator for Mat-Su grant.  These 
funds will come from the Child & 
Youth Crisis Response System line of 
the FY25 budget. 

182 

10 Anchorage 
Neighborhood 
Housing 
Services 

NWAK Housing 
Intervention 
Program 

Anchorage $254,757 The Board of Trustees approve a 
$254,757 FY26 Housing and Home & 
Community Based Services focus area 
allocation to Anchorage Neighborhood 
Housing Services, Inc. for the NWAK 
Housing Intervention Program grant.  
These funds will come from the 
Beneficiary Housing Projects & 
Related Services line of the FY26 
budget. 

184 

11 Alaska AIDS 
Assistance 
Association 

Infant and Early 
Childhood Mental 
Health (IECMH) 
Line Pilot Project 

Statewide $134,400 The Board of Trustees approve a 
$134,400 FY26 Housing and Home & 
Community Based Services focus area 
allocation to the Alaska AIDS 
Assistance Association for the Housing 
Gap Funding for Trust Beneficiaries 

186 

169



Living with HIV grant.  These funds 
will come from the Beneficiary 
Housing Projects and Related Services 
line of the FY26 budget. 

12 Community 
Connections 

1st Street Triplex 
Upgrades: 
Supported 
Apartment Living 
for People 
Intellectual 
and 
Developmental 
Disabilities 

Ketchikan $75,000 The Board of Trustees approve a 
$75,000 FY26 Authority Grant to 
Community Connections, Inc. for the 
1st Street Triplex Upgrades: 
Supported Apartment Living for 
People with Intellectual and 
Developmental Disabilities grant.  
These funds will come from the 
Beneficiary Housing Projects & 
Related Services line of the FY26 
budget. 

187 

13 All Alaska 
Pediatric 
Partnership 

Infant and Early 
Childhood Mental 
Health (IECMH) 
Line Pilot Project 

Statewide $220,500 The Board of Trustees approve a 
$220,500 FY25 Early Childhood 
Intervention and Prevention grant to 
the All Alaska Pediatric Partnership 
for the Infant and Early Childhood 
Mental Health (IECMH) Line Pilot 
Project.  These funds will come from 
the Infant & Early Childhood Mental 
Health Capacity Building line of the 
FY25 budget. 

189 

14 Alaska 
Association for 
Infant and 
Early 
Childhood 
Mental Health 

Infant and Early 
Childhood Mental 
Health 
Consultation 
Project 

Statewide $113,620 The Board of Trustees approve a 
$113,620 FY25 Early Childhood 
Intervention and Prevention grant to 
the Alaska Association for Infant and 
Early Childhood Mental Health for the 
Infant and Early Childhood Mental 
Health Consultation Project.  These 
funds will come from the Infant & 
Early Childhood Mental Health 
Capacity Building line of the FY25 
budget. 

191 

15 Association for 
the Education 
on Young 
Children - SE 
Alaska 

4th Trimester 
Project - Parents 
as Teachers and 
Circles of Security 
for Classrooms 

Statewide $100,000 The Board of Trustees approve a 
$100,000 Early Childhood 
Intervention and Prevention grant to 
the Association for the Education of 
Young Children, Southeast Alaska for 
the 4th Trimester Project - Parents as 
Teachers and Circles of Security for 
Classrooms grant.  These funds will 
come from the Improve Social 
Determinants of Health line of the 
FY25 budget. 

193 

16 Presbyterian 
Hospitality 
House 

"The Extra Mile" 
Strengthening 
Alaskan Families 

Fairbanks $75,000 The Board of Trustees approve a 
$75,000 Authority Grant to the 
Presbyterian Hospitality House, Inc. 
for the "The Extra Mile" Strengthening 
Alaskan Families grant.  $50,000 of 
these funds will come from the Keep 
the Kids Home line and the $25,000 
will come from the Partnerships/ 
Designated Grants lines of the FY25 
budget. 

194 

170



17 Alaska Safety 
Alliance 

Re-Envisioned: 
Alaska’s New 
Statewide Health 
Workforce 
Coalition 

Statewide $91,734 The Board of Trustees approve a 
$91,734 Partnership grant to the 
Alaska Safety Alliance for the Re-
Envisioned: Alaska’s New Statewide 
Health Workforce Coalition project.  
These funds will come from the 
Partnerships/Designated Grants line 
of the FY26 budget. 

195 

18 Alaska Brain 
Injury 
Consortium 

Roads to 
Recovery: Scaling 
Community 
Capacity with the 
Alaska Brain Bus 

Statewide $88,000 The Board of Trustees approve a 
$88,000 Partnership grant to the 
Alaska Brain Injury Consortium for 
the Roads to Recovery: Scaling 
Community Capacity With the Alaska 
Brain Bus grant.  These funds will 
come from the Partnerships/ 
Designated Grants line of the FY26 
budget. 

196 

171



Grant Approval Memo 

Grantee: NAMI Juneau 

Request Amount: $175,000.00 

Project Title: Peer Support in Juneau & Southeast Alaska 

Grant Term: August 28, 2025 to August 31, 2026  

Fund Source: Beneficiary Employment & Engagement Focus Area – Mental Health Advocacy, Support, 
Education, and Public Awareness (Page 8, Line 9) 

Trust Staff: Samantha Ponts 

Requested Motion: 

The Board of Trustees approve a $175,000 FY26 Beneficiary Employment & Engagement grant to NAMI 
Juneau for the Peer Support in Juneau & Southeast Alaska project.  These funds will come from the Mental 
Health Advocacy, Support, Education, and Public Awareness line of the FY26 budget. 

Staff Analysis: 

• What does this project do?

This project expands peer support services across Juneau and Southeast Alaska for individuals experiencing 
mental illness and substance use disorders. Through the delivery of peer-led mental health navigation, 
Student Health and Educational Services (SEHE), ongoing support groups, and peer workforce training, the 
program provides accessible, low-barrier support to Trust beneficiaries. Trust funds will provide: 

• Youth mental health education groups (SEHE) for grades 4-8
• Peer-led support group sessions and peer navigation services
• Peer Support Specialist and suicide intervention (TWRAS) trainings
• Workshops supporting the peer support workforce
• Who is receiving the funds?

NAMI Juneau (NAJ) is receiving the funds. NAJ has decades of experience delivering peer-led support 
services across Southeast Alaska and continues to be a regional leader in providing recovery-focused, 
community-based mental health support.  

• Why is staff recommending this project?

This project directly supports Trust beneficiaries experiencing mental illness and substance use disorders. 
The project aligns with the Trust’s mission by increasing access to community-based services, reducing 
reliance on emergency and institutional care, and building a trained peer workforce that reflects lived 
experience.  

• Will this be a multi-year project?
Yes, this project has been supported by the Trust for the past 20 years and is included annually in the
approved budget under the Beneficiary Employment and Engagement Focus Area. It was one of the original
projects launched through the Beneficiary Project’s Initiative, a core Trust strategy since 2006.  There is little
sustainability for this project outside of state and philanthropic grants, however its impact on Trust
beneficiaries in Anchorage has been consistently demonstrated year after year. Future funding considerations
will follow the Trust’s application process and are subject to Trustee approval.

Trust Five Year Funding History 

Fiscal Year  Project Title Amount  Status Final Expended 
FY25 BPI Grant $100,550 Active n/a 
FY24 BPI Grant $100,550 Closed $100,550 
FY23 BPI Grant $100,550 Closed $100,550 
FY22 BPI Grant $100,550 Closed $100,550 
FY21 BPI Grant $100,550 Closed $100,550 

➢ Click Here to read the full memo with application details.

172

https://alaskamentalhealthtrust.org/wp-content/uploads/2025/07/18192-NAMI-Juneau-2025-07.pdf


Grant Approval Memo 

Grantee: NAMI Anchorage 

Request Amount: $169,790 

Project Title: NAMI Anchorage FY26 Operating Grant 

Grant Term: August 28, 2025 to August 31, 2026 

Fund Source: FY26 Mental Health Advocacy, Support, Education and Public Awareness 

Trust Staff: Samantha Ponts 

Requested Motion: 

The Board of Trustees approve a $168,800 FY26 Beneficiary Employment & Engagement grant to NAMI 
Anchorage for the NAMI Anchorage FY26 Operating grant.  These funds will come from the Mental Health 
Advocacy, Support, Education, and Public Awareness line of the FY26 budget. 

Staff Analysis: 
• What does this project do?

This project supports NAMI Anchorage’s peer-led mental health services, focused on education, connection, 
and recovery support for Trust beneficiaries and families impacted by mental illness. Trust funds will support 
staffing, peer group coordination, outreach, educational programs, culturally responsive activities, and the 
development of a Midtown Resource Room to centralize navigation and referrals. 

• Who is receiving the funds?

NAMI Anchorage, a long-standing nonprofit based in Anchorage, is the grantee. The organization has a well-
established history of providing peer-led support services, advocacy and mental health education to Trust 
beneficiaries and their families.  

• Why is staff recommending this project?

This project directly supports Trust beneficiaries – particularly those with mental illness – by providing low-
barrier, culturally responsive services. This project aligns with the Trust’s priorities by: 

• promoting recovery and resilience through peer support and education
• addressing stigma through community engagement and cultural outreach
• expanding access to support resources through initiatives like the Midtown Resource Room
• Will this be a multi-year project?

Yes, this project has been supported by the Trust for the past 20 years and is included annually in the 
approved budget under the Beneficiary Employment and Engagement Focus Area. It was one of the original 
projects launched through the Beneficiary Project’s Initiative, a core Trust strategy since 2008.  There is little 
sustainability for this project outside of state and philanthropic grants, however its impact on Trust 
beneficiaries in Anchorage has been consistently demonstrated year after year. Future funding considerations 
will follow the Trust’s application process and are subject to Trustee approval. 

Trust Five Year Funding History 

Fiscal Year  Project Title Amount  Status Final Expended 
2025 NAMI Anchorage BPI Operating Grant $154,100 Active n/a 
2024 NAMI Anchorage BPI Operating Grant $154,100 Closed $122,622 
2023 NAMI Anchorage BPI Operating Grant $154,071 Closed $89,051 
2022 NAMI Anchorage BPI Operating Grant $154,071 Closed $140,276 
2021 NAMI Anchorage BPI Operating Grant $154,071 Closed $124,769 

➢ Click Here to read the full memo with application details.

173

https://alaskamentalhealthtrust.org/wp-content/uploads/2025/07/18239-NAMI-Anchorage-2025-07.pdf


Grant Approval Memo  
    

Grantee: NAMI Alaska, Inc. 

Request Amount: $50,000.00 

Project Title: A Lifeline for Alaskans 

Grant Term: August 28, 2025 to August 31, 2026 

Fund Source: FY26 Mental Health Advocacy, Support, Education and Public Awareness (Page 8, Line 9) 

Trust Staff: Kelda Barstad 
 
Requested Motion: 

The Board of Trustees approve a $50,000 FY26 Authority Grant to NAMI Alaska, Inc. for the Lifeline for 
Alaskans grant.  These funds will come from the Mental Health Advocacy, Support, Education and Public 
Awareness line of the FY26 budget. 
 

 
Staff Analysis: 
 

• What does this project do? 
 
Trust funds will expand peer-led mental health support across the state. NAMI Alaska provides training for 
the Anchorage, Fairbanks, and Juneau affiliates and offers online support groups and referrals to services in 
Alaska locations without affiliates.  
 
• Who is receiving the funds? 
 
NAMI, National Alliance on Mental Illness, is the nation’s largest grassroots mental health organization 
dedicated to building better lives for millions of Americans affected by mental illness. NAMI advocates for 
access to mental health services, treatment, support, and research, and is committed to raising awareness and 
building hope. NAMI’s mission is to end the stigma of mental illness.  NAMI Alaska is a 501(c)3 non-profit 
organization that provides support to local affiliate organizations and offers education, support, advocacy, 
and public awareness for individuals, their families, friends, and community members whose lives are 
affected by a mental health condition statewide.  
 
• Why is staff recommending this project? 
 
NAMI Alaska provides services not typically offered through a treatment program. The organization provides 
peer-led support groups and referrals for Trust beneficiaries with a mental health condition and family 
members supporting a beneficiary.   These services target helping the individual and their family members 
learn about what it means to have a mental health condition and how to cope with the diagnosis and 
symptoms associated with it.  
 
• Will this be a multi-year project? 
 
This request is expected to be for a multi-year period as part of the Beneficiary Program Initiatives Focus 
Area. Each year of funding will require approval from the board of trustees. 

 
 
Trust Five Year Funding History 
 

Fiscal Year      Project Title         Amount      Status Final Expended 
FY24 NAMI Provider Education Program $7,000 Closed $7,000 
FY23 NAMI Alaska/AFSP-Alaska Chapter 

Together for Mental Health Symposium 
$2,500 Closed $2,500 

FY21 Peer to Peer Support $36,000 Closed $36,000 
 

 
 

➢ Click Here to read the full memo with application details.  

  

174

https://alaskamentalhealthtrust.org/wp-content/uploads/2025/07/18205-NAMI-Alaska-2025-07.pdf


Grant Approval Memo 

Grantee: Alaska Mental Health Consumer Web 

Request Amount: $333,600.00 

Project Title: Alaska Mental Health Consumer Web Grant 

Grant Term: August 28, 2025 to August 31, 2026  

Fund Source: Beneficiary Employment & Engagement Focus Area – Clubhouse Support for Rehabilitation 
and Recovery (Page 8, Line 10) 

Trust Staff: Samantha Ponts 

Requested Motion: 

The Board of Trustees approve a $333,600 FY26 Beneficiary Employment & Engagement grant to the Alaska 
Mental Health Consumer Web for the Alaska Mental Health Consumer Web Grant project.  These funds will 
come from the Clubhouse Support for Rehabilitation and Recovery line of the FY26 budget. 

Staff Analysis: 

• What does this project do?

This project supports the Alaska Mental Health Consumer Web (“The Web”), a peer-run, recovery-focused 
drop-in and engagement center in Anchorage. The Web provides peer support, essential services, and 
connection for individuals facing mental illness, substance use disorders, traumatic brain injuries, 
developmental disabilities, and homelessness.  

Trust funds will support: 
• Peer navigation and support groups led by individuals with lived experience.
• Daily engagement, basic needs assistance, resource referrals, and job-readiness support.
• Community activities, recovery workshops, and wellness education
• Maintenance and operation of a safe, welcoming drop-in center
• Who is receiving the funds?

The Alaska Mental Health Consumer Web, a nonprofit based in Anchorage, is the grantee. The Web serves 
individuals with behavioral health needs through peer-led, recovery-focused support.  

• Why is staff recommending this project?

The project directly benefits Trust beneficiaries who face multiple barriers to care. The Alaska Mental Health 
Consumer Web’s peer-driven model provides meaningful connection, reduces stigma, and promotes 
independence and recovery in a low-barrier setting.  

• Will this be a multi-year project?

Yes, this project has been supported by the Trust for the past 20 years and is included annually in the 
approved budget under the Beneficiary Employment and Engagement Focus Area. It was one of the original 
projects launched through the Beneficiary Project’s Initiative, a core Trust strategy since 2006.  There is little 
sustainability for this project outside of state and philanthropic grants, however its impact on Trust 
beneficiaries in Anchorage has been consistently demonstrated year after year. Future funding considerations 
will follow the Trust’s application process and are subject to Trustee approval. 

175



Grant Approval Memo 

Trust Five Year Funding History 

Fiscal Year  Project Title Amount  Status Final Expended 
FY25 Alaska Mental Health Consumer Web BPI 

Grant 
$333,600 Active n/a 

FY24 Alaska Mental Health Consumer Web BPI 
Grant 

$333,600 Closed $309,489 

FY23 Alaska Mental Health Consumer Web BPI 
Grant 

$333,600 Closed $276,968 

FY22 Alaska Mental Health Consumer Web BPI 
Grant 

$333,600 Closed $333,600 

FY21 Alaska Mental Health Consumer Web BPI 
Grant 

$333,600 Closed $333,600 

➢ Click Here to read the full memo with application details.

176

https://alaskamentalhealthtrust.org/wp-content/uploads/2025/07/18195-AK-Mental-Health-Consumer-Web-2025-07.pdf


Grant Approval Memo  
    

Grantee: Polaris House 

Request Amount: $213,000.00 

Project Title: Clubhouse Support for Rehabilitation and Recovery 

Grant Term: August 28, 2025 to August 31, 2026  

Fund Source: Beneficiary Employment & Engagement Focus Area – Clubhouse Support for Rehabilitation 
and Recovery (Page 8, Line 10) 

Trust Staff: Heather Phelps 
 
Requested Motion: 

The Board of Trustees approve a $213,000 FY26 Beneficiary Employment & Engagement grant to Polaris 
House for the Clubhouse Support for Rehabilitation and Recovery project.  These funds will come from the 
Clubhouse Support for Rehabilitation and Recovery line of the FY26 budget. 
 

 
Staff Analysis: 

• What does this project do? 
 
Trust funds will pay for operational costs to run Polaris House, a community-based service dedicated to 
supporting and empowering Trust beneficiaries living with mental illness.  Operational costs are outlined in 
detail in the budget and cover personnel services, rent and utilities, supply and equipment costs, and other 
costs.  Through Trust beneficiary participation at Polaris House, their lives will improve in the areas of 
stability and independence, improved mental health and social engagement, and enhanced employee 
readiness. 
 
• Who is receiving the funds? 
 
Polaris House will receive the funds.  Polaris House is a clubhouse located in Juneau.  Members of Polaris 
House have access to a variety of programs that assist with rehabilitation and recovery.   
 
• Why is staff recommending this project? 
 
Polaris House has served 95 unique individuals and plans to expand to serve an additional 15 new Trust 
beneficiaries to FY 26.  Polaris House serves adult beneficiaries in the Juneau City and Borough in the least 
restrictive environment who experience mental illness, developmental disabilities, chronic substance use-
related disorders, Alzheimer’s disease and related dementia, and those with traumatic or acquired brain 
injuries.  Funding this project will result in Trust beneficiaries engaging in meaningful activities, developing 
life and vocational skills, and building social connections, which are key factors in long-term recovery.   
 
• Will this be a multi-year project? 
 
Yes, this is a project that has been supported by the Trust for the last 20 years and named in the annually 
approved budget in the Beneficiary Employment and Engagement Focus Area.  This is one of the original 
projects supported under the Beneficiary Project’s Initiative, which was established as a key Trust strategy in 
2006.  There is little sustainability for this project outside of state and philanthropic grants. However, the 
impact of this program for Trust beneficiaries in the Juneau community has been demonstrated year after 
year. Any future funding consideration will follow the Trust’s application process and is contingent on 
Trustee approval.  

 
Trust Five Year Funding History 
 

Fiscal Year      Project Title         Amount      Status Final Expended 
FY25 BPI Grant $213,000 Active n/a 
FY24 BPI Grant $213,000 Closed $211,392 
FY23 BPI Grant $213,000 Closed $213,000 
FY22 BPI Grant $213,000 Closed $213,000 
FY21 BPI Grant $189,959 Closed $189,959 
FY21 Individual Placement Supports $50,000 Closed $50,000 

 
 
➢ Click Here to read the full memo with application details.   

177

https://alaskamentalhealthtrust.org/wp-content/uploads/2025/07/18193-Polaris-House-2025-07.pdf


Grant Approval Memo  
    

Grantee: Northern Hope Center 

Request Amount: $160,000.00 

Project Title: Northern Hope Center Mental Health Drop-In Center 

Grant Term: August 28, 2025 to August 31, 2026  

Fund Source: Beneficiary Employment & Engagement Focus Area – Clubhouse Support for Rehabilitation 
and Recovery (Page 8, Line 10) 

Trust Staff: Samantha Ponts 
 
Requested Motion: 

The Board of Trustees approve a $160,000 FY26 Beneficiary Employment & Engagement grant to the Northern 
Hope Center for the Northern Hope Center Mental Health Drop-In Center project.  These funds will come from 
the Clubhouse Support for Rehabilitation and Recovery line of the FY26 budget. 
 

 
Staff Analysis: 

• What does this project do? 
 
This project supports the Northern Hope Center (NHC), a peer-supported, member-driven mental health 
drop-in center in downtown Fairbanks serving adults with serious mental illness and co-occurring conditions. 
Trust funds will support personnel costs, including salaries and benefits for the Program Manager and Peer 
Support Specialist, as well as facility expenses such as rent, utilities, phone and internet.  
 
• Who is receiving the funds? 
 
The Northern Hope Center, a Fairbanks-based nonprofit mental health drop-in center, is the grantee. NHS is 
recognized locally for its important role in serving adults with serious mental illness. This organization has 
demonstrated strong local partnerships and fiscal responsibility.  
 
• Why is staff recommending this project? 
 
This project provides low-barrier, recovery-focused support for individuals with serious mental illness who 
often face compounded challenges such as homelessness, poverty, and social isolation. The Northern Hope 
Center’s peer-driven model promotes self-determination, social connectedness, and wellness. These services 
help prevent crises, reduce the need for emergency or institutional care, and support beneficiaries in 
achieving greater stability and independence.  
 

• Will this be a multi-year project? 
 
This proposal is for a single 13-month grant project. If future funding were to be considered, an additional 
year of funding would require a new application from Northern Hope Center and the Board of Trustees’ 
approval.  

 
Trust Five Year Funding History 
 

Fiscal Year      Project Title         Amount      Status Final Expended 
FY25 Mental Health Drop-in Center BPI Grant $154,000 Active n/a 
FY24 Mental Health Drop-in Center BPI Grant $154,000 Closed $154,000 
FY23 Northern Hope Center Mental Health Drop-

in Center 
$100,000 Closed $100,000 

FY22 Northern Hope Center Case Manager $50,062 Closed $50,062 
FY21 Northern Hope Center Drop-in Center $80,000 Closed $80,000 

 

 
➢ Click Here to read the full memo with application details.  

  

178

https://alaskamentalhealthtrust.org/wp-content/uploads/2025/07/18194-Northern-Hope-Center-2025-07.pdf


Grant Approval Memo  
    

Grantee: North Star Community Foundation 

Request Amount: $80,000.00 

Project Title: NSCF/Fairbanks Reentry Coalition Housing Assistance 

Grant Term: August 28, 2025 to August 31, 2026 

Fund Source: Mental Health & Addiction Intervention Focus Area - FY25 Child & Youth Crisis Response 
System of Care and Technical (Page 5, Line 26) 

Trust Staff: Heather Phelps 
 
Requested Motion: 

The Board of Trustees approve a $80,000 Mental Health & Addiction Intervention focus area allocation to the 
North Star Community Foundation for the NSCF/Fairbanks Reentry Coalition Housing Assistance grant.  These 
funds will come from the Child & Youth Crisis Response System of Care and Technical Assistance line of the FY25 
budget. 
 

 
Staff Analysis: 
 

• What does this project do? 
 
Trust funds will provide rent and utilities and associated supplies (union dues, licensing fees, household 
items) for Trust beneficiaries reentering society after being incarcerated at least once in the three preceding 
years.  It is anticipated that approximately 41 Trust beneficiaries will be served during a twelve-month period.  
The expected outcomes for this project are for Trust beneficiaries to report an increase in their quality of life, 
an increase in successful community reintegration, and a decrease in participant recidivism.   
 
• Who is receiving the funds? 
 
The Fairbanks Reentry Coalition, through its fiscal agent, North Star Community Foundation, is receiving the 
funds to use for its Fairbanks Reentry Coalition Housing Assistance Program. The area served is Fairbanks 
and North Star Borough.  The Fairbanks Reentry Coalition creates a community where returning citizens 
have the keys to achieve their personal goals successfully.  
 
• Why is staff recommending this project? 
 
This project will support Trust beneficiaries reentering their community after incarceration.  The majority of 
the Trust beneficiaries experience a substance use disorder and mental illness, but some also experience 
Alzheimer’s and related dementia and developmental disabilities.  The project will provide housing assistance 
to help Trust beneficiaries to avoid housing insecurity and provide support for successful community 
reintegration.   
 
• Will this be a multi-year project? 
 

While this is a one-time funding request, it should be noted that the Trust has funded this project for fiscal year 
2024 and 2025. The Fairbanks Reentry Coalition is anticipated to request funds for the next fiscal year and will 
require the board of trustee approval each year of funding.  
 
Trust Five Year Funding History 
 

Fiscal Year      Project Title         Amount      Status Final Expended 
FY25 Fairbanks Reentry Coalition Housing 

Project 
$71,500 Active n/a 

FY25 Fairbanks Hopelink Warming Center $50,000 Active n/a 
FY24 Fairbanks Reentry Coalition Housing 

Project 
$50,000 Closed $49,893 

 
 
➢ Click Here to read the full memo with application details.  

 
  

179

https://alaskamentalhealthtrust.org/wp-content/uploads/2025/07/18208-North-Star-Community-Foundation-2025-07.pdf


Grant Approval Memo  
    

Grantee: Valley Charities, Inc. 

Request Amount: $80,000.00 

Project Title: Mat-Su Reentry Coalition Housing Project  

Grant Term: August 28, 2025 to August 31, 2026 

Fund Source: Mental Health & Addiction Intervention Focus Area - FY25 Child & Youth Crisis Response 
System of Care and Technical (Page 5, Line 26) 

Trust Staff: Heather Phelps 
 
Requested Motion: 

The Board of Trustees approve a $80,000 Mental Health & Addiction Intervention focus area allocation to 
Valley Charities, Inc. for the Mat-Su Reentry Coalition Housing Project.  These funds will come from the Child & 
Youth Crisis Response System of Care and Technical Assistance line of the FY25 budget. 
 

 
Staff Analysis: 
 

• What does this project do? 
 
Trust funds will provide rent and utilities for up to three months for Trust beneficiaries reentering society 
after being incarcerated at least once in the preceding three years.  It is anticipated that approximately 55 
Trust beneficiaries will be served.  90% of the budget is dedicated to paying housing and utility costs for trust 
beneficiaries, and 10% of the budget is for an administrative fee.  The expected outcomes for this project are 
for Trust beneficiaries to report an increase in their quality of life, an increase in successful community 
reintegration, and a decrease in participant recidivism.   
 
• Who is receiving the funds? 
 
The Mat-Su Reentry Coalition, through its fiscal agent, Valley Charities, is receiving the funds. The Mat-Su 
Reentry Coalition is a collaboration of individuals, community stakeholders, public and non-profit agencies, 
faith-based services, and business partners who are united and committed to reducing recidivism and 
returning citizens to the Mat-Su community. 
 
• Why is staff recommending this project? 
 
This project will support Trust beneficiaries reentering their community after incarceration.  The majority of 
the Trust beneficiaries experience a substance use disorder, but some also experience mental illness and 
developmental disabilities.  The project will provide housing assistance to help Trust beneficiaries obtain 
transitional or permanent housing and provide support for successful community reintegration.   
 
• Will this be a multi-year project? 
 

While this is a one-time funding request, it should be noted that the Trust has funded this project for the last 
five fiscal years. The Mat-Su Reentry Coalition is anticipated to request funds for the next fiscal year and will 
require the board of trustee approval each year of funding. 

 
 

 
Trust Five Year Funding History 
 

Fiscal Year      Project Title         Amount      Status Final Expended 
FY25 Alaska Prisoner Reentry Initiative: Reentry 

Coalition Capacity Development - Mat-Su 
$120,000 Active n/a 

FY25 Durable Medical Equipment Lending 
Program New Location 

$49,945 Active n/a 

FY25 Mat-Su Reentry Coalition Housing Project $80,000 Closed $79,998 
FY24 Alaska Prisoner Reentry Initiative: Reentry 

Coalition Capacity Development - Mat-Su 
$120,000 Closed $119,936 

FY24 Mat-Su Reentry Housing Project $80,000 Closed $80,000 

180



Grant Approval Memo  
    

FY24 2023 Mat-Su Reentry Summit $15,000 Closed $13,688 
FY23 Alaska Prisoner Reentry Initiative: Reentry 

Coalition Capacity Development - Mat-Su 
$100,000 Closed $99,847 

FY23 Medical Equipment Lending Program $15,500 Closed $15,500 
FY23 Mat-Su Reentry Housing Project $50,000 Closed $49,999 
FY22 Alaska Prisoner Reentry Initiative: Reentry 

Coalition Capacity Development - Mat-Su 
$100,000 Closed $92,758 

FY22 2022 Mat-Su Virtual Reentry Summit $10,000 Closed $10,000 
FY22 Mat-Su Reentry Housing Project $50,000 Closed $50,000 
FY21 Alaska Prisoner Reentry Initiative: Reentry 

Coalition Capacity Development - Mat-Su 
$100,000 Closed $100,000 

FY21 2021 Mat-Su Virtual Reentry Summit $5,000 Closed $5,000 
FY21 Mat-Su Reentry Housing $80,000 Closed $79,679 

 

 
 

➢ Click Here to read the full memo with application details.  

  

181

https://alaskamentalhealthtrust.org/wp-content/uploads/2025/07/18211-Valley-Charities-2025-07.pdf


Grant Approval Memo  
    

Grantee: Mat-Su Health Foundation 

Request Amount: $38,003.00 

Project Title: Crisis Now Implementation Coordinator for Mat-Su 

Grant Term: August 28, 2025 to August 31, 2026 

Fund Source: FY25 Mental Health & Addiction Intervention - Child & Youth Crisis Response System (Page 
5, Line 26)  

Trust Staff: Eric Boyer 
 
Requested Motion: 

The Board of Trustees approve a $38,003 Mental Health & Addiction Intervention focus area allocation to the 
Mat-Su Health Foundation for the Crisis Now Implementation Coordinator for Mat-Su grant.  These funds will 
come from the Child & Youth Crisis Response System line of the FY25 budget. 
 

 
Staff Analysis: 
 

• What does this project do? 
 
The Trust funds would pay for the Crisis Now Coordinator (CNC) in the Mat-Su region. The Crisis Now 
Coordinator works with the provider agencies, who operate the call center for 988/911, mobile crisis teams, 
and the crisis stabilization centers to ensure a high-functioning crisis response system of care. The CNC is 
working to fill gaps in the response system, establish a functional referral network among available service 
providers and evaluate outcomes of services that have been implemented. 
 
• Who is receiving the funds? 
 
The Mat-Su Health Foundation (MSHF) would receive the funds for the Crisis Now Coordinator and contract 
with Melissa Toffolon with Actionable Data, who is currently fulfilling the valley’s Crisis Now coordination 
role. The MSHF is a regional philanthropic entity that supports healthcare for all residents of the Mat-Su 
region. The MSHF has been a partner with the Trust on the implementation of improved local crisis response 
design since the beginning of the Trust’s behavioral health crisis response initiative. 
 
• Why is staff recommending this project? 
 
The Crisis Now Coordinator is working to support the planning and operationalization of the Crisis Now 
Framework, as well as setting up the Crisis Care Team in the Valley. The post-crisis care team consists of 
providers who work together with dispatch, mobile crisis teams, and emergency services to ensure a “warm 
handoff” between providers. This also ensures that Trust beneficiaries receive services on the day they need 
them. This system has been launched and is working to strengthen the system of care. 
 
 
• Will this be a multi-year project? 
 
This proposal is for a single 12-month grant project term with an anticipated need for future investment to 
maintain the localized project management and support continued progress on implementing the envisioned 
improved crisis response The MSHF would likely contribute to future support of this effort. If future Trust 
funding were to be considered, an additional year of funding would require a new application from MSHF 
and the Board of Trustees' approval.   
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

182



Grant Approval Memo  
    

Trust Five Year Funding History 
 

Fiscal Year      Project Title         Amount      Status Final Expended 
2024 Crisis Now Implementation Coordinator for 

Mat-Su 
$100,000 Closed $61,997 

2023 Mat-Su Multi-Disciplinary Team Cloud9 
Implementation and Pilot Project 

$50,000 Closed $0 

2023 2022 Mat-Su Community Health Needs 
Assessment 

$10,000 Closed $10,000 

2022 Marketing & Integrated Fund Management 
Plan For Alaska’s SHARP 

$21,550 Closed $21,550 

2021 Mat-Su Community Development 
Coordinator 

$100,000 Closed $100,000 

2021 Palmer Families with Infants and Toddlers 
(FIT) Court 

$75,000 Closed $75,000 

 
 
➢ Click Here to read the full memo with application details.  

 

183

https://alaskamentalhealthtrust.org/wp-content/uploads/2025/07/18344-Mat-Su-Health-Foundation-2025-07.pdf


Grant Approval Memo  
    

Grantee: Anchorage Neighborhood Housing Services, Inc. 

Request Amount: $254,757 

Project Title: NeighborWorks Alaska (NWAK) Housing Intervention Program (HIP) 

Grant Term: 9/1/2025 to 8/31/2026 

Fund Source: FY26 Housing and Home and Community Based Services Focus Area – Beneficiary Housing 
Projects & Related Services (Page 9, Line 17) 

Trust Staff: Kelda Barstad 
 
Requested Motion: 

The Board of Trustees approve a $254,757 FY26 Housing and Home & Community Based Services focus area 
allocation to Anchorage Neighborhood Housing Services, Inc. for the NWAK Housing Intervention Program 
grant.  These funds will come from the Beneficiary Housing Projects & Related Services line of the FY26 budget. 
 

 
Staff Analysis: 
 

• What does this project do? 
 
Trust funding supports operating costs for the expansion of NeighborWorks Alaska’s (NWAK) Housing 
Intervention Program (HIP).  The HIP will provide supportive housing services to the affordable housing they 
manage so beneficiary residents can attain housing stability, self-determination, and long-term housing 
success.   
 
NWAK utilizes the Alaska Homeless Management Information System to track data on each program 
participant. This system allows us to track and report data on many metrics. With Trust funds, NWAK will 
implement a robust performance measurement framework to assess the scale and effectiveness of the 
expanded Housing Intervention Program (HIP). This framework will align with the Trust’s focus on 
accountability, impact, and continuous improvement. Data will be collected through NWAK’s centralized case 
management and housing data systems and reviewed quarterly for quality assurance, outcome tracking, and 
adaptive program management. 
 
• Who is receiving the funds? 
 
Anchorage Neighborhood Housing Services, Inc., dba NeighborWorks Alaska (NWAK) is a 501(c)3 non-profit 
dedicated to improving the quality of life for families and individuals by preserving homes, creating new housing 
opportunities, and strengthening neighborhoods.  (https://nwalaska.org/) NWAK owns and operates affordable 
housing and housing stability programs in Anchorage. 
 
• Why is staff recommending this project? 
 
Single Room Occupancy living options used for transitional housing from homelessness and very low-income 
housing options do not automatically include housing navigation or case management services to help a 
person attain employment, additional income, or mainstream housing.  This creates a blockage in the housing 
safety net, creating waitlists for people who are homeless or very low-income.  Case management also assists 
a person in resolving or managing health or behavioral health issues that are barriers to employment or full 
community participation as well as identifying when a person may need a higher level of care or decision-
making support to stay safe.  Grant funding is the primary resource for the proposed services in Alaska.  
During the grant, AMHTA will work with NWAK on the feasibility of utilizing Medicaid as a sustainable 
resource for case management services.   
 
• Will this be a multi-year project?  
 
This is anticipated to be a two to three year project. Each year of funding will require board of trustee 
approval. 
 

184

https://nwalaska.org/


Grant Approval Memo  
    

 
Trust Five Year Funding History 
 

Fiscal Year      Project Title         Amount      Status Final Expended 
FY25 Alaska Prisoner Reentry Initiative: Reentry 

Coalition Capacity Development - 
Anchorage 

$120,000 Active  TBD 

FY24 Alaska Prisoner Reentry Initiative: Reentry 
Coalition Capacity Development - 
Anchorage 

$120,000 Closed $88,654 

FY23 Alaska Prisoner Reentry Initiative: Reentry 
Coalition Capacity Development - 
Anchorage 

$100,000 Closed $98,458 

FY22 Alaska Prisoner Reentry Initiative: Reentry 
Coalition Capacity Development - 
Anchorage 

$100,000 Closed $93,455 

FY22 NWAK Ready To Rent $50,000 Closed $46,841 
FY21 Alaska Prisoner Reentry Initiative: Reentry 

Coalition Capacity Development - 
Anchorage 

$100,000 Closed $92,521 

FY21 COVID-19 Quarantine Housing Support $50,000 Closed $5,313 
 
 

 
➢ Click Here to read the full memo with application details.  

  

185

https://alaskamentalhealthtrust.org/wp-content/uploads/2025/07/18454-Anchorage-Neighborhood-Housing-2025-07.pdf


Grant Approval Memo  
    

Grantee: Alaska AIDS Assistance Association 

Request Amount: $134,400.00 

Project Title: Housing Gap Funding for Trust Beneficiaries Living with HIV 

Grant Term: August 28, 2025 to March 31, 2026 

Fund Source: Housing and Home & Community Based Services Focus Area – Beneficiary Housing 
Projects and Related Services (Page 9, Line 17) 

Trust Staff: Kelda Barstad 
 
Requested Motion: 

The Board of Trustees approve a $134,400 Housing and Home & Community Based Services focus area 
allocation to the Alaska AIDS Assistance Association for the Housing Gap Funding for Trust Beneficiaries Living 
with HIV grant.  These funds will come from the Beneficiary Housing Projects and Related Services line of the 
FY26 budget. 
 

 
Staff Analysis: 

• What does this project do? 
 
Trust funds will provide gap funding for rental assistance and case management for Trust beneficiaries served 
by Alaskan AIDS Assistance Association (Four A's). Housing stabilization funds have been phased out, and 
this funding will fill a gap for Trust beneficiaries who have not yet transitioned to long-term housing 
assistance.   
 
• Who is receiving the funds? 
 
The Alaskan AIDS Assistance Association (Four A's) is a 501(c)3 non-profit organization and the first 
organization in Alaska dedicated to responding to the illness we now call HIV/AIDS. As the face of AIDS has 
changed, Four A's has grown to meet the constantly changing needs of clients and has expanded its 
prevention activities. Over the years, the Four A's has grown into the state's leading HIV/AIDS focused 
agency serving 91% of the state in two core areas: 1) supportive services for individuals living with HIV/AIDS 
and their families, and 2) HIV prevention and education. (www.alaskanaids.org) 
 
• Why is staff recommending this project? 
There is an intersection of people living with HIV who are Trust beneficiaries. Trust beneficiaries enrolled in 
the program are more complex to serve and often take longer to re-engage in employment, obtain benefit 
income streams, and stabilize housing.  The gap funding will ensure housing stability and continuity of care 
for eleven Trust beneficiaries living with HIV. Beneficiaries will receive six months of subsidized rental 
support paired with intensive case management services focused on obtaining a long-term solution to housing 
needs, including income maximization, access to mainstream housing resources, and maintained access to 
medical, behavioral, and mental health care.  Trust beneficiaries served by this program will be individuals 
with unstable housing living in Anchorage, the Mat-Su Valley, or the Interior who are living with HIV and 
unable to maintain stable housing independently. 
 
• Will this be a multi-year project? 
 
This is a one-time funding request. 

 
Trust Five Year Funding History 
 

Fiscal Year      Project Title         Amount      Status Final Expended 
FY23 Syringe Access Program Expansion – Mat-

Su Valley (M-FASAP) 
$14,500 Closed $14,500 

FY22 Four A's Syringe Access Project - Juneau $50,000 Closed $50,000 
 
 
➢ Click Here to read the full memo with application details.  

 
  

186

https://alaskamentalhealthtrust.org/wp-content/uploads/2025/08/18201-Four-As-Approval-Memo-Updated-8-12-2025.pdf


Grant Approval Memo  
    

Grantee: Community Connections, Inc. 

Request Amount: $75,000.00 

Project Title: 1st Street Triplex Upgrades: Supported Apartment Living for People with Intellectual and 
Developmental Disabilities 

Grant Term: 5/20/2025 to 12/30/2025 

Fund Source: FY26 Housing and Home and Community Based Services Focus Area – Beneficiary Housing 
Projects & Related Services (Page 9, Line 17) 

Trust Staff: Kelda Barstad 
 
Requested Motion: 

The Board of Trustees approve a $75,000 FY26 Authority Grant to Community Connections, Inc. for the 1st Street 
Triplex Upgrades: Supported Apartment Living for People with Intellectual and Developmental Disabilities 
grant.  These funds will come from the Beneficiary Housing Projects & Related Services line of the FY26 budget. 
 

 
Staff Analysis: 
 

• What does this project do? 
 
Trust funds will pay for labor and materials to remodel a property owned by Community Connections.  The 
remodel will support additional housing units for Trust beneficiaries experiencing an Intellectual or 
Developmental Disability. 
 
• Who is receiving the funds? 
 
Community Connections is a 501(c)(3) non-profit provider established in 1985 and located in Ketchikan. 
(https://comconnections.org/) The agency serves Ketchikan, Metlakatla, and Prince of Wales. People across 
the lifespan are served through an infant learning program, children’s mental health services, and home and 
community-based services for seniors and people with disabilities, including beneficiaries with an intellectual 
or developmental disability.   
 
• Why is staff recommending this project? 
 
Currently, there are no other residential services of this type available in the area, except for one other 
apartment home owned by Community Connections: Opportunity House.  Opportunity House has a waiting 
list and low turnover, so additional units are needed in the community. The remodel will add 5-6 housing 
units (7 units in total) in Ketchikan to be paired with group home or supported living services for 
beneficiaries with an Intellectual or Developmental Disability.  Pairing the housing units with these services 
will maximize housing stability for the residents and provide long-term sustainability for the project through 
billing the Intellectual or Developmental Disability (IDD) or Adults with Physical and Developmental 
Disabilities (APDD) Medicaid waivers.  
 
• Will this be a multi-year project? 
 
This is a one-time funding request.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

187

https://comconnections.org/


Grant Approval Memo  
    

Trust Five Year Funding History 
 

Fiscal Year      Project Title         Amount      Status Final Expended 
FY24 Electronic Health Record: Purchase and 

Year 1 Implementation 
$67,500 Closed $67,500 

FY23 Therapeutic Foster Care: Expansion and 
Sustainability 

$400,000 Closed $400,000 

FY22 Family Focused Treatment Association 
Conference 2022 for Alaska Child 
Placement Agencies 

$15,000 Closed $15,000 

FY22 Habilitative Service Expansion $10,000 Closed $10,000 
FY22 Family Focused Treatment Association $10,000 Closed $7,000 
FY21 Rock Wall Stabilization and Mitigation 

Measures 
$100,000 Closed $100,000 

FY21 Family Focused Treatment Association $10,000 Closed $10,000 
 

 
 

➢ Click Here to read the full memo with application details.  

  

188

https://alaskamentalhealthtrust.org/wp-content/uploads/2025/07/18468-Community-Connections-2025-07.pdf


Grant Approval Memo  
    

Grantee: All Alaska Pediatric Partnership  

Request Amount: $220,500.00 

Project Title: Infant and Early Childhood Mental Health (IECMH) Line Pilot Project 

Grant Term: August 28, 2025 to September 30, 2027  

Fund Source: FY25 Early Childhood Intervention & Prevention Priority Area: Infant & Early Childhood 
Mental Health Capacity Building (Page 15, Line 36) 

Trust Staff: Tina Voelker-Ross 
 
Requested Motion: 

The Board of Trustees approve a $220,500 FY25 Early Childhood Intervention and Prevention grant to the All 
Alaska Pediatric Partnership for the Infant and Early Childhood Mental Health (IECMH) Line Pilot Project.  
These funds will come from the Infant & Early Childhood Mental Health Capacity Building line of the FY25 
budget. 
 

 
Staff Analysis: 
 

• What does this project do? 
 
This project is to develop an Infant and Early Childhood Mental Health (IECMH) Line pilot to address the 
gap in mental health support for young children and those who care for them across the state. The IECMH 
Line will be an established call-in line through which they will offer technical assistance, education, and 
support for individuals providing care to infants and young children who need information and guidance on 
social-emotional development, addressing challenging behaviors, and other behavioral health needs of young 
children. Trust funds will be utilized predominantly for personnel and consulting through developing, 
implementing, and evaluating the IECMH pilot Line. 
 
• Who is receiving the funds? 
 
The All Alaska Pediatric Partnership (A2P2) is a non-profit organization established in 1995 to improve 
services and systems for children and families in Alaska.  A2P2 is located in Anchorage but works state-wide 
to collaborate and partner for innovative and evidence-based practices to improve services for children and 
families, and to help children reach their full potential.  A2P2 runs Help Me Grow (HMG) Alaska, a resource 
line for parents on child development questions and connecting to supports.  
 
• Why is staff recommending this project? 
 
This project supports infant and early childhood mental health capacity building.    
Alaska has critical shortages in infant and early childhood mental health services, especially in rural and 
remote areas. This project is designed to support care providers in the infant and early childhood arena, and 
secondarily, the infants, children, and families in their care, which includes Trust beneficiaries with mental 
health, substance use disorders, or developmental disabilities, and those at risk for becoming beneficiaries. 
This project will be linked to the well-established and successful HMG Alaska line. A2P2’s experience, 
knowledge, and skills in managing this high-volume resource line will aid in developing, implementing, and 
managing the data for this current project. A2P2 has secured additional funding from the Department of 
Public Health in the amount of $232,376.00 to develop and implement the IECMH pilot line.  
 
• Will this be a multi-year project? 
 
This proposal is for a single 25-month grant term project. An extended grant term is needed to capture the 
project's initial development, the implementation, and data collection. We are not currently considering 
multiple years of funding. If future funding were to be considered after the full implementation of this pilot 
project, the decision to pursue additional funding would be data-driven. The funding would require a new 
application by A2P2 and approval through the Board of Trustees.   
 
 
 
 
 
 

189



Grant Approval Memo  
    

 
Trust Five Year Funding History 
 

Fiscal Year      Project Title         Amount      Status Final Expended 
FY25 Help Me Grow: Community Outreach, Care 

Coordination and Dev. Screening 
$150,000 Active n/a 

FY25 Early Childhood Governance Outreach 
Coordination 

$50,000 Active n/a 

FY25 Sponsorship of the 2024 All Alaska 
Pediatric Symposium 

$2,500 Closed $2,500 

FY24 Help Me Grow: Early Childhood 
Community Outreach and Dev. Screening 

$150,000 Closed $150,000 

FY24 Early Childhood Governance Outreach 
Coordination 

$50,000 Closed $50,000 

FY24 Sponsorship of the 2023 All Alaska 
Pediatric Symposium 

$2,500 Closed $2,500 

FY24 Early Childhood Development Monitoring 
Campaign: Early Identification and 
Intervention 

$140,000 Active n/a 

FY23 Help Me Grow: Early Childhood 
Community Outreach and Dev. Screening 

$100,000 Closed $100,000 

FY23 Infant & Early Childhood Mental Health 
Systems Integration Analysis 

$70,000 Closed $70,000 

FY23 All Alaska Pediatric Symposium 
Sponsorship 

$2,500 Closed $2,500 

FY23 Alaska Early Childhood Network Retreat $18,700 Closed $18,700 

FY22 All Alaska Pediatric Symposium 
Sponsorship 

$2,500 Closed $2,500 

FY22 Pediatric Sub-specialty - A Systems 
Approach for the State of Alaska - Year 2 

$50,000 Closed $50,000 

FY22 Help Me Grow: Pediatric Behavioral Health 
Treatment Coordination 

$100,000 Closed $100,000 

FY22 Early Childhood Governance Outreach 
Coordination 

$50,000 Closed $50,000 

FY21 Pediatric Sub-specialty - A Systems 
Approach for the State of Alaska 

$67,910 Closed $67,910 

FY21 Outreach & Education to Increase 
Developmental Screening 

$100,000 Closed $100,000 

FY21 Alaska Early Childhood Development 
“Amazing Books” 

$5,090 Closed $5,090 

 

 
 

➢ Click Here to read the full memo with application details.  

  

190

https://alaskamentalhealthtrust.org/wp-content/uploads/2025/07/18196-A2P2-2025-07.pdf


Grant Approval Memo  
    

Grantee: Alaska Association for Infant and Early Childhood Mental Health 

Request Amount: $113,620.00 

Project Title: Infant and Early Childhood Mental Health Consultation Project 

Grant Term: August 28, 2025 to December 31, 2026 

Fund Source: FY25 Early Childhood Intervention & Prevention Priority Area: Infant & Early Childhood 
Mental Health Capacity Building (Page 15, Line 36) 

Trust Staff: Tina Voelker-Ross 
 
Requested Motion: 

The Board of Trustees approve a $113,620 FY25 Early Childhood Intervention and Prevention grant to the 
Alaska Association for Infant and Early Childhood Mental Health for the Infant and Early Childhood Mental 
Health Consultation Project.  These funds will come from the Infant & Early Childhood Mental Health Capacity 
Building line of the FY25 budget. 
 

 
Staff Analysis: 

• What does this project do? 
 
Trust funds will increase the number of Infant and Early Childhood Mental Health (IECMH) Consultants 
available to infant and early childhood programs in Alaska by addressing the training needs of 2 cohorts of 
professionals pursuing certification in IECMH consultation;  funding will supplement the current training 
cohort and extend to a second cohort. Trust funds will fund personnel services for project coordination, 
mentor/facilitator costs for providing individual and group mentoring, reflective supervision, and other costs, 
including stipends for participant training and participation in shadowing.    
 
• Who is receiving the funds? 
 
This funding will be under the direction of the Alaska Association of Infant and Early Childhood Mental 
Health (AK-AIMH), a non-profit state-wide organization since 2009.  AK-AIMH is the leading entity in 
Alaska with a focus on infant and early childhood mental health. Core activities of AK-AIMH include training, 
capacity-building, and delivery of services for infants, young children, and families.  AK-AIMH actively 
collaborates with the State of Alaska initiatives, infant and early childhood organizations, and is a member of 
the Alliance for the Advancement of Infant Mental Health.     
 
• Why is staff recommending this project? 
 
This project supports infant and early childhood mental health capacity building.  While the focus of the 
project is training, it has the long-term potential to benefit infants, children, families, and infant and early 
childhood programs. Research on the benefits of IECMH consultation includes increased protective factors, 
reduced challenging behaviors, and the prevention of early childhood expulsion and suspension (the 
“preschool to prison pipeline”).  Additionally, it has been shown to have significant positive effects on early 
childhood professionals (improved self-efficacy, reduced stress, and burnout).  Filling this gap in Alaska has 
potential impacts on at-risk children, their families, and the workforce.   
 
• Will this be a multi-year project? 
 
This proposal is for a single 19-month grant project.  An extended grant term is needed to supplement the 
training of cohort 1, recruit for cohort 2, and complete the 1-year training for cohort 2. We are not currently 
considering multiple years of funding. If future funding were to be considered, an additional year of funding 
would require a new application from AK-AIMH and Board of Trustees approval.    
  

191



Grant Approval Memo  
    
 

 
Trust Five Year Funding History 
 

Fiscal Year      Project Title         Amount      Status Final Expended 
FY23 Project Compass: Leading the Way in 

Workforce Development for Infant & Early 
Childhood Mental Health Services in Alaska 

$50,000 Closed $47,479 

FY22 Project Compass: Leading the Way in 
Workforce Development for Infant & Early 
Childhood Mental Health Services in Alaska 

$50,000 Closed $48,230 

FY21 Project Compass: Leading the Way in 
Workforce Development for Infant & Early 
Childhood Mental Health Services in Alaska 

$50,000 Closed $50,000 

 
 

 
➢ Click Here to read the full memo with application details.  

  

192

https://alaskamentalhealthtrust.org/wp-content/uploads/2025/07/18191-AAIECMH-2025-07.pdf


Grant Approval Memo  
    

Grantee: Association for the Education of Young Children, Southeast Alaska 

Request Amount: $100,000.00 

Project Title: 4th Trimester Project - Parents as Teachers and Circles of Security for Classrooms 

Grant Term: August 28, 2025 to August 31, 2026 

Fund Source: FY25 Early Childhood Intervention and Prevention Priority Area: Improve Social 
Determinants of Health (Page 15, Line 39) 

Trust Staff: Tina Voelker-Ross 
 
Requested Motion: 

The Board of Trustees approve a $100,000 Early Childhood Intervention and Prevention grant to the 
Association for the Education of Young Children, Southeast Alaska for the 4th Trimester Project - Parents as 
Teachers and Circles of Security for Classrooms grant.  These funds will come from the Improve Social 
Determinants of Health line of the FY25 budget.  
 

 
Staff Analysis: 
 

• What does this project do? 
This project, implemented through the Association for the Education of Young Children Southeast Alaska 
(AEYC-SE), will support the Parents as Teachers (PAT) home-visiting program and the Circles of Security 
(COS) for the classroom training program, which supports healthy emotional and social development.  Trust 
funds will support the cost of personnel (PAT Home visitors and part-time COS classroom facilitator), and 
supplies such as postpartum care kits for new moms, and supportive learning materials for the COS training 
program.      
 
• Who is receiving the funds? 
The AEYC-SE is a childcare resource and referral hub for SE Alaska, located in Juneau, Alaska.  They have 
been serving early educators, children, parents, and families since 1982.  They offer programs that support 
the growth and well-being of children and families including Parents as Teachers (PAT), Circles of Security 
training, other early childhood childcare provider training, resources and referrals for families, parenting 
classes, kindergarten readiness information, and assistance for early learning programs to become nationally 
accredited.    
 
• Why is staff recommending this project? 
The Parents as Teachers (PAT) 4th Trimester Project and the Circles of Security for the Classroom Training 
program are designed to support beneficiaries of the Alaska Mental Health Trust. Specifically, individuals 
experiencing mental illness and substance use disorders. The home visiting services enhance family stability 
and reduce the risk of adverse outcomes associated with untreated perinatal mental health issues. The Circles 
of Security program  promotes social-emotional development and create supportive learning environments 
for young children. By addressing the needs of these beneficiary groups, both projects aim to improve mental 
health outcomes.  AEYC-SE has secured additional funding from the Alaska Children’s Trust, the City and 
Borough of Juneau, and Tlingit & Haida, totaling $55,000.00, to support this project.  
 
• Will this be a multi-year project? 
This proposal is for a single 13-month grant project.  If future funding were to be considered, an additional 
year of funding would require a new application by AEYC-SE and Board of Trustees approval.    
 

Trust Five Year Funding History 
 

Fiscal Year      Project Title         Amount      Status Final Expended 
FY24 Circles of Security for Child Care 

Professionals (COSP) & Parents as Teachers 
(PAT) Support 

$50,000 Closed $50,000 

FY23 PAT Stop Gap Funding $95,000 Closed $95,000 
FY22 Help PAT Attend National Conference $14,625 Closed $13,874 

 
 
➢ Click Here to read the full memo with application details.  

  

193

https://alaskamentalhealthtrust.org/wp-content/uploads/2025/07/18209-AEYC-SE-2025-07.pdf


Grant Approval Memo  
    

Grantee: Presbyterian Hospitality House, Inc. 

Request Amount: $75,000.00 

Project Title: "The Extra Mile" Strengthening Alaskan Families 

Grant Term: August 28, 2025 to August 31, 2026 

Fund Source: $50,000 FY25 Early Childhood Intervention & Prevention Priority Area: Keep the Kids 
Home (Page 14, Line 26) 
$25,000 FY25 Partnerships/Designated Grants (Page 2, Line 13)  

Trust Staff: Tina Voelker-Ross 
 
Requested Motion: 

The Board of Trustees approve a $75,000 Authority Grant to the Presbyterian Hospitality House, Inc. for the "The 
Extra Mile" Strengthening Alaskan Families grant.  $50,000 of these funds will come from the Keep the Kids 
Home line and the $25,000 will come from the Partnerships/Designated Grants lines of the FY25 budget. 
 

 
Staff Analysis: 
 

• What does this project do? 
 
This project will ensure frequent and meaningful family contact for residents participating in the Presbyterian 
Hospitality House (PHH) residential group homes, with a focus on the treatment of male youth who have 
engaged in problematic sexual behavior.  The project aims to increase in-person family contact for rural youth 
and support safe reunification through structured visitation and therapeutic sessions.  Trust funds will 
support travel and accommodations for family visits and benefit 10-15 families (approximately 40-60) 
individuals across rural Alaska. 
 
• Who is receiving the funds? 
 
PHH is a nonprofit organization in Alaska that has been in operation since 1957. PHH operates group homes 
and therapeutic treatment homes for youth in Fairbanks, Wasilla, the Kenai Peninsula, and Seward. This 
grant will be implemented with the youth in 2 residential group homes in Fairbanks called the Chena and 
Bias homes.   
 
• Why is staff recommending this project? 
 
The youth participating in the PHH residential treatment program are all Trust beneficiaries. Children who 
act out sexually are at severe risk of never reunifying with their family and spending their entire adolescence 
in residential treatment or foster care settings. In those situations, youth remain in treatment settings until 
they are 18 rather than returning home. Research shows that when children and families receive intervention 
for problematic sexual behaviors, the rates of recidivism are between three and six percent; there is 
substantial evidence to show that families can reunify safely in many circumstances.    This project seeks to 
enhance family contact and support safe reunification through structured visitation and therapeutic sessions.  
    
• Will this be a multi-year project? 
 
This proposal is for a single 13-month grant project.  If future funding were to be considered, an additional 
year of funding would require a new application by PHH and Board of Trustees approval.    
 

Trust Five Year Funding History 
 
No Trust grants FY21 to FY25 
 
 
➢ Click Here to read the full memo with application details.  

 
  

194

https://alaskamentalhealthtrust.org/wp-content/uploads/2025/07/18207-Presbyterian-Hospitality-House-2025-07.pdf


Grant Approval Memo 

Grantee: Alaska Safety Alliance 

Request Amount: $120,000.00 

Project Title: Re-Envisioned: Alaska’s New Statewide Health Workforce Coalition 

Grant Term: August 28, 2025 to August 31, 2026 

Fund Source: FY26 Partnerships/Designated Grants (Page 2, Line 13) 

Trust Staff: Eric Boyer 

Requested Motion: 

The Board of Trustees approve a $120,000 partnership grant to the Alaska Safety Alliance for the Re-
Envisioned: Alaska’s New Statewide Health Workforce Coalition project.  These funds will come from the 
Partnerships/Designated Grants line of the FY26 budget. 

Staff Analysis: 

• What does this project do?

Trust funds will pay the Alaska Workforce Alliance (AWA) to hire and support staff who will oversee the 
Alaska Healthcare Workforce Coalition. This will involve outreach and forming a coalition of health care 
providers, agencies, educators, and associations. The staff-led coalition will develop and implement a work 
plan by engaging the various key stakeholders who are currently doing some workforce efforts - although 
nothing is currently aligned and coordinated at a statewide level. The AWA staff would collaborate with the 
many disconnected efforts and bring alignment.  

• Who is receiving the funds?

The Alaska Workforce Alliance (AWA) is a 501(c)(3) non-profit organization committed to strengthening 
workforce development across all of Alaska’s industries through collaboration, education, and targeted 
initiatives. AWA operates as a subsidiary of the Alaska Safety Alliance, building on 25 years of experience and 
leadership in workforce development. Guided by Alaska’s Workforce Future, AWA focuses on shared 
statewide goals such as expanding career awareness and pathways, developing a skilled and adaptable 
workforce, and ensuring ALL Alaskans can contribute their talents.  

• Why is staff recommending this project?

Workforce recruitment, engagement, training, and retention continue to be among the top needs expressed 
by beneficiary-serving partners to our Trust program staff in surveys or group stakeholder feedback forums. 
The current health workforce landscape is disjointed and uncoordinated due to the lack of an oversight body 
or leadership. Resurrecting the healthcare workforce coalition will provide the infrastructure needed to lead 
partners in enhancing the state’s workforce recruitment and retention efforts. The last iteration of the AK 
Healthcare Workforce Coalition was successful but lost traction during the early days of COVID-19. Prior to 
that, the coalition was led by the Department of Health, UAA, the Department of Labor and Workforce 
Development (DOLWD), and the Trust. By the pandemic's end, no one was willing to lead in restarting the 
coalition. The Trust Authority staff do not have the capacity to take on the function and role of staffing the 
coalition. That is where the AWA has stepped up and offered to be that entity. The AWA also aligns with the 
DOL’s AK Workforce Investment Board (AWIB).  

• Will this be a multi-year project?

 This proposal is for a single 12-month grant project.  If future funding were to be considered, an additional 
year of funding would require a new application from AWA and the Board of Trustees' approval.   

Trust Five Year Funding History 

No Trust Grants FY21 -FY25 

➢ Click Here to read the full memo with application details.

195

https://alaskamentalhealthtrust.org/wp-content/uploads/2025/08/updated-Alaska-Safety-Alliance-Approval-Memo-8.13.25.pdf


Grant Approval Memo  
    

Grantee: Alaska Brain Injury Consortium 

Request Amount: $88,000.00 

Project Title: Roads to Recovery: Scaling Community Capacity With the Alaska Brain Bus 

Grant Term: 11/1/2025 to 10/31/2026 

Fund Source: FY26 Partnerships/Designated Grants (Page 2, Line 13) 

Trust Staff: Kelda Barstad 
 
Requested Motion: 

The Board of Trustees approve a $88,000.00 Partnership grant to the Alaska Brain Injury Consortium for the 
Roads to Recovery: Scaling Community Capacity With the Alaska Brain Bus grant.  These funds will come from 
the Partnerships/Designated Grants line of the FY26 budget. 
 

 
Staff Analysis: 
 

• What does this project do? 
Trust funds will pay for the operation of the Alaska Brain Bus program. 
 
• Who is receiving the funds? 
The Alaska Brain Bus is a project of the Alaska Brain Injury Consortium.  “The Brain Bus” operates out of a 
refurbished mobile bus to serve areas on the road system outside of the Anchorage/MatSu city centers. The 
Alaska Brain Injury Consortium is a non-profit entity that operates the Brain Bus. The Consortium is an 
organization of like-minded Alaskans working toward a common goal of improving the lives of our 
community members and their families impacted by traumatic brain injury.   
 
• Why is staff recommending this project? 
Alaska leads the nation with 278 traumatic brain injuries (TBI) per 10,000 residents. An estimated 247 
Alaskans will be permanently disabled due to a brain injury each year. While the physical damage from a TBI 
can continue for many months after injury, recovery from the effects of that damage can take years or even 
decades.   For many people in Alaska, treatment of any sort is hard to come by, and having access to it for the 
time needed to recover fully is next to impossible. The Brain Bus provides community-informed and 
community-based care, creating care models which are as unique as each community the bus visits. 
(http://www.alaskabrainbus.com/ 
 
Trust beneficiaries interacting with the Brain Bus often discover the symptoms they have been struggling with 
for months or years are the result of a brain injury, and for the first time, know what the problem is and how 
to begin treatment. 
 
• Will this be a multi-year project? 
Three to five years of Trust grant funding is expected. The core services cannot be billed to insurance. Future 
financial support through Medicaid Administrative Claiming is possible; however, the State of Alaska does 
not have the infrastructure to add new contracts at this time. Each year of funding will require board of 
trustee approval. 

 
Trust Five Year Funding History 
 

Fiscal Year      Project Title         Amount      Status Final Expended 
FY24 Alaska Brain Bus Expansion $76,000 Pending 

final 
report 
(due 
7/31/25) 

TBD 

FY22 The Alaska Brain Bus $50,000 Closed $50,000 
 

 
 

➢ Click Here to read the full memo with application details.  

 
  

196

http://www.alaskabrainbus.com/
https://alaskamentalhealthtrust.org/wp-content/uploads/2025/07/18445-AK-Brain-Injury-Consortium-2025-07.pdf


To: Board of Trustees 
Date: August 28, 2025 
Re: Focus Area Allocations over $500,000  

Two grants over $500,000 will be considered at the August 2025 Board of Trustee meeting. The Program and 
Planning Committee reviewed these grants during their meeting on July 31, 2025, and recommended full board 
approval for both. 

Individual grant memos for each project with staff analysis, project descriptions, project budgets, grant 
performance measures, and the requested start and end dates are available via the committee packet. Attached 
is an executive summary of each proposed grant with a link to the full, detailed application memo.  

Proposed Motion Budget 
Fund 
Source 

Primary 
Area 
Served 

Project 
Title 

Organization Packet 
Page # 

1. The Board of Trustees 
approve a $900,000 Mental 
Health and Addiction 
Intervention focus area 
allocation to the Maniilaq 
Association for the Maniilaq 
Association EMPATH Unit 
grant.  These funds will come 
from the Crisis Continuum of 
Care line of the FY25 budget. 

Focus Area – 
Mental 
Health & 
Addiction 
Intervention 

Northwest 
Arctic 
Borough 
and Point 
Hope 

Maniilaq 
Association 
EMPATH 
Unit 

Maniilaq 
Association 

198 

2. The Board of Trustees 
approve a $750,000 FY25 
focus area allocation to 
Alaska Addiction 
Rehabilitation Services for the 
AARS Expansion Project.  
$500,000 will come from the 
Crisis Continuum of Care 
grant line of the FY25 budget, 
and $250,000 will come from 
the IPS Supported 
Employment Implementation 
line of the FY25 budget.  These 
funds will be contingent upon 
Alaska Addiction 
Rehabilitation Services 
securing the pending funding 
sources outlined in this memo. 

Focus Area – 
Mental 
Health & 
Addiction 
Intervention 

Mat-Su 
Borough 

AARS 
Expansion 
Project 

Alaska 
Addiction 
Rehabilitation 
Services 

200 

197



Grant Approval Memo 

Grantee: Maniilaq Association 

Request Amount: $900,000.00 

Project Title: Maniilaq Association EMPATH Unit 

Grant Term: August 28, 2025, to August 31, 2027 

Fund Source: FY25 Mental Health and Addiction Intervention Focus Area: Crisis Continuum of Care (Page 
5, Line 19) 

Trust Staff: Samantha Ponts  

Requested Motion: 

The Board of Trustees approve a $900,000 Mental Health and Addiction Intervention focus area allocation to 
the Maniilaq Association for the Maniilaq Association EMPATH Unit grant.  These funds will come from the 
Crisis Continuum of Care line of the FY25 budget. 

Staff Analysis: 
• What does this project do?

The Maniilaq Association EmPATH Unit project establishes an Emergency Psychiatric Assessment, 
Treatment and Healing unit at the Maniilaq Health Center in Kotzebue. This specialized unit will address the 
significant gap in behavioral health crisis care in Northwest Alaska by providing a dedicated, calming 
environment specifically designed for behavioral health crisis stabilization. Trust funds will specifically 
support: 1) comprehensive development of detailed policies, standardized procedures, and streamlined 
workflows; 2) enhancements to Electronic Health Record and billing systems; 3) creation of a robust training 
program for staff; 4) consulting costs for implementation of the EmPATH model. Additionally, Trust funds 
will offset initial costs for recruiting, onboarding, and training qualified staff needed to operationalize the 
unit.  

• Who is receiving the funds?

Maniilaq Association, a Tribal Health Organization serving the Northwest Arctic Borough of Alaska and The 
Native Village of Point Hope. The organization currently operates the Maniilaq Health Center (MHC) in 
Kotzebue and has a track record of receiving and managing federal and state grants to improve behavioral 
health crisis services in their region.  

• Why is staff recommending this project?

This project directly addresses a critical gap in the continuum of care for Trust beneficiaries experiencing 
behavioral health crises in Northwest Alaska. Currently, individuals experiencing behavioral health crises 
often receive insufficient treatment in emergency departments or are transported out of the region for 
stabilization. The EmPATH Unit will provide a more appropriate care setting within the community, reducing 
reliance on costly transportation, improving patient outcomes, and creating a model that could potentially be 
replicated in other remote rural Alaskan service areas. This project aligns with Trust priorities for the Crisis 
Continuum of Care and leverages additional funding from federal sources.  
Maniilaq leadership and staff have already invested significant time and resources into this project. This 
includes many strategic site visits to EmPATH units in New Jersey, Minnesota, and Tennessee between 
February and March 2023, each involving multidisciplinary teams from Maniilaq to observe operations and 
engage with clinical leaders. A site visit to an EmPATH unit in California included participation from the 
Maniilaq President/CEO, VP of Health Services, Medical Director, and Administrator of Social Services.    

• Will this be a multi-year project?

Yes, this is a multi-year project with a timeline from August 22, 2025, to August 31, 2027. This project 
represents Phase 2 of the project, building on the planning and design work initiated in FY23 for a crisis 
stabilization center. This project follows a phased implementation approach: 

• Design phase through 2025
• Prefabricated construction in Anchorage from late 2025 into early 2026
• Oct 2026 Maniilaq Executive Leadership team and BHS staff up 13 key members will travel to meet

with University of Kentucky’s EmPATH team to discuss ongoing training partnerships, idea sharing,
and clinical staff rotations.

198



Grant Approval Memo 

• Transportation and installation in Kotzebue in summer 2026
• Staff recruitment and training from fall 2026 through winter 2027
• Travel to the University of Kentucky for training and shadowing of clinical staff.
• Systems modifications (EHR and billing) from winter 2026 to spring 2027
• Training program implementation and completion between spring and summer 2027
• Operational launch targeted for late summer 2027

Trust Five Year Funding History 

Fiscal Year  Project Title Amount  Status Final Expended 
FY23 Behavioral Health Crisis Stabilization 

Center 
$200,000 Closed $171,077 

➢ Click Here to read the full memo with application details.

199

https://alaskamentalhealthtrust.org/wp-content/uploads/2025/07/18026-Maniilaq-Association-2025-07.pdf


Grant Approval Memo 

Grantee: Alaska Addiction Rehabilitation Services (AARS) 

Request Amount: $750,000.00 

Project Title: AARS Expansion Project 

Grant Term: August 28, 2025 to August 31, 2026 

Fund Source: $500,000: FY25 Mental Health & Addiction Intervention – Crisis Continuum of CarePage 5, 
Line 19) 
$250,000: FY25 Beneficiary Employment & Engagement – IPS Supported Employment 
Implementation (Page 10, Line 12) 

Trust Staff: Eric Boyer 

Requested Motion: 

The Board of Trustees approve a $750,000 FY25 focus area allocation to Alaska Addiction Rehabilitation 
Services for the AARS Expansion Project.  $500,000 will come from the Crisis Continuum of Care grant line of 
the FY25 budget, and $250,000 will come from the IPS Supported Employment Implementation line of the FY25 
budget.  These funds will be contingent upon Alaska Addiction Rehabilitation Services securing the pending 
funding sources outlined in this memo. 

Staff Analysis: 
• What does this project do?

AARS will use the Trust funds to support capital funding to expand their substance use disorder treatment 
beds from 26 to 52. AARS' assessment of the current system of care demonstrates a need to expand beds to 
meet this need. They can fiscally support the operational expansion by billing the Medicaid 1115 Waiver.  

Phase 1 of this project involved design and site preparation, which is complete. The expansion of 26 
residential beds for adults, Phase 2 of the project, is scheduled to be completed by the summer of 2026. 

• Who is receiving the funds?

Alaska Addiction Rehabilitation Services, Inc. (AARS) was established in 1982 (formerly Nugen’s Ranch), 
making it one of Alaska’s oldest adult residential substance abuse treatment programs. AARS has been 
serving adults with substance use disorder (SUD) and co-occurring disorders for over 40 years. 

ARRS combines twelve-step recovery, group and individual counseling, life skills training, and work therapy 
in a supportive environment. During their recovery at AARS, clients learn about farming and gain a sense of 
self-worth through work therapy and life skills training. Clients also learn occupational skills through AARS’ 
vocational education program. Before 2012, AARS was located on the Palmer-Wasilla Highway in Wasilla. 
AARS relocated its treatment program to Point Mackenzie in Wasilla, Alaska. 

• Why is staff recommending this project?

Trust program staff recommend this project as it meets a critical need within the Mental Health and 
Addiction Intervention Focus Area for access to care. By doubling the number of residential SUD beds at 
AARS, Trust beneficiaries can be assessed and moved into treatment more immediately.  

Capital funding for this project has been secured from the State of Alaska (FY25 Capital Budget)  and through 
Federal HRSA funds. In addition, Mat-Su Health Foundation, Rasmuson Foundation, and Murdock 
Charitable Trust grants are pending.  

• Will this be a multi-year project?

This is a one-time funding request for treatment bed expansion and is contingent upon the agency securing the 
remaining capital to complete the project. 

Trust Five Year Funding History 

No Trust grants FY21 – FY25 

➢ Click Here to read the full memo with application details.

200

https://alaskamentalhealthtrust.org/wp-content/uploads/2025/07/18063-AARS-2025-07.pdf


 
   

 

 

           

MEMO 

             
             
To: Board of Trustees  Date: August 28, 2025 
Re: Authority Grant Budget Amendment   
Grantee: NAMI Anchorage  
Project Title: NAMI Anchorage BPI Operating Grant (FY25)  

 

 

 
REQUESTED MOTION: 

The Board of Trustees approve a budget amendment for the FY25 NAMI Anchorage BPI Operation 
Grant with the NAMI Anchorage. 

 
Assigned Program Staff:  Samantha Ponts 

 
 
 

 
 STAFF ANALYSIS 

 
NAMI Anchorage is requesting a budget modification for their $154,100 grant that was originally 
approved by the Trust as an authority grant in the FY25 budget.  This allocation was made from the 
Beneficiary Employment and Engagement focus area.  After staff review, this amendment request does 
not modify the project scope or impact any of the grant performance measures. 
 
This amendment includes a reduction in personnel services and travel, and an increase to equipment, 
supplies, and  “other costs.” See detail below.  
 
AMENDMENT DETAILS 
 
Budget Modification Details: 

 
Budget 
Category 

Original Grant 
Agreement 
Amounts 

Updated Grant Budget 
Amounts 

Difference 

Personnel 
Services 

$110,450 $105,182 (5,268) 

Equipment $1,000 $1,231 231 
Supplies $2,000 $4,233 2,233 
Travel $6,000 $3,132 (2,868) 
Other $34,650 $40,322 5,672 
Total $154,100 $154,100 $0 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

  

201



 
   

 
Budget Amendment Narrative Description 

Personnel Services 105,182.00 

Personnel Services 
Description: 

 
The requested FY25 funding will support the following: Full Time 
Executive Director, Part Time Communications Director, Part Time 
Programs Administrator, Part Time Administrative Assistant and a Part 
Time Intern (each PT employee approx. 20 hours/week) along with a 
contracted Grant Writer 

Travel $3,132 

Travel Description: The requested travel funds will send NAMI Anchorage essential volunteers, 
facilitators, and staff to attend local and National trainings. These events include 
research related to mental health, skills training for facilitators, connections with 
others providing similar services, and opportunities for educational growth. 

Equipment $1,231 

Equipment Description: The requested equipment funds will be used to purchase equipment to improve 
our hybrid and in-person groups, along with upgrades for basic office 
equipment. 

Supplies $4,233 

Supplies Description: The requested supplies funds will continue to support our core service programs 
along with general office supplies and materials. This includes outreach activities, 
support groups, classes, meetings, events, and our library program. 

Other Costs $40,322 

  Other Costs Description The requested funds support our contract with a third-party accountant; 
education/training/conference fees for staff and board members; insurance 
premiums (e.g., liability, and officers and directors); facility fees such as rent and 
communications; printing and postage for our educational materials; advertising 
for our events/classes/workshops; volunteer recognition 

Grant Total for FY25 $154,100 

    

202



 
   

 

 

           

MEMO 

             
             
To: Board of Trustees  Date: August 28, 2025 
Re: Authority Grant Budget Amendment   
Grantee: Valley Charities, Inc.  Project Title: Alaska Prisoner Reentry Initiative: Reentry Coalition Capacity 

Development - Mat-Su (FY26)  
 

 

 
REQUESTED MOTION: 

The Board of Trustees approve a budget amendment for the FY26 Valley Charities Alaska Prisoner 
Reentry Initiative: Reentry Coalition Capacity Development - Mat-Su project. 

 
Assigned Program Staff:  Heather Phelps 

 
 
 

 
 STAFF ANALYSIS 

 
Valley Charities, Inc. is requesting a budget modification for their $120,000 grant that was originally 
approved by the Trust as an authority grant in the FY25 budget.  This allocation was made from the 
Disability Justice focus area.  After staff review, this amendment request does not modify the project 
scope or impact any of the grant performance measures. 
 
This amendment includes a reduction in the personnel services, and an increase to travel costs, and to 
“other costs.” See detail below.  

 
AMENDMENT DETAILS 
 
Budget Modification Details: 

 
Budget 
Category 

Original Grant 
Agreement 
Amounts 

Updated Grant Budget 
Amounts 

Difference 

Personnel 
Services 

$103,000 $98,000 (5,000) 

Supplies $200 $200 0 
Travel $2,000 $4,000 2,000 
Other $14,800 $17,800 3,000 
Total $120,000 $120,000 $0 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

  

203



 
   

 
Budget Amendment Narrative Description 

Personnel Services $98,000 

Personnel Services Description: Reduction of $5,000 from the Personnel Services line 

Supplies $200 

Supplies Description: No change requested 

Travel $4,000 

Travel Description: Increase requested to cover travel costs associated with National 
Association for 2026 Reentry Professional Conference 

Other Costs $17,800 

  Other Costs Description Increase requested to cover rental fees for FY26 Reentry Summit is 
September 2025. 

Grant Total for FY25 $120,000 

    

204



FY27 
Budget 

Approval

205



DRAFT 8/8/2025 Alaska Mental Health Trust Authority
FY27 Budget August 27-28, 2025

 (amounts in thousands)

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

A B C D E

Budget Category
Total FY27(MHT 

Admin/MHTAAR/AG) MHTAAR/MHT Admin Authority Grant Funds GF/MH Recommendations
Trust/TLO Operating Budgets (MHT) 12,050.1                                               12,050.1                                               -                                                           -                                                           
Non-Focus Area Allocations (NFA) 18,476.5                                               1,356.5                                                  17,120.0                                               950.0                                                      
Mental Health & Addiction Intervention Focus Area (MHAI) 2,197.0                                                  1,584.5                                                  612.5                                                      750.0                                                      
Disability Justice Focus Area (Justice) 2,196.9                                                  1,956.9                                                  240.0                                                      -                                                           
Beneficiary Employment & Engagement Focus Area (BEE) 400.0                                                      400.0                                                      -                                                           -                                                           
Housing and Home & Community Based Services Focus Area (H&HCBS) 3,534.0                                                  2,409.0                                                  1,125.0                                                  5,750.0                                                  
Workforce Development Priority Area (Workforce) 2,143.0                                                  1,818.0                                                  325.0                                                      -                                                           
Early Childhood & Youth Priority Area (Early Childhood) 1,381.1                                                  892.6                                                      488.5                                                      -                                                           
FY27 Subtotals 42,378.6                                                  22,467.6                                                  19,911.0                                                  7,450.0                                                    

$46,128.8 Avail Bal 2,750.2                                                               

Signature _______________________________________________________________
Date:

8/13/2025 1 FY27 Budget Summary 206



(amounts in thousands) Alaska Mental Health Trust Authority
FY27 MHTAAR Funding GF/MH Recommendations

DRAFT 8/8/2025

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26

27
28
29
30
31
32

33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42

A B F G H I
Project Title Dept/RDU/Component Operating (O) 

or Capital (C)
Focus/Priority Area MHT Admin/ MHTAAR GF/MH Recommendation 

Trust Authority MHT Agency Budget DOR O MHT                                    5,771.8                                                         -   
Trust Land Office Agency Budget DNR O MHT                                    5,382.5                                                         -   
TAB/Cordova Maintenance & Operations DNR O MHT                                        895.8 

                                12,050.1 
ABADA/AMHB Joint Staffing DOH/DBH/AMHB-ABADA O NFA                                        491.5                                                         -   
GCDSE Joint Staffing DOH/DSDS/GCDSE O NFA                                        225.0                                                         -   
ACoA Staffing & Support DOH/DSDS/ACoA O NFA                                        200.0                                                         -   
Scorecard Update DOH/DPH/HAVRS O NFA                                           70.0                                                         -   
DOH Comprehensive Program Planning DOH/DBH O NFA                                           75.0                                                         -   
Beneficiary Mental Health Status Data Collection DOH/DPH/CDPHP O NFA                                           45.0                                                         -   
Coordinated Community Transportation DOTPF/Program Development | Alaska Transit Office C NFA                                                 -                                                  700.0 
Deferred Maintenance DOH/SDS C NFA                                        250.0                                                250.0 

                                   1,356.5                                                950.0 
Behavioral & Physical Health Care Integration DOH/DBH O MHAI                                           75.0                                                         -   
Crisis Call Center DOH/DBH O MHAI                                        750.0                                                750.0 
Statewide Designation, Evaluation, Stabilization & Treatment Coordinator DFCS - Department Support Services O MHAI                                           87.0                                                         -   
Zero Suicide Initiative DOH/DBH O MHAI                                           62.5                                                         -   
Complex Care Program DFCS - Department Support Services O MHAI                                        400.0                                                         -   
Adult Protective Services DOH - SDS O MHAI                                           75.0                                                         -   
Center for Alcohol and Addiction Studies UAA-COH O MHAI                                        135.0 

                                   1,584.5                                                750.0 
Alaska Justice Information Center UAA/Anchorage Campus O Justice                                        293.0                                                         -   
Public Guardian Position DOA/OPA/Public Guardian O Justice                                        138.0                                                         -   
Public Guardian Position - OCS Transition DOA/OPA/Public Guardian O Justice                                           91.5                                                         -   
Crisis Intervention Team/Behavioral Health training and Programs for First Responders-AK State Troopers DPS - AK State Troopers O Justice                                           60.0                                                         -   
Crisis Intervention Team/Behavioral Health training and Programs for First Responders-AK Police Standards 
Council

DPS - AK Police Standards Council O Justice                                           80.0                                                         -   

Centralized Competency Calendar Project ACS/Therapeutic Courts O Justice                                        158.3                                                         -   
Holistic Defense DOA/PDA O Justice                                           63.2                                                         -   
Holistic Defense Social Worker DOA/PDA O Justice                                        119.2                                                         -   
Occupational Therapist in DJJ Youth Facilities DFCS/DJJ/Bethel & Fairbanks Youth Facility O Justice                                        100.0                                                         -   
Trauma Treatment for Incarcerated Women DOC/HARS O Justice                                        150.0                                                         -   
Addressing Comorbid Health and Addiction Issues Prominent Within Severe and Persistent Mentally Ill Populations DOC/HARS O Justice                                        151.7                                                         -   

APIC Discharge Planning Model in DOC DOC/HARS O Justice                                        200.0                                                         -   
DOC Discharge Incentive Grants DOR/AHFC O Justice                                        200.0                                                         -   
Criminal Justice Mental Health First Aid Train the Trainers UAA Training Center O Justice                                           50.0 
Behavioral Health Administrator Position ACS/Trial Courts Division O Justice                                        102.0 

                                   1,956.9                                                         -   
Beneficiary Employment Conference DOL/DVR O BEE                                        100.0                                                         -   
Beneficiary Employment Technical Assistance and Planning UAA/CHD O BEE                                           75.0                                                         -   
MicroEnterprise UAA/CHD O BEE                                        225.0                                                         -   

                                       400.0                                                         -   

Trust Authority & Trust Land Office Subtotal

Non Focus Area Subtotal

Mental Health & Addiction Intervention Subtotal

Disability Justice Subtotal

Beneficiary Employment & Engagement Subtotal

8/13/2025 2 MHTAAR and GF/MH207



(amounts in thousands) Alaska Mental Health Trust Authority
FY27 MHTAAR Funding GF/MH Recommendations

DRAFT 8/8/2025

1

A B F G H I
Project Title Dept/RDU/Component Operating (O) 

or Capital (C)
Focus/Priority Area MHT Admin/ MHTAAR GF/MH Recommendation 

43
44
45
46
47
48
49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72
73
74
75
76
77
78
79
80
81

Rural Housing Coordinator-Ketchikan DOR/AHFC C H&HCBS                                        135.0                                                         -   
Special Needs Housing Grant DOR/AHFC C H&HCBS                                        200.0                                            1,750.0 
Homeless Assistance Program DOR/AHFC C H&HCBS                                        950.0                                            2,850.0 
Brain Injury Council of Alaska Staff UAA/CHD O H&HCBS                                        105.0                                                         -   
Care Coordination Liaison DOH/SDS O H&HCBS                                           95.0                                                         -   
Dementia Education and Prevention DOH/DPH O H&HCBS                                        130.0                                                         -   
Home Modifications & Upgrades DOH/SDS C H&HCBS                                                 -                                              1,150.0 
Statewide Dementia Training Project UAA-CHD H&HCBS                                        150.0 
Environmental Modifications Improvement DOH/SDS O H&HCBS                                           94.0                                                         -   
"No Wrong Door" Coordinated Access to Services DOH/SDS O H&HCBS                                        300.0                                                         -   
Person Centered Transportation DOH/SDS C H&HCBS                                        250.0                                                         -   

                                   2,409.0                                            5,750.0 
The Alaska Training Cooperative UAA/CHD O Workforce                                        585.0                                                         -   
UAA School Psychology Program UAA/CAS O Workforce                                        200.0                                                         -   
Peer Support Certification DOH/DBH O Workforce                                           50.0                                                         -   
Individual Placement & Supports (IPS) Capacity Building DOH/DBH O Workforce                                           30.0                                                         -   
Alaska Workforce Profile DOLWD / Administrative Services Division O Workforce                                           25.0                                                         -   
Direct Support Professional Training/Professional Development DOH/SDS O Workforce                                        200.0                                                         -   
Autism Awareness and Response for Public Safety UAA/CHD O Workforce                                        150.0 
Alaska Area Health Education Centers UAA AHEC O Workforce                                        250.0                                                         -   
Supported Employment Workforce UAA/CHD O Workforce                                           75.0                                                         -   
Alaska Health Occupations Students of America UAA/AHEC O Workforce                                        100.0 
Psychological Services Center Expansion UAA/CAS O Workforce                                        103.0 
Clinical Psychology Program APA Accreditation UAA/CAS O Workforce                                           50.0 

                                   1,818.0                                                         -   
ILP Statewide Equity Project DOH/SDS/EIILP O Early Childhood                                        300.0                                                         -   
Pediatric Mental Health Care Access Program DOH/DPH/WCFH O Early Childhood                                           36.6                                                         -   
Trauma Engaged Schools PBIS Coaching DEED-Health & Safety O Early Childhood                                        150.0                                                         -   
Early Childhood Intervention: Pyramid Model DOH/DPH/WCFC O Early Childhood                                        151.0                                                         -   
Family Services Training Center - ICY Conference UAA/CHD/FSTC O Early Childhood                                           80.0                                                         -   
ACEs Data Linkage and Analysis DOH/DPH/WCFH O Early Childhood                                        175.0                                                         -   

                                       892.6                                                         -   

Signature _______________________________________________________________
Date:

Early Childhood & Youth Subtotal

Housing and Home & Community Based Services  Subtotal

Workforce Development Subtotal

8/13/2025 3 MHTAAR and GF/MH208



(amounts in thousands) Alaska Mental Health Trust Authority
FY27 Authority Grant Budget

DRAFT 8/8/2025

1
2
3
4
5
6
7

8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43
44
45
46
47
48

A B C D
Project Title Recipient Focus/Priority Area Authority Grant 

Partnerships/Designated Grants Unallocated Funding NFA                              2,000.0 
Trust Strategic Initiatives/Data Collection Unallocated Funding NFA                              5,000.0 
Development & Facilitation of Trust Strategic Initiatives Contract Services NFA                                  200.0 
Trust Focus Area Strategy Implementation Unallocated Funding NFA                              5,000.0 
Programmatic Administration DOR/AMHTA NFA                                  150.0 
Mini grants for ADRD Alzheimer's Resource of Alaska NFA                                  500.0 
Mini grants for beneficiaries experiencing mental illness, chronic alcoholism, substance use disorders and intellectual and developmental 
disabilities and traumatic brain injuries

To be allocated to recipient of Mini Grant administrative contract NFA                              2,000.0 

Trust Mini Grant Contract Administration Contract Services NFA                                  300.0 
Flex Funds for Mental Health Courts Partners for Progress NFA                                  230.0 
ANDVSA Victim Transition Supports Alaska Network for Violence & Sexual Assault NFA                                  200.0 
Grant-writing technical assistance Contract Services NFA                                  300.0 
Technical assistance for beneficiary groups & Trust initiatives Contract Services NFA                                  500.0 
Communications Contract Services NFA                                  450.0 
Conferences/Sponsorships Sponsorship Contracts NFA                                     30.0 
Rural & Community Outreach Contract Services NFA                                  100.0 
Trust Conference Contract Services NFA                                  160.0 

                          17,120.0 
Crisis Now Initiative Project Management Contract Contract Services MHAI                                  350.0 
Fairbanks Crisis Now Coordinator City of Fairbanks MHAI                                  138.0 
Ketchikan Crisis Now Coordinator Ketchikan Wellness Coalition MHAI                                  124.5 

                                 612.5 
Local re-entry coalition coordinator-Anchorage Neighborworks Justice                                     60.0 
Local re-entry coalition coordinator-Mat-Su Valley Charities Justice                                     60.0 
Local re-entry coalition coordinator-Juneau JAMHI Health & Wellness Justice                                     60.0 
Local re-entry coalition coordinator-Fairbanks City of Fairbanks Justice                                     60.0 

                                 240.0 
IDD System Capacity Development Alaska Association on Developmental Disabilities H&HCBS                                     25.0 
Affordable Housing Development Position Juneau Housing First Collaborative H&HCBS                                     50.0 
TABI Phasic Implementation Plan for Identification, Intervention, and Enhanced Community Infrastructure Southcentral Foundation H&HCBS                                  200.0 
Gulf Coast TABI Expansion Project Independent Living Center H&HCBS                                  125.0 
Home & Community Based Services Reform Contract Contract Services H&HCBS                                  150.0 
ADRD Rural Outreach & Prevention Alzheimer's Resource of Alaska H&HCBS                                  175.0 
Self Directed Home & Community Based Services Independent Living Center H&HCBS                                  400.0 

                             1,125.0 
Alaska Psychology Internship Consortium Western Interstate Commission for Higher Education - Contract Workforce                                  125.0 
Clincial Supervision Support Alaska Behavioral Health Association Workforce                                  200.0 

                                 325.0 
Help Me Grow Alaska: Community Outreach, Care Coordination & Dev Screening All Alaska Pediatric Partnership Early Childhood                                  150.0 
Reimagining Child Welfare Project Alaska Impact Alliance Early Childhood                                  250.0 
Early Childhood Center-Based Mental Health Consultation Rural Alaska Community Action Program Early Childhood                                     88.5 

                                 488.5 

Signature _______________________________________________________________
Date:

Early Childhood & Youth Subtotal

Non Focus Area Subtotal

Mental Health & Addiction Intervention Subtotal

Disability Justice Subtotal

Housing and Home & Community Based Services  Subtotal

Workforce Development Subtotal

8/13/2025 4 Authority Grants209



FY27 Proposed Budget Detail Report 

This document provides additional information related to staff recommendations for the Trust’s FY27 
budget.  

This narrative report serves as a supplemental tool to support the Trustee’s consideration and approval of 
the FY27 budget. Content is organized by budget section and placed in the same order as the content in 
the draft budget spreadsheet. Note that this year the budget is broken out into two sections: Mental Health 
Trust Authority Authorized Receipts (MHTAAR) grant-funded projects with state agencies, and Authority 
Grant (AG) funded projects. Within those sections, increments are organized by Trust focus and priority 
areas.  

MHTAAR Spending 

• Non-focus Area Allocations
• Mental Health & Addiction Intervention
• Disability Justice
• Beneficiary Employment and Engagement
• Housing and Home & Community Based Services
• Workforce Development
• Early Childhood and Youth

Authority Grant Spending: 
• Non-focus Area Allocations
• Mental Health & Addiction Intervention
• Disability Justice
• Housing and Home & Community Based Services
• Workforce Development
• Early Childhood and Youth

For each line in the budget, you will find in this document details including grant type, relevance to the 
Comp Plan, a brief project/initiative description, and an analysis that includes project data if available. 
Also included is a funding history, up to five years, for grant-supported projects. 

Budget lines that represent new items in the budget are noted in orange. 

During the July 2025 Program and Planning Committee meeting, Trust program officers and staff will 
present each section of the proposed budget, after which trustees will have the opportunity to ask 
questions and discuss the budget with staff. Any amendments to the proposed budget, as well as a formal 
motion to adopt the final budget will take place at the August 2025 full board meeting. 

210



FY27 Budget Line Detail: Non-Focus Area Allocations 
MHTAAR and GF/MH Recommendations 

Budget Line: Page 2, Line 6 Project Name: ABADA/AMHB Joint Staffing Grantee Name: DOH/DBH/AMHB-ABADA 

Proposed FY27 Amount: $491.5 
MHTAAR 

Project Category: Capacity Building 

Comp Plan Relevance: Goal 4 Substance Use Disorder Prevention, Objective 4.1, Increase awareness, improve knowledge, and change behavior to prevent drug 
and alcohol misuse.  
Description: The primary function of the ABADA/AMHB involves planning and coordinating behavioral health services funded by the State of Alaska. The Boards 
also advocate for programs and services that promote improved lives. The joint Boards support the Trust in planning, developing, and evaluating the Trust’s 
focus/priority area work. In collaboration with the Department of Health and the Trust, the Boards partner together to support the work of the Comprehensive 
Mental Health Plan.  
Analysis: In FY 24, the Board’s staff helped provide information and data to the Trust evaluation team for the yearly Comp Plan Scorecard update. The advocacy 
coordinator managed the advocacy weekly meetings, outreach, action alerts, and updates from Hill that were prudent regarding the bills and legislation that 
concerned beneficiary welfare. The advocacy coordinator held four publicly noticed Super Advocacy trainings. The Boards held quarterly meetings around the 
state, which helps local community members gain knowledge and understanding of how services are delivered in that region and what gaps in services exist. 
Board staff routinely serve on proposal evaluation committees with the DOH, various advisory boards, planning committees for evaluation projects like the 
Mental Health in Schools Report, and monthly meetings like the Alaska Behavioral Health Association.  

The Boards hold publicly noticed comment periods, providing valuable feedback on how behavioral health services are accessed. Over the last two years, the 
Boards averaged around 850 advocates who were engaged at the community level. The Boards are a valued partner of the Trust and provide feedback on the 
Comp Plan, Trust budget, and advocacy issues impacting beneficiaries.  

Five Year Project Funding History - AMHB-ABADA Joint Staffing 
Fiscal Year Trust Grant Amount Final Expended Amount 
FY26 $491,500 Grant started 7/1/2025 
FY25 $491,500 Pending final report due 10/1/2025 
FY24 $491,500 $315,601 
FY23 $491,500 $348,727 
FY23 $491,500 $491,500 

211



FY27 Budget Line Detail: Non-Focus Area Allocations 
MHTAAR and GF/MH Recommendations 

Budget Line: Page 2, Line 7 Project Name: GCDSE Joint Staffing Grantee Name: DOH/DSDS/GCDSE 

Proposed FY27 Amount: $225.0 
MHTAAR 

Project Category: Capacity Building 

Comp Plan Relevance: Goal 9: Workforce, Data and Funding, Objective 5: Encourage a culture of data-driven decision-making that includes data sharing, data 
analysis, and management to link support services across Alaska Department of Health and Social Services (DHSS) divisions and other departments. 
Description: The Governor’s Council on Disabilities and Special Education (GCDSE) fills five distinct state and federal roles, including that of statutory advisor 
for the Trust. GCDSE Joint Staffing funds support the Council's basic operations related to data, planning, and advocacy. This funding supports two positions at 
GCDSE: 1) a Research Analyst III, and 2) a Planner III position.  
Analysis: This funding supports advocacy and services for Trust beneficiaries of all ages with disabilities by improving their lives in relation to early 
intervention, self-advocacy and determination, employment, housing, health, transportation, special education, community inclusion, and relevant legislation. 
The GCDSE is a statutory partner for planning services for Trust beneficiaries and provides expertise and support related to the Comp Plan for issues related to 
early intervention, special education, and services for beneficiaries who experience developmental disabilities. The FY24 mid-year report (3/15/2024) noted 
that the GCDSE continues to collect and analyze data points related to all their projects. This includes their annual stakeholder survey and other surveys at 
GCDSE events. This data represents their stakeholder’s voice, our Trust beneficiaries. In terms of advocacy, they provided 2 support letters on national issues 
and adopted 6 position papers for legislative advocacy in Alaska. The GCDSE Research Analyst was also active on various collaborative partnerships with 
agencies and on the working groups for the update of the Comp Plan. Because of the relevance of their work and input related to our Trust beneficiaries, 
funding GCDSE has been maintained over time and is included in the FY26 & FY27 budgets. The GCDSE also receives state and federal funding to carry out their 
duties. The increase in their budget of $40,500 will support their statutory duties to the Trust.  

Five Year Project Funding History - GCDSE Joint Staffing 
Fiscal Year Trust Grant Amount Final Expended Amount 
FY26 $225,000 Grant started 7/1/2025 
FY25 $184,500 Pending final report due 10/1/2025 
FY24 $184,500 $184,219.01 
FY23 $184,500 $149,465.25 
FY22 $184,500 $168,376.93 

212



FY27 Budget Line Detail: Non-Focus Area Allocations 
MHTAAR and GF/MH Recommendations 

Budget Line: Page 2, Line 8 Project Name: ACoA Staffing and Support Grantee Name: DOH/DSDS/ACoA 

Proposed FY27 Amount: $200.0 
MHTAAR 

Project Category: Capacity Building 

Comp Plan Relevance: Area of Focus  10, Data; Objective 2: Encourage a culture of data-driven decision-making that includes data sharing, data analysis, and 
management to link support services across Alaska DOH and DFCS divisions and other departments.  
Description: Trust funding supports the Alaska Commission on Aging (ACOA) to facilitate the Commission’s work to implement legislation and programs that 
affect older adult beneficiaries and advocate for positive outcomes for seniors. At least one position that conducts planning and data collection activities is 
expected to be hired from this funding.  
Analysis: With partnership funding, ACOA will provide the Trust with data on Alaska's beneficiary population, including the number of beneficiaries, their 
characteristics, and trends in their quality of life, based on the most credible and consistent data available. Alaska-specific data is preferred when available. 
The Commission will implement strategies to improve the status of beneficiaries in the key advocacy issues identified by the Commissioners. ACOA will conduct 
an annual survey of stakeholders to assess satisfaction and make recommendations for change. The Commission will collaborate with the Trust and other key 
partners in key planning activities related to beneficiaries and Trust focus areas, including but not limited to staff participation in focus area meetings and 
activities, Trust-sponsored initiatives, research and planning activities, and public planning processes with beneficiaries. Data and a report on planning 
activities will be provided to trustees annually.  
 
    

Five Year Project Funding History - ACoA Staffing and Beneficiary Program Support 
Fiscal Year Trust Grant Amount Final Expended Amount 
FY26 $200,000 Grant started 7/1/2025 
FY25 $200,000 Pending final report due 10/1/2025 
FY24 $200,000 $191,527 
FY23 $200,000 $51,580 
FY22 $140,000 $140,000 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

213



FY27 Budget Line Detail: Non-Focus Area Allocations 
MHTAAR and GF/MH Recommendations 

Budget Line: Page 2, Line 9 Project Name: Scorecard Update Grantee Name: DOH/DPH/HAVRS 

Proposed FY27 Amount: $70.0 
MHTAAR 

Project Category: Data/Planning 

Comp Plan Relevance: Area of Focus 10, Objective 2, Data-driven decision-making 

Description: This project is funded to support staffing and ensure data quality, improving the method for tracking progress on Alaska's mental health program. 
The project ensures that accurate data is used to measure the effectiveness of the mental health program plan. This, in turn, allows for better program 
development and resource allocation, ultimately aiming to improve the health outcomes of Trust Beneficiaries. 

Analysis: These efforts should ultimately lead to a more data-driven and impactful program for the Trust's target population. The project outlines steps to 
improve the measurement of Alaska's mental health program plan. By ensuring accurate data collection and potentially revising the evaluation method 
(Scorecard), the project can lead to a better understanding of program effectiveness in reaching the target population, more informed resource allocation to 
areas with the greatest need, and improved program design and service delivery based on data-driven insights. This project also aligns with the Trust's focus on 
improving mental health services in Alaska by strengthening the data collection and evaluation methods used to track program progress. 

This project outlines key activities measured through performance metrics. These activities contribute to a more effective mental health program: 
• Leading data analysis for the Comp Plan data subcommittee and department dashboards ensures data used for evaluation aligns with program goals

(Strengthening the System 2025-2029) and is effectively visualized for stakeholders.
• Updating the evaluation tool (Such as a Scorecard or alternative) and documenting changes enhances data accuracy and transparency, enabling more

effective program assessment.
• Updating prevalence estimates ensures data reflect the target population's evolving needs.

Five Year Project Funding History - Scorecard Update 
Fiscal Year Trust Grant Amount Final Expended Amount 
FY26 $70,000 Grant started 7/1/2025 
FY25 $40,000 Pending final report due 10/1/2025 
FY24 $40,000 $40,000 
FY23 $40,000 $38,000 
FY22 $40,000 $40,000 

214



FY27 Budget Line Detail: Non-Focus Area Allocations 
MHTAAR and GF/MH Recommendations 

Budget Line: Page 2, Line 10 Project Name: DOH Comprehensive Program Planning 
Coordinator 

Grantee Name: Department of Health, Division of Public 
Health 

Proposed FY27 Amount: $75.0 
MHTAAR 

Project Category: Data/Planning 

Comp Plan Relevance: Area of Focus 9, Workforce, Objective 9.3: Funding is available to support the Comprehensive Integrated Mental Health Program  

Description: This project is funded for staffing (.5FTE within the Department of Health). The project connects the Department of Health (DOH) and Department 
of Family and Community Services (DFCS) to beneficiaries by establishing a dedicated role to manage a comprehensive mental health program plan. This plan 
aims to enhance mental health services over the next five years by improving implementation, evaluation, and data-driven decision-making. 
Analysis:  The project benefits the Trust's target population by establishing a dedicated position within the Department of Health to manage the 
implementation of a comprehensive mental health program plan. This plan, implemented over the next five years, aims to enhance access to and improve the 
quality of mental health services for Alaskans. While the project description doesn't quantify the impact, it outlines activities such as facilitating data-driven 
program development and monitoring, which should lead to improved services for those in need. 
 
The project’s performance measures and activities will lead to positive outcomes for beneficiaries. Developing an implementation framework and facilitating 
meetings ensures clear communication and collaboration among stakeholders responsible for delivering mental health services. This improved coordination is 
expected to lead to more efficient program implementation, ultimately benefiting beneficiaries through enhanced access to services. Additionally, the focus on 
improving monitoring and evaluation tools will enable better data collection on program effectiveness, which can be used to identify areas for improvement 
and ultimately lead to improved services for beneficiaries. 
 

Five Year Project Funding History – DOH Comprehensive Program Planning 
Fiscal Year Trust Grant Amount Final Expended Amount 
FY26 $75,000 Grant started 7/1/2025 
FY25 $75,000 Pending final report due 10/1/2025 
FY24 $75,000 $62,706.22 
FY23 $75,000 $38,456.78 
FY22 $75,000 $3,381.98 

 
 

 

 

 

 

215



FY27 Budget Line Detail: Non-Focus Area Allocations 
MHTAAR and GF/MH Recommendations 

Budget Line: Page 2, Line 11 Project Name: Beneficiary Mental Health Status Data 
Collection 

Grantee Name: DOH/DPH/CDPHP 

Proposed FY27 Amount: $45.0, 
MHTAAR 

Project Category: Data/Planning 

Comp Plan Relevance: Area of Focus 10 Data; Objective 10.2 Data-Driven decision-making 

Description: The goal of this project is to ensure there is Alaska-specific data available addressing the mental health status of Trust beneficiaries. These funds 
are used by the Department of Health – Division of Public Health to support the administration, outreach, collection, and analysis of data collected through the 
Center for Disease Control’s (CDC) Behavioral Risk Factors Surveillance System (BRFSS), the Youth Behavioral Risk Behavior Surveillance Systems (YRBS), and 
School Health Profiles.  
Analysis: Data collected and analyzed through these surveillance systems utilized by the Division of Public Health are used in a variety of manners including 
through monitoring progress on the DOH Comp Plan via the Alaska Scorecard, Healthy Alaskans initiative, and others. This data is used by community 
organizations in monitoring their services and applying for grant funding from local, state, and federal sources. The 2024 BRFSS annual survey exceeded the 
sample size target of 5,000 and the data is currently being prepared by the CDC for return to the State, and the 2025 survey is in progress. The State released 
the representative sample results from the 2024 YRBS data from the CDC. To ensure the availability of a representative sample of Alaskan-specific beneficiary 
data, it is anticipated that the Trust will continue funding this item. 
 

Five Year Project Funding History - Beneficiary Mental Health Status Data Collection 
Fiscal Year Trust Grant Amount Final Expended Amount 
FY26 $45,000 Grant started 7/1/2025 
FY25 $45,000 Pending final report due 10/1/2025 
FY24 $85,000 $85,000 
FY23 $45,000 $45,000 
FY22 $45,000 $45,000 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

216



FY27 Budget Line Detail: Non-Focus Area Allocations 
MHTAAR and GF/MH Recommendations 

Budget Line: Page 2, Line12 Project Name: Coordinated Community Transportation Grantee Name: DOTPF/Program Development | Alaska 
Transit Office 

Proposed FY27 Amount: $700.0 
GF/MH recommendation 

Project Category: Capital-Equipment 

Comp Plan Relevance: Area of Focus 3 Economic & Social Well-Being: Objective 4: Enhance timely access to basic needs services. 

Description: The Alaska Department of Transportation and Public Facilities (AKDOT&PF) Community Transit Office awards Trust funds, paired with other 
funding sources, through a competitive application process to non-profit, local government and Tribal entities throughout Alaska for operating assistance, 
purchase of services, and capital project that enable and enhance the mobility of Trust beneficiaries. 
Analysis: The Alaska Department of Transportation & Public Facilities (DOT&PF) Community Transit Office (ACT) awards funds through a competitive application 
process to non-profit agencies and tribes throughout Alaska for operating assistance, purchase of services and capital projects that enhance/enable the 
mobility of Trust Beneficiaries. This proposal is for funds to plan for and coordinate mobility and human services transportation systems in local communities by 
pooling available resources, i.e. for coordinated transportation. Other options may include developing taxi voucher programs, taxi accessibility projects, 
convertible ambulances, boats, and snowmobile carts. Uncoordinated mobility services and transportation systems are not cost-effective and create additional 
barriers for Trust beneficiaries (e.g. accessibility and eligibility restrictions or limited hours of services). This proposal allows for these funds to be used to 
purchase or replace accessible vehicles owned by consumer-run and other provider nonprofit corporations for non-coordinated uses where coordination is not 
feasible. Operating assistance, taxi voucher and vehicles are used to transport Trust Beneficiaries to things such as services, community activities or work; 
vehicles are also be used to transport staff to consumer homes, and other beneficiary-related transportation.  

There are approximately thirteen Alaskan communities that have public transportation, and though it provides great benefits to all residents, it can still be 
limited. Including public transportation communities, there are approximately twenty-five Alaskan communities with Coordinated Transportation Plans. 
Although providers work to develop and maintain coordinated transportation systems, these systems do not always meet the needs of Trust Beneficiaries. These 
projects improve/increase the mobility options and services for Trust Beneficiaries. 

While MHTAAR funding has been phased out, continued advocacy is needed for GF/MH funding to bring in federal resources and continue added flexibility into 
the program to respond to the unique needs of small Alaskan communities. Beneficiaries consistently list transportation as a top service need.  

Five Year Project Funding History - Coordinated Community Transportation 
Fiscal Year Trust Grant Amount Final Expended Amount 
Grant transitioned to only GF/MH funding in FY26 
FY25 $300,000 Capital Funds – Term ends FY29 
FY24 $300,000 Capital Funds – Term ends FY28 
FY23 $300,000 Capital Funds – Term ends FY27 
FY22 $300,000 Capital Funds – Term ends FY26 

217



FY27 Budget Line Detail: Non-Focus Area Allocations 
MHTAAR and GF/MH Recommendations 

Budget Line: Page 2, Line 13 Project Name: Deferred Maintenance Grantee Name: DOH/SDS 

Proposed FY27 Amount: $250.0 
MHTAAR, $250.0 GF/MH 
recommendation 

Project Category: Capital 

Comp Plan Relevance: Area of Focus 9 Workforce Objective 3: Ensure funding is available to support the strategies identified in Alaska’s Comprehensive 
Integrated Mental Health Program. a. Strategy: Advocate to ensure the Mental Health Budget Bill includes the appropriations necessary to fund the operating 
and capital expenditures for the continuum of services. 
Description: The Trust supports this biannual capital funding to the Department of Health to issue grants that enable organizations serving trust beneficiaries 
opportunities to address deferred maintenance needs through competitive grants administered by the Department of Health. This grant improves the capacity 
of beneficiary-serving organizations.  
Analysis: Agencies providing services to Mental Health Trust beneficiaries have a great need for deferred maintenance, renovation, and Americans with 
Disabilities Act (ADA) compliant improvement projects to existing structures. Providing funds for repairing and maintaining facilities is a good investment in the 
health and well-being of Trust beneficiaries. Projects include ramps and accessible bathrooms to ensure an agency's physical space is accessible, as well as 
projects that improve the physical environment, such as a new roof, insulation, or heating system. These projects make lasting improvements to the facilities 
used by Trust beneficiaries. All funds are awarded through a statewide competitive process. 
 
Twenty-six grant awards were issued to agencies across the state during the last solicitation in FY23. Deferred Maintenance is a Non-Focus Area Allocation, as it 
supports agencies implementing programs across multiple focus areas.  
 
There are typically no other funding sources to assist programs with deferred maintenance. Organizations that have received awards view this grant source as a 
critical resource and needed option to support organizational capacity and efficient business practices. This project has demonstrated positive outcomes and 
received more applications than there is funding available.  
 

Five Year Project Funding History - Deferred Maintenance 
Fiscal Year Trust Grant Amount Final Expended Amount 
FY26 No FY26 Trust Grant 
FY25 No FY25 Trust Grant 
FY24 $250,000 Capital Funds – Term ends FY28 
FY23 $250,000 Capital Funds – Term ends FY27 
FY22 $250,000 Capital Funds – Term ends FY26 

 

 

 

218



FY27 Budget Line Detail: Mental Health & Addiction Intervention Focus Area 
MHTAAR and GF/MH Recommendations 

  

Budget Line: Page 2, Line 15 Project Name: Behavioral & Physical Health Care Integration Grantee Name: DOH/DBH 

Proposed FY27 Amount: $75.0, 
MHTAAR 

Project Category: Capacity Building 

Comp Plan Relevance: Area of Focus 2, Healthcare; Objective 2.1: Alaskans have access to and receive quality integrated healthcare services. 

Description: The grant will support the operations and staffing support for the Department of Health, Division of Behavioral Health for the Behavioral Health 
(BH) and Physical Health (PH) Care Integration position. The main roles include serving as the subject matter expert on the integration of primary and 
behavioral health care for the State of Alaska. This position collaborates with the Single State Authority (SSA)/Medicaid entity and agencies on the state and 
federal level to identify barriers, challenges, and opportunities for billing behavioral health services within primary care settings; and contribute toward the 
efforts to integrate primary care with behavioral health across the continuum of care in Alaska and work with stakeholders to identify training needs for the 
workforce for integrating primary care and behavioral. The position collaborates with statewide partners and other stakeholders on data analysis to identify 
needs and develop strategies for implementation and evaluation, addressing system of care needs related to the integration of primary care and behavioral 
health. 
 
Analysis: Trust funding will provide the Department of Health, Division of Behavioral Health, with the necessary resources to secure the existing positions of 
Behavioral Health (BH) and Physical Health (PH) Care Integration. The role is critical in increasing access to care for Trust beneficiaries and providing system-
wide changes and advocacy for state and federal improvements to the healthcare and behavioral healthcare systems of care. The BH and PH Care Integration 
work would foster collaboration between systems of care with diverse providers, identify gaps and challenges in the care continuum, and provide workforce 
development and training to increase cross-disciplinary competencies for services to Trust beneficiaries. DOH/DBH has pursued broader federal funding sources 
to support this work. Trust funding in FY26 and FY27 is intended to serve as a bridge to more sustainable funding in FY28. 
 

Five Year Project Funding History – Behavioral & Physical Health Care Integration 
Fiscal Year Trust Grant Amount Final Expended Amount 
FY26 $75,000 Grant started 7/1/2025 – FY26 is the first year of 

Trust funding. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

219



FY27 Budget Line Detail: Mental Health & Addiction Intervention Focus Area 
MHTAAR and GF/MH Recommendations

Budget Line: Page 2, Line 16 Project Name: Crisis Call Center Grantee Name: DOH/DBH 

Proposed FY27 Amount: $750.0 
MHTAAR, $750.0 GF/MH 
recommendation 

Project Category: Direct Service 

Comp Plan Relevance: Area of Focus 5, Suicide Prevention; Objective 5.1: Coordinate prevention efforts to ensure Alaskans have access to a comprehensive 
suicide prevention system; Objective 5.2: Support and improve the system to assist individuals in crisis. 
Description: The increment allocated through the Department of Health (DOH), Division of Behavioral Health (DBH) will support agencies exploring and/or 
initial implementation of crisis call centers to provide direct intervention and a warm, talk line and services and/or increasing referrals to treatment and 
recovery supports for Trust beneficiaries experiencing severe mental illness, substance use disorders, and/or at-risk youth. Funding can be used for staffing 
support while onboarding new programs, operations support, expanding services, workforce development, early intervention programs, and more.  

Analysis: Crisis Contact Center funding will increase the accessibility of funding through the Department of Health, Division of Behavioral Health, to support 
Alaska’s statewide crisis contact center. The crisis contact center receives in-state crisis calls, text messages, and online chats. Beginning July 16, 2022, it also 
began receiving 9-8-8 calls from Alaskans. The crisis contact center provides support to Alaskans who need “someone to talk to,” are in emotional distress or a 
suicidal crisis, in need of crisis intervention, and connects people to additional services when needed. The crisis contact center is available free of charge to all 
Alaskans and operates 24 hours a day, 7 days a week, 365 days a year. The contact center has focused its efforts on engaging youth, resulting in a 42% increase 
in utilization among 10–24-year-olds from March 2024 to March 2025. In FY24, staff responded to over 32,000 contacts, averaging approximately 89 contacts per 
day. A crisis contact center is one of three major components needed to develop a coordinated crisis continuum of care. They provide immediate support, 
triage calls, and connect people with additional services and support when needed. The cost of delivering contact center services has increased due to rising 
call volumes, additional programming, the implementation of 9-8-8, text messaging, and online chat functions, which require additional staff, training, 
supplies, and equipment. American Rescue Plan Act funds have supported the increases in costs and services, and they are set to expire in September 2025. 
Federal grants and GF/MH support the remaining costs. Alternative legislation is being considered for long-term sustainability. The project has transitioned to 
GF/MH recommendation and requires advocacy to ensure the long-term sustainability of statewide implementation. The Trust will work with DOH/DBH to 
identify alternative sustainable funding sources.  

Five Year Project Funding History – Crisis Call Center 
Fiscal Year Trust Grant Amount Final Expended Amount 
FY26 $750,000 Grant started 7/1/2025 – FY26 is the first year of Trust funding. 

220



FY27 Budget Line Detail: Mental Health & Addiction Intervention Focus Area 
MHTAAR and GF/MH Recommendations

Budget Line: Page 2, Line 17 Project Name: Statewide Designation, Evaluation, 
Stabilization & Treatment Coordinator 

Grantee Name: DFCS/Department Support Services 

Proposed FY27 Amount: $87.0 
MHTAAR 

Project Category: Capacity Building 

Comp Plan Relevance: Area of Focus 5, Suicide Prevention; Objective 5.1: Coordinate prevention efforts to ensure Alaskans have access to a comprehensive 
suicide prevention system; Objective 5.2: Support and improve the system to assist individuals in crisis. 
Description: The grant supports the operations of the Statewide Designation, Evaluation, Stabilization, and Treatment (DES/DET) Coordinator, which is housed 
in the Commissioner’s office. The DES/DET Coordinator position streamlines the coordination and review process of all Title 47 ex parte orders for individual 
proceedings through the civil mental health and involuntary commitment process, currently performed by the Department of Law paralegals in each judicial 
district across the state. The DES/DET Coordinator serves as a single point of contact for the department and its statewide partners. Through this Statewide 
DES/DET Coordinator, the department intends to improve patient care and reduce administrative burdens on emergency departments, DOC, and DET facilities, 
including API, as well as the Department of Law. Through this coordinated, patient-centered approach, Trust beneficiaries will be better served. 

Analysis: The Department of Family and Community Services (DFCS), Commissioner’s Office (CO), Statewide Designation, Evaluation, Stabilization and 
Treatment (DES-DET) Coordinator provides support to DFCS to improve patient care and reduce administrative burdens of healthcare providers, the Department 
of Corrections (DOC), and DES-DET facilities. The coordinator continues to focus on gathering more detailed information about the causes of any delays in the 
evaluation and transfer of individuals on Title 47 (T47) holds, as well as evaluating how the Coordinator can collaborate with hospitals, transportation services, 
and local providers to utilize that information and develop processes that improve coordination.  

In FY23, DFCS was able to recruit additional staff to support the efforts of the DES-DET Coordinator, including a “backup” Health Program Manager and a 
Complex Care Coordinator. In FY 24, the DES-DET Coordinator tracked an estimated 1,548 individuals between systems of care, including API, DET facilities, 
and other providers, to coordinate and facilitate access to care. Throughout FY24, the coordinator collaborated with ImageSource to develop an online, secure 
tracking system for T47 respondents, moving the process away from Excel spreadsheets and onto a secure, automated data system that will enable better data 
tracking, analysis, and save time and effort. The new system was operational in FY25. The coordinator has also actively engaged additional regions to establish 
new Designated Evaluation Stabilization programs, with a specific focus on the Northern Region. Facility visits and training for hospitals occurred in Ketchikan, 
Sitka, Juneau, Bethel, Kotzebue, Anchorage, and Mat-Su. Training has been prioritized for correctional officers and law enforcement in Ketchikan, Bethel, 
Palmer, Eagle River, and Anchorage. The DES-DET Coordinator project is in its seventh year of Trust investment, and broader system changes may be realized 
with continued support. 

Five Year Project Funding History - Statewide Designation, Evaluation, Stabilization & Treatment Coordinator 
Fiscal Year Trust Grant Amount Final Expended Amount 
FY26 $87,000 Grant started 7/1/2025 
FY25 $87,000 Pending final report due 10/1/2025 
FY24 $87,000 $87,000 
FY23 $75,000 $69,667 
FY22 $78,800 $38,644 

221



FY27 Budget Line Detail: Mental Health & Addiction Intervention Focus Area 
MHTAAR and GF/MH Recommendations 

  

 
 

Budget Line: Page 2, Line 18 Project Name: Zero Suicide Initiative Grantee Name:  DOH/DBH 

Proposed FY27 Amount: $62.5 
MHTAAR 

Project Category: Capacity Building  

Comp Plan Relevance: Area of Focus 5, Suicide Prevention; Objective 1: Coordinate prevention efforts to ensure Alaskans have access to a comprehensive 
suicide prevention system; Objective 2: Support and improve the system to assist individuals in crisis. 
Description: The grant supports the operations of the Zero Suicide Program Coordinator (ZSPC), reports to implement the Zero Suicide Framework statewide, 
and is instrumental in coordinating partnerships and collaborations to ensure implementation of the Zero Suicide Framework and best practices statewide. The 
ZSPC is responsible for community development, readiness, support, and technical assistance to existing programs and/or grantees, as well as working with 
communities seeking to improve their suicide continuum of care. 
 
Analysis: The Zero Suicide Initiative project provides financial support to the Department of Health, Division of Behavioral Health, to host a Zero Suicide 
Prevention Coordinator (ZSPC). The ZSPC partners with the Trust and stakeholders to apply the Zero Suicide best practices framework to statewide healthcare 
systems. In 2022, Alaska's suicide death rate was 27.6 per 100,000, ranking it as the second highest in the nation and nearly double the national rate of 14.1 per 
100,000. The highest rates are found among Alaska Native and American Indian populations, as well as individuals ages 10-24. Addressing suicide deaths and 
attempts is complex and requires multifaceted strategies, particularly in a geographically and culturally diverse state like Alaska. The Zero Suicide framework 
helps providers standardize their assessment and treatment of individuals at risk of suicide. The Alaska Department of Health, Division of Behavioral Health, has 
partnered with the Trust to co-fund the position of Zero Suicide Program Coordinator. This position is vital as it aligns with best practices that support the Crisis 
Now model of stabilization at the community level. The Department of Behavioral Health funded the Zero Suicide Program Coordinator, who was hired and 
began work on February 1, 2024. The Coordinator has facilitated webinars, workshops, and community outreach, and has established a nine-month Community 
of Practice for stakeholders implementing the framework. The Zero Suicide Initiative project is now in its fourth year of Trust investment, and broader system 
changes are anticipated with continued support. The most recent Request for Proposals (RFP) closed in FY25, and one pilot site will implement the Zero Suicide 
framework in FY26. This project's final year of funding is FY27. 
 

Five Year Project Funding History - Zero Suicide Initiative 
Fiscal Year Trust Grant Amount Final Expended Amount 
FY26 $62,500 Grant started 7/1/2025 
FY25 $62,500 Pending final report due 

10/1/2025 
FY24 $62,500 $62,500 
FY23 $62,500 $62,500 
FY22 $71,500 $71,500 

 
 

 

222



FY27 Budget Line Detail: Mental Health & Addiction Intervention Focus Area 
MHTAAR and GF/MH Recommendations

Budget Line: Page 2, Line 19 Project Name: Complex Care Program Grantee Name: DFCS/Department Support Services 

Proposed FY27 Amount: $400.0 
MHTAAR 

Project Category: Capacity Building 

Comp Plan Relevance: Area of Focus 4, Substance Use Disorder Prevention; Objective 4.3: Improve treatment and recovery support services to reduce the 
impact of mental health and substance use disorders. Area of Focus 5, Suicide Prevention; Objective 5.1: Coordinate prevention efforts to ensure Alaskans have 
access to a comprehensive suicide prevention system; Objective 5.2: Support and improve the system to assist individuals in crisis. 
Description: The grant supports the operations of the Complex Care Programming, which is housed in the Department of Family and Community Services 
(DFCS). The work on complex care streamlines the coordination and review process for youth and adults with complex behavioral and medical conditions. These 
efforts support various workgroups on admissions, discharge planning, assessments, and treatment plan coordination and work towards identifying gaps and 
improving systems for individuals with complex needs. The department aims to enhance patient care and alleviate administrative burdens on healthcare 
systems. This will be a significant change in practice, and through this coordinated, patient-centered approach, Trust beneficiaries will be better served. 
Analysis: Trust funding supports the DFCS complex care work in coordination with the Complex Care Unit, with the goal of better serving Trust beneficiaries in higher 
levels of institutional care. This ultimately enables beneficiaries to transition to lower levels of community-based care in the least restrictive settings, within their 
chosen communities. The focus is on enhancing coordination, collaboration, and support for individuals with complex needs within the DFCS system.  

Past and current funding supports weekly Case Response Team (CRT) meetings, monthly Complex Care Committee (CCC) meetings, the development of a pilot program 
for transitioning children from institutions to community-based settings, policy review and proposal development, and consultation and coordination assistance. The 
CRT has analyzed the systems within Alaska that serve individuals with complex needs and identified the current systematic gaps. This has been achieved by creating a 
data-tracking system for complex cases. Additionally, the CRT is part of a larger workgroup between the DFCS and the Department of Health (DOH). This allows both 
departments to work cohesively to improve systems, support the facilitation of more resources for beneficiaries, and enhance communication between divisions and the 
two departments. 

In FY24, a DFCS Needs Assessment identified critical gaps in the continuum and laid the groundwork for targeted interventions. In April 2024, a project was launched to 
enhance the Complex Care Unit's (CCU) capacity to effectively monitor and address complex cases using a robust data tracking system. The CCU aims to utilize Artificial 
Intelligence (AI) for early intervention and service coordination by monitoring and screening high utilizers. Collaboration remained central, with biweekly meetings 
facilitating coordination between divisions and enabling better support for cross-divisional cases. Increased funding for this work is recommended through FY27. This 
project has a history of providing positive outcomes. Staff will continue to monitor it and support this work in the future. 

Five Year Project Funding History – Complex Care Program 
Fiscal Year Trust Grant Amount Final Expended Amount 
FY25 $156,600 Pending final report due 10/1/2025 
FY24 $150,000 $150,000 

223



FY27 Budget Line Detail: Mental Health & Addiction Intervention Focus Area 
MHTAAR and GF/MH Recommendations

Budget Line: Page 2, Line 20 Project Name: Adult Protective Services Grantee Name: DOH - SDS 

Proposed FY27 Amount: $75.0 
MHTAAR 

Project Category: Direct Service 

Comp Plan Relevance: Area of Focus 6: Protecting vulnerable Alaskans; Objective 6.4: Increase timely access to protective services statewide. 

Description: The grant supports the operations of Adult Protective Services to maintain investigation capacity. The APS position will assist with institutional 
discharge planning from hospitals and the Department of Corrections, including petitions for guardianship and/or conservatorship. 

Analysis: 
The Adult Protective Services (APS) position is funded with Medicaid administrative claiming and Alaska Mental Health Trust funds. This position pilots an APS 
position dedicated to working with people discharged from hospitals and institutions who are identified as needing the decision-making support of a conservator 
or guardian. This position is expected to serve beneficiaries directly and have a direct impact on the system of care. 

In FY23, 183 beneficiaries were assisted, and 100 people were trained. Despite hospitals, the Alaska Psychiatric Institute, and the Department of Corrections 
serving people who cannot keep themselves safe, these institutions tend to underreport abuse, neglect, self-neglect, and exploitation to APS. The mandated 
reporter education training is expected to continue as an important method of outreach to the organizations and improve services to vulnerable Alaskans.  

APS continued to investigate reports of harm filed through Central Intake that met APS criteria from DOC/hospital/API admissions or discharge and other 
DES/DET facilities, petition for guardianship/conservator as needed for vulnerable clients who cannot make decisions for themselves, and request records from 
medical facilities, DOC, and API to file court actions. 

Five Year Project Funding History - Adult Protective Services 
Fiscal Year Trust Grant Amount Final Expended Amount 
FY26 $75,000 Grant started 7/1/2025 
FY25 $75,000 Pending final report due 10/1/2025 
FY24 $75,000 $8,534 
FY23 $75,000 $9,202 
FY22 $75,000 $27,077 

224



FY27 Budget Line Detail: Mental Health & Addiction Intervention Focus Area 
MHTAAR and GF/MH Recommendations 

  

Budget Line: Page 2, Line 21 Project Name: Center for Alcohol and Addiction Studies Grantee Name: UAA - CHD 

Proposed FY27 Amount: $135.0 
MHTAAR 

Project Category: Capacity Building 

Comp Plan Relevance: Area of Focus 9: Workforce; Objective 9.2: Advance the competencies of the healthcare, behavioral health, and public health workforce  

Description: This project proposes to re-establish and revitalize the Center for Alcohol and Addiction Studies (CAAS) at the University of Alaska Anchorage to 
address Alaska’s substance use crisis. CAAS intends to serve as a clearinghouse for evidence-based substance use interventions, develop a much-needed public 
health workforce in Alaska, and conduct interprofessional research related to Trust beneficiaries.  
Analysis: This proposal aims to reestablish the Center for Alcohol and Addiction Studies (CAAS) at the University of Alaska Anchorage. The intention is to 
revitalize CAAS to effectively address Alaska’s significant substance use crisis, which includes alcohol-attributed death rates that are more than twice the 
national average and a 44.5% increase in opioid-related overdose deaths from 2022 to 2023. 
 
The proposal aims to support the re-envisioning, revitalization, and re-establishment of CAAS to meet the unique substance use education, workforce, Alaska-
relevant research, evaluation, and technical assistance needs of Alaska’s Trust beneficiaries. The re-established center would function as a clearinghouse, 
producing evidence-based substance use summaries, such as systematic reviews and scoping reviews, focusing on prevention, early intervention, treatment, 
and recovery support relevant to the needs of Trust beneficiaries, Alaska providers, and policymakers. 
 
Additionally, CAAS would explore community-driven and university-supported academic pathways to increase Alaska’s trained substance use workforce serving 
Trust beneficiaries across various academic disciplines, programs, colleges, and institutions. This initiative will address Alaska’s emerging substance use 
technical assistance, research, and evaluation needs, ultimately enhancing the support provided to Trust beneficiaries. This is expected to be a 2-3 year 
funding commitment, starting in FY27. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

225



FY27 Budget Line Detail: Disability Justice Focus Area 
MHTAAR and GF/MH Recommendations 

Budget Line: Page 2, Line 23 Project Name: Alaska Justice Information Center Grantee Name: UAA/Anchorage Campus 

Proposed FY27 Amount: $293.0 
MHTAAR 

Project Category: Data/Planning 

Comp Plan Relevance: Area of Focus 10 Data, Objective 10.2 encourage a culture of data-driven decision making that includes data sharing, data analysis, and 
management to link support services across DOH and DFCS divisions and other departments 
Description: Alaska Justice Information Center (AJiC) is Alaska’s resource for compiling, analyzing, and reporting criminal justice data to policymakers and 
practitioners to improve public safety and health, increase criminal justice system accountability, and reduce recidivism. This project is a partnership between 
the Trust, the University of Alaska, and the Anchorage College of Health Justice Center.  In addition to the current project deliverables related to beneficiary 
data, funds for a one-time request increase of $68,000 will be used to provide empirical data on pathways within crisis response model operations in 
Anchorage, Alaska.  This project directly addresses this lack of information by examining case pathways within our system, which is important to understand 
how diversion is or is not happening in the community and to mitigate unintended disparities by case type.  
 
Analysis: AJiC’s assessment of current and future disability justice strategies gives the Trust and the State of Alaska a greater understanding of the criminal 
justice system and its impacts on Trust beneficiaries. It allows for data-driven adjustments to strategies over time. One of the project's biggest achievements 
during FY24 was establishing AJiC's first Summer Research Collaborative in the summer of 2023.  AJiC also produced several Fact Sheets in FY24 and routinely 
updated AJiC interactive data dashboards. A sampling of projects reported in the mid-year report includes an implementation analysis of Anchorage’s Veterans 
Court, assisting the Alaska Federation of Natives in a legislatively requested racial/ethnic disparities study in the Alaska Department of Corrections Facilities, 
and assisting the Department of Corrections with required federal data collection.  For the crisis response model operations project, data will provide vital 
information that can help refine case movement between dispatch, MCT, and Co-response, which will in turn improve the overall implementation of 
Anchorage’s crisis response system in ways that leverage the unique strengths of both MCT and Co-response. This project will also provide much-needed 
implementation data for other communities looking to implement multiple crisis response programs. This project has a demonstrated history of providing 
positive outcomes. Though efforts to secure alternative funding are ongoing, the Alaska Mental Health Trust Authority is currently the primary funding source 
for this established project.  
 

Five Year Project Funding History - Alaska Justice Information Center 
Fiscal Year Trust Grant Amount Final Expended Amount 
FY26 $225,000 Grant started 7/1/2025 
FY25 $225,000 Pending final report due 10/1/2025 
FY24 $225,000 $225,000 
FY23 $225,000 $225,000 
FY22 $225,000 $223,171 

 

 
 
  

226



FY27 Budget Line Detail: Disability Justice Focus Area 
MHTAAR and GF/MH Recommendations 

Budget Line: Page 2, Line 24 Project Name: Public Guardian Position Grantee Name: DOA/OPA/Public Guardian 

Proposed FY27 Amount: $138.0 
MHTAAR 

Project Category: Capacity Building 

Comp Plan Relevance: Area of Focus 6, Protecting Vulnerable Alaskans, Objective 6.4 Increase timely access to Protective Services statewide. 

Description: Funds support a public guardian position in the Office of Public Advocacy (OPA) within the Department of Administration (DOA). The position 
supports OPA's strategic plan to reduce current public guardian caseloads from approximately 100 cases to 40 cases per public guardian. Public guardians serve 
adult Trust beneficiaries found incapacitated by the Superior court. 

Analysis: The position is in Anchorage and serves western and northwestern Alaska regions, including Bethel, Dillingham, and Utqiagvik. During FY24, the position 
served 85 Trust beneficiaries.  The caseload was reduced from 103 to 85 because clients had to be transferred to non-rural locations due to the lack of appropriate 
services.  Due to a change in how the court system monitors guardianship cases, there has been more scrutiny on the court system's oversight for guardianship. 
Bethel was one of the first regions where a compliance audit resulted in 3-year reviews, resulting in many new appointments for the public guardian as family 
guardians struggled to fulfill their statutory obligations. The influx of cases has resulted in a 2nd full-time guardian being assigned to cover the rural docket. This 
project was previously funded for 91.5 in FY 25, but DOA/OPA asked to adjust to 138.0 in FY 26 the cost of rural travel consistently exceeds allocated funding. 
In discussions with OPA, the plan for funding the position is 50% MHTAAR and 50% GF/MH in FY 28, and in FY 29, the position will receive 0 MHTAAR Funds. 

Five Year Project Funding History - Public Guardian Position 
Fiscal Year Trust Grant Amount Final Expended Amount 
FY26 $91,500 Grant started 7/1/2025 
FY25 $91,500 Pending final report due 10/1/2025 
FY24 $91,500 $91,500 
FY23 $91,500 $91,500 
FY22 $91,500 $91,500 

227



FY27 Budget Line Detail: Disability Justice Focus Area 
MHTAAR and GF/MH Recommendations 

Budget Line: Page 2, Line 25 Project Name: Public Guardian - OCS Transition Grantee Name: DOA/OPA/Public Guardian 

Proposed FY27 Amount: $91.5 
MHTAAR 

Project Category: Capacity Building 

Comp Plan Relevance: Area of Focus 6, Protecting Vulnerable Alaskans, Objective 6.4 Increase timely access to Protective Services statewide. 

Description: Trust funds are supporting a public guardian position in Anchorage, serving beneficiaries statewide. The position will work directly with Trust 
beneficiaries who have aged out of the child welfare system and require a public guardian. 

Analysis: Despite receiving funding for this position on July 1, 2023, the position was not created until after January 1, 2024, due to administrative 
understaffing at OPA. In January 2024, an individual with a background in juvenile behavioral strategy was hired into this position and is in the process of 
becoming nationally certified. The guardian has been working with different departments and groups to assess better potential wards that may be eligible for 
guardianships without a lapse in benefits.  During FY24, the position served 19 Trust beneficiaries with plans to serve more in FY 26.  This project was 
previously funded for $138.0 in FY 25, but DOA/OPA asked to adjust to $91.5 in FY 26 as this funding would be more appropriate to the position's duties. It is 
anticipated in FY 29 that MHTAAR funding will end. 

Five Year Project Funding History - Public Guardian Position - OCS Transition 
Fiscal Year Trust Grant Amount Final Expended Amount 
FY26 $91,500 Grant started 7/1/2025 
FY25 $138,000 Pending final report due 10/1/2025 
FY24 $135,500 $44,210 

228



FY27 Budget Line Detail: Disability Justice Focus Area 
MHTAAR and GF/MH Recommendations 

Budget Line: Page 2, Line 26 Project Name: Crisis Intervention Team/Behavioral Health 
Training and Programs for First Responders – AK State 
Troopers 

Grantee Name: DPS - AK State Troopers 

Proposed FY27 Amount: $60.0 
MHTAAR 

Project Category: Workforce Development/Training 

Comp Plan Relevance: Area of Focus 9 Workforce Objective 9.2 Advance the competencies of the healthcare, behavioral health, and public health workforce 

Description: Funding supports Crisis Intervention Team Training, behavioral health training, and wellness programs for Alaska State Troopers within the 
Department of Public Safety (DPS). A Crisis Intervention Team (CIT) program is an innovative, community-based approach to improving the outcomes of these 
encounters with law enforcement. CIT reduces arrests of people with mental illness while simultaneously increasing the likelihood that individuals will receive 
mental health services. CIT training is important to support the crisis continuum of care. There is a $10,000 increase this year for new staff to attend 
conferences out of state. 

Analysis: For FY 24, a total of 24 law enforcement staff graduated from CIT training academy.   Coordinating training events with limited staffing of all law 
enforcement agencies continues to be an issue.  According to the mid-year report for FY25, a CIT Academy occurred in 10/2024 with 28 students attending from 
16 different agencies, and a second CIT Academy was held in April with 30 students.  Three DPS employees attended the CIT International Conference.  The 
Trust will continue to assess the impact of its investment in this project and work with DPS to identify alternative sustainable funding sources beyond FY27.  

Five Year Project Funding History –  
Crisis Intervention Team/Behavioral Health Training & Programs for First Responders- Alaska State Troopers 

Fiscal Year Trust Grant Amount Final Expended Amount 
FY26 $50,000 Grant started 7/1/2025 
FY25 $50,000 Pending final report due 10/1/2025 
FY24 $80,000 $60,732 
FY23 $80,000 $75,271 
FY22 $80,000 $73,613 

229



FY27 Budget Line Detail: Disability Justice Focus Area 
MHTAAR and GF/MH Recommendations 

Budget Line: Page 2, Line 27 Project Name: Crisis Intervention Team/Behavioral Health 
Training and Programs for First Responders - AK Police 
Standards Council 

Grantee Name: DPS– AK Police Standards Council 

Proposed FY27 Amount: $80.0 
MHTAAR 

Project Category: Workforce Development/Training 

Comp Plan Relevance: Area of Focus 9 Workforce Objective 9.2 Advance the competencies of the healthcare, behavioral health, and public health workforce 

Description: Funding supports Crisis Intervention Team Training, behavioral health training, and wellness programs for the Alaska Police Standards Council 
within the Department of Public Safety (DPS). A Crisis Intervention Team (CIT) program is an innovative, community-based approach to improving the outcomes 
of these encounters with law enforcement. CIT reduces arrests of people with mental illness while simultaneously increasing the likelihood that individuals will 
receive mental health services. CIT training is important to support the crisis continuum of care.  
 
Analysis: For FY 24, 1 law enforcement staff member completed a CIT Academy, four correctional officers attended the CIT International Conference, and one 
Bethel officer attended a CIT Train the Trainer.  Additionally, funds supported the Cordico Shield wellness application and the Stronger Families online course, 
with 913 officers trained. According to the FY 25 MHTAAR mid-year report, funds went to one staff to attend the CIT International Conference, and three 
students attended the CIT Train the Trainer. High agency attrition and vacancy rates result in limited access to opportunities for advanced and specialized 
courses.  Annually, there continues to be limited access to the regional hosting of CIT Academies.  The Trust will continue to assess the impact of its 
investment in this project and work with DPS to identify alternative sustainable funding sources beyond FY27. 
 

Five Year Project Funding History - Crisis Intervention Team/Behavioral Health Training & Programs for First Responders  
- Alaska Police Standards Council 

Fiscal Year Trust Grant Amount Final Expended Amount 
FY26 $80,000 Grant started 7/1/2025 
FY25 $80,000 Pending final report due 10/1/2025 
FY24 $80,000 $60,382 
FY23 $80,000 $80,000 
FY22 $80,000 $30,442.82 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

230



FY27 Budget Line Detail: Disability Justice Focus Area 
MHTAAR and GF/MH Recommendations 

Budget Line: Page 2, Line 28 Project Name: Centralized Competency Calendar Project Grantee Name: ACS/Therapeutic Courts 

Proposed FY27 Amount: $158.3 
MHTAAR 

Project Category: Capacity Building 

Comp Plan Relevance: Area of Focus 7 Services in the Least Restrictive Environment, Objective.3 Reduce the number of trust beneficiaries entering or 
becoming involved with Alaska's criminal justice or juvenile justice system 
Description: This project funds two positions to assist with managing, collecting data for, and tracking the cases on the Centralized Competency Calendar. 
These positions are critical to preparing for cases to be moved through proceedings, determining trends, identifying reasons for delays in evaluation and 
restoration orders, and recommending solutions. This project reflects the merging of two projects from FY 25, the centralized competency calendar paralegal 
for 78.3 and the centralized competency calendar paralegal statewide for 80.0. The merging of the projects streamlines the funding and reporting 
requirements.   

Analysis: There were 215 new competency evaluation orders issued in Anchorage in FY24 that were handled through the Centralized Competency Calendar; a 
few of these involved the same defendant. The average time between the court’s order for a competency evaluation and when an evaluation report was 
received back from API was 3.9 weeks, which is slightly longer than in FY23. Once a competency evaluation was received from API, a hearing was held on 
average within 7.5 days. During the first six months of FY25, just over 275 orders for competency evaluations were issued statewide; about half of these are 
Anchorage cases and handled through the centralized calendar.  

The Fairbanks Centralized Competency Calendar began hearing competency matters in March 2024. There were 24 new competency evaluation orders issued in 
FY24 that were handled through the Fairbanks Centralized Competency Calendar.  Because of the small sample size, this report does not include an average 
time between the court’s order for a competency evaluation and when an evaluation report was received back from API, nor an average time between when 
the court received the evaluation and when the hearing was held. This data will be included in the FY25 report when more cases can be analyzed. The MHTAAR 
mid-year report, in late FY24 and continuing into FY25, competency cases from other courts in the Fourth Judicial District, and cases from the Second Judicial 
District began to be added to the Fairbanks centralized calendar. To date, the Fairbanks calendar has handled approximately 50 competency matters. The 
Fairbanks centralized calendar is also willing to take on Bethel matters if stakeholders in that area wish to take advantage. As part of this project, which has 
recently started (the expansion component), it is expected that funding will be needed to continue through FY 28 years to support this project. The Trust will 
continue to assess the impact of its investment in this project and work with ACS to identify alternative sustainable funding sources. 

Five Year Project Funding History - Centralized Competency Calendar Project 
Fiscal Year Trust Grant Amount Final Expended Amount 
FY26 $158,300 Grant started 7/1/2025 
FY25 $78,300 Pending final report due 10/1/2025 
FY24 $78,300 $78,300 
FY23 $78,300 $78,300 
FY22 $78,300 $78,300 

231



FY27 Budget Line Detail: Disability Justice Focus Area 
MHTAAR and GF/MH Recommendations 

Budget Line: Page 2, Line 29 Project Name: Holistic Defense Grantee Name: DOA/PDA 

Proposed FY27 Amount: $63.2 
MHTAAR 

Project Category: Direct Service 

Comp Plan Relevance: Area of Focus 6, Protecting Vulnerable Alaskans, Objective 5 Ensure vulnerable Alaskans understand their rights and responsibilities 

Description: Funds support legal services from the Public Defender Agency (PDA) within the Department of Administration (DOA) using holistic defense. Holistic 
defense is a client-centered and interdisciplinary model of public defense that addresses the circumstances driving poor people into the criminal justice system 
and the consequences of that involvement by offering comprehensive legal representation, social work support, and advocacy for the client. The holistic 
defense project aims to serve Alaskans affected by the criminal legal system by helping them address their civil legal issues. The target population consists of 
Trust beneficiaries who are not participating in therapeutic court or other diversion projects.  
 
Analysis: 81 unduplicated beneficiaries were served during FY24. Services provided included referrals to Alaska Legal Services for civil representation in 
landlord/tenant proceedings, public assistance denials, debt negotiation, and more.  Staff also referred clients to substance use disorder treatment, housing 
assistance, transitional/sober living housing, mental health services, and specialty court programs.  From the MHTAAR mid-year report, 101 beneficiaries have 
been served so far.  Staffing was the biggest challenge for the project in FY25; however, as of March 2025, all three Holistic Defense paralegal positions are 
staffed and are in the process of training.  Based on conversations with PDA, this project's final year of funding is FY 27. 
 

Five Year Project Funding History - Holistic Defense 
Fiscal Year Trust Grant Amount Final Expended Amount 
FY26 $126,400 Grant started 7/1/2025 
FY25 $126,400 Pending final report due 10/1/2025 
FY24 $126,400 $126,400 
FY22 $90,100 $90,100 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

232



FY27 Budget Line Detail: Disability Justice Focus Area 
MHTAAR and GF/MH Recommendations 

Budget Line: Page 2, Line 30 Project Name: Holistic Defense Social Worker Grantee Name: DOA/DPA 

Proposed FY27 Amount: $119.2 
MHTAAR 

Project Category: Direct Service 

Comp Plan Relevance: Area of Focus 6, Protecting Vulnerable Alaskans, Objective 5, Ensure vulnerable Alaskans understand their rights and responsibilities 

Description: The funds will start in FY 27 and will support a new social worker position to work directly with Trust beneficiaries in child welfare cases and those 
facing involuntary commitment or forced medication. The position will be located in Anchorage. 

Analysis: Public Defender Agency clients often face non‐legal barriers that interfere with successful outcomes in legal matters and successful integration in 
communities during and after the legal process. Clients in criminal and child welfare matters need legal advocacy, but they also need affordable housing, 
mental health and substance abuse treatment, and assistance applying for disability, Veterans, Social Security, and other benefits. Expanding the holistic 
defense model to include providing the assistance of a licensed social worker for Anchorage clients in child welfare cases and those facing involuntary 
commitment or forced medication will improve outcomes for families and provide an additional avenue for these trust beneficiaries to receive the support and 
services they need. A conservative estimate would be approximately 50 Trust beneficiaries served by this position, but the Agency anticipates that in addition 
to serving clients directly, this funded position would also provide valuable guidance and direction to other Agency attorneys, paralegals, and AmeriCorps social 
service navigators to reach and aid even more Trust beneficiaries. This funding will start in FY27, and it is expected that funding will need to continue for 
approximately five years to support this project to launch and operate successfully.  

233



FY27 Budget Line Detail: Disability Justice Focus Area 
MHTAAR and GF/MH Recommendations 

Budget Line: Page 2, Line 31 Project Name: Occupational Therapist in DJJ Youth 
Facilities 

Grantee Name: DFCS/DJJ/Bethel & Fairbanks Youth 
Facility 

Proposed FY27 Amount: $100.0 
MHTAAR 

Project Category: Direct Service 

Comp Plan Relevance: Area of Focus 8 Services in Institutional Settings, Objective 3 Enhance and expand access to clinical and case management resources for 
Alaskans who are incarcerated or detained 
Description: This funding will be used to contract Occupational Therapy (OT) services for individual youth in the Bethel and Fairbanks Youth Facility’s 
neurobehavioral treatment units. Bethel’s youth facility has 23 beds, and Fairbanks has 28 beds. The Division of Juvenile Justice, DJJ, will also utilize contract 
services to conduct OT environmental assessments of the Fairbanks and Bethel facilities detention units and implement recommendations to improve overall 
practices.  
Analysis: As part of the DJJ mission, staff provide clinical interventions to assist youth in developing skills to prevent involvement in the criminal justice 
system. Many of these youth are Trust beneficiaries, and DJJ has seen an increase in the complexity of the needs of the youth they serve and has created two 
neurobehavioral treatment units. Youth participating in OT therapy and interventions are anticipated to demonstrate improvement in specific functional skills 
identified in their occupational therapy evaluations. As of June 2025, DJJ has been unable to fill the contracted position despite efforts to promote the 
opportunity through social media and attending the Occupational Therapist Board meeting. As DJJ has not started this project yet, it is expected that funding 
will be needed to continue for about 3-4 years to support the project in launching and operating successfully. If DJJ cannot fill the position by the end of FY 27, 
the recommendation is to restrict the funds and discontinue the project for FY 28. 

Five Year Project Funding History - Occupational Therapist in DJJ Youth Facilities 
Fiscal Year Trust Grant Amount Final Expended Amount 
FY26 $100,000 Grant started 7/1/2025 

234



FY27 Budget Line Detail: Disability Justice Focus Area 
MHTAAR and GF/MH Recommendations 

Budget Line: Page 2, Line 32 Project Name: Trauma Treatment for Incarcerated Women Grantee Name: DOC/HARS 

Proposed FY27 Amount: $150.0 
MHTAAR 

Project Category: Direct Service 

Comp Plan Relevance: Area of Focus 8 Services in Institutional Settings, Objective 3 Enhance and expand access to clinical and case management resources for 
Alaskans who are incarcerated or detained 
Description: Funding supports the Department of Corrections (DOC) development of a pilot project focusing on addressing the impact of trauma for 
incarcerated women, many of whom are Trust beneficiaries. This contract will provide trauma services for women at Hiland Mountain Correctional Center 
(HMCC) and Yukon-Kuskokwim Correctional Center (YKCC). The services will consist of in-person groups, individual services at HMCC, and telehealth services at 
YKCC. This pilot program will provide individuals with healthier coping skills, ultimately reducing the likelihood of engaging in unhealthy behaviors to cope with 
the impact of exposure to trauma. 

Analysis: This position was not filled in FY24 and after much consideration and the department's inability to fill current PCNs, a decision was made to solicit a 
request for a proposal for this work. DOC awarded the contract to a provider in the summer of 2024. Based on the MHTAAR mid-year report. There are two 
trauma treatment groups with a waitlist for a third group, with a total of 18 participants.  To date, the challenges with this project continue to be recruiting 
and retaining members in the program. While there are many women interested in the program, often there are barriers, such as unpredictable releases, 
scheduling conflicts, and the length of time in custody.  As this project has recently started, it is expected that funding will need to continue through FY28. 
The Trust will continue to assess the impact of its investment in this project and work with DOC to identify alternative sustainable funding sources. 

Five Year Project Funding History - Trauma Treatment for Incarcerated Women 
Fiscal Year Trust Grant Amount Final Expended Amount 
FY26 $150,000 Grant started 7/1/2025 
FY25 $150,000 Pending final report due 10/1/2025 
FY24 $150,000 $0 

235



FY27 Budget Line Detail: Disability Justice Focus Area 
MHTAAR and GF/MH Recommendations 

Budget Line: Page 2, Line 33  Project Name: Addressing Comorbid Health and Addiction 
Issues Prominent Within Severe and Persistent Mentally Ill 
Populations 

Grantee Name: DOC/HARS 

Proposed FY27 Amount: $151.7 
MHTAAR 

Project Category: Direct Service 

Comp Plan Relevance: Area of Focus 8 Services in Institutional Settings, Objective 3 Enhance and expand access to clinical and case management resources for 
Alaskans who are incarcerated or detained 
Description: Funds support a full-time nursing position at the subacute mental health unit at Goose Creek Correctional Center in Wasilla, Alaska. The 
department has recognized the value of having nursing staff dedicated to the subacute unit to administer medication, review, and screen medical requests, and 
monitor/direct healthy hygiene habits for Trust beneficiaries. 
 
Analysis: The position was created for recruitment in November 2023, and a nurse was hired in spring 2024. The position has improved workflows and allowed 
other nursing staff time to focus on the needs of other facility areas. The success of this position has resulted in the department increasing the time allotted 
for the nursing coverage on the sub-acute mental health unit to 10 hours a day, seven days a week. This position has helped reduce negative symptoms related 
to mental illness and has increased access to essential services. In FY 24, 372 unduplicated beneficiaries benefited from this project. Between July 1st 2024 
through December 31st 2024 there were a total of 163 unduplicated Trust beneficiaries served by this position. As this project has recently started, it is 
expected that funding will be needed to continue through FY28 to support the project's successful launch and operation. The Trust will continue to assess the 
impact of its investment in this project and work with DOC to identify alternative sustainable funding sources. 
 

Five Year Project Funding History - Addressing Comorbid Health & Addiction Issues Prominent Within Severe and Persistent 
Mentally Ill Populations 

Fiscal Year Trust Grant Amount Final Expended Amount 
FY26 $151,700 Grant started 7/1/2025 
FY25 $151,700 Pending final report due 10/1/2025 
FY24 $150,000 $150,000 

 

 

  

236



FY27 Budget Line Detail: Disability Justice Focus Area 
MHTAAR and GF/MH Recommendations 

Budget Line: Page 2, Line 34 Project Name: APIC Discharge Planning Model in DOC Grantee Name: DOC/HARS 

Proposed FY27 Amount: $200.0 
MHTAAR 

Project Category: Direct Service 

Comp Plan Relevance: Area of Focus 8 Services in Institutional Settings, Objective 4 ensure Alaskans who are transitioning out of institutional settings have 
essential supports 
Description: This project supports the implementation of a model that assures continuity of care for Trust beneficiaries transitioning from the correctional 
system back into the community while maintaining public safety and increasing the ability of the criminal justice system to accommodate, support, protect, 
and provide treatment for offenders who are Trust beneficiaries. The Department of Corrections used the evidence-based reentry model, APIC (Assess, Plan, 
Identify, Coordinate), for the release of Trust beneficiaries and the community re-entry planning system from correctional institutions. Trust funds support 
APIC participants reentering the community, addressing mental health and housing needs. 

Analysis: In FY24, 517 unduplicated Trust beneficiaries participated in APIC.  About 90% of individuals received a mental health appointment within 10-20 days 
of release. The participation of all those who received a referral to a mental health agency or service provider in FY24 ranged from 0 (not showing) to 8 
months, which is reportedly consistent with previous years. In FY 24, APIC spent 52.7% of the funds to cover housing for APIC-eligible beneficiaries.  In FY24, 
out of 594 APIC participants who were released, 215, or 36.1%, were rearrested either for a technical violation or an arrest for a new crime. These participants 
were either already high risk upon release or not fully engaged with their plan, treatment, medications, or obtaining benefits. 

DOC reported the same challenges from last year including an increased number of highly acute individuals who are more challenging to integrate into the 
community, unexpected releases (bail, change of plea/time served, charges dismissed after being found legally incompetent or released onto pretrial 
diversion), and delays obtaining Medicaid due to long delays in processing SSI claims and public assistance benefits at the Department of Public Assistance 
(DPA), A new challenge identified recruiting and hiring qualified staff.  Despite challenges, DOC reported seeing an increase in the participants’ quality of life, 
especially participants who do not have a co-occurring disorder, have an invested family member, and have support from other providers. Starting in FY 27, this 
project will phase out with the MHTAAR amount decreasing to $200.0. In FY 28, it will decrease to $100.0, and in FY 29, it will receive 0 MHTAAR. 

Five Year Project Funding History - APIC Discharge Planning Model in DOC 
Fiscal Year Trust Grant Amount Final Expended Amount 
FY26 $290,000 Grant started 7/1/2025 
FY25 $290,000 Pending final report due 10/1/2025 
FY24 $290,000 $288,430 
FY23 $290,000 $282,796 
FY22 $290,000 $281,638 

237



FY27 Budget Line Detail: Disability Justice Focus Area 
MHTAAR and GF/MH Recommendations 

Budget Line: Page 2, Line 35 Project Name: DOC Discharge Incentive Grants Grantee Name: DOR/AHFC 

Proposed FY27 Amount: $200.0 
MHTAAR 

Project Category: Direct Service 

Comp Plan Relevance: Area of Focus 3 Economic and Social Well-being, Objective 1 Alaskans have stable, safe housing with appropriate, community-based 
social supports to maintain tenancy. 
Description: The Discharge Incentive Grant’s (DIG) primary function is to provide funds for justice-involved Trust beneficiaries to assist with monthly rent and 
various housing options for a vulnerable, marginalized, and mentally acute DOC population with few community resources. DIG participants must follow 
treatment recommendations to remain eligible, adhere to house rules, and maintain sobriety. This program is administered through the Alaska Housing Finance 
Corporation (AHFC). 
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Analysis: In FY24, there were 96 beneficiaries served for a total of 236 rent instances. There were 39 recipients of the DIG of the 96 (40.6%) who returned to 
jail during FY24 or within a month after receiving the DIG. The cost per beneficiary for FY24 averaged $1,813.22. For FY25 25 Quarter 1 and 2, DIG served 39 
trust beneficiaries with 77 rent occurrences. A substantial challenge is that dig is intended to be used one to three months post-release, but delays of 6 to 12 
months and processing applications for benefits are common. This leads to greater demands placed on DIG funds (9 out of the 39 beneficiaries received DIG 
funding for more than three months after release). Of the 39 participants, 12 returned to DOC custody while DIG funded rent.  The average cost for each of the 
39 participants was $2189.00. This project will phase out in FY 28. 

Five Year Project Funding History - DOC Discharge Incentive Grants 
Fiscal Year Trust Grant Amount Final Expended Amount 
FY26 $200,000 Grant started 7/1/2025 
FY25 $200,000 Pending final report due 10/1/2025 
FY24 $100,000 $100,000 
FY23 $100,000 $96,646 
FY22 $100,000 $100,000 

238



FY27 Budget Line Detail: Disability Justice Focus Area 
MHTAAR and GF/MH Recommendations 

Budget Line: Page 2, Line 36 Project Name: Criminal Justice Mental Health First Aid Train 
the Trainers 

Grantee Name: UAA-Alaska Training Center 

Proposed FY27 Amount: $50.0 
MHTAAR 

Project Category: Workforce Development/Training 

Comp Plan Relevance: Area of Focus 9 Workforce Objective 9.2 Advance the competencies of the healthcare, behavioral health, and public health workforce 

Description: This project through UAA Alaska Training Center is to conduct a criminal justice-specific train-the-trainers for Mental Health First Aid (MHFA) with 
the outcome of having up to 16 new criminal justice professional trainers in Alaska. MHFA is an evidence-based, early-intervention course that teaches 
participants about mental health and substance use challenges. MHFA equips criminal justice staff with skills to recognize, de-escalate, and connect people in 
crisis to appropriate care.  Both the Department of Corrections and the Department of Public Safety have requested a train-the-trainer for MHFA, as many of 
their previous trainers have left their respective agencies. MHFA training is important to support the crisis continuum of care.  
 
Analysis: The Alaska Training Cooperative began building a pool of MHFA for Public Safety and Fire/EMS Instructors in 2019 to ensure long-term access to 
critical mental health training for emergency responders. Since then, many criminal justice staff have retired, taken on different roles, or otherwise naturally 
transitioned out of instructor roles, leaving very few to continue the efforts. Without additional opportunities to train new instructors, the sustainability of this 
training within departments is unlikely. A new investment directly supports the state’s efforts to implement the crisis behavioral health reform and address 
pressing issues like suicide, overdose, homelessness, and lack of behavioral health services in rural communities. Training more MHF instructors in the criminal 
justice field increases local capacity to deliver training regularly even in remote areas, reduces the dependence on costly external trainers, and ensures 
culturally relevant instruction.  Trust beneficiaries will indirectly benefit from more MHFA trainers in that more criminal justice staff will be able to recognize, 
de-escalate, and connect people in crisis to appropriate care.  It is anticipated that a similar request will be made in FY 28. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

239



FY27 Budget Line Detail: Disability Justice Focus Area 
MHTAAR and GF/MH Recommendations 

Budget Line: Page 2, Line 37 Project Name: Behavioral Health Administrator Position Grantee Name: ACS/Trial Courts Division 

Proposed FY27 Amount: $102.0 
MHTAAR 

Project Category: Data/Planning 

Comp Plan Relevance: Area of Focus 7 Services in the Least Restrictive Environment, Objective.3 Reduce the number of trust beneficiaries entering or 
becoming involved with Alaska's criminal justice or juvenile justice system 
Description:  The Statewide Behavioral Health Administrator will oversee and advise behavioral health-related programs and initiatives at the intersection of 
the judicial system and behavioral health systems. This position is responsible for analyzing, developing, and implementing actions to better respond to the 
needs of individuals with behavioral health issues who are involved in the justice system. To support these efforts, the behavioral health administrator will 
develop relationships and partnerships within the courts, with justice partners, and with community stakeholders. The behavioral health administrator will 
expand and improve the judicial system's response to behavioral health challenges in various areas, including criminal law, civil commitments, child in need of 
aid cases, domestic relations matters, and delinquency. 
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Analysis:  Pretrial and unsentenced Trust beneficiaries who have not been diverted at earlier sequential intercepts need their mental health and substance use 
disorders addressed.   This project strengthens the skills, competencies, and abilities of court staff and the court system to increase awareness and appropriate 
interventions for justice-involved Trust beneficiaries.  Interventions will focus on diverting as many Trust beneficiaries from the criminal justice system as 
possible, increasing court proceedings that are trauma and behavioral health-informed, and developing and maintaining partnerships with community-based 
providers who provide mental health and substance use treatment.  Funds are anticipated for approximately 5 years to onboard the new position that supports 
systemic change. 
 
 

 

240



FY27 Budget Line Detail: Beneficiary Employment and Engagement Focus Area 
MHTAAR and GF/MH Recommendations 

Budget Line: Page 2, Line 39 Project Name: Beneficiary Employment Conference Grantee Name: DOL/DVR 

Proposed FY27 Amount: $100.0 
MHTAAR 

Project Category: Conference/Sponsorship 

Comp Plan Relevance: Area of Focus 3, Economic and Social Well-being, Objective 3.3, Expand resources that promote successful, long-term employment for 
Trust beneficiaries. 
Description: The grant funds the oversight, planning, implementation, and registration for the statewide beneficiary employment conference. The Division of 
Vocational Rehabilitation collaborates with the Governor’s Council on Disabilities, the Trust, the Departments of Health and Education, and community 
members on planning and executing this one—to two-day conference. The conference will focus on public awareness and training opportunities for beneficiaries 
of employment-related issues. This funding is a one-time increment in FY 27. 

Analysis: The conference was held on November 6, 2024, and 125 participants attended the whole day.  This conference increases capacity and the 
opportunities for beneficiaries to receive employment coaching, job shadowing, competitive employment options, and increased ability to receive treatment 
and care while still maintaining a job. Skill development and education will be wrapped up in the presentations with a focus on engaging as many partners as 
possible across the state.  

241



FY27 Budget Line Detail: Beneficiary Employment and Engagement Focus Area 
MHTAAR and GF/MH Recommendations 

 
Budget Line: Page 2, Line 40 Project Name: Beneficiary Employment Technical 

Assistance and Planning 
Grantee Name: UAA/CHD 

Proposed FY27 Amount: $75.0 
MHTAAR 

Project Category: Capacity Building 

Comp Plan Relevance: Area of Focus 3, Economic and Social Well-being, Objective 3.3, Expand resources that promote successful, long-term employment for 
Trust beneficiaries. 
Description: This grant aims to improve outcomes and promote recovery for beneficiaries through integrated and competitive employment opportunities. UAA’s 
Center for Human Development will provide technical assistance, information dissemination, and project management to increase employment opportunities 
for Trust beneficiaries. 
 
Analysis: This project and its outcomes are important for Trust beneficiaries because employment and planning are critical for equipping people to remain in 
the community and have the chance to improve their lives. Alaskans with disabilities have needed an online resource for years that would provide them the 
resources and tools that help answer questions about public benefits such as Social Security disability benefits, Social Security Disability Insurance (SSDI) and 
Supplemental Security Income (SSI), and work. CHD developed and implemented the Disabilities (DB) 101 website, which provided these tools to trust 
beneficiaries and their support people across the state.  
 
Over 8,500 people used this website in its first year of operation. CHD also used these funds to build a page that assists youth and their parents with questions 
about obtaining employment. The page includes the School and Work Estimator, which is a good place to start for someone with limited work experience. This 
website was also used to house the Alaska Accessible Employment housing employment resources, which has articles on employment, such as "Getting Past the 
Myths” and “Job Supports and Accommodations,” to name a couple.  
 

Five Year Project Funding History - Beneficiary Employment Technical Assistance and Planning 
Fiscal Year Trust Grant Amount Final Expended Amount 
FY26 $75,000 Grant started 7/1/2025 
FY25 $120,000 Pending final report due 10/1/2025 
FY24 $200,000 $94,391 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

242



FY27 Budget Line Detail: Beneficiary Employment and Engagement Focus Area 
MHTAAR and GF/MH Recommendations 

Budget Line: Page 2, line 41 Project Name: MicroEnterprise Grantee Name: UAA/CHD 

Proposed FY27 Amount: $225.0 
MHTAAR 

Project Category: Direct Service 

Comp Plan Relevance: Area of Focus 3 Economic and Social Well-being, Objective 3.3, Expand resources that promote successful, long-term employment for 
Trust beneficiaries. 
Description: Individuals with disabilities are seldom allowed to own their own businesses. These microenterprise funds are primarily used for Trust beneficiaries 
to start their own small businesses and receive ongoing business/self-employment coaching with the aim to sustain and grow their businesses.  

Analysis: This project supports all Trust beneficiaries with a focus on individuals with disabilities through direct microenterprise grants to receive training and 
support to own their own businesses. A portion of the project funds are designated to support past microenterprise beneficiaries to maintain their business, 
self-employment, and wellness successfully. These additional supports include mental health or substance use counseling, rehabilitation services, unforeseen 
business expenses critical to sustaining a viable business, and continuing education (conferences or trainings related to business needs). There were 19 
applications received in FY25. 8 beneficiaries were awarded $38,086.95 in the fall submission period of 2024, and the 10 applicants in the spring of 2025 are 
being reviewed as of this report being submitted. 40 beneficiaries received business coaching and application assistance in FY25. 100% of the applicants were 
satisfied with the services provided through this program. Though efforts to secure alternative funding are ongoing, the Alaska Mental Health Trust Authority is 
currently the primary funding source for this established project. The Trust will continue to assess the impact of its investment in this project, which will 
inform future funding recommendations. Continued funding of this project is recommended through FY27. 

Five Year Project Funding History - MicroEnterprise 
Fiscal Year Trust Grant Amount Final Expended Amount 
FY26 $200,000 Grant started 7/1/2025 
FY25 $175,000 Pending final report due 10/1/2025 
FY24 $175,000 $175,000 
FY23 $175,000 $148,360 
FY22 $175,000 $134,236 

243



  

FY27 Budget Line Detail: Housing and Home & Community Based Services Focus Area 
MHTAAR and GF/MH Recommendations 

 

 

Budget Line: Page 3, Line 43 Project Name: Rural Housing Coordinator - Ketchikan Grantee(s): DOR/AHFC 

Proposed FY27 Amount: $135.0 MHTAAR Grant Type: Capacity Building 

Comp Plan Relevance: Area of Focus 3, Economic and Social Well-being, Objective 1: Alaskans have stable, safe housing with appropriate community-based social 
supports to maintain tenancy. 

Description: This project creates a Rural Housing Coordinator position in Ketchikan and can use some funding for small projects. The position will develop or 
maintain a homeless and housing coalition/workgroup to identify barriers to accessing safe and stable housing in the region and identify resources to address 
those concerns, particularly for AMHTA beneficiaries at higher risk of literal homelessness. 

Analysis: The Rural Housing Coordinator position is intended to positively impact a local community through a local government or housing authority position that 
convenes and coordinates local resources to improve the housing and homeless services continuum of care for a rural area. This position has both a system and 
direct level impact on Trust beneficiaries. This is an extension of work planned in prior fiscal years but experienced a delayed start. This project is expected to 
last three to five years. At the completion of the project, the local government will decide if continued investment through local funding is needed. 

Five Year Project Funding History - Rural Housing Coordinator - Ketchikan 
Fiscal Year Trust Grant Amount Final Expended Amount 
FY26 $135,000 Grant started 7/1/2025 

 

 

 

  

244



  

FY27 Budget Line Detail: Housing and Home & Community Based Services Focus Area 
MHTAAR and GF/MH Recommendations 

 

 

Budget Line: Page 3, Line 44 Project Name: Special Needs Housing Grant Grantee Name: DOR/AHFC 

Proposed FY27 Amount: $200.0 
MHTAAR, $1,750.0 GF/MH 
recommendation 

Project Category: Capacity Building 

Comp Plan Relevance: Area of Focus 3, Economic and Social Well-being, Objective 1: Alaskans have stable, safe housing with appropriate community-based social 
supports to maintain tenancy. 

Description: The Special Needs Housing Grant (SNHG) provides operating and residential support service funds for permanent housing programs that provide safe 
and stable housing to Trust beneficiaries. Grantees apply competitively for initial three-year funding and can receive additional funding as part of a non- 
competitive renewal process subject to funding levels and subsidy needed. 

Analysis: SNHG grants provide primarily operating and supportive services for permanent supportive housing programs. For projects based on scattered site 
housing, funds are used for rental assistance and supportive services. Permanent supportive housing (PSH) is an intervention that serves the most vulnerable 
homeless individuals who have multiple co-occurring disorders, such as mental illness and addiction, complicated by housing barriers that may include corrections 
history, many years of homelessness, current substance use, evictions, or lack of income. People accessing PSH are chronically homeless and 100% Trust 
beneficiaries. This intervention offers low-barrier housing and offered support services. People who are homeless and have a mental illness or addiction, brain 
injury, developmental disability, or dementia often go without the services and medications they need to manage symptoms to remain stably housed. 

Permanent supportive housing is one of the few options available to beneficiaries with active untreated symptoms. In FY24, AHFC renewed funding for 14 projects 
totaling 266 units in six communities. Demand for this funding is high, with more applications received than can be funded. This is a project created by the Trust 
and AHFC, with AHFC and general funds providing the majority of funding for the program. Trust funding offers the opportunity to leverage other state and 
federal funding opportunities to improve sustainability. Continued efforts to transfer funding from MHTAAR to GF/MH have been unsuccessful, and continued 
support of the program is recommended until alternative funding can be secured.  

Five Year Project Funding History - Special Needs Housing Grant 
Fiscal Year Trust Grant Amount Final Expended Amount 
FY26 $200,000 Grant started 7/1/2025 
FY25 $200,000 Pending final report due 10/1/2025 
FY24 $200,000 $200,000 
FY23 $200,000 $200,000 
FY22 $200,000 $95,889 

 

 

  

245



  

FY27 Budget Line Detail: Housing and Home & Community Based Services Focus Area 
MHTAAR and GF/MH Recommendations 

 

 

Budget Line: Page 3, Line 45 Project Name: Homeless Assistance Program Grantee Name: DOR/AHFC 

Proposed FY27 Amount: $950.0 
MHTAAR, $2,850.0 GF/MH 
recommendation 

Project Category: Direct Service 

Comp Plan Relevance: Area of Focus 3, Economic and Social Well-being, Objective 1: Alaskans have stable, safe housing with appropriate community-based social 
supports to maintain tenancy. 

Description: The Homeless Assistance Program project provides funding to AHFC to issue grants to provide emergency or transitional housing and services to 
prevent homelessness or rapidly rehouse displaced people. The grants are awarded competitively to agencies across the state. 

Analysis: The Homeless Assistance Program assists families in obtaining or retaining safe and stable housing and in working with nonprofit partners to create 
sustainably supported housing over time. Preventing homelessness, much like preventing injury or illness, not only provides better outcomes for individuals but is 
the most effective, efficient, and economical approach to addressing homelessness. Rapid re-housing rapidly connects families and individuals experiencing 
homelessness to permanent housing through a tailored package of assistance that may include time-limited financial assistance and targeted supportive services. 
The program serves all populations, including youth under 18, youth 18-24, families, veterans, and single adults. Trust beneficiaries are overrepresented in all 
populations.  In FY24, AHFC awarded funding to 29 grantees in 15 communities. 

Funding for this program does not satisfy the demand for services. AHFC and general funds provide most of the funding for this program, with Trust funding being 
an important lever for other state and federal funds. This is a long-standing investment for the Trust. While the Trust does not typically provide ongoing funding 
for programs, the partnership with AHFC facilitates the Trust's ability to contribute to the work of many organizations efficiently and effectively across the state.  
Efforts to transfer funding from MHTAAR to GF/MH have been unsuccessful, and continued support of the program is recommended until alternative funding can 
be secured. In FY26, AHFC receipts increased in place of GF/MH.  This is another option for sustainable funding that should be monitored. Should this level of 
investment continue, phasing out MHTAAR funding can be reevaluated.  

Five Year Project Funding History - Homeless Assistance Program 
Fiscal Year Trust Grant Amount Final Expended Amount 
FY26 $950,000 Grant started 7/1/2025 
FY25 $950,000 Pending final report due 10/1/2025 
FY24 $950,000 $950,000 
FY23 $950,000 $950,000 
FY22 $950,000 $950,000 

 

 

  

246



  

FY27 Budget Line Detail: Housing and Home & Community Based Services Focus Area 
MHTAAR and GF/MH Recommendations 

 

 

Budget Line: Page 3, Line 46 Project Name: Brain Injury Council of Alaska Staff Grantee Name: UAA/CHD 

Proposed FY27 Amount: $105.0 MHTAAR Project Category: Capacity Building 

Comp Plan Relevance: Area of Focus 9, Workforce Capacity, Data, and Technology Systems, Objective 9.3: Ensure funding is available to support the strategies 
identified in Alaska’s Comprehensive Integrated Mental Health Program and Area of Focus 2, Healthcare, Objective 1: Alaskans have access to and receive quality 
healthcare services. 

Description: This project funds a professional position to support the Brain Injury Council of Alaska. This position is responsible for gathering data for reporting, 
coordinating advocacy and planning, and preparing grant progress reports for the TABI Advisory Council and Trust. This position acts as a liaison with other 
beneficiary boards and injury prevention groups, leads TABI state plan development and implementation activities, and participates in developing joint advocacy 
efforts and collaborative projects. 

Analysis: In FY24, the Traumatic & Acquired Brain Injury Advisory Council changed its name to the Brain Injury Council of Alaska (BICA or the Council). The BICA 
Staff project funds a key position for building capacity and the continuum of care for beneficiaries with a brain injury. This position supports the implementation 
of legislation and programs that impact beneficiaries with brain injury and advocates for additional services and support for this population. 

The Brain Injury Council of Alaska Staff project furthered the work of the Alaska State Plan for Brain Injury. In FY24, the position focused on the following goals: 
1) implementing identified Council priorities; 2) ensuring consistent, effective, and efficient Council operations, procedures, and communication; 3) helping 
increase awareness of brain injury in Alaska; 4) preparing for the development of a new 5-year state plan on brain injury, and 5) strengthening relationships with 
other agencies and stakeholders. The coordinator excelled in these areas, supporting a strong council, partnerships, and awareness program. 

The position engages the participation of council members who have or have survived a brain injury. The Council required it to comprise of at least 50% of people 
with lived experience. The Council has completed several brain injury awareness and data collection activities that will assist with advocating for services and 
understanding the prevalence of brain injury in Alaska. The Council partners with national and in-state organizations to create awareness and educational 
materials for people with brain injury, their caregivers, and providers. Trust funding leveraged a federal grant to implement activities related to the Alaska State 
Plan for Brain Injury. A long-term goal of the Council is to become an official State of Alaska Board. Continued Trust funding may need to be redefined if that goal 
is reached. 

Five Year Project Funding History - Brain Injury Council of Alaska Staff 
Fiscal Year Trust Grant Amount Final Expended Amount 
FY26 $105,000 Grant started 7/1/2025 
FY25 $105,000 Pending final report due 10/1/2025 
FY24 $105,000 $101,423 
FY23 $105,000 $105,000 
FY22 $105,000 $102,294 

 

 

247



  

FY27 Budget Line Detail: Housing and Home & Community Based Services Focus Area 
MHTAAR and GF/MH Recommendations 

 

 

Budget Line: Page 3, Line 47 Project Name: Care Coordination Liaison Grantee Name: DOH/SDS 

Proposed FY27 Amount: $95.0 MHTAAR Project Category: Capacity Building 

Comp Plan Relevance: Area of Focus 7, Services in the Least Restrictive Environment; Objective 2: Increase access to effective, flexible, person-centered, long-
term services and supports in urban and rural areas to avoid institutional placement 

Description: The Care Coordination Support project funds a position at the Division of Senior and Disabilities Services (SDS) to support care coordinators in the 
home and community-based services system. This position recruits new care coordinators, problem-solves issues faced by care coordinators operating in the HCBS 
service system and works with state agencies to make changes when systemic issues need to be resolved. 

Analysis: This position will be a liaison between the care coordinators providing services to Trust beneficiaries and other waiver recipients and SDS to troubleshoot 
both systemic issues and resolve day-to-day inquiries from care coordinators. The project is supported by both SDS and the provider community to help increase 
the number of care coordinators in Alaska and to address the systemic issues that led to the decline. Trust beneficiaries who qualify for a Medicaid waiver must 
use a care coordinator to organize and manage services. The lack of care coordinators was creating problems for people to access care. This position works to 
repair this part of the system to ease the burden on care coordinators, ultimately improving the service system for Trust beneficiaries.  SDS, provider agencies, 
and care coordinators have advocated for continued funding due to the position's success, with improved communication and business practices being cited as the 
top reasons. There has been a slight increase in the number of care coordinators, but it is too soon to tell if this is a trend. Trust funds will support part of the 
cost of a Permanent Health Program Manager 2 position to serve as a Care Coordination Liaison, with SDS providing the remaining funds. Costs have increased to 
transition this position from a long-term non-permanent to a permanent position. This project is expected to have a duration of 5 years, based on performance, 
and then transfer into the DOH operating budget or GF/MH. 

Five Year Project Funding History - Care Coordination Liaison 
Fiscal Year Trust Grant Amount Final Expended Amount 
FY26 $89,300 Grant started 7/1/2025 
FY25 $55,300 Pending final report due 10/1/2025 
FY24 $55,300 $54,763 
FY23 $55,300 $51,836 
FY22 $55,300 $9,466 

 

 

 

 

  

248



FY27 Budget Line Detail: Housing and Home & Community Based Services Focus Area 
MHTAAR and GF/MH Recommendations 

Budget Line: Page 3, Line 48 Project Name: Dementia Education and Prevention Grantee Name: SOA/DOH/DPH 

Proposed FY27 Amount: $130.0 MHTAAR Project Category: Capacity Building 

Comp Plan Relevance: Area of Focus 7, Services in the Least Restrictive Environment; Objective 2: Increase access to effective, flexible, person-centered, long-
term services and supports in urban and rural areas to avoid institutional placement and Area of Focus 2, Healthcare, Objective 1: Alaskans have access to and 
receive quality healthcare services. 

Description: This project provides funding for a position in the Division of Public Health to promote awareness of dementia, risk reduction strategies, and 
facilitate the Alaska Dementia Action Collaborative workgroup and activities. 

The Alaska Dementia Action Collaborative establishes annual objectives, provides mutual accountability to complete needed activities, and advocates to improve 
the system of care for beneficiaries with Alzheimer’s disease and related dementias (ADRD). It is comprised of members from across the state who represent 
people with lived experience, their caregivers and family members, social service providers, State of Alaska employees, and other community stakeholders 
committed to improving the support system for people impacted by ADRD. The position will also promote awareness of dementia risk reduction strategies, 
expanding upon the work of the Dementia Education and Prevention Program within the Division of Public Health. 

Analysis: Alaska has one the fastest growing senior populations in the country, and because of this, an increasing number of people have been diagnosed with 
ADRD. In 2014, the State of Alaska, in partnership with community stakeholders, created the first plan to serve Alaskans with ADRD. This plan was updated in 2020 
and finalized in 2021, creating “A Call for Action: Alaska’s 10-Year Map to Address Alzheimer’s Disease and Related Dementia”. This plan outlines goals for the next 
ten years with the mission “to coordinate the work of building a robust system of support for people impacted by ADRD.” The Alaska Dementia Action 
Collaborative has met over the past four years to implement the work of the plan. The Division of Public Health managing this project eliminates the need to 
contract a facilitator for these services and formalizes the collaborative’s work with DOH.   

249



  

FY27 Budget Line Detail: Housing and Home & Community Based Services Focus Area 
MHTAAR and GF/MH Recommendations 

 

 

Budget Line: Page 3, Line 49 Project Name: Home Modifications and Upgrades Grantee Name: DOH/SDS 

Proposed FY27 Amount: $1,150.0 
GF/MH recommendation 

Project Category: Capital - Construction 

Comp Plan Relevance: Area of Focus 7, Services in the Least Restrictive Environment; Objective 2: Increase access to effective, flexible, person-centered, long-
term services and supports in urban and rural areas to avoid institutional placement 

Description: The Home Modifications and Upgrades project provides capital funding to the Department of Health for grants for home modifications for Trust 
beneficiaries. Home modifications (also called environmental modifications or e-mods) provide environmental improvements to the physical structure of a 

house or apartment so that the home can be more accessible for beneficiaries with physical disabilities.  

Analysis: Home modifications increase the accessibility of current housing so that Trust beneficiaries can move into or remain in their own homes when they 
acquire a physical disability. Home modifications are available to people wherever they reside, regardless of whether they own or rent and with whom they 
live. Typical kinds of assistance provided are accessibility modifications or additions (e.g., widening doorways, remodeling bathrooms and/or kitchens, 
installing entrance ramps, and related equipment.) All funds are awarded through a statewide competitive grant process to qualified organizations. An average 
of 20-30 people receive home modifications through this grant annually. The Trust no longer supports this grant with MHTAAR funding, as FY23 was the final 
year of funding after 21 years of support. The project has now transitioned to a GF/MH recommendation that still needs advocacy. 
 

Five Year Project Funding History – Home Modifications & Upgrades 
Fiscal Year Trust Grant Amount Final Expended Amount 
FY26 GF/MH only recommendation in FY26 
FY25 GF/MH only recommendation in FY25 
FY24 GF/MH only recommendation in FY24 
FY23 $100,000 $100,000 
FY22 $250,000 $0 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

250



  

FY27 Budget Line Detail: Housing and Home & Community Based Services Focus Area 
MHTAAR and GF/MH Recommendations 

 

 

Budget Line: Page 3, Line 50 Project Name: Statewide Dementia Training Project Grantee Name: UAA/CHD 

Proposed FY27 Amount: $150.0 MHTAAR Project Category: Outreach and Education 

Comp Plan Relevance: Area of Focus 9.2 Advance the competencies of the healthcare, behavioral health, and public health workforce.  

Description: The Statewide Dementia Training Project will provide in-person and distance-delivered education about Alzheimer’s disease and related dementia. 
Funding includes staffing, travel, and a training website. 

Analysis: To address the lack of ADRD education statewide, the Alaska Training Cooperative is partnering with Alzheimer’s Resource of Alaska to expand access 
to dementia care training by offering dementia education models that reflect best practices. This grant will provide 10-15 dementia care trainings, pilot a new 
curriculum based on the outcome of stakeholder survey to be conducted on FY26, and implement a one-stop training website for the providers and care 
partners. The FY27 project is a Phase Two continuation of a FY26 project funded outside of the Trust. Additional dementia education is needed to improve the 
quality of life for Alaskans with ADRD and their caregivers. This project is expected to have a duration of 2-3 years, based on performance and ability to 
obtain additional resources. 

 

Budget Line: Page 3, Line 51 Project Name: Environmental Modifications Improvement Grantee Name: DOH/SDS 

Proposed FY27 Amount: $94.0 MHTAAR Project Category: Capacity Building 

Comp Plan Relevance: Area of Focus 7, Services in the Least Restrictive Environment; Objective 2: Increase access to effective, flexible, person-centered, long-
term services and supports in urban and rural areas to avoid institutional placement 

Description: The Environmental Modifications Improvement Project will provide partner funding to pay for a position at the Division of Senior and Disabilities 
Services (SDS). This position has the goal of removing barriers for Trust beneficiaries and service providers to use the Medicaid Waiver home modification service 
effectively. 

Analysis: The environmental modification service offered through the 1915c HCBS Medicaid waivers is in significant need of reform. The administrative burden of 
the program has led to an almost non-existent provider list of construction contractors willing to bill for waiver services, and because of the extra paperwork 
involved, care coordinators are more likely to go through grant programs for home modifications than process a request through the waiver services even when a 
client is eligible. For example, the Medicaid waiver that serves people with physical disabilities serves roughly 3,000 people, but fewer than 25 environmental 
modification requests were completed last fiscal year. Improvements to the Medicaid waiver environmental modifications service will help to create or maintain 
the accessibility of a person’s home so that they remain independent and delay or avoid an assisted living or nursing home. The project length is anticipated to be 
3-5 years, and it will be evaluated annually. SDS is sharing the cost of this position with the Trust. 

Five Year Project Funding History - Environmental Modifications Improvement 
Fiscal Year Trust Grant Amount Final Expended Amount 
FY26 $94,000 Grant started 7/1/2025  

251



  

FY27 Budget Line Detail: Housing and Home & Community Based Services Focus Area 
MHTAAR and GF/MH Recommendations 

 

 

Budget Line: Page 3, Line 52 Project Name: “No Wrong Door” Coordinated Access to 
Services 

Grantee Name: DOH/SDS 

Proposed FY27 Amount: $300.0 MHTAAR Project Category: Capacity Building 

Comp Plan Relevance: Area of Focus 7, Services in the Least Restrictive Environment; Objective 2: Increase access to effective, flexible, person-centered, long-
term services and supports in urban and rural areas to avoid institutional placement 

Description: The No Wrong Door – Coordinated Access to Services project will empower Trust beneficiaries to make informed decisions about their home and 
community-based services (HCBS) and long-term care by developing a network of service providers trained to focus on people, not process. This funding will 
enhance the existing work through the No Wrong Door federal grant being implemented by Senior and Disabilities Services, supporting program administration, 
project management, standardization of Medicaid Administrative Claiming processes, and stakeholder engagement activities.  

Analysis: The foundation of a No Wrong Door System is built on four key functions designed to transform access systems for all populations and all payers: State 
Governance and Administration, Public Outreach and Coordination with Key Referral Sources, Person-Centered Counseling (PCC), and Streamlined Eligibility for 
Public Programs. When fully implemented, a person needing help with HCBS will be able to contact any agency in the service network and receive person- 
centered, objective information that offers streamlined access to services. This project will enhance the work of the existing network and work to include 
other key agencies that may be operating in silos. The project length is anticipated to be 5 years, evaluated annually. A majority of the funding is provided by 
Senior and Disabilities Services. A sustainability plan for the No Wrong Door service network is part of the work expected.  

Five Year Project Funding History - "No Wrong Door" Coordinated Access to Services 
Fiscal Year Trust Grant Amount Final Expended Amount 
FY26 $300,000 Grant started 7/1/2025 

 

 

 

  

252



  

FY27 Budget Line Detail: Housing and Home & Community Based Services Focus Area 
MHTAAR and GF/MH Recommendations 

 

 

Budget Line: Page 3, Line 53 Project Name: Person Centered Transportation Grantee Name: DOH/SDS 

Proposed FY27 Amount: $250.0 MHTAAR Project Category: Capacity Building 

Comp Plan Relevance: Area of Focus 7, Services in the Least Restrictive Environment; Objective 2: Increase access to effective, flexible, person-centered, long-
term services and supports in urban and rural areas to avoid institutional placement 

Description: The Person-Centered Transportation project will rework how the Trust invests in transportation and partner with the Department of Health to 
develop new approaches to grant-funded transportation. Two to three small projects are expected to be funded in FY27. 

Analysis: Trust beneficiaries consistently identify reliable, accessible transportation as a need for their communities. Implementing transportation programs in 
Alaska is particularly challenging, and standard approaches have not met the needs of our beneficiaries, especially those who experience barriers to using 
traditional transportation services. Placement in DOH will allow for opportunities to work with Health Care Services on pilot projects to be tested for the 
Medicaid transportation program. This project is expected to have a duration of 3-5 years, based on performance and ability to obtain additional resources. 
The Trust will work with the Division of Senior and Disabilities Services to identify how this funding can create novel approaches to transportation and 
leverage other funding sources for long-term sustainability. 
 

Five Year Project Funding History - Person Centered Transportation 
Fiscal Year Trust Grant Amount Final Expended Amount 
FY26 $250,000 Grant started 7/1/2025 

 
 

 

 

253



FY26 Budget Line Detail: Workforce Priority Area 
MHTAAR and GF/MH Recommendations 

 

Budget Line: Page 3, Line 55 Project Name: The Alaska Training Cooperative  Grantee Name: UAA/CHD 

Proposed FY27 Amount: $585.0 
MHTAAR 

Project Category: Workforce Development/Training 

Comp Plan Relevance: Area of Focus 9, Increase workforce capacity statewide, Objective 9.2, Advance the competencies of the healthcare, behavioral health, 
and public health workforce. 
Description: The grant funds operations for the Alaska Training Cooperative (AKTC), which manages and facilitates training for direct care staff statewide who 
work for Trust beneficiary-serving agencies. The AKTC’s primary purpose is to train and equip the direct service workforce with evidence-based practices and 
skills. AKTC is part of UAA’s Center for Human Development (CHD). 
 
Analysis: The AKTC trains staff in corrections, behavioral health, developmental disabilities, employment support, early childhood, domestic violence, 
hospitals, and primary care. The AKTC trained 3000 unduplicated staff in FY23, with several thousand more taking more than one course. 98% were satisfied or 
very satisfied with the quality of the training. Using a Likert scale of 0-5, the average change performance measurement outcome for trainees was 4.55, 
indicating a strong motivation to apply the knowledge gained in the training. The AKTC also receives funding from the University of Alaska, the Division of 
Behavioral Health, and the Division of Public Health, as well as participant fees from class enrollment. Their funding is diversified, but primarily grant-funded 
by the Trust, which has decreased its MHTAAR commitment over the last several years, including in the proposed FY 26-27 budget.  
 

Five Year Project Funding History - The Alaska Training Cooperative 
Fiscal Year Trust Grant Amount Final Expended Amount 
FY26 $685,000 Grant started 7/1/2025 
FY25 $785,000 Pending final report due 10/1/2025 
FY24 $835,000 $765,492 
FY23 $885,600 $691,827 
FY22 $885,600 $808,748 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

254



FY26 Budget Line Detail: Workforce Priority Area 
MHTAAR and GF/MH Recommendations 

Budget Line: Page 3, Line 56 Project Name: UAA School Psychology Program Grantee Name: UAA/CAS 

Proposed FY27 Amount: $200.0 
MHTAAR 

Project Category: Workforce Development/Training 

Comp Plan Relevance: Area of Focus 9, Workforce capacity, Objective 9.1, Strengthen workforce capacity with improved recruitment and retention to obtain 
and maintain knowledge and support innovation and modernization. 
Description: The MHTAAR funding will be used by the University of Alaska Anchorage (UAA) College of Arts and Sciences (CAS) to develop a school psychology 
graduate training program. This will be the first of its kind in Alaska, and it was identified as a need by the Mental Health in Schools Report II. The funding 
supports hiring faculty, developing curriculum, and obtaining accreditation and approval by the Board of Regents. The implementation of this program will 
strengthen the workforce and improve access to school-based mental health services. 
Analysis: The Trust-funded Mental Health in Schools Report recommends improving access to mental health professionals in schools across the state. Alaska has 
a 1:1,500 ratio of school psychologists to students, far above the national standard of 1:500. This MHTAAR project aligns with the Early Childhood and Youth 
priority area in promoting early screening efforts for mental health and early intervention services. It also aligns with the Mental Health and Addiction 
Intervention Focus Area by improving treatment and recovery services.  

In FY24, UAA faculty developed the program coursework, syllabi, accreditation background work, and handbook and presented the curriculum to the UA Board 
of Regents for approval. The Regents fully endorsed and approved the School Psychologist program moving forward. In FY25, 16 students were accepted into 
the graduate school psychologist academic program and are scheduled to begin in the fall of 2025. Staffing was enhanced with the addition of a part-time 
Program Support Specialist. A new Project iSPARRC (Increasing School Psychologists in Alaska Rural and Regional Communities) website was launched to support 
program development and outreach.  The project will be sustainable by FY27 as the third cohort of students will enroll in the program and support it through 
tuition fees.  

Five Year Project Funding History - UAA School Psychology Program 
Fiscal Year Trust Grant Amount Final Expended Amount 
FY26 $200,000 Grant started 7/1/2025 
FY25 $200,000 Pending final report due 10/1/2025 
FY24 $87,300 $87,300 

255



FY26 Budget Line Detail: Workforce Priority Area 
MHTAAR and GF/MH Recommendations 

 

Budget Line: Page 3, Line 57 Project Name: Peer Support Certification  Grantee Name: DOH/DBH 

Proposed FY27 Amount: $50.0 
MHTAAR 

Project Category: Capacity Building 

Comp Plan Relevance: Area of Focus 9, Increase workforce capacity statewide, Objective 2, Advance the competencies of the healthcare, behavioral health, 
and public health workforce. 
Description: These funds equip the Department of Health Division of Behavioral Health (DBH) to oversee the continued dissemination of the Certified Peer 
Support Curriculum training, oversight of the Commission for Behavioral Health Certification, Peer Support Statewide Conference, and recruiting and retaining 
a peer workforce.  
 
Analysis: DBH funded multiple agencies through a competitive procurement process that allowed them to train new and existing staff in best practice peer 
support training, which set them on the path to becoming certified peer support professionals I, II, or III through the Commission for BH Certification. Forty-two 
individuals were certified in FY24. 191 staff members received training in peer work statewide. The SOA Labor Department predicts workforce shortages 
through 2035, which means helping increase the capacity of the peer workforce is even more critical. People with lived experience exist in every Trust 
beneficiary people group, so it is strategic to equip them to be a viable part of the mental health and substance misuse beneficiary workforce. The state opioid 
response grant, administered through DBH, also helps fund peer support certification training. 
 

Five Year Project Funding History - Peer Support Certification 
Fiscal Year Trust Grant Amount Final Expended Amount 
FY26 $50,000 Grant started 7/1/2025 
FY25 $50,000 Pending final report due 10/1/2025 
FY24 $100,000 $100,000 
FY23 $130,000 $130,000 
FY22 $139,500 $139,500 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

256



FY26 Budget Line Detail: Workforce Priority Area 
MHTAAR and GF/MH Recommendations 

 

Budget Line: Page 3, Line 58 Project Name: Individual Placement & Supports (IPS) 
Capacity Building  

Grantee Name: DOH/DBH 

Proposed FY27 Amount: $30.0 MHTAAR Project Category: Individual Placements and Supports (IPS), Capacity Building 

Comp Plan Relevance: Area of Focus 3: Trust Beneficiaries have strong economic and social well-being, Objective 3.3 Expand resources that promote successful, 
long-term employment 
Description: The Individual Placement & Supports (IPS) Capacity Building project supports the Department of Health/Division of Behavioral Health staff in 
coordination, training, and oversight of IPS systems development and grantee support throughout the state. IPS is an evidence-based model of supported 
employment that supports Trust beneficiaries with disabilities or mental health conditions in sustaining meaningful work, becoming more independent and 
financially stable, and experiencing increased self-esteem. Funds are used for IPS program fidelity reviews, training, technical assistance, and general outreach 
and awareness related to beneficiary employment.  
  
Analysis: Activities associated with this project support IPS-related recommendations from the Work Matters Task Force, which convened in 2021-2022. In FY24 
(through March 15, 2024), this funding has supported two on-site fidelity reviews of two Kenai Peninsula programs implementing the IPS model, with findings 
that both were commendably in compliance with the model. It also supported bimonthly technical assistance sessions that provided tailored support to all IPS 
grantees, ensuring the best practices were implemented with high fidelity to the model. This funding also supports the facilitation of the statewide IPS steering 
committee that meets quarterly. Continued support of this funding will ensure the continued expansion of IPS programming throughout the state and adherence 
to the IPS model for programs that implement it. Current funding is supported through FY27. 
 

Five Year Project Funding History - Individual Placement & Supports (IPS) Capacity Building 
Fiscal Year Trust Grant Amount Final Expended Amount 
FY26 $30,000 Grant started 7/1/2025 
FY25 $30,000 Pending final report due 10/1/2025 
FY24 $30,000 $30,000 
FY23 $30,000 $30,000 
FY22 $40,000 $40,000 

 
 

 

 

 

 

257



FY26 Budget Line Detail: Workforce Priority Area 
MHTAAR and GF/MH Recommendations 

 

Budget Line: Page 3, Line 59 Project Name: Alaska Workforce Profile Grantee Name: DOLWD/Administrative Services Division 

Proposed FY27 Amount: $25.0 
MHTAAR 

Project Category: Data/Planning 

Comp Plan Relevance: Area of Focus 10 Data; Objective 10.2 Encourage a culture of data-driven decision-making. 

Description: This project allows the Trust access to the Department of Labor & Workforce Development’s (DOLWD) Research and Data Analysis section to 
provide technical and data analytical support on issues impacting Trust beneficiaries and the systems that serve them. The funding supports DOLWD staff time, 
expertise, and the use of data systems for consultation with the Trust. 
 
Analysis: This project helps the Trust identify and forecast the workforce-related status and needs of Trust beneficiaries, as well as the systems that serve 
them. An example of the DOLWD team’s work resulted in data consultation and expertise related to national trends impacting Alaska on dementia workforce 
issues and direct service providers, supporting efforts of the AK Dementia Action Collaborative, and a profile of the University of Alaska behavioral health-
related graduates. Their work highlights the workforce problem, while also providing pathways for bringing more practitioners into the field to help 
beneficiaries. We anticipate maintaining this data analytical service as an ongoing resource for the Trust. 
 

Five Year Project Funding History - Alaska Workforce Profile 
Fiscal Year Trust Grant Amount Final Expended Amount 
FY26 $25,000 Grant started 7/1/2025 
FY25 $25,000 Pending final report due 10/1/2025 
FY24 $25,000 $25,000 
FY23 $25,000 $25,000 
FY22 $25,000 $25,000 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

258



FY26 Budget Line Detail: Workforce Priority Area 
MHTAAR and GF/MH Recommendations 

 

Budget Line: Page 3, Line 60 Project Name: Direct Support Professional 
Training/Professional Development 

Grantee Name: DOH/SDS 

Proposed FY27 Amount: $200.0 
MHTAAR 

Project Category: Capacity Building 

Comp Plan Relevance: Area of Focus 9, Workforce capacity, Objective 9.1, Strengthen workforce capacity with improved recruitment and retention to obtain 
and maintain knowledge and support innovation and modernization. 
Description: The Direct Support Professional (DSP) training is an incentivized program for direct care staff and the agency they work for to support staff to 
complete the education and coaching deliverables required through their agency.  If they complete DPS training, staff and their employer will receive financial 
incentives. The National Alliance for Direct Support Professionals (NADSP) certification program is considered one of the best competency-based training 
programs in the U.S.. It is the model that SDS and UAA are partnering on for DSPs in the field. This program is administered through DOH’s Division of Senior 
and Disability Services (SDS). 
 
Analysis: SDS, UAA, and the Alaska Association on Developmental Disabilities (AADD) planned and implemented a program to incentivize a NADSP pilot involving 
15 agencies in FY23-24, utilizing American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) funding. The program takes 18 months for a staff member to obtain their certification 
milestones, which include 100 hours of training, on-the-job coaching, and application of the taught competencies. These combined agencies had 128 DSPs who 
worked through the training and certification levels in two cohorts. 59% of the participants completed their stage 1, 2, and/or 3 levels of certification. The 
participants and the host agencies considered this pilot successful. This process has supported the engagement, recruitment, training, and retention of DSPs for 
Trust beneficiary serving agencies in the intellectual and Developmental Disabilities (ID & DD) and mental health system. FY26 will support the Full Lives 
Conference, providing approved continuing education opportunities for DSPs at all certification levels, including travel and conference access, while 
maintaining the incentive structure and data collection mechanisms that tracked DSP job satisfaction and employee retention, which contributed to the original 
pilot's success. In FY27, the funding will continue to support the DSP training and professional development. The Trust will continue to assess program outcomes 
to inform future funding decisions.  
 
 

Five Year Project Funding History - Direct Support Professional Training/Professional Development 
Fiscal Year Trust Grant Amount Final Expended Amount 
FY26 $200,000 Grant started 7/1/2025 
FY25 $300,000 Pending final report due 10/1/2025 

 
 

 

 

 

259



FY26 Budget Line Detail: Workforce Priority Area 
MHTAAR and GF/MH Recommendations 

 

Budget Line: Page 3, Line 61 Project Name: Autism Awareness and Response for Public 
Safety  

Grantee Name: UAA - CHD 

Proposed FY27 Amount: $150.0 
MHTAAR 

Project Category: Capacity Building 

Comp Plan Relevance: Area of Focus 6: Protecting Vulnerable Alaskans; Objective 6.5: Ensure vulnerable Alaskans understand their rights and responsibilities  

Description: The funds will start in FY27 and will aim to improve the safety and quality of interactions between law enforcement officers and individuals on the 
autism spectrum in Anchorage, Alaska. The proposed pilot is designed to address the needs of people with autism who may come into contact with law 
enforcement and, secondarily, their families, loved ones, and caregivers. Anticipated outcomes include reduced escalation during police interactions, increased 
officer confidence and competency, enhanced safety for both officers and individuals with autism, and improved relationships between law enforcement and 
the disability community.  
 
Analysis: Trust funding will be allocated to the University of Alaska Center for Human Development (CHD) to collaboratively develop training for the Anchorage 
Police Department (APD) involving autistic self-advocates, caregivers, and professionals with law enforcement experience. The goal is to enhance officers’ 
understanding, empathy, and skill sets when interacting with autistic individuals, ensuring these encounters are safe and appropriate.  
 
Research indicates that individuals with developmental disabilities, particularly autism, face a heightened risk during interactions with law enforcement due to 
their disabilities. While this pilot program will be focused locally in the Municipality of Anchorage, the curriculum and implementation model will be designed 
to be scalable for use in other law enforcement agencies across Alaska. 
 
The project team includes a CHD staff member with law enforcement experience, who will guide outreach efforts, tailor training content to the real-world 
context of policing, and support training delivery in a respectful, collaborative, and informed manner. Additionally, this initiative will build upon existing 
relationships with the law enforcement community, which has been requesting and benefiting from CHD training for many years.  
 
Anticipated outcomes include reduced escalation during police interactions, increased officer confidence and competency, enhanced safety for both officers 
and individuals with autism, and improved relationships between law enforcement and the disability community. The project aims to train up to 150 officers 
during the initial phase with APD and reach approximately 1,200 beneficiaries. This project's final year of funding is FY27.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

260



FY26 Budget Line Detail: Workforce Priority Area 
MHTAAR and GF/MH Recommendations 

 

Budget Line: Page 3, Line 62 Project Name: Alaska Area Health Education Centers Grantee Name: UAA/AHEC  

Proposed FY27 Amount: $250.0 
MHTAAR 

Project Category: Capacity Building 

Comp Plan Relevance: Area of Focus 9, Workforce capacity, Objective 9.1, Strengthen workforce capacity with improved recruitment and retention to obtain 
and maintain knowledge and support innovation and modernization. 
Description: The Alaska Health Education Centers (AHEC) are based statewide within the University of Alaska system and include six AHEC centers, with each 
state region represented. The AHEC system provides a framework for implementing a pipeline healthcare system for adolescents to engage and learn about 
health-related careers. This system provides the infrastructure and ability for youth to gain experience and college credits toward enrolling in health-related 
disciplines within the university system.  
 
Analysis: The AHEC infrastructure provides the framework for “Grow Your Own” in Alaska by setting up a pipeline for adolescents to learn and get hands-on 
experience in the health care system. In FY 24, 13 communities participated by hosting health career camps in the following villages: Nulato, Rampart, Nome, 
Soldotna, Anchorage, Dillingham, Bethel, Newhalen, Sand Point, Perryville, Unalaska, Cordova, and Kotzebue. There were over 300 participants in these 
pipeline camps who gained knowledge of careers and credits, such as Youth/Teen Mental Health First Aid. 93% of the participants indicated an increase in 
knowledge and the ability to apply the concepts learned from the certifications. The Trust will continue to assess the impact of its investment in this project, 
and that assessment will inform future funding recommendations.  
 
The AHEC Program, through its regional centers and centralized Clearinghouse for Alaska’s Continuing Health Education (CACHE) team, continues to support 
Alaska’s healthcare workforce pipeline and retention infrastructure. In FY25, AHEC programming reached 42 communities, delivering youth exposure programs, 
internships, and continuing education across various healthcare disciplines. Programs such as the Summer High School Internship Program (SHIP) and regional 
career camps have resulted in measurable outcomes. Since 2021, SHIP interns have contributed nearly 3,400 hours of service, with 18 being hired into 
healthcare roles and others returning for clinical placements. These results support the long-term goal of training and retaining healthcare workers in Alaska 
communities.  CACHE expanded significantly in FY25 and will continue into FY26 as the primary statewide hub for Continuing Education (CE) delivery. In FY25 
over 3,000 unique participants engaged in CE programming. The total number of events, including trainings, webinars, and courses, has tripled in volume 
compared to previous years. The Trust will continue to assess program outcomes to inform future funding decisions.  
 

Five Year Project Funding History - Alaska Area Health Education Centers 
Fiscal Year Trust Grant Amount Final Expended Amount 
FY26 $150,000 Grant started 7/1/2025 
FY25 $100,000 Pending final report due 10/1/2025 
FY24 $100,000 $100,000 
FY23 $55,000 $55,000 
FY22 $55,000 $55,000 

 
 

  

261



FY26 Budget Line Detail: Workforce Priority Area 
MHTAAR and GF/MH Recommendations 

 

Budget Line: Page 3, Line 63 Project Name: Supported Employment Workforce Grantee Name: UAA/CHD 

Proposed FY27 Amount: $75.0 
MHTAAR 

Project Category: Capacity Building 

Comp Plan Relevance: Area of Focus 9, Workforce, Objective 9.1, Strengthen workforce capacity with improved recruitment and retention to obtain and 
maintain knowledge, support, innovation and modernization.   
Description: The UAA Center for Human Development (CHD) provides planning, training, coordination, and collaboration with the Division of Vocational 
Rehabilitation, Senior and Disability Services, and community agencies to ensure a competent workforce to access supported employment and related services 
as beneficiaries seek competitive integrated employment. CHD oversees best-practice training courses, maintains national certification as a training center 
through the Association for Community Rehabilitation Educators (ACRE), and provides ongoing technical assistance to agency staff and beneficiary support in 
various pre-employment and employment models. 
  
Analysis: CHD maintains the National Certification in Employment Services (NCES) through the Association of Certified Rehabilitation Educators (ACRE). This 
allows CHD to equip SDS, DVR, and agency staff to provide certified employment coaching and consultation with potential employers and Trust beneficiaries. 
This includes customized employment, self-employment, and job coaching. In FY24, 38 agency/SOA staff completed the NCES course. On a Likert scale of 0-3, 
the participants' overall satisfaction with the instructors and content was 2.36, and their likelihood of implementing what they learned in the community with 
beneficiaries was 2.32. The other significant development this past year is that CHD staff have been working with AADD and SDS to revise and update the 
Conditions of Participation for Supported Employment, in collaboration with HCB services. Once SDS completes this process, CHD will provide the necessary 
Supported Employment support to agency staff, enabling them to implement this best practice. In FY27, the CHD will continue to expand workforce 
development and educational opportunities related to Trust Beneficiary Employment and Engagement strategies.  
 

Five Year Project Funding History - Supported Employment Workforce 
Fiscal Year Trust Grant Amount Final Expended Amount 
FY26 $75,000 Grant started 7/1/2025 
FY25 $100,000 Pending final report due 10/1/2025 
FY24 $100,000 $100,000 
FY23 $100,000 $92,208 
FY22 $100,000 $83,852 

 
 

 

  

262



FY26 Budget Line Detail: Workforce Priority Area 
MHTAAR and GF/MH Recommendations 

Budget Line: Page 3, Line 64 Project Name: Alaska Health Occupations Students of 
America  

Grantee Name: UAA/AHEC 

Proposed FY27 Amount: $100.0  
MHTAAR 

Project Category: Capacity Building 

Comp Plan Relevance: Area of Focus 9, Workforce, Objective 9.1, Strengthen workforce capacity with improved recruitment and retention to obtain and 
maintain knowledge, support, innovation and modernization.   
Description: The MHTAAR funding will be used to formalize a statewide advisor position for HOSA, Future Health Professionals, an international Career and 
Technical Student Organization (CTSO), support the HOSA annual Statewide Student Leadership Conference, and expand opportunities for Alaskan youth 
throughout the state to explore and pursue healthcare careers.  

Analysis: The Alaska Area for Health Education Centers (AHEC) has been engaging youth in healthcare career pathways for over 20 years. These pathways help 
students explore careers in behavioral healthcare while learning important health and wellness skills. The most successful program in achieving this goal is 
HOSA, Future Health Professionals, an international Career and Technical Student Organization (CTSO) dedicated to health care education and workforce 
development. Nearly every state in the nation has a dedicated health science education coordinator to build health science programs of study across the state 
and serve as a HOSA State Advisor. To date, this support has been provided in-kind but has been essential to the continuation of the HOSA program, which now 
boasts over 400 participants annually and over 25 chapters across the state. These chapters are primarily located in urban schools located in Anchorage, 
Wasilla, Palmer, and Fairbanks. Support for Alaska HOSA via the Alaska AHEC program would expand chapters and participation to schools in Dillingham, 
Juneau, Sitka, Soldotna, Homer, Seward, Cordova, Nome, Bethel, and the Yukon Koyukuk School District, with a goal of increasing total HOSA participants to 
over 500 annually, with over 30 chapters statewide.  

263



FY26 Budget Line Detail: Workforce Priority Area 
MHTAAR and GF/MH Recommendations 

 

Budget Line: Page 3, Line 65 Project Name: Psychological Services Center Expansion  Grantee Name: UAA/CAS 

Proposed FY27 Amount: $103.0 
MHTAAR 

Project Category: Capacity Building 

Comp Plan Relevance: Area of Focus 9, Workforce, Objective 9.1, Strengthen workforce capacity with improved recruitment and retention to obtain and 
maintain knowledge, support, innovation and modernization.   
Description: The University of Alaska Anchorage Psychological Services Center (PSC) aims to enhance its training and service delivery capabilities in behavioral 
health by expanding its administrative support. Currently, PSC trains future professionals in psychological services while providing care to individuals struggling 
with mental health and substance misuse issues. The addition of a full-time administrative support position will alleviate the administrative burden on existing 
staff and clinicians, enabling them to focus on their clinical responsibilities, including the upcoming UAA School Psychology MS program and the introduction of 
new pediatric services.   
 
Analysis: The Psychological Services Center (PSC) at the University of Alaska Anchorage provides behavioral health services and hands-on training for future 
mental health professionals. Each year, the PSC delivers over 1,440 visits to approximately 145 individual Trust beneficiaries. Services include individual and 
group therapy, psychological assessments, and support for individuals experiencing mental health and substance use challenges. Students at the PSC often 
struggle to balance their clinical responsibilities with a significant administrative workload, which can diminish both their training experience and the quality of 
care clients receive. Establishing a full-time administrative position would allow clinical staff to focus on enhancing service quality and developing new 
programs, including the upcoming UAA School Psychology MS program and planned expansion into pediatric services. By the end of FY27, the PSC will explore 
other funding options for this position, including offsetting part of the cost with revenue generated by the PSC.  

 

  

264



FY26 Budget Line Detail: Workforce Priority Area 
MHTAAR and GF/MH Recommendations 

 

Budget Line: Page 3, Line 66 Project Name: Clinical Psychology Program APA 
Accreditation   

Grantee Name: UAA/CAS 

Proposed FY27 Amount: $50.0  
MHTAAR 

Project Category: Capacity Building 

Comp Plan Relevance: Area of Focus 9, Workforce, Objective 9.1, Strengthen workforce capacity with improved recruitment and retention to obtain and 
maintain knowledge, support, innovation and modernization.   
Description: The University of Alaska Anchorage MS in Clinical Psychology program is dedicated to training a skilled behavioral health workforce to support Trust 
beneficiaries. The program is seeking accreditation from the American Psychological Association (APA) to align with new national standards. Nationally, there 
are only 3 APA-accredited master’s programs. Accreditation will ensure eligibility for licensure and federal job opportunities and strengthen partnerships with 
local clinical training agencies.  
 
Analysis: The University of Alaska Anchorage MS in Clinical Psychology program provides essential training for Alaska’s behavioral health workforce who serve 
Trust beneficiaries. American Psychological Association (APA) accreditation is the gold standard for the educational component of psychology professional 
licensure at the doctoral level. The APA has historically only accredited doctoral programs, and starting in 2024, it started to accredit health service psychology 
master’s programs with the vision of psychology as a multi-tiered profession. The program provides training for approximately 24 MS trainees each year, with an 
average of 10-12 graduates who can seek licensure as Licensed Professional Counselors or Licensed Psychological Associates. Accreditation will positively impact 
clinical training partners, including the agencies that host student interns, such as Alaska Behavioral Health, tribal health organizations, and others. 
Accreditation ensures that UAA continues to provide a pipeline of well-trained students to train in the community, who then go to work with Alaskans as 
independent providers. Supporting accreditation efforts will have a lasting impact on the behavioral health workforce, ensuring the availability of high-quality, 
employable providers. The APA accreditation is estimated to take 18-24 months to complete.  

 

 

265



FY27 Budget Line Detail: Early Childhood & Youth Priority Area 
MHTAAR and GF/MH Recommendations 

 

Budget Line: Page 3, Line 68 Project Name: ILP Statewide Equity Project Grantee Name:  Department of Health/Senior and 
Disability Services/ Early Intervention/Infant Learning 
Program (DOH/SDS/EIILP)  

Proposed FY27 Amount: $300.0 
MHTAAR 

Grant Type: Capacity Building 

Comp Plan Relevance: Area of Focus: Early Childhood & Youth.  Object 1.1:  Promote practice-informed, comprehensive developmental screening efforts and 
early intervention services.   
Description:  This project will fund programming administered through SDS to increase access to Infant Learning Program/Early Intervention (ILP/EI) services 
for infants, toddlers, and their families.   Rural programs have had less access to specialists who provide screenings and evaluations for vision and hearing. 
This funding will increase access to specialized screenings, developmental evaluations, and interventions, reduce barriers to enrollment in rural areas, and 
increase equity in ILP/EI within small, rural communities.      
 
Analysis: The ILP/EI arena has been flat-funded for many years, resulting in the discontinuation of some of the specialized services, such as vision and hearing 
evaluations.  While many local EI/ILP programs struggle to find services, the impact of the loss of statewide programs has been especially great for Alaska’s 
smaller and more rural communities. This project will work towards increased parity in ILP service delivery across regions through developing a statewide hub 
of hearing and vision specialists who can provide screening, assessments, intervention, and consultation. This will increase access to specialized services and 
reduce barriers to enrollment in rural areas, making EI/ILP services within small, rural communities more like urban programs. The next stages of this project 
will consider other equity strategies, such as a billing consortium to support Medicaid and private insurance billing of therapy and other services for smaller 
programs and expanding the statewide hub of services to include additional services such as occupational, physical, speech, and infant mental health 
therapies. The projected length of Trust funding for this project is 5 years to establish the service and fiscal hubs while addressing the gaps and challenges 
identified during the process. 
 

Five Year Project Funding History - ILP Statewide Equity Project 
Fiscal Year Trust Grant Amount Final Expended Amount 
FY26 $300,000 Grant started 7/1/2025 

 
 

 
 
 

  

266



FY27 Budget Line Detail: Early Childhood & Youth Priority Area 
MHTAAR and GF/MH Recommendations 

Budget Line: Page 3, Line 69 Project Name: Pediatric Mental Health Care Access Program Grantee Name:  DOH/DPH/WCFH 

Proposed FY27 Amount: $36.6 
MHTAAR 

Grant Type:  Direct Service 

Comp Plan Relevance: Area of Focus: Early Childhood & Youth. Objective 1.2:  Ensure accurate identification and support of social-emotional needs for 
children and their family, congruent with their cultural identification. 
Description:  This project supports capacity development for pediatric primary care and behavioral health integration in pediatric settings through providing 
access for Alaska primary care providers, pediatricians, and behavioral health prescribers to tele-psychiatric consultation through Seattle Children’s Hospital 
and connection to local resources through Help Me Grow Alaska (HMG-AK).   

Analysis: A PAL-PAK evaluation was completed in spring 2025. This report included data collected since the program began in 2019 and a provider survey 
conducted in the fall of 2024.  The average call volume annually for FY20-24 was 106.4 calls.  Key findings include: 

• The psychiatric consultation line is primarily used for medication-related questions  
• Large pediatric practices in Anchorage are the primary users of the consultation line and care coordination from HMG-AK  
• Most calls for the consultation align with the school year  
• The regional use of the consultation line and HMG-AK is impacted by the availability of local resources and is often provider-dependent  

The report also reviewed the continuing education component offered to medical providers, school counselors, and school nurses.  The support and 
consultation opportunities have helped develop skills and decreased some of the isolation these professionals feel working in rural and remote Alaska without 
immediate professional peer support.   
 
The expansion of the project will reach early childhood providers with mental and behavioral health needs through infant and early childhood consultation as 
part of the services offered through HMG-AK. Additionally, work is being done on an Alaska supplement to the Alaska Care guide to offer healthcare providers 
and professionals an introduction and overview of the Alaska landscape, Alaska Native regions, cultures, and history. Trust funds are currently planned through 
FY27 to support this program.     
 

Five Year Project Funding History - Pediatric Mental Health Care Access Program 
Fiscal Year Trust Grant Amount Final Expended Amount 
FY26 $171,600 Grant started 7/1/2025 
FY25 $140,000 Pending final report due 10/1/2025 

 
 

 
 

  

267



FY27 Budget Line Detail: Early Childhood & Youth Priority Area 
MHTAAR and GF/MH Recommendations 

Budget Line: Page 3, Line 70 Project Name: Trauma Engaged Schools PBIS Coaching Grantee Name:  DEED-Health & Safety 

Proposed FY27 Amount: $150.0 
MHTAAR 

Grant Type:  Capacity Building 

Comp Plan Relevance:  Area of Focus: Early Childhood & Youth, Objective 1.2: Ensure accurate identification and support of social-emotional needs for 
children and their families, congruent with their cultural identification. Objective 1.3: Improve social determinants of health and strengthen family resiliency 
through a comprehensive framework to promote consideration of shared protection and risk factors. 
Description:  This project will assist school districts in developing mental health supports for students of all ages, prioritizing rural and remote school districts 
that do not otherwise have available mental health resources.  Funds support a long term non-permanent position within the Department of Education and 
Early Development (DEED) to provide support to staff (rural school counselors, school social workers, teachers, etc.) through monthly meetings which can 
include presentations on relevant topics as requested by the group, coaching to school districts which includes PBIS and trauma engaged coaching and training, 
and crisis response.  
 
Analysis:  In FY24, system-level impacts of this funding included the monthly provision of PBIS coaching to 32 schools in 7 school districts (Bristol Bay, Kodiak 
Island, Kuspuk, Lower Kuskokwim, Nome, North Slope, and Southwest Region), monthly Trauma-Engaged coaching to Kenny Lake School, and monthly support 
to rural school counselors and social workers implementing mental health supports in schools. The total number of Trust beneficiaries served through the 
project was 3840. The total number of individuals participating in professional training provided was 449; of the participants who attended the training, 95% 
reported increasing their knowledge and skills. In the FY25 mid-year Project Update report, DEED noted that this project currently serves 37 schools in 11 rural 
districts. Additionally, in partnership with DPH, the project staff supports rural school counselors and social workers, focusing on those working itinerantly. 
The project staff person is part of the team updating the PBIS eLearning module and the Restorative Practices for Educators eLearning module.   Response 
from these rural providers is enthusiastic, with 23 districts and over 50 school counselors and social workers participating since the project began. Because of 
the state-level focus on school-based services, there is continued evaluation of the data and the statewide implementation plan related to the project impact 
and need. An increase in the budget line item in FY27 is indicated to support the data and evaluation component.   
 

Five Year Project Funding History - Trauma Engaged Schools PBIS Coaching 
Fiscal Year Trust Grant Amount Final Expended Amount 
FY26 $130,000 Grant started 7/1/2025 
FY25 $130,000 Pending final report due 10/1/2025 
FY24 $120,000 $110,595 
FY23 $150,000 $126,373 
FY22 $150,000 $91,016 

 

 

  

268



FY27 Budget Line Detail: Early Childhood & Youth Priority Area 
MHTAAR and GF/MH Recommendations 

Budget Line: Page 3, Line 71 Project Name: Early Childhood Intervention: Pyramid Model Grantee Name: DOH/DPH 

Proposed FY27 Amount: $151.0 
MHTAAR 

Grant Type: Capacity Building  

Comp Plan Relevance:   Area of Focus:  1:  Programs Serving young children promote resiliency, prevent and address trauma, and provide access to early 
intervention services, Objective 1.2: Provide ongoing support to ensure accurate identification and treatment of social-emotional needs for children and their 
caregivers, congruent with their cultural identification. 
Description:  Trust funds in FY27 will support a position within the Department of Health (DOH), Division of Public Health (DPH) that will support the 
development and implementation of the Pyramid Model for infants and young children state-wide.  This position will support training, coaching, and support of 
provider staff.  Early childhood Positive Behavior Intervention Supports (PBIS) is called the Pyramid Model.  The Pyramid Model is a comprehensive framework of 
evidence-based practices for early childhood special education personnel, early intervention personnel, early childhood educators, and early care personnel, 
and the families of these children from birth to 5.  It promotes healthy social, emotional, and behavioral outcomes for children from birth to 5 and addresses 
challenging behaviors.   
 
Analysis:  This project will impact the infant and early childhood population and aligns with the comp plan.  DPH, the Department of Education and Early 
Development (DEED), and early childhood community partners have begun the implementation of the Pyramid Model within the state, which a Pyramid Model 
State-wide Leadership Team guides.   Funding for this project will support and expand current efforts.  Research supports the implementation of this model and 
identifies that children have better social skills and less problem behavior in Pyramid Model classrooms.  While this practice bolsters positive outcomes for 
children, setting the foundation for later behaviors, it also impacts the workforce with positive outcomes regarding teacher retention for classrooms that 
implement the model.  This funding is to be initiated in FY27 and is expected to run 4-5 years to ensure the adoption of the model state-wide and with high 
fidelity to the model.   
      

 
 

  

269



FY27 Budget Line Detail: Early Childhood & Youth Priority Area 
MHTAAR and GF/MH Recommendations 

Budget Line: Page 3, Line 72 Project Name: Family Services Training Center- ICY 
Conference 

Grantee Name:  UAA/CHD/FSTC 

Proposed FY27 Amount: $80.0 
MHTAAR 

Grant Type: Conference/sponsorship 

Comp Plan Relevance: Area of Focus: Workforce. Objective 9.2: Advance the competencies of the healthcare, behavioral health, and public health workforce.  

Description:  This project supports the Family Services Training Center (FSTC) in partnership with UAA under the Center for Human Development (CHD).  This 
funding supports professional training for Alaska’s early childhood, childhood, and youth service providers through the facilitation of a yearly Infant, Childhood 
& Youth (ICY) conference for providers statewide.  The Infant, Child, and Youth (ICY) conference will provide training and networking opportunities for up to 200 
behavioral health professionals in Alaska who serve Trust beneficiaries.  Additionally, the conference provides CEs for professionals to maintain their licenses to 
provide services.  

Analysis:  FY25 Infant, Child & Youth Conference was a 3-day training event for statewide providers with 177 unique learners (not including staff).  This 
training event was well-received and included opportunities for networking and cross-collaboration.  Training Alaska’s infant, child, and youth behavioral 
health workforce remains a priority for retention and continuous quality improvement for implementing evidence-based practices.  Funding is budgeted to 
continue through 2027.    

Five Year Project Funding History - Family Services Training Center - ICY Conference 
Fiscal Year Trust Grant Amount Final Expended Amount 
FY26 $50,000 Grant started 7/1/2025 
FY25 $200,000 Pending final report due 10/1/2025 
FY24 $200,000 $200,000 

270



FY27 Budget Line Detail: Early Childhood & Youth Priority Area 
MHTAAR and GF/MH Recommendations 

Budget Line: Page 3, Line 73 Project Name: ACEs Data Linkage and Analysis Grantee Name:  DOH/DPH/WCFH 

Proposed FY27 Amount: $175.0  Grant Type: Data/Planning 

Comp Plan Relevance: Area of Focus: Data. Objective 10.2: Encourage a culture of data-driven decision making that includes data sharing, data analysis, and 
management to link support services across DOH and DFCS divisions and other departments. 
Description: This funding currently supports a staff position focused on child wellbeing epidemiology. This position enables expanded research capacity on 
Adverse Childhood Experiences (ACEs), protective factors, and links to health outcomes, focusing on families facing mental, behavioral, and substance use 
challenges.  It also supports the foundational Alaska Longitudinal Child Abuse and Neglect Linkage (ALCANLink) infrastructure, including the backbone of 
ALCANLink; the Pregnancy Risk Assessment System (PRAMS). Additionally, this funding supports the continued development of the screening tool for pre-birth 
household challenges. DPH will blend funds with partners (e.g., Case Family Programs) to support a randomized clinical trial of the developed screener before 
widespread adoption. This screen is directly related to early identification and prevention of key factors associated with developing substance use issues, 
mental health challenges, and other developmental issues that mitigate optimized adult health.  This project enhances statewide capacity to evaluate 
childhood trauma by increasing relevant data and collaborating with diverse partners to develop initiatives aligning with the Trust's mission.  It also informs 
data-driven strategies and policies for early intervention and prevention of behavioral health disorders.  
 
Analysis:  FY24 accomplishments include expanding the cohort to include 2009-2021, renewal of a data use agreement between ALCANLink and the 
Department of Education and Early Development, multiple local and national presentations regarding the link between pre-birth and early childhood 
experiences and early child educational readiness and performance, increasing access to data on early child health indicators, the completion of a test pre-
birth household challenges screening tool which seeks to support early identification of families that could benefit from home visiting and/or caregiver 
navigation, and three publications.  In the FY25 midyear Update Report, this project noted onboarding and training the new epidemiology specialist, validating 
linkages between PRAMS and the Alaska Birth Defects Registry (ABDR), and updating the ALCANLink data infrastructure.  This project continues to make strides 
related to ACEs data, producing results and recommendations to reduce the impact of ACEs on Trust beneficiaries. It remains a key source of information and 
intervention support for the Trust’s Early Childhood & Youth initiative area.  
 
In FY27, the funding for this project has been increased from $100.0 to $175.0 to support additional aspects of this data work.  While the funding will continue 
to support the epidemiologist position primarily, further funding was included to address Pregnancy Risk Assessment System (PRAMS) weighting which was 
previously provided by the CDC but has become the responsibility of the state, as well as partial support of a senior public health scientist who developed the 
ALCANLink project and oversees the epidemiologist position and the Trust project. Continued funding is recommended for this project through FY27, with the 
plan to maintain it to support this critical data work at the state level. 
 

Five Year Project Funding History - ACEs Data Linkage and Analysis  
Fiscal Year Trust Grant Amount Final Expended Amount 
FY26 $100,000 Grant started 7/1/2025 
FY25 $100,000 Pending final report due 10/1/2025 
FY24 $100,000 $43,198 
FY23 $100,000 $87,062 
FY22 $100,000 $75,451 

 

271



FY27 Budget Line Detail: Non-Focus Area Allocations 
Authority Grant Funding 

Budget Line: Page 4, Line 2 Project Name: Partnerships/Designated Grants Grantee(s): To be determined 

Proposed FY27 Amount: $2,000.0 AG Project Category: varied 

Comp Plan Relevance: . 

Description: The Trust awards partnership grants to organizations that serve Trust beneficiaries for a specific purpose or need that are aligned with the Trust’s 
mission and priorities. Typically, partnership grants are one-time grants with a one-year term, and they support a variety of purposes. 

In FY25, the Trust funded 40 partnership grants for a total of $1,747,057*.  
 
Details on the partnership grants awarded can be found in the FY25 quarterly grant reports: 
 

• Grant Summary January 2025 - March 2025 
• Grant Summary October 2024 - December 2024 
• Grant Summary July 2024 - September 2024 

 
*Note: grant approvals from the final quarter of FY24 will be considered at the August 2025 board meeting, so are not reflected in the information above.  
 
Analysis: The Partnership grant program is the Trust’s general grant bucket to meet a variety of beneficiary needs around the state. On an ongoing basis, the 
Trust receives Letters of Interest from organizations that describe their potential projects and how they will impact the beneficiary groups that they serve. 
Trust program staff review the Letters of Interest on an ongoing basis to assess the beneficiary connection as well as how the proposals fit with the Trust’s 
budget priorities and currently available funding. Following this review process, projects that are identified as good programmatic fits are individually analyzed 
by program staff and go through the Trust’s grant approval process with the board. Each approved Partnership grant has individual performance measures and 
following the conclusion of the grant is reviewed for compliance. 
 
The Partnership grant program allows the Trust to respond in a timely fashion to the needs of beneficiary serving organizations throughout the fiscal year. Each 
Partnership grant receives an extensive programmatic review before it is referred to the Trustees for consideration. 
 

Five Year Project Funding History – Partnerships/Designated Grants 
Fiscal Year Trust Grant Amount Final Allocated Amount 
FY26 $2,000,000 No FY26 allocations yet 
FY25 $2,150,000 $1,858,057 to date, still pending requests to be considered 
FY24 $2,150,000 $1,973,008 
FY23 $2,150,000 $1,797,794 
FY22 $2,150,000 $2,132,556 

 

 
 

272

https://alaskamentalhealthtrust.org/wp-content/uploads/2025/04/Trust-Grant-Report-Q3-FY25.pdf
https://alaskamentalhealthtrust.org/wp-content/uploads/2025/01/Q2-FY25-Grant-Report-Web.pdf
https://alaskamentalhealthtrust.org/wp-content/uploads/2024/10/FY25-Q1-Quarterly-Grant-Report.pdf


FY27 Budget Line Detail: Non-Focus Area Allocations 
Authority Grant Funding 

Budget Line: Page 4, Line 3 Project Name: Trust Strategic Initiatives/Data Collection Grantee Name: Unallocated Funding 

Proposed FY27 Amount: $5,000.0 AG Project Category: Data/Planning 

Comp Plan Relevance: TBD 

Description: This budget line ensures the Trust has the flexibility to pursue strategic priorities identified in the Board-approved strategic plan. It will support 
initiatives, activities and grantmaking that align with trustee priorities, and efforts to strengthen data-informed program development, execution, and 
performance monitoring -  aligning Trust resources with long-term impact and accountability.  
 
Analysis: This budget line plays a critical role in operationalizing the agency’s strategic plan by creating the financial capacity to move forward on key priorities 
developed and adopted by the board. Specifically, funds can be awarded through grants, and can also help enable staff to plan and implement initiatives that 
improve how we develop, deliver and evaluate programs. With dedicated resources, the Trust can build infrastructure to support data collection and analysis, 
pilot innovative program models impacting beneficiaries, and respond proactively to emerging needs identified through stakeholder feedback and performance 
metrics.  
 
Funds under this line can support the development of internal dashboards, necessary additional technical assistance, or agency capacity to coordinate 
evaluation activities- all of which are essential for strengthening our ability to track outcomes and adjust programs based on evidence. Additionally, this 
flexibility allows the Trust to better align program activities across program areas and improve resource targeting- actions that are foundational to a more 
integrated and strategic approach. This will position the Trust to adapt to emerging and future challenges and opportunities. 
 

 
 

Budget Line: Page 4, Line 4 Project Name:  Development and Facilitation of Trust 
Strategic Initiatives    

Grantee Name: These funds will be awarded through the 
State of Alaska procurement process 

Proposed FY27 Amount: $200.0 AG Project Category: Contractual 

Comp Plan Relevance: AOF 10, Data 10.2: Data-driven decision-making  

Description: The Trust will secure a contract to provide support to staff in the development and facilitation of the Trust's strategic initiatives.  

Analysis: This budget line will fund a professional services contract to support the Trust’s strategic initiatives through facilitation and analytical expertise. The 
contractor will: 

• Collaborate closely with staff and stakeholders to assess and clarify key priorities and desired strategies that align with the Trust’s mission and vision.  
• Facilitate work groups and strategic planning sessions for inclusive engagement and consensus-building.  
• Develop SMART goals (Specific, Measurable, Achievable, Relevant, Time-bound) for each initiative.  
• Identify and establish performance metrics and outcomes to track progress and impact. 

This investment will enhance the Trust’s ability to plan, implement, and evaluate its strategic initiatives, promoting a culture of continuous improvement and 
accountability. 

273



FY27 Budget Line Detail: Non-Focus Area Allocations 
Authority Grant Funding 

Budget Line: Page 4, Line 5 Project Name:  Trust Focus Area Strategy Implementation Grantee Name: These funds include the collapsed 
“buckets” formerly reflected in the budget tied to 
specific strategies. 

Proposed FY27 Amount: $5,000.0 AG Project Category: Authority Grants 

Comp Plan Relevance: Comp Plan Relevance of individual grants will be determined by program staff during the review process 

Description:  The proposed FY27 budget removes all references to focus area-specific strategies and eliminates former "buckets" that were not tied to specific 
grant recipients but included budget placeholders. This change simplifies the budget document in response to trustee feedback by limiting it to only essential 
budget information and separating strategy details from the primary budget. Trustees will review projects aligned with initiative focus/priority area strategies 
as they become ready. Removing placeholder buckets clarifies project approval process, reduces risk of budget lapse, and increases overall flexibility of 
deployment of Trust funds. 

Budget Line: Page 4, Line 6 Project Name: Programmatic Administration Grantee Name: N/A 

Proposed FY27 Amount: $150.0 AG Project Category: various 

Comp Plan Relevance: n/a 

Description: The Programmatic Administration funds will be utilized for small procurements that are associated with the cost of administering the focus areas. 
This budget line will fund items including, but not limited to, meeting convening costs, rental fees, audiovisual equipment, printing of meeting materials, 
catering, focus area-related travel, and occasionally small contracts.  
Analysis: Program staff need a mechanism to pay for costs associated with program officer execution of focus area and non-focus area work. In prior year 
budgets (including FY25), each focus area had a separate administration budget line of $50.0. The change in FY26 & 27 is to consolidate the budget into one 
bucket and reduce the budget line to $150.0 for all focus areas.  

274



FY27 Budget Line Detail: Non-Focus Area Allocations 
Authority Grant Funding 

Budget Line: Page 4, Line 7 Project Name: Mini grants for ADRD Grantee Name: Alzheimer’s Resource of Alaska 

Proposed FY27 Amount: $500.0 Grant Type: Direct Service 

Comp Plan Relevance: Goal 3 Economic and Social Well-being / 3.4 Enhance timely access to basic needs services 

Description: The mini-grant program grants can include, but should not be limited to, therapeutic devices, access to medical, vision and dental, and special 
health care, and other supplies or services that might remove or reduce barriers to an individual's ability to function in the community and remain in their own 
home or home community as long as possible. Assistance with basic living needs not covered by current grants, such as transportation, clothing, and the like, 
will also be considered. These services will help Trust beneficiaries attain and maintain healthy and productive lifestyles. These items are determined to 
support beneficiaries in achieving stability and are critical supports to gaining self-sufficiency.  Consumer mini grants are essential to a system delivering 
individualized services that promote stability. 
 
Analysis: The Mini Grants for ADRD (Alzheimer’s disease or related dementia) project is identified as a Non-Focus Are Allocation in the Trust budget. Mini-grant 
projects are long-standing Trust investments to fill small gaps in service or meet other needs that Trust beneficiaries have, to obtain services and items they 
need to remain in their home and community as long as possible. This project also offers Trust beneficiaries with ADRD the opportunity to improve their day-to-
day well-being as most of this beneficiary population has retired and is no longer pursuing employment. Alzheimer’s Resource of Alaska (ARA) administers the 
funds and acts as the fiscal agent for applications. This contract continues to be a benefit both to the Trust as well as the applying beneficiaries. Because ARA 
is a primary service agency for people with ADRD, they can engage applicants and their families in conversations about additional support services offered in 
Alaska. If regular guidance is needed, a care coordinator is recommended for ongoing services through their affiliated agency, Care Coordination Resource of 
Alaska. Well-versed in the availability and qualifications to obtain Medicaid, Medicaid waiver, Medicare, and senior grant services, ARA ensures that mini-grant 
funds are used as a last resort when other resources are unavailable or fully expended. Applications for the Mini Grants for ADRD are reviewed and awarded 
monthly. 
 
This project is recommended for continued funding. This is a unique grant opportunity for Trust beneficiaries with Alzheimer’s disease or related dementia in 
Alaska. The funds are administered within the established guidelines and budget for the program.  
 
FY24 ADRD Grant Award Information  
 
In FY24, there were 236 ADRD mini grants awarded for a total of $383,349.59.  Of this $383,349.59, actual grant disbursals for the program were $289,407.88.  
The difference between the awarded and expended amount is due to the nature of the ADRD beneficiary group, approved grants are often unable to be spent 
due to changing circumstances and/or a beneficiary's passing.  For FY24, the administrative costs for the Alzheimer’s Resource of Alaska to administer this 
grant were $54,166.91, or 13.5% of the total award. 
 
FY24 ADRD Mini Grants Awarded by Region  

Regions/Service Areas Total Number of Grants Awarded (Q1-
Q4) 

Total $ Amount Awarded (Q1-
Q4) Percentage of Funding 

Bethel, St. Mary’s, Mt. Village, New Stuyahok 5 $6,117.53 1.6% 
Fairbanks  12 $20,207.18 5.3% 

275



FY27 Budget Line Detail: Non-Focus Area Allocations 
Authority Grant Funding 

Anchorage 144 $212,610.97 55.5% 
Cordova, Valdez, Kenai Peninsula 12 $20,115.69 5.2% 
Other (Willow, Talkeetna, etc.) 9 $12,601.31 3.3% 
Mat-Su 22 $40,397.95 10.5% 
Juneau 6 $9,649.96 2.5% 
Southeast - Other 26 $61,648.99 16.1% 
TOTAL 236 $383,349.59 100% 

 

FY24 ADRD Grants Awarded by Category 

Item Category Total Number of Grants Awarded Total $ Amount Awarded Percentage of Funding 
Accessibility 58 $88,768.51 23.2% 
Adaptive 45 $52,803.32 13.8% 
Dental 11 $35,623.02 9.3% 
Hearing 1 $2,500.00 0.7% 
Medical 2 $490.00 0.1% 
Other 4 $9,910.39 2.6% 
Respite 62 $141,881.25 37.0% 
Supplies 52 $50,740.09 13.2% 
Vision 1 $633.00 0.2% 
TOTAL 236 $383,349.59 100% 
    

 

 
Five Year Project Funding History – Mini Grants for ADRD 

Fiscal Year Trust Grant Amount Final Expended Amount 
FY26 $400,000 Grant started 7/1/2025 
FY25 $400,000 Pending final report due 8/31/2025 
FY24 $400,000 $365,678 
FY23 $400,000 $338,165 
FY22 $350,000 $291,736 

      
 
 
 
 

276



FY27 Budget Line Detail: Non-Focus Area Allocations 
Authority Grant Funding 

Budget Line: Page 4, Line 8 Project Name: Mini grants for beneficiaries experiencing 
mental illness, chronic alcoholism, substance use disorders 
and intellectual and developmental disabilities and 
traumatic brain injuries (Grant Funds) 

Grantee Name: Grant funds for the mini grant program 
will be awarded to the contractor selected to administer 
the program.  The contractor for FY27 will be determined 
using the State of Alaska procurement process. 

Proposed FY27 Amount: $2,000.0 AG Grant Type: Direct Service 

Comp Plan Relevance: Goal 3 Economic and Social Well-being / 3.4 Enhance timely access to basic needs services 

Description:  The mini-grant program provides Trust beneficiaries with a broad range of equipment and services that are essential to directly improving their 
quality of life and increasing independent functioning. These can include, but should not be limited to, therapeutic devices, access to medical, vision and 
dental, and special health care, and other supplies or services that might remove or reduce barriers to an individual's ability to function in the community and 
become as self-sufficient as possible. 
Analysis: 

The Mini-Grants for Beneficiaries programs are identified as a non-focus area allocation in the Trust budget. This program is a long-standing Trust investment 
that fills small gaps in services or meets other needs of Trust beneficiaries with items or services needed to maintain their quality of life and increase 
independent functioning. Individual mini grants are awarded to a community organization who applies on behalf of the beneficiary. Applications for mini grants 
are reviewed each month by an evaluation committee consisting of representatives from the Trust and the appropriate statutory advisory board(s).  Mini-grants 
provide a direct-service to individual beneficiaries through assistance in securing needed items or services, which are not available through other funding 
sources. The primary challenge for the mini-grant program has been the capacity of community organizations to apply for and administer the grants on behalf 
of the beneficiaries they work with. These organizations provide a crucial service, but frequently have demands that exceed their capacity. The Trust will 
continue to work with these community organizations to look for ways to assist in these issues. 

This project is recommended for continued funding. Mini-grant funds are administered within the established guidelines and budget for the program. If mini 
grants were eliminated, there is no other program within the State that could take its place. 

FY24 Mini-Grant Award Information (FY25 information will be available upon grant closeout by contactor): 

In FY24, there were 825 Behavioral Health/Intellectual Disabilities mini grants awarded for a total of $1,267,307.  Of this $1,267,307, actual grant disbursals for 
the program were $1,122,836.  The difference between the awarded and expended amount because approved grants are sometimes unable to be spent due to 
changing circumstances experienced by individual beneficiaries.  For FY24, the administrative costs for the contractor to administer this program were 
$234,900, or 15.6 % of the total mini grant program budget line. 

FY24 Grants Total Approved = 825 = $1,267,307 
FY24 Grants Declined = 514 = $1,139,515 
Approval Rate = 61.6% by request (many requests are partially funded) 
FY24 Total Grants Considered = 1,339 = $2,406,822 
FY24 Mini Grant Admin Fee to Fiscal Agents = $76,800 
FY24 Mini Grant Program Administration Contract = $234,900 

277



FY27 Budget Line Detail: Non-Focus Area Allocations 
Authority Grant Funding 

 
FY24 Intellectual and Developmental Disabilities (IDD) Mini Grant Award Details (FY25 information will be available upon grant closeout by contractor): 
 
FY24 IDD Grants Approved = 303 = $433,066.57 
FY24 IDD Grants Declined = 176 = $374,986.09 
FY24 IDD Approval Rate = 63.3% by request  
FY24 IDD Total Grants Considered = 479, totaling $808,052.66 
  
* Many of the mini grant approvals receive partial funding for a portion of what they originally requested.  The portion of the grant request that was not 
approved is included in the decline total dollar amount, even though the beneficiary had an approved grant.  This is to make sure that the total amount 
approved, and the total amount declined equal the total requested amount. 
 

Approved Grants by Request Type 

Request Type Grants % of Approved 
Requests Funding % of Approved 

Funding 
Medical 97 32.0% $124,293.93 28.7% 
Dental 16 5.3% $42,214.26 9.8% 
Vision 0 0.0% $0.00 0.0% 
Hearing 2 <1.0% $807.50 <1.0% 
PT/OT/ST 
(Therapy) 133 43.9% $183,164.96 42.3% 

Home/Env Mods 21 6.9% $39,366.50 9.1% 
Equipment/Supplies 23 7.6% $30,642.44 7.1% 
Education 3 <1.0% $2,948.00 <1.0% 
Other 8 2.6% $9,628.98 2.2% 

 
Approved Grants by Region 

Region Grants % of Approved 
Requests Funding % of Approved 

Funding 
Anchorage 99 32.7% $148,760.33 34.4% 
Southcentral 93 30.7% $139,160.37 32.1% 
Southeast 51 16.8% $66,212.92 15.3% 
Northern/Interior 40 13.2% $55,815.01 12.9% 
Southwest 15 5.0% $16,659.72 3.9% 
Northwest 5 1.7% $6,458.22 1.5% 

 
 

278



FY27 Budget Line Detail: Non-Focus Area Allocations 
Authority Grant Funding 

FY24 Behavioral Health (BH) Mini Grant Award Details (FY25 information will be available upon grant closeout by contractor): 

FY24 BH Grants Approved = 522 = $834,240.58 
FY24 BH Grants Declined = 338 = $764,529.59 
FY24 BH Approval Rate = 60.7% by request*  
FY24 BH Total Grants Considered = 860, totaling $1,598,770.17 

* Many of the mini grant approvals receive partial funding for a portion of what they originally requested.  The portion of the grant request that was not
approved is included in the decline total dollar amount, even though the beneficiary had an approved grant.  This is to make sure that the total amount
approved, and the total amount declined equal the total requested amount.

Approved Grants by Request Type 

Request Type Grants % of Approved 
Requests Funding % of Approved 

Funding 
Medical 32 6.1% $50,930.42 6.1% 
Dental 31 5.9% $55,986.29 6.7% 
Vision 0 0.0% $0.00 0.0% 
Hearing 1 <1.0% $2,500.00 <1.0% 
PT/OT/ST 
(Therapy) 3 <1.0% $2,865.54 <1.0% 

Home/Env Mods 89 17.1% $146,158.04 17.5% 
Equipment/Supplies 57 10.9% $81,946.51 9.8% 
Education 6 1.2% $5,844.54 <1.0% 
Other* 303 58.1% $488,009.24 58.5% 

*Other includes housing related expenses such as beds as well as items such as vehicle
repairs.   Beginning in FY26, updated request categories will be used to provide increased
reporting information.

Approved Grants by Region 

Region Grants % of Approved 
Requests Funding % of Approved 

Funding 
Anchorage 137 26.3% $216,563.47 26.0% 
Southcentral 189 36.2% $294,950.26 35.4% 
Southeast 118 22.6% $179,513.36 21.5% 
Northern/Interior 69 13.2% $130,680.71 15.7% 
Southwest 8 1.5% $10,032.78 1.2% 
Northwest 1 <1.0% $2,500.00 <1.0% 

279



FY27 Budget Line Detail: Non-Focus Area Allocations 
Authority Grant Funding 

 
Approved Grants by Beneficiary Category 

Beneficiary Category Grants % of Approved 
Requests Funding % of Approved 

Funding 
Mental Illness 369 70.7% $558,565.62 67.0% 
Substance Abuse 143 27.4% $256,432.34 30.7% 
Traumatic Brain Injury 10 1.9% $19,242.62 2.3% 

 
 

Five Year Project Funding History – Mini Grants for beneficiaries experiencing mental illness, chronic alcoholism, substance use 
disorders & Intellectual and Developmental Disabilities and Traumatic Brain Injuries 

Fiscal Year Trust Grant Amount Final Expended Amount 
FY26 $1,262,930 Grant started 7/1/2025 
FY25 $1,266,400 Pending final report  
FY24 $1,265,100 Pending final report  
FY23 $1,225,700 $1,162,606 
FY22 $1,130,500 $1,042,536 

 
      

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 

280



FY27 Budget Line Detail: Non-Focus Area Allocations 
Authority Grant Funding 

Budget Line: Page 4, Line 9 Project Name: Trust Mini Grant Contract Administration Grantee Name: These funds will be awarded through the 
State of Alaska procurement process 

Proposed FY27 Amount: $300.0 AG Project Category: Contract 

Comp Plan Relevance: Area of Focus 3 Economic and Social Well-being / 3.4 Enhance timely access to basic needs services 
. 
Description: These funds represent the administrative contract to oversee the Trust’s Mini Grants for beneficiaries experiencing mental illness, chronic 
alcoholism, substance abuse & intellectual and developmental disabilities program. For FY27, the administrative cost for this program will represent 
approximately 15% of the Mini Grants for beneficiaries experiencing mental illness, chronic alcoholism, substance abuse & intellectual and developmental 
disabilities budget.  
 
Analysis: The mini grant contractor provides monthly application management, financial monitoring and facilitates the proposal review for the mini grant 
program.  In FY25, there were over 1,300 mini grant applications received for the program.  In FY27, the Trust will continue to work to enhance the scope of 
the contract to improve data collection and strengthen the mini grant program. 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Budget Line: Page 4, Line 10 Project Name: Flex Funds for Mental Health Courts  
 

Grantee Name: Partners for Progress 

Proposed FY27 Amount: $230.0 AG Project Category: Direct Service 

Comp Plan Relevance: Area of Focus 7 Services in the Least Restrictive Environment, Objective.3 Reduce the number of trust beneficiaries entering or 
becoming involved with Alaska's criminal justice or juvenile justice system 
Description: This project provides financial resources to assist therapeutic court participants in Anchorage, Juneau, Palmer, and the Palmer Families with 
Infants and Toddlers (FIT) court. The funding is to meet basic or emergent needs to maintain or progress in recovery and self-sufficiency and comply with court-
ordered conditions. Partners for Progress disburses funds as authorized under policies and procedures developed jointly with the Alaska Court System to assist 
the therapeutic court participants. 
 
Analysis: All data is for the third quarter of FY 25 (1/1/25 through 3/31/25). The Anchorage CRP Court ran at an average of 71% capacity, and eight 
beneficiaries graduated. The Juneau CRP Court ran at an average of 60% capacity. The Palmer CRP Court ran at an average of 69% capacity, and four 
graduated. Palmer FIT Court - The Palmer FIT court ran at an average of 98% capacity. The Anchorage CRP court spent 22% of the funds for the third quarter on 
housing assistance for 16 individuals.  Most programs spent their funds on housing and transportation. Partners for Progress contracts with the Alaska 
Therapeutic Court Alumni (AKTCA) to provide Peer Support Process Groups for all court participants. This project has a demonstrated history of providing 

281



FY27 Budget Line Detail: Non-Focus Area Allocations 
Authority Grant Funding 

positive outcomes. Though efforts to secure alternative funding are ongoing, the Alaska Mental Health Trust Authority is currently the primary funding source 
for this established project.  

 
Five Year Project Funding History - Flex Funds for Mental Health Courts 

Fiscal Year Trust Grant Amount Final Expended Amount 
FY26 $229,500 Grant started 7/1/2025 
FY25 $229,500 Pending final report due 8/31/2025 
FY24 $229,500 $210,602 
FY23 $229,500 $193,593 
FY22 $229,500 $204,305 

 

 
 

Budget Line: Page 4, Line 11 Project Name: ANDVSA Victim Transition Supports Grantee Name: ANDVSA 

Proposed FY27 Amount: $200.0 AG Project Category: Direct Service 

Comp Plan Relevance: Area of Focus 3 economic and social well-being; Objective 1 Alaskans have stable, safe housing with appropriate, community-based 
social supports to maintain tenancy  
Description: This project, through the Alaska Network on Domestic Violence and Sexual Assault (ANDVSA), will assist individuals who have experienced domestic 
violence and/or sexual assault (DV/SA) and are residing in emergency shelters to attain housing. It will also assist survivors of DV/SA in jeopardy of losing their 
housing due to the violence they have experienced in maintaining their housing. This assistance will be available to all areas across the state, with a priority on 
locations where no other housing grants are available to support the needs of victims of DV/SA who identify as Trust beneficiaries.  
 
Analysis: This project started in FY 25, so there is no data yet to report. ANDVSA has been working with the Trust to develop performance measures, Trust 
beneficiary identification, and billing mechanisms. As it took a few months to set up the program, the agency asked to extend the grant for up to 90 days 
(9/30/25) to allow all funds to be utilized for Trust beneficiaries.  During the first quarter of FY 25, funds assisted eight families to maintain their housing, and 
three families obtained housing.  
 

Five Year Project Funding History - Victim Transition Supports 
Fiscal Year Trust Grant Amount Final Expended Amount 
FY26 $200,000 Grant started 7/1/2025 
FY25 $200,000 Pending final report due 9/30/2025 

 

 
 
 
 
 

282



FY27 Budget Line Detail: Non-Focus Area Allocations 
Authority Grant Funding 

 
Budget Line: Page 4, Line 12 Project Name: Grant-writing technical assistance Grantee Name: These funds will be awarded through the 

State of Alaska procurement process 
Proposed FY27 Amount: $300.0 AG Project Category: Contract 

Comp Plan Relevance: Area of Focus 9, Workforce; Objective 3: Ensure funding is available to support Alaska’s  
Comprehensive Integrated Mental Health Program. 
Description: The Trust has obtained a contract to assist agencies in identifying potential grants or other funding sources for new or existing programs that serve 
Trust beneficiaries. The contractor researches grant opportunities, assists with proposal planning and development, provides technical assistance to prepare 
grant proposals, and provides grant writing training for provider agencies related to the Trust’s mission. 
 
Analysis: Historically, this contract focused on identifying funding sources relevant to the focus area work and assisted with grant applications. The contractor 
primarily interacted with the program team when reviewing these resources, and program officers would connect with partners who were ready to implement 
projects that would benefit from a grant opportunity. A few projects can receive technical assistance for in-depth consultation and grant writing each fiscal 
year. These resources are for more complex grants, often for federal funds, and will be prioritized by system impact and contractor capacity. Grants likely to 
have multiple agencies from Alaska applying would not be eligible, as we do not want to provide an unfair advantage to one beneficiary-serving organization 
over another. In FY24, two grant applications were completed, with two submitted. A total of $12,000,000 grant dollars came to Alaska from successful 
applications. One award was to the State of Alaska, and one to multiple partners that include state and nonprofit organizations.  
 
Recognizing that only a few projects can be supported through the grant writing technical assistance described above, new strategies were needed to support 
more beneficiary-serving organizations. The additional services to this contract include grant-writing training and office hours.  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

283



FY27 Budget Line Detail: Non-Focus Area Allocations 
Authority Grant Funding 

Budget Line: Page 4, Line 13 Project Name: Technical assistance for beneficiary groups 
& Trust initiatives 

Grantee Name: These funds will be awarded through the 
State of Alaska procurement process 

Proposed FY27 Amount: $500.0 AG Project Category: Contract 

Comp Plan Relevance: Area of Focus 9, Workforce; Objective 3: Ensure funding is available to support Alaska’s 
Comprehensive Integrated Mental Health Program. 
Description: The Trust has obtained a contract to assist organizations with technical assistance for new or existing programs that serve Trust beneficiaries. The 
Technical Assistance Contract can also be used by the Program Team to further the work of a focus area or group of agencies.  

Analysis: This contract was developed to respond more quickly to the emerging needs of beneficiary-serving organizations, as the partnership grant process 
takes roughly 4-6 months. Technical Assistance can also be requested to accompany a grant to set the project up for success, especially for complex projects, 
or when an organization’s project is not quite ready to fund to help prepare the organization for the project or remediate a concern. Strategic planning and 
business plans are common requests for these situations. Technical assistance can be provided in seven key areas: Non-Profit Governance and Operations, Fund 
Development and Financial Management, Information Technology, Capital Pre-Development, Incorporating Beneficiary Lived Experience, Supportive Housing, 
and Crisis Continuum of Care. These categories were established through meetings with the Program Team. Contractors were awarded through a competitive 
RFP process in FY22 and are in a continuation year. Contractors that meet the criteria are added to a pool from which the agency and Program Officer can 
select based on the presenting need and contractor specialty. Work is not guaranteed, but contractors generally have one or more contracts each fiscal year.  

In FY24, 16 projects were requested, and 14 moved forward with a scope of work. Three projects were in Anchorage, two in Southeast Alaska, one in Kodiak, 
one in MatSu, one in Southcentral Alaska, and seven statewide. The average project cost was $28,999, with a low of $5,100 and a high of $50,000.  

Technical Assistance Contract trends include longer project periods, an increase in no-cost extensions, and an organization needing multiple types of assistance 
(if the budget allows). Contractors also seem quite busy, and it often takes 4-6 weeks before work can begin.  

284



FY27 Budget Line Detail: Non-Focus Area Allocations 
Authority Grant Funding 

Budget Line: Page 4, Line 14 Project Name: Communications Grantee Name: These funds will be awarded through the 
State of Alaska procurement process  

Proposed FY26 Amount: $450.0 AG Project Category: Contract(s) 

Comp Plan Relevance: This budget line connects with multiple Areas of Focus in the comp plan 

Description: These funds support the Trust’s communications program, including efforts to increase understanding of the needs of and challenges faced by 
Trust beneficiaries, the Trust’s anti-stigma and lands-related education campaigns, as well as other media and public relations efforts. These funds are 
deployed primarily through procured/contractual services. 
 
Analysis: The Trust’s communication goals and program aligns with the Trust’s mission of improving beneficiary outcomes and providing leadership in advocacy, 
planning, implementing and funding a Comprehensive Integrated Mental Health Program. Trust communications also often directly support Trust focused areas 
of work and grantmaking, as well improving the understanding of the use of Trust lands for Trust beneficiaries. Recent media campaign metrics indicate above 
average engagement and viewership of Trust content, and survey data indicates that public awareness of the Trust and its mission is improving.  
 

 

 
Budget Line: Page 4, Line 15 Project Name: Conferences/Sponsorships Grantee Name: Sponsorship Agreements 

Proposed FY27 Amount: $30.0 Project Category: Outreach 

Comp Plan Relevance: Area of Focus 9: Workforce, The State of Alaska has the workforce capacity in place to support the resources and funding of a 
Comprehensive Integrated Mental Health Program. 
Description: Staff are proposing to allocate funds for conference sponsorships. These funds will be administered through sponsorship agreements vs. small grant 
awards, as has been the practice. Funds will support up to 12 beneficiary-related conferences at a sponsorship level not to exceed $2,500 per event. The Chief 
Communications Officer will administer these funds as part of the Trust's communications efforts.    

Analysis: Staff recommend this new approach to trust support for conferences because it is thought that a conference sponsorship agreement better reflects 
the way trust funds are being used to support these events. Conferences are typically simple, one-time events, vs longer-term beneficiary serving projects 
supported through grantmaking. Conferences supported through these funds will focus on Trust beneficiary-related topics, and/or the beneficiary workforce. 
Serving as a conference sponsor is a relatively easy and low-cost way to increase Trust's visibility and positive perception, and to introduce our organization to 
new potential grantees and partners. Further, conference sponsorship serves as a tool in the Trust’s communications strategy.  
 
Note: The Trust will, at times, play a larger role in funding and/or helping to plan select partner conferences; those situations will be handled via the normal 
trustee grant approval process.  
 

 
 

285



FY27 Budget Line Detail: Non-Focus Area Allocations 
Authority Grant Funding 

Budget Line: Page 4, Line 16 Project Name: Rural & Community Outreach  Grantee Name: Contract Services 

Proposed FY27 Amount: $100.0 Project Category: This budget line connects with multiple areas of focus in the Comp Plan 

Comp Plan Relevance: This budget line connects with multiple areas of focus in the Comp Plan 

Description: These funds will support planning, contracts for services, participant transportation and lodging, and other costs associated with the Trust Rural 
Outreach (RO) efforts. The purpose of Trust RO is to gain a deeper understanding of Alaska’s unique regions and cultures, increase understanding of the 
strengths and challenges facing Trust beneficiaries and those who serve them in rural Alaska, increase awareness of the resources available to Trust 
beneficiaries, communities, and organizations in the region, and to foster partnerships. 
 
Analysis: Participant survey data from the 2023 RO trip to the YK region indicated that both attendees and regional partners found the event valuable, and an 
opportunity to build meaningful relationships. Participants also received a copy of a trip summary that highlighted themes from participant reports and 
community site visits, as well as opportunities for partnership and solutions. While immeasurable, we know that participants in Trust RO trips will apply the 
knowledge gained on these trips to better inform their work on behalf of Trust beneficiaries across the state. 
 

 

 
Budget Line: Page 4, Line 17 Project Name:  Trust Conference Grantee Name: Contract Services 

Proposed FY27 Amount: $160.0 Project Category: Outreach 

Comp Plan Relevance: Area of Focus 10: Data, Objective 10.2: Encourage a culture of data-driven decision making that includes data sharing, data analysis, and 
management to link support services across DOH and DFCS divisions and other departments 
Description: The next Trust conference is planned for fall 2027. These FY27 funds for the bi-annual Trust conference will support costs associated with the 
event including a planning contractor, venue rental, materials, catering, AV needs, and more. The Trust conference has proven to be a successful and well-
received event where beneficiary serving partners, agency officials, beneficiaries and others can network, share ideas, and learn. Note: $20K in funding for the 
conference was approved in the Trust’s FY26 budget; these funds allow us to bring on a contractor to support conference planning before mid-summer 2027. 
 
Analysis: Both the first Improving Lives Conference in 2022, as well as the latest in 2024 were successes, with each yielding more than 60 presenters, 30+ 
presentations, and more than 90% of post-event survey respondents expressing a positive and valuable experience. The event grew to 400 attendees in 2024. 
The next Trust conference is scheduled for fall 2026. In addition to serving as a platform to share information, data and promising practices, the Improving 
Lives Conference can support meaningful connection and “cross pollination” between partners.  
 

 

 

286



FY27 Budget Line Detail: Mental Health & Addiction Intervention Focus Area 
Authority Grant Funding 

  

 

Budget Line: Page 4, Line 19 Project Name: Crisis Now Initiative Project Management 
Contract 

Grantee Name: These funds will be awarded through the 
State of Alaska procurement process 

Proposed FY27 Amount: $350.0 AG Project Category: Contract 

Comp Plan Relevance: Area of Focus 5, Suicide Prevention; Objective 5.2: Support and improve the system to assist individuals in crisis. 

Description: A competitive RFP was issued for a contract to support the statewide Crisis Now Initiative contract for project management, which at this time is 
Agnew Beck. The key goals and objectives of the Crisis Now Initiative project management are to ensure the planning, coordination, facilitation, and execution 
of a strategic work plan to implement recommendations identified through the Alaska Crisis Now Consultation Report, thereby ensuring Alaska has the 
necessary conditions to support the operation of Crisis Now programs. This includes coordination with the Trust to execute work plans with key partners, 
including State of Alaska departments and divisions, members of the legislature, and tribal and local community partners. This contract also supports 
community planning for implementing Crisis Now services in Anchorage, Mat-Su, Juneau, and Fairbanks, and other identified communities. 
 
Analysis: Agnew Beck was awarded the contract for project management support of the statewide Crisis Now Initiative through a competitive RFP process. The 
initial contract was in FY24 with the option to renew annually, with a total of five one-year renewals. In FY25, Agnew Beck developed and distributed three 
implementation reports updating partners on initiative efforts and accomplishments, provided public comment on sub-acute mental health facilities licensure, 
coordinated meetings and facilitated conversations to ensure alignment of efforts across communities and with the Division of Behavioral Health (DBH), lead 
community-level workgroups in Anchorage and Juneau and developed key performance indicators for the crisis contact center and mobile crisis teams with 
input from DBH, the Trust and service operators. This contractual resource has been critical to the initiative continued progress. Funding is expected to 
continue as long as the contract is needed by the Trust and partners. 

 
 

  

287



FY27 Budget Line Detail: Mental Health & Addiction Intervention Focus Area 
Authority Grant Funding 

  

Budget Line: Page 4, Line 20 Project Name: Fairbanks Crisis Now Coordinator Grantee Name: City of Fairbanks 

Proposed FY27 Amount: $138.0 AG Project Category: Capacity Building 

Comp Plan Relevance: Area of Focus 5, Suicide Prevention; Objective 5.2: Support and improve the system to assist individuals in crisis. 

Description: The grant supports the Crisis Now Community Coordinator as part of the Trust’s overall Crisis Now Initiative implementation strategy. The Crisis 
Now Community Coordinator supports project management for each component of the Crisis Now model within the Fairbanks community and is housed under 
the City of Fairbanks Mayor’s office. The coordinator serves as the liaison between the local Community Implementation Team, the Trust, and consultants 
working on the development of the Crisis Now Initiative. The coordinator is well versed in the Crisis Now model, crisis services, and efforts in Alaska to adopt 
the model to fit the unique aspects of Fairbanks, working to optimize existing services to better respond to individuals in a mental health emergency, as well as 
to engage, recruit and facilitate local organizations in standing up crisis stabilization services. The coordinator identifies and manages local key stakeholder 
engagement, provides project management oversight and reporting to the Trust on the local implementation plan, hosts monthly Community Implementation 
Team meetings, collaborates on community efforts with statewide and system-level initiatives, collects and reports data, and promotes Crisis Now in the 
community.  
 
Analysis: Trust funding to support a Crisis Now Coordinator is integral in implementing the Crisis Now model in the community of Fairbanks and at the statewide 
level. The Fairbanks Crisis Now Coordinator has demonstrated success in various ways, including key community-wide collaborations that have fostered 
agreements between agencies that previously did not exist, successfully convening agencies involved in the various components of the Crisis Now continuum of 
care, and advocating for legislative capital funding for a crisis stabilization center. These successes have translated into improvements in the systems of care 
serving Trust beneficiaries experiencing a crisis, with Alaska Behavioral Health’s Mobile Crisis Team available to Emergency Medical Services (EMS), police, fire 
departments, and local providers of behavioral health and community-based services. The Fairbanks Crisis Now Coordinator has fostered a strong collaboration 
among 911 dispatch, public safety agencies, emergency medical services, and the Mobile Crisis Team. The Fairbanks Emergency Communications Center deploys 
the Mobile Crisis Team (MCT), resulting in an 84% reduction in hospitalizations, incarcerations, and further law enforcement involvement. The Fairbanks Crisis 
Now Coordinator has secured an agreement with a partner to operate a stabilization center and is involved in ongoing discussions to establish a 23-hour crisis 
stabilization center. The coordinator is part of the Behavioral Health Community Coalition, which primarily advises the Fairbanks Native Association on its 
efforts, including coordinating with 988 for culturally appropriate responses. Additionally, the coordinator’s advocacy efforts have supported the City of 
Fairbanks in securing a Promoting Access to Crisis Teams (PACT) grant to rebuild their Crisis Intervention Training (CIT) program. The FY27 funding request 
remains unchanged. Continuing locally focused project management is essential in advancing Crisis Now implementation, which continues to demonstrate 
meaningful improvements in outcomes for Trust beneficiaries. 
 

Five Year Project Funding History - Fairbanks Crisis Now Coordinator 
Fiscal Year Trust Grant Amount Final Expended Amount 
FY26 $138,000 Grant started 7/1/2025 
FY25 $138,000 Pending final report due 8/31/2025 
FY24 $138,000 $136,711 
FY23 $100,000 $100,000 
FY22 $130,400 $130.390 

 

 

288



FY27 Budget Line Detail: Mental Health & Addiction Intervention Focus Area 
Authority Grant Funding 

  

Budget Line: Page 4, Line 21 Project Name: Ketchikan Crisis Now Coordinator Grantee Name: Ketchikan Wellness 
Coalition 

Proposed FY27 Amount: $124.5 AG Project Category: Capacity Building 

Comp Plan Relevance: Area of Focus 5, Suicide Prevention; Objective 5.2: Support and improve the system to assist individuals in crisis. 

Description: The grant supports the Crisis Now Community Coordinator as part of the Trust’s overall Crisis Now Initiative in the community of Ketchikan and is 
housed with the Ketchikan Wellness Coalition. The coordinator serves as the liaison between the local Community Implementation Team, the Trust, and 
consultants throughout the development of the Crisis Now Initiative. The coordinator is well versed in the Crisis Now model, crisis services and efforts in Alaska 
to adopt the model to fit the unique needs of Ketchikan, working to optimize existing services to better respond to individuals in a mental health emergency, 
as well as to engage, recruit and facilitate local organizations in standing up local response. The coordinator identifies and manages local key stakeholder 
engagement, provides project management oversight and reporting to the Trust on the local implementation plan, hosts monthly Community Implementation 
Team meetings, collaborates on community efforts with statewide and system-level initiatives, collects and reports data, and promotes Crisis Now in the 
community. 
 
Analysis: Trust funding to support a Crisis Now Coordinator is essential for implementing the Crisis Now model initiative in the Ketchikan community and at the 
statewide level. The Ketchikan Crisis Now Coordinator has demonstrated success in various ways, including key community-wide collaborations, fostering 
agreements between agencies that previously did not exist, and successfully convening agencies involved in the various components of the Crisis Now 
continuum. These successes have translated to improvements in the systems of care serving Trust beneficiaries experiencing a crisis, including the Emergency 
Medical Services (EMS), police and fire departments, and local providers of behavioral health and community-based services.  The Ketchikan Fire Department’s 
Mobile Integrated Healthcare (MIH) program, launched in June 2024, has achieved exceptional results in its first seven months of operation, including an 80% 
reduction in EMS calls among high utilizers, over 432 calls avoided, and a 10% overall decrease in emergency calls. The Ketchikan Crisis Now Coordinator played 
a crucial role in securing funding and coordinating this initiative, which has served 288 patients and successfully graduated 17 high utilizers from the program, 
who no longer require MIH or EMS assistance. Funding requested in FY27 remains unchanged. Staff will continue to monitor this strategy and work with the 
grantee.  
 

Five Year Project Funding History - Ketchikan Crisis Now Coordinator 
Fiscal Year Trust Grant Amount Final Expended Amount 
FY26 $124,500 Grant started 7/1/2025 
FY25 $124,500 Pending final report due 8/31/2025 
FY24 $125,500 125,500 

 

 
 
 
 

289



Budget Line: Page 4, Line 23 Project Name: Local re-entry coalition coordinator -
Anchorage 

Grantee Name: Neighborworks 

Proposed FY27 Amount: $60.0 AG Project Category: Capacity Building 

Comp Plan Relevance: Area of Focus 8 Services in Institutional Settings, Objective 4 ensure Alaskans who are transitioning out of institutional settings have 
essential supports 
Description: Funds support a Reentry Coalition Coordinator in Anchorage, who is instrumental in developing reentry infrastructure. The Reentry Coalition 
Coordinator's work supports the needs of all returning citizens, including Trust beneficiaries, as they transition back into their communities. Support includes 
educating the community about the criminal justice system, identifying local challenges facing reentrants, identifying local gaps in services and corresponding 
collaborative solutions, and serving as a local point of contact for the DOC.  
Analysis: This position was vacant from April 2024 through June 2024. Since July, the new coordinator has focused on enhancing stakeholder relationships, 
raising awareness about reentry, and identifying and distributing resources. In January, she attended the reentry partnership legislative advocacy fly-in and 
reentry simulation event in Juneau and distributed the strategic planning form for information to update the comprehensive plan. In April, an Anchorage 
reentry simulation was held with attendance capped at 50.  FY 27 is the final year this project will receive Trust funding. 
 

Five Year Project Funding History - Local re-entry coalition coordinator-Anchorage 
Fiscal Year Trust Grant Amount Final Expended Amount 
FY26 $120,000 Grant started 7/1/2025 
FY25 $120,000 Pending final report due 8/31/2025 
FY24 $120,000 $88,654 
FY23 $100,000 $98,458 
FY22 $100,000 $93,455 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

290



Budget Line: Page 4, Line 24 Project Name: Local re-entry coalition coordinator -Mat-Su Grantee Name: Valley Charities 

Proposed FY27 Amount: $60.0 AG Project Category: Capacity Building 

Comp Plan Relevance: Area of Focus 8 Services in Institutional Settings, Objective 4 ensure Alaskans who are transitioning out of institutional settings have 
essential supports 
Description: Funds support a Reentry Coalition Coordinator, who is instrumental in developing reentry infrastructure. The Reentry Coalition Coordinator's work 
supports the needs of all returning citizens, including Trust beneficiaries, as they transition back into their communities. Support includes educating the 
community about the criminal justice system, identifying local challenges facing reentrants, identifying local gaps in services and corresponding collaborative 
solutions, and serving as a local point of contact for the DOC.  

Analysis: The Mat-Su Reentry Coalition continues to make progress in identified goals for housing, employment, physical health/mental health/substance use 
services, transportation, and culture and community connection services.  The Mat-SU still does not have enough non-restrictive transitional housing; however, 
progress has been made in increasing restrictive transitional housing through local agencies. The reentry coalition coordinator continues to hold monthly 
meetings, distribute newsletters, and attend state and national reentry events.  Eighty-three individuals attended the 2024 Mat-Su Reentry Summit, and 26 
participants and 20 volunteers attended the Mat-Su Reentry Simulation in November. FY 27 is the final year this project will receive Trust funding. 

Five Year Project Funding History - Local re-entry coalition coordinator-Mat-Su 
Fiscal Year Trust Grant Amount Final Expended Amount 
FY26 $120,000 Grant started 7/1/2025 
FY25 $120,000 Pending final report due 8/31/2025 
FY24 $120,000 $119,936 
FY23 $100,000 $99,847 
FY22 $100,000 $92,758 

291



Budget Line: Page 4, Line 25 Project Name: Local re-entry coalition coordinator -Juneau Grantee Name: JAMHI Health & Wellness 

Proposed FY27 Amount: $60.0 AG Project Category: Capacity Building 

Comp Plan Relevance: Area of Focus 8 Services in Institutional Settings, Objective 4 ensure Alaskans who are transitioning out of institutional settings have 
essential supports 
Description: Funds support a Reentry Coalition Coordinator, who is instrumental in developing reentry infrastructure. The Reentry Coalition Coordinator's work 
supports the needs of all returning citizens, including Trust beneficiaries, as they transition back into their communities. Support includes educating the 
community about the criminal justice system, identifying local challenges facing reentrants, identifying local gaps in services and corresponding collaborative 
solutions, and serving as a local point of contact for the DOC.  
Analysis: The Juneau Reentry Coalition continues to address goals related to housing, access to behavioral health services, and increasing access to digital 
technology inside Department of Corrections facilities.  JREC noted that the long-term goal to increase housing in the community showed a promising increase 
with Gastineau Human Services' addition of 51 low-income units and Tlingit and Haida’s nine-bed transitional housing facility for women.  Access to behavioral 
health services continues to be stressful, as some behavioral health services closed recently. JREC hosted a Legislative Advocacy Training and Reentry 
Simulation in January 2025, inviting Legislators, legislative staff, and community members.  The Reentry Simulation had 34 participants.   FY 27 is the final year 
this project will receive Trust funding.  

Five Year Project Funding History - Local re-entry coalition coordinator-Juneau 
Fiscal Year Trust Grant Amount Final Expended Amount 
FY26 $120,000 Grant started 7/1/2025 
FY25 $120,000 Pending final report due 8/31/2025 
FY24 $120,000 $103,925 
FY23 $100,000 $97,881 
FY22 $100,000 $90,162 

292



Budget Line: Page 4, Line 26 Project Name: Local re-entry coalition coordinator -
Fairbanks 

Grantee Name: City of Fairbanks 

Proposed FY27 Amount: $60.0 AG Project Category: Capacity Building 

Comp Plan Relevance: Area of Focus 8 Services in Institutional Settings, Objective 4 ensure Alaskans who are transitioning out of institutional settings have 
essential supports 
Description: Funds support a Reentry Coalition Coordinator, who is instrumental in developing reentry infrastructure. The Reentry Coalition Coordinator's work 
supports the needs of all returning citizens, including Trust beneficiaries, as they transition back into their communities. Support includes educating the 
community about the criminal justice system, identifying local challenges facing reentrants, identifying local gaps in services and corresponding collaborative 
solutions, and serving as a local point of contact for the DOC.  
Analysis: The Fairbanks Alaska Prisoner Reentry Coalition continues to address goals related to collaboration with agencies, expanding resources, advocating 
policy changes, engaging the community, and strengthening the coalition's foundation. Housing remains challenging, but not as challenging as in previous years, 
due to the reentrants’ employment status. FY 27 is the final year this project will receive Trust funding. 

Five Year Project Funding History - Local re-entry coalition coordinator-Fairbanks 
Fiscal Year Trust Grant Amount Final Expended Amount 
FY26 $120,000 Grant started 7/1/2025 
FY25 $120,000 Pending final report due 8/31/2025 
FY24 $120,000 $118,832 
FY23 $100,000 $90,979 
FY22 $100,000 $100,000 

293



FY27 Budget Line Detail: Housing and Home & Community Based Services Focus Area 
Authority Grant Funding 

 

Budget Line: Page 4, Line 28 Project Name: IDD System Capacity Development Grantee Name: Alaska Association on Developmental 
Disabilities (AADD) 

Proposed FY27 Amount: $25.0 AG Project Category: Capacity Building 

Comp Plan Relevance: Area of Focus 7, Services in the Least Restrictive Environment; Objective 2: Increase access to effective, flexible, person-centered, long-
term services and supports in urban and rural areas to avoid institutional placement and Area of Focus 9, Workforce; Objective 1: Strengthen workforce capacity 
with improved recruitment and retention to obtain and maintain knowledge and support innovation and modernization. 

Description: The grant supports the operations of the Alaska Association on Developmental Disabilities (AADD). AADD is a provider association for agencies that 
serve beneficiaries experiencing an intellectual or developmental disability (IDD). 

Analysis: Trust funding provides change management support and training for the leadership of agencies that serve beneficiaries experiencing IDD, efforts to 
increase the available workforce of direct support professionals, agency sustainability, and advocacy for best practices in home and community-based services to 
strengthen the IDD service system utilized by Trust beneficiaries. This project impacts the home and community-based service system on a macro level through 
advocacy, leadership, and relationship-building across service systems. Due to the age of the grant and the goals that have been attained, FY27 is the last year of 
funding. AADD is a membership organization and has sustainable funding through membership fees and grants.   

Five Year Project Funding History - IDD System Capacity Development 
Fiscal Year Trust Grant Amount Final Expended Amount 
FY26 $45,000 Grant started 7/1/2025 
FY25 $65,000 Pending final report due 8/31/2025 
FY24 $65,000 $65,000 
FY23 $65,000 $65,000 
FY22 $65,000 $65,000 

294



FY27 Budget Line Detail: Housing and Home & Community Based Services Focus Area 
Authority Grant Funding 

 

Budget Line: Page 4, Line 29 Project Name: Affordable Housing Development Position Grantee(s): Juneau Housing First Collaborative 

Proposed FY27 Amount: $50.0 AG Project Category: Capacity Building 

Comp Plan Relevance: Area of Focus 3, Economic and Social Well-being, Objective 1: Alaskans have stable, safe housing with appropriate community-based social 
supports to maintain tenancy. 

Description: This project provides partner funding for a Development Director position to assist agencies in developing housing for individuals experiencing 
homelessness and individuals in recovery, focusing on Southeast Alaska and off-road system communities. 

Analysis: Lack of affordable housing is the primary contributor to homelessness. As housing costs rise in Alaska, homelessness rates will continue to increase unless 
an adequate supply of affordable housing is created. Trust beneficiaries are overrepresented in homeless and low-income populations. This position will provide 
development technical assistance for agencies that want to build affordable housing. The position would focus on providing technical assistance with pre-
development and development activities and compiling and providing operating materials templates for housing projects. Types of materials would include sample 
policies and procedures, job descriptions, code of conduct, building maintenance logs, lease examples, and other relevant documents needed for funding or 
compliance. FY27 is the final year of funding. The project is expected to transition to other grant sources for FY28. 

Five Year Project Funding History - Affordable Housing Development Position 
Fiscal Year Trust Grant Amount Final Expended Amount 
FY26 $75,000 Grant started 7/1/2025 

295



FY27 Budget Line Detail: Housing and Home & Community Based Services Focus Area 
Authority Grant Funding 

 

Budget Line: Page 4, Line 30 Project Name: TABI Phasic Implementation Plan for 
Identification, Intervention, and Enhanced Community 
Infrastructure 

Grantee Name: Southcentral Foundation 

Proposed FY27 Amount: $200.0 AG Project Category: Capacity Building 

Comp Plan Relevance: Area of Focus 2, Healthcare, Objective 1: Alaskans have access to and receive quality healthcare services. 

Description: Southcentral Foundation (SCF) will use the grant funds to continue the implementation of improved and expanded best practices for early 
identification and treatment of Traumatic or Acquired Brain Injury (TABI), based on the 2022 Traumatic and Acquired Brain Injury (TABI) Early Identification and 
Intervention Services Planning, Design, and Capacity Building gap analysis project funded by the Alaska Mental Health Trust performed in 

2022. The project will create and implement processes for early identification and intervention services for traumatic and acquired brain injury (TABI) that 
require system-level changes. There are three identified phases: 1) Adults empaneled to SCF clinics residing in the Municipality of Anchorage and the Matanuska-
Susitna Borough; 2) Adults empaneled to SCF’s rural Community Health Centers; 3) Children empaneled to Alaska’s Tribal Healthcare System. The intent is to 
ensure individuals with TABIs are identified and provided supportive services at the earliest point in time possible to maximize their quality of life. 

Analysis: According to the 2020 Alaska Native Injury Atlas, Alaskans have a high rate of traumatic brain injuries (TBI), which are present in 19.2% of all injuries 
reported to the Alaska Trauma Registry. Of the brain injuries reported, 30% of them were experienced by Alaska Native people, which is disproportionate to the 
percentage of Alaska’s population that identifies as Alaska Native. The rate for Alaska Native people with Traumatic Brain Injury Hospitalizations was 25.4 per 
10,000 people in Anchorage, which is nearly three times the state-wide Non-Native rate. The rates for Alaskan children ages 0-4 in 2018 reached 110.9 per 10,000; 
ages 5-9 was 56.1; 10-14 hit 73.5 and 15-19 stood at a staggering 113.7. In 2023, 800 SCF patients were diagnosed with a TBI, which is believed to be 40% of 
patients with the condition due to under-coding. SCF is standardizing coding for these conditions to improve the accuracy of documentation. Trust funding 
provided new positions to provide services previously unavailable to SCF customers with a brain injury and implemented a robust staff training effort across SCF 
and ANMC. 

This is year five of a five-year project using Trust funding, stepping down funding from the prior year with FY27 being the final year. SCF is heavily invested in this 
project and is expanding its organizational resources beyond the detailed match for this application. Permanent system changes will be made throughout this 
project period and are a key outcome. A pro forma has been created for the services being developed under this project and is updated regularly by SCF to 
confirm that these system and service improvements remain after the grant project period ends. 

Five Year Project Funding History - TABI Phasic Implementation Plan for Identification, Intervention, and Enhanced Community Infrastructure 
Fiscal Year Trust Grant Amount Final Expended Amount 
FY26 $350,000 Grant started 7/1/2025 
FY25 $500,000 Pending final report due 8/31/2025 
FY24 $500,000 $500,000 

296



FY27 Budget Line Detail: Housing and Home & Community Based Services Focus Area 
Authority Grant Funding 

 

Budget Line: Page 4, Line 31 Project Name: Gulf Coast TABI Expansion Project Grantee Name: Independent Living Center 

Proposed FY27 Amount: $125.0 AG Project Category: Direct Service 

Comp Plan Relevance: Area of Focus 7, Services in the Least Restrictive Environment; Objective 2: Increase access to effective, flexible, person-centered, long-
term services and supports in urban and rural areas to avoid institutional placement 

Description: The Gulf Coast TABI Expansion Project provides direct services to Trust beneficiaries with brain injury who live in the Gulf Coast region. 

Analysis: The Gulf Coast TABI Expansion Project provides resource facilitation, peer mentorship, and individual and group support to beneficiaries with a brain 
injury, their families, and caregivers. The area served is the Kenai Peninsula, Kodiak Island, and the Valdez/Cordova Census Area. This project fills a gap in 
services for this beneficiary group and compliments grants issued by the Division of Senior and Disabilities Services (SDS) to other regions. By FY28, SDS will likely 
be able to expand and offer funding that will include this region of the state. 

Five Year Project Funding History - Gulf Coast TABI Expansion Project 
Fiscal Year Trust Grant Amount Final Expended Amount 
FY26 $125,000 Grant started 7/1/2025 
FY25 $100,000 Pending final report due 8/31/2025 
FY24 $100,000 $100,000 
FY22 $100,000 $98,826 

297



FY27 Budget Line Detail: Housing and Home & Community Based Services Focus Area 
Authority Grant Funding 

 

Budget Line: Page 4, Line 32 Project Name: Home & Community Based Services Reform 
Contract 

Grantee Name: These funds will be awarded through the 
State of Alaska procurement process 

Proposed FY27 Amount: $150.0 AG Project Category: Contract 

Comp Plan Relevance: Area of Focus 7, Services in the Least Restrictive Environment; Objective 2: Increase access to effective, flexible, person-centered, long-
term services and supports in urban and rural areas to avoid institutional placement 

Description: A competitive RFP is issued for a contract to provide national-level expertise on Medicaid financing, program evaluation, administration, and 
implementation of home and community-based services (HCBS) in Alaska. The current contractor is a company that works solely in this field, helping states 
transform their HCBS systems. 

Analysis: Having ongoing access to national-level expertise on the financing and implementation of HCBS services has benefited this focus area and the work of 
partner agencies, including the Division of Senior and Disabilities Services and Alaskan nonprofits. Moving an initiative forward, especially HCBS projects with 
Medicaid financing can be complex, ensuring timely implementation of key initiatives or service reforms that benefit the HCBS system and, ultimately, trust 
beneficiaries. Some past work completed by this contract includes a Medicaid Administrative Claiming plan for the ADRCs, leading to improved sustainability for 
those programs; an analysis of how to improve the environmental modification programs in Alaska; Medicaid waiver service standardization and compliance 
with federal rules, creation of a program evaluation for the Alzheimer’s Disease Program Initiative Grant in Alaska, and a proposed plan to implement 
community first choice in Alaska. Funding is expected to continue if the Trust and partners need the contract.  

298



FY27 Budget Line Detail: Housing and Home & Community Based Services Focus Area 
Authority Grant Funding 

 

Budget Line: Page 4, Line 33 Name: ADRD Rural Outreach and Prevention Grantee Name: Alzheimer’s Resource of Alaska 

Proposed FY27 Amount: $175.0 AG Project Category: Outreach and Education 

Comp Plan Relevance: Area of Focus 7, Services in the Least Restrictive Environment; Objective 2: Increase access to effective, flexible, person-centered, long-
term services and supports in urban and rural areas to avoid institutional placement 

Description: The ADRD Rural Outreach and Prevention position will provide in-person outreach and education in rural Alaska about Alzheimer’s disease and related 
dementia. Funding includes a position and travel.  

Analysis: To address the lack of ADRD outreach and prevention/risk reduction services statewide, Alzheimer’s Resource of Alaska is developing a new 
department within the agency, ADRD Outreach and Prevention. This grant will fund one full-time position (or equivalent) dedicated to outreach and 
prevention/risk reduction of ADRD in areas of Alaska outside of the Municipality of Anchorage and the Mat-Su Valley. The outreach specialist will focus on 
building and strengthening partnerships with community-based organizations, especially those serving seniors. They will participate in community events, 
including health fairs and other outreach opportunities, to meet seniors and community members where they are. Outreach staff will provide warm hand-off 
referrals for education programs, care coordination, and other services. Objectives include increasing awareness of ADRD, improving access to services, 
identifying service gaps, supporting community connectedness with the public and community-based organizations, and improving the quality of life for 
Alaskans with ADRD and their caregivers. This project is expected to have a duration of 3-5 years, based on performance.  

Five Year Project Funding History - ADRD Rural Outreach & Prevention 
Fiscal Year Trust Grant Amount Final Expended Amount 
FY26 $175,000 Grant started 7/1/2025 

299



FY27 Budget Line Detail: Housing and Home & Community Based Services Focus Area 
Authority Grant Funding 

 

Budget Line: Page 4, Line 34 Name: Self-directed Home & Community Based Services Grantee Name: Independent Living Center 

Proposed FY27 Amount: $400.0 AG Project Category: Capacity Building 

Comp Plan Relevance: Area of Focus 7, Services in the Least Restrictive Environment; Objective 2: Increase access to effective, flexible, person-centered, long-
term services and supports in urban and rural areas to avoid institutional placement 

Description: The Self-directed HCBS project will explore how to implement self-directed home and community-based services (HCBS) in Alaska, including 
identifying what is needed to prepare provider organizations and people receiving services for this system change.  

Analysis: The Medicaid.gov definition: “Self-directed Medicaid services means that participants, or their representatives if applicable, have decision-making 
authority over certain services and take direct responsibility to manage their services with the assistance of a system of available supports. The self-directed 
service delivery model is an alternative to traditionally delivered and managed services, such as an agency delivery model. Self-direction of services allows 
participants to have the responsibility for managing all aspects of service delivery in a person-centered planning process. This will give Trust beneficiaries more 
choice, control, and independence regarding their services.” Alaska is the only state that does not have a self-directed service delivery model for Medicaid 
Waiver recipients. Alaska has a self-directed model within the state through the federally funded veteran's directed care (VDC) model, including employer and 
budget authority. The Independent Living Center initially implemented VDC in Alaska in 2015 and is now available in Kodiak, Chugach, and Copper River Census 
communities, MatSu, Southeast, and Fairbanks. This project would work with the Department of Health, advocates, and providers to explore how self-directed 
HCBS can be implemented in Alaska. A successful outcome will be incorporating self-direction into the HCBS Medicaid waivers through the available Medicaid 
authorities. This will ensure the long-term sustainability of the project. The project is estimated to take 3-5 years, with the largest unknown variable being 
CMS acceptance of a Medicaid waiver application or amendment.  

Five Year Project Funding History - ADRD Rural Outreach & Prevention 
Fiscal Year Trust Grant Amount Final Expended Amount 
FY26 $175,000 Grant started 7/1/2025 

300



FY26 Budget Line Detail: Workforce Priority Area 
Authority Grant Funding 

Budget Line: Page 4, Line 36 Project Name: Alaska Psychology Internship Program Grantee Name: WICHE 

Proposed FY27 Amount: $125.0 AG Project Category: Capacity Building 

Comp Plan Relevance: Area of Focus 9, Workforce capacity, Objective 9.1, Strengthen workforce capacity with improved recruitment and retention to obtain 
and maintain knowledge and support innovation and modernization. 
Description: WICHE is the Western Interstate Commission for Higher Education. The Alaska Psychology Internship Consortium (AK-PIC) serves as a platform for 
equipping students in the UAA psychology program, as well as doctoral students from other psychology programs who wish to train and work in Alaska, to 
complete an American Psychological Association (APA)- accredited internship program in Alaska. An APA-accredited internship ensures high training standards 
for future Alaska psychologists; it is also instrumental in recruiting and retaining clinical psychologists to work in Alaska. This provides more practitioners in 
Alaska with an emphasis on rural hub villages. This program supports UAA graduates, recruits out-of-state psychologists to Alaska, and trains them on how to 
serve Trust beneficiaries clinically in both urban and rural regions. 
Analysis: Nine interns completed the program in FY24, and a total of 131 have finished the program since its inception 14 years ago. 61% of the interns took 
their first job upon graduation in Alaska, with 83% still working and residing in the state. The Alaska Division of Behavioral Health provides funding for travel 
and academic training, while the Trust funds pay WICHE staff to facilitate the program and evaluation necessary to maintain its APA accreditation. The other 
significant outcome of this program is the clinical provision hours provided by the interns to beneficiaries in rural Alaska, which range between 500 and 600 per 
year of their internship. By the end of FY27, this program is intended to be self-sustaining through tuition payments.  

Budget Line: Page 4, Line 37 Project Name: Clinical Supervision Support Grantee Name: AK Behavioral Health Association 

Proposed FY27 Amount: $200.0 AG Project Category: Capacity Building 

Comp Plan Relevance: Area of Focus 9, Workforce capacity, Objective 9.1, Strengthen workforce capacity with improved recruitment and retention to obtain 
and maintain knowledge and support innovation and modernization 
Description: Clinical supervision is critical for managing clinicians.  The Alaska Behavioral Health Association (ABHA) will utilize these funds for a clinical 
supervision program to establish the infrastructure for training, certifying, and launching clinical supervisors statewide. This workforce infrastructure system 
change identifies this critical need in Alaska to build a training pathway that builds a clinically and culturally appropriate Alaska behavioral health workforce. 
Analysis: There is a profound lack of quality clinical supervision within the behavioral health system of care at the agency level. This limits the workforce 
capacity to equip clinicians to provide high-quality clinical care to Trust beneficiaries. ABHA is actively transforming this system of care for the 90 agencies it 
supports through its trade association by developing a clinical supervision, teaching, and equipping program to replicate clinical supervisors who are 
knowledgeable in delivering quality clinical care. ABHA proposed rolling out this initiative through a three-phase approach: planning, preparation, and 
implementation over a three-year period. Rasmussen is working with ABHA to fund the first year with the Trust and then fund years two and three. At that 
time, the program will be self-sustaining through agency fees for obtaining the clinical supervisors, licensing process, and ongoing technical support from the 
Association. FY26 is intended as a planning year, focusing on designing a sustainable business model, formalizing partner commitments, and establishing the 
operational, curricular, and administrative structures necessary for successful implementation in FY27. An advisory board will be convened to guide 
development, ensure cultural and geographic relevance, and inform sustainability planning.  

Five Year Project Funding History - Clinical Supervision Support 
Fiscal Year Trust Grant Amount Final Expended Amount 
FY26 $200,000 Grant started 7/1/2025 

301



FY27 Budget Line Detail: Early Childhood & Youth Priority Area 
Authority Grant Funding 

Budget Line: Page 4, Line 39 Project Name: Help Me Grow Alaska:  Community Outreach, 
Care Coordination & Dev Screening 

Grantee Name:  All Alaska Pediatric Partnership 

Proposed FY27 Amount: $150.0 AG Grant Type:  Capacity Building 

Comp Plan Relevance: Early Childhood & Youth. Object 1.1:  Promote practice-informed, comprehensive developmental screening efforts and early 
intervention services.   
Description: This project through the All-Alaska Pediatric Partnership (A2P2) will continue serving families statewide by ensuring the capacity of the Help Me 
Grow-AK Centralized Access Point (CAP) is sufficient to meet the increasing demand of callers and to continue to support availability and access to 
developmental screening and outreach done in local communities to help engage families and children not being reached by other systems.  This project aligns 
with the Department of Health’s Behavioral Health Roadmap, A2P2’s Infant and Early Childhood Mental Health Needs Assessment, and the Maternal and Child 
Health Title V Block Grant.  
Analysis:  In FY24, the Help Me Grow CAP provided a total of 11,630 unique interactions, with 100% of families reporting that their needs were met.  The 
average number of families served each month was 142.  The volume of cases increased by almost 40% compared to the previous year. Due to the increased 
call volume, it was determined in early FY24 that A2P2 needed to expand the team by two additional Family Support Specialists (FSS). Additionally, Help Me 
Grow provided 67 trainings to medical staff on referral and linkage and trained a total of 362 non-medical professionals on developmental screening and/or 
referral and linkage.  As of June 2025, the Help Me Grow Alaska CAP interacted with 2,152 families, of which 2,141 (99.5%) were provided information or 
direct service referrals to meet their presenting needs. The top three needs identified for families were mental health (24.35%), neuropsychological 
evaluations (24.02%), and communication (15.2%).  The contacts consisted of beneficiaries from 52 different communities across Alaska; of these communities, 
20 are off the road system.  Rural communities often experience more complex issues accessing services. 

A2P2 is actively working with state and private partners on several approaches to long-term sustainability. These include exploring opportunities for 
integration into existing and new programs. The need for diverse and sustainable funding for HMG-AK will likely continue as A2P2 hires additional HMG-AK staff 
to accommodate the growing needs.  Continued Trust funding in FY27 is warranted due to the high demand for this service.  

Five Year Project Funding History - Help Me Grow Alaska: Community Outreach, Care Coordination & Dev Screening 
Fiscal Year Trust Grant Amount Final Expended Amount 
FY26 $150,000 Grant started 7/1/2025 
FY25 $150,000 Pending final report due 8/31/2025 
FY24 $150,000 $150,000 
FY23 $100,000 $100,000 
FY22 $100,000 $100,000 

302



FY27 Budget Line Detail: Early Childhood & Youth Priority Area 
Authority Grant Funding 

Budget Line: Page 4, Line 40 Project Name: Reimagining Child Welfare Project Grantee Name:  Alaska Impact Alliance 

Proposed FY27 Amount: $250.0 AG Grant Type: Capacity Building 

Comp Plan Relevance: Goal 6:  Alaskans are free from abuse, neglect, self-neglect, and exploitation. Objective 2: Promote early intervention in maltreatment 
and with families at risk for maltreatment.   
Description:  FY27 funding will support two focus areas at AIA: 1) direct support to kin families and children through mini-grants to address basic needs, 
respite, and other services, and 2) the continued development and support of FRCs in Alaska.  Family Resource Centers (FRCs) support families to be healthy 
and successful, contribute to a healthy community & reduce the likelihood of child abuse and neglect by building the family’s protective factors.  Improved 
systems of family support through this work have the potential to improve multi-generational outcomes for Trust beneficiaries by interrupting the cycle of 
generational trauma to promote healing and wellbeing for families.  
Analysis:  FY24 saw the addition of 4 new Family Resource Centers located in Fairbanks, Anchorage, and MatSu.  Additionally, 19 FRC staff were trained on 
evidence-based assessment tools, motivational interviewing, and best practices for service delivery.   Since January 2024, member FRCs have served a 
total of 1,586 families and trained 11 FRC staff on the FAMS (Family Assistance Management System) database.  Other accomplishments include 
99 kin families receiving UReCares stipends, the testing & launch of the 907 Navigation App, and completing 100% Communities Alaska Assessments for 3 
Communities (Central Kenai Peninsula, Metlakatla Indian Community, Juneau). FY25 performance data to date includes the distribution of the UReCares 
stipends directly to 119 kin families (a total of $59,500), 1,984 total downloads of the 907 Navigation app (10 new downloads/day), and a total of 5246 
identified resources in the app, as well as two new applications for FRC with the goal of launching four new FRCs by July 1st, 2025. 

Ongoing Trust and partner participation in AIA statewide systems planning will ensure continued alignment with the State of Alaska and regional goals for child 
welfare system improvements and increased beneficiary family well-being. Trust funding is decreasing in FY27, and FY27 is the last year of the Trust funding 
for this project. 

Five Year Project Funding History - Reimagining Child Welfare Project 
Fiscal Year Trust Grant Amount Final Expended Amount 
FY26 $350,000 Grant scheduled to start 11/1/2025 
FY25 $400,000 Pending final report due 12/31/2025 
FY24 $400,000 $400,000 

303



FY27 Budget Line Detail: Early Childhood & Youth Priority Area 
Authority Grant Funding 

Budget Line: Page 4, Line 41 Project Name: Early Childhood Center-Based Mental Health 
Consultation 

Grantee Name:  RurAlCAP 

Proposed FY27 Amount: $88.5 AG Grant Type:  Capacity Building 

Comp Plan Relevance: Goal 1:  Programs Serving young children promote resiliency, prevent and address trauma, and provide access to early intervention 
services. Objective 2: Provide ongoing support to ensure accurate identification and treatment of social-emotional needs for children and their caregivers, 
congruent with their cultural identification. 
Description:  This project provides funds RurALCAP to provide early childhood mental health consultation services and additional teacher support at their 
Anchorage Child Development Center (CDC) and Parents as Teachers (PAT) program staff. This project is focused on improving early childhood educators and 
PAT staff's capacities in teaching social emotional skills, responding to challenging behaviors, and reducing early childhood educators' stress and burnout.  The 
project emphasizes supporting Trust beneficiary children experiencing developmental disabilities and delays.   

Analysis:  In FY24, a contract was secured with an infant and early childhood mental health consultant who provided 225 hours of services, including classroom 
coaching, individual and small group meetings, and reflections with staff.  The consultant's support created a space for staff to process challenging behaviors, 
and staff were supported through difficult conversations with parents and co-workers.  As a result, RurAL CAP saw increased staff confidence and job 
satisfaction.  Additionally, no children were asked to leave the program due to behavior and/or safety concerns.  Due to an inability to secure another 
contractor in infant and early childhood consultation, for FY25, RurALCAP committed to hiring an in-house full-time infant & early childhood mental health 
consultant.   Since hiring the full-time staff consultant on 2/24/25, she has been available 40 hours/week supporting both the childcare center and Little 
Haven drop-in care.  Five teachers at the center have received support, and two at Little Haven. Since onboarding the in-house consultant, they are 
identifying children needing additional behavioral support to succeed in childcare. They have identified three children to initiate a school district referral for 
further support.  Trust funding is planned through FY27 for this program and FY27 will be the last year of Trust funding.     

Five Year Project Funding History - Early Childhood Center-Based Mental Health Consultation 
Fiscal Year Trust Grant Amount Final Expended Amount 
FY26 $88,500 Grant started 7/1/2025 
FY25 $55,353.48 Pending final report due 8/31/2025 
FY24 $88,500 $30,016.59 

304



May 6, 2025 

From: Katie Baldwin-Johnson, Chief Operating Officer 
Alaska Mental Health Trust Authority 

Re: REQUEST FOR RECOMMENDATIONS – FY27 

Deadline: 

The deadline for the response is the end of business June 16, 2025. Please respond through use 

of our online portal: https://bbgm-apply.yourcausegrants.com/apply/programs/a0783d0f-2783-

48cc-97cc-60a4dd273e1d 

Audience 

This Request for Recommendations (RFR) is directed to Trustees, Trust Authority staff, 

administrative policymakers, Trust advisory groups, state agencies, and legislators. 

Recommendations should be written in a clear manner and should not assume advanced 

knowledge of any specific field of service or consumer group. 

Purpose 

The information collected through this RFR will help shape budget strategies aimed at 

improving outcomes for Trust beneficiaries. Trustees are responsible for setting the budget for 

Mental Health Trust Authority Authorized Receipts (MHTAAR) and General Fund/Mental 

Health (GF/MH) recommendation expenditures to ensure a comprehensive, coordinated 

mental health program across the state. Each RFR recommendation received will be 

considered; however, a submission is not a guarantee of inclusion in the Trust budget. 

The Trust also advocates for these budget recommendations to the Governor and the 

Legislature. To make informed decisions and effectively advocate for funding, the Trust needs 

a clear understanding of: 

• The populations in need of services

• Regional service demands

• Available resources

• Outcomes of current and proposed services

Sha
red

 at
 P&P C

om
mitte

e 7
/31

/25

305



Recommendations should align with the Comprehensive Integrated Mental Health Program 

Plan, which guides justification of needs and expected outcomes for beneficiaries. 

Additionally, it is essential to understand how the advisory boards have worked with state 

departments to formulate the proposed recommendations.  

Scope 

This RFR applies to the FY27 budget process and includes both operating and capital projects. 

Proposals may request funding through MHTAAR, GF/MH recommendations, or other 

related fund sources. Advisory groups and state agencies are encouraged to collaborate with 

one another and with other stakeholders when developing recommendations. 

Submission Requirements 

Each submission must include: 

• General project information

(Project Title, Narrative Description, Funding Request Amount, Relevant Data

Supporting the Need, and Verification that the Department/Division Receiving the

Funds Approves the Request)

• Advisory board priority

(Relative ranking among submitted requests)

• Narrative on project impact

(How the project will benefit Trust beneficiaries, which populations to be served and

intended performance measures and outcomes

• Sustainability plan

(Include a plan for continuing the project beyond Trust and/or GF/MH funding and

recommended duration of funding)

• Connection to the Comprehensive Integrated Mental Health Plan

Please contact Lucas Lind, Grants Administrator, if you have questions about the link 

to the RFR portal or instructions: Lucas.Lind@alaska.gov 

Sha
red

 at
 P&P C

om
mitte

e 7
/31

/25

306

mailto:Lucas.Lind@alaska.gov


FY27 Request for Recommendations 

Request Overview 

Advisory Board submitting project: Governor's Council on Disabilities and 
Special Education 

Project Title: Universal Changing Spaces Assistance Fund 

Total Project Amount for FY27: $250,000.00 

Board Priority: GCDSE 2 of 7 

 
Request Details 

 

Project Description 

The Universal Changing Spaces Assistance Fund is a proposed program designed to support 
the installation of universal changing spaces in public-serving facilities, non-profits, and 
businesses across Alaska. This initiative will provide matching funds to small nonprofit 

organizations, small government entities, and for-profit businesses that seek to create 
inclusive, accessible spaces for individuals with disabilities and their caregivers. Universal 

changing spaces meet a critical unmet need for individuals who cannot use standard-sized 
baby changing stations, enabling greater community participation, dignity, and independence. 
GCDSE recommends prioritize applications in the following tiered structure to maximize 

equity and impact: 
 

• Small nonprofit organizations will be eligible for a 90/10 match (90% grant-funded, 
10% applicant-funded), 

• Large nonprofits (with annual revenues over $5 million) and small government entities 
(serving populations under 10,000) will qualify for an 80/20 match, 

• Small for-profit businesses will be eligible for a 60/40 match. 
 
This program directly aligns with the intent and momentum behind Alaska’s proposed HB141, 

which aims to expand access to universal changing spaces in state-funded public buildings. 
The Assistance Fund compliments these efforts by extending support to community-based and 

private sector partners, ensuring that inclusive design principles are implemented across a 
broader range of spaces and services. Through targeted financial support, the Universal 
Changing Spaces Assistance Fund will advance accessibility and uphold the dignity and rights 

of all Alaskans, particularly individuals with disabilities and their families. 
 

 

State agency that would receive project funding 

It is proposed that the Statewide Independent Living Council (SILC) or the Alaska Association 

on Developmental Disabilities (AADD) serve as the fiscal agent for the Universal Changing 
Spaces Assistance Fund. Either entity would be well-positioned to administer the program, 

given their experience supporting accessibility initiatives and working closely with individuals 
with disabilities and community-based organizations. 
An administrative fee of no more than 15% is requested to support staffing, oversight, and 

fund management responsibilities. 
To ensure a fair and inclusive review process, it is proposed that an application review panel 

be formed, including representatives from: 

• The Alaska Mental Health Trust Authority, 

Sha
red

 at
 P&P C

om
mitte

e 7
/31

/25

307



FY27 Request for Recommendations 

• The selected administering entity (SILC or AADD), 

• The Governor’s Council on Disabilities and Special Education 

• The Alaska Commission on Aging 
 

This collaborative structure ensures alignment with the mission and goals of each 
organization, while leveraging expertise from across Alaska’s disability and advocacy 

networks. 
 

 

Have you received confirmation that the recipient agency has authorized this request? 

Given the limited timeframe, we would have to confirm with the two proposed entities if 
either, both or another entity would be more appropriate to administer the fund. 

 

Sustainability plan for funding this project in future fiscal years 

In FY 2027, the Universal Changing Spaces Assistance Fund will focus on successful 
implementation, outreach, and building momentum. Key sustainability actions during this year 
will include: 

• Awarding funds and supporting installations across Alaska, generating visible, 
community-based impact. 

• Compiling and distributing free design standards and best practices from national 
accessibility organizations to help applicants and local partners incorporate universal 

changing spaces effectively. 

• Beginning outreach to statewide building associations, architects, and construction 
firms to introduce adult changing spaces as essential public amenities. 

• Establishing partnerships and raising awareness to lay the foundation for future private 
and philanthropic investment. 

 
Beyond FY 2027, the program will focus on expanding its reach and influence to promote 

lasting systems change. Efforts will include: 

• Seeking continued support from private foundations, corporate sponsors, and 
philanthropic organizations committed to accessibility and inclusive design. 

• Deepening engagement with the architecture and construction industries to normalize 
adult changing spaces as a standard design element in new and renovated public 
buildings. 

• Advocating for changes to public infrastructure policy and building codes, in alignment 
with the intent of HB141, to institutionalize the inclusion of universal changing spaces. 

• Promoting statewide adoption through resource sharing, technical assistance, and 
showcasing successful models across communities. 

These efforts will ensure that universal changing spaces become a common, expected feature 

of Alaska’s built environment, well beyond the initial program fund. 
 

 

How will this request serve Trust beneficiaries? 

The proposed Universal Changing Spaces Assistance Fund directly supports the objectives 

outlined in Alaska’s Comprehensive Integrated Mental Health Program Plan (2025–2029), 

Sha
red

 at
 P&P C

om
mitte

e 7
/31

/25

308



FY27 Request for Recommendations 

titled Strengthening the System II. This plan emphasizes building a responsive, inclusive, and 
community-based system of care for Trust beneficiaries—Alaskans experiencing mental 
illness, intellectual and developmental disabilities (IDD), substance use disorders, Alzheimer’s 

disease and related dementias, and traumatic brain injuries. 
 

Key Areas of Alignment: 
 

1. Promoting Dignity and Inclusion for Trust Beneficiaries- The installation of universal 

changing spaces addresses a fundamental need for individuals with disabilities and 
their caregivers, ensuring they can participate fully in community life. This initiative 

aligns with the plan's focus on creating environments that uphold the dignity and 
independence of Trust beneficiaries, particularly those with IDD and mobility 
challenges. 

2. Enhancing Community-Based Services and Supports- By providing financial 
assistance to organizations for the installation of universal changing spaces, the fund 

supports the development of accessible infrastructure within communities. This effort 
complements the plan's strategy to expand home and community-based services, 
enabling beneficiaries to live and engage in their communities safely and comfortably. 

3. Advancing Prevention and Early Intervention Efforts- The plan underscores the 
importance of early intervention and preventive measures to improve outcomes for 

Trust beneficiaries. Accessible facilities equipped with universal changing spaces can 
prevent health complications associated with inadequate hygiene options, thereby 
supporting the plan's preventive health objectives. 

4. Fostering Cross-Sector Collaboration- The administration of the fund through entities 
like the Statewide Independent Living Council (SILC) or the Alaska Association on 

Developmental Disabilities (AADD), with oversight from the Governor’s Council on 
Disabilities and Special Education and the Trust, exemplifies the collaborative 
approach advocated in the plan. Such partnerships are vital for creating a cohesive 

system of care that leverages the strengths of various stakeholders. 
 

Serving Trust Beneficiaries: 
The Universal Changing Spaces Assistance Fund is designed to meet the specific needs of 
Trust beneficiaries by: 

• Improving Accessibility: Ensuring that public spaces are equipped to accommodate 
individuals with disabilities, thereby reducing barriers to community participation. 

• Supporting Caregivers: Providing necessary facilities that assist caregivers in 
managing the personal care needs of beneficiaries with dignity and ease. 

• Promoting Health and Safety: Reducing the risk of injury or health issues associated 
with inadequate changing facilities, aligning with the plan's emphasis on preventive 

care. 
By addressing these critical areas, the fund not only fulfills the immediate needs of Trust 
beneficiaries but also contributes to the broader goals of the Comprehensive Integrated Mental 

Health Program Plan, fostering a more inclusive and supportive environment for all Alaskans. 
 

 

Funding Details 

Sha
red

 at
 P&P C

om
mitte

e 7
/31

/25

309



FY27 Request for Recommendations 

 

FY27 MHTAAR Requested Amount: $250,000.00 

FY27 GF/MH Requested Amount: $0.00 

FY27 Other Requested Amount: $0.00 

Other Fund Source: n/a 

 

Additional Information 
 

Primary beneficiary population served by 

this project: 

All Beneficiaries 

Geographic area served by project: Statewide 

Connection to Comp Plan: Area of Focus 8: Services in Institutional 
Settings 

 

Sha
red

 at
 P&P C

om
mitte

e 7
/31

/25

310



FY27 Request for Recommendations 

Request Overview 

Advisory Board submitting project: Governor's Council on Disabilities and 
Special Education 

Project Title: Project SEARCH Adult Site 

Total Project Amount for FY27: $75,000.00 

Board Priority: GCDSE 5 of 7 

 
Request Details 

 

Project Description 

The Project SEARCH (PS) program is a proven employment program for individuals with 
disabilities to receive comprehensive and intensive training and supports to become employed. 
The PS international model serves primarily serve young adults aged 18-22 with intellectual 

and/or developmental disabilities in their final year of school in nine-month program at a host 
business. The selected interns learn both hard and soft job skills in a real world apprenticeship 

model in the host business. The interns will train in that time under at least three rotational 
areas of the business for skill development, work on classroom activities and projects, and gain 
experience and training in interested career fields. The interns will begin with skill 

assessments and job interest evaluations in the beginning of the year, become familiar with 
their skill tasks during each rotation and successfully master those objectives, and graduate 

after successful completion. Near the end of the program, the PS team assists the intern with 
resume writing, mock job interviews and more all aimed and getting a meaningful job. Success 
in Project SEARCH is measured by getting a job that pays minimum wage or better, at least 20 

hours or more a week, and in an integrated job setting for at least 9 months, but the PS team 
follows the students well beyond that, ensuring long term employment is achieved  

 
The Council is the Statewide Coordinator for Project SEARCH and has been so for 14 years, 
having originally introducing the model to Alaska with a small amount of Trust support and 

other grants.  As the Statewide Coordinator of PS in Alaska, our job is to make sure all 
programs meet fidelity with program, and coordinate and assist with training for each of the 

program partners, which include a host business site, school district, Division of Vocational 
Rehabilitation, and a community rehabilitation provider.  
 

Currently, Alaska has three Project SEARCH sites located in Fairbanks, MatSu, and 
Anchorage. These three sites have consistently achieved employment outcomes from the first 

year they began in Alaska receiving awards and recognition with the effectiveness of their 
staff. Funding for these three programs comes primarily from the school districts in each 
location, plus support from the Division of Vocational Rehabilitation. The Council’s role as 

statewide coordinator is to pay for the licensing agreement with Project SEARCH, and to 
provide technical assistance to the three sites. These current sites are all youth based, aimed at 

serving transition age students from the school districts in final year of education on deferred 
diploma. The request for this funding is to allow new site development in the state, and to 
include development of an adult based program aimed at post high school young adults with 

disabilities. This would be for young adults who experience I/DD and already out of high 
school up to a maximum of age 35. Alaska does not currently have the program for adults at 

Sha
red

 at
 P&P C

om
mitte

e 7
/31

/25

311



FY27 Request for Recommendations 

this time unlike other sites within the rest of the United States and could provide great benefit 
to young Alaskans seeking employment. 

 

State agency that would receive project funding 

DOH/SDS/GCDSE 

 

Have you received confirmation that the recipient agency has authorized this request? 

Yes 

 

Sustainability plan for funding this project in future fiscal years 

This new adult program would launch in FY 27, and it may take two years to become a stable 
program. Therefore, we recommend $40 K in Year 2 and no additional funds after that 
because if successful, we anticipate ongoing DVR support, as well as Medicaid dollars from 

clients that are on waivers and have supported employment in their plan of care.  
 

Once sites become stable the host business, DVR services, CRP support, and education staff 
justify and continue to provide the program with continued staffing and funding. The largest 
cost is the initial licensing and set up for a site, and then partner agencies begin to continually 

write in the program as part of their organizational work. 
 

 

How will this request serve Trust beneficiaries? 

Improved employment outcomes for beneficiaries, growth and outreach to parents/caregivers 

of people with disabilities and improving social narrative of PWD becoming employed and the 
importance of transitions and independence, improved examples and relations with employers 

to hiring people with disabilities in the workplace. 
 
Direct training and support for employment and serves larger social and systems change as 

instructors work with host businesses and families to encourage PWDs being able to work 
successfully. The intensive model PS uses is extensive and detailed enough to create lasting 

outcomes and not require clients to retrain or lose independence – this was created with proven 
data and curriculum to be effective and is backed by evidence to have grown internationally 
over the last 15 years. 

 
 

 

Funding Details 
 

FY27 MHTAAR Requested Amount: $75,000.00 

FY27 GF/MH Requested Amount: $0.00 

FY27 Other Requested Amount: $0.00 

Other Fund Source: n/a 

 

Additional Information 
 

Sha
red

 at
 P&P C

om
mitte

e 7
/31

/25

312



FY27 Request for Recommendations 

Primary beneficiary population served by 

this project: 

Developmental Disabilities 

Geographic area served by project: Anchorage Municipality 

Connection to Comp Plan: Area of Focus 3: Economic and Social Well-

being 

 

Sha
red

 at
 P&P C

om
mitte

e 7
/31

/25

313



FY27 Request for Recommendations 

Request Overview 

Advisory Board submitting project: Alaska Commission on Aging 

Project Title: Alaska State Plan for Senior Services FY 

2027-2031 

Total Project Amount for FY27: $60,000.00 

Board Priority: ACoA 1 of 2 

 
Request Details 

 

Project Description 

The Alaska Commission on Aging (ACoA) produces the Alaska State Plan for Senior Services 
every four years. This plan is a requirement of the Federal government, in order for Alaska to 
receive the federal funds through the Older Americans Act. The State Plan for Senior Services 

acts as a roadmap and progress tracking device, laying out a comprehensive plan for providing 
Senior Services to all of Alaska's seniors.  

 
The State Plan for Senior Services lays out a comprehensive plan for providing Senior 
Services to all of Alaska's seniors, including dementia care, housing, transportation, medical 

care, food security, homelessness, traumatic brain injuries, employment, substance abuse, and 
elder protection services. 

 
Due to the structure of the State budget, ACoA’s annual budget does not include an increase of 
funding every four years to account for the increased expenditures for consultant assistance 

and travel needed to get feedback from Alaska’s Seniors.  
 

ACoA is requesting assistance from the Trust in order to travel to Alaskan communities 
throughout the state to get feedback from seniors who represent Alaska’s diverse population, 
and contract a consultant who will assist with the compilation of the FFY 2027-2031 State 

Plan for Senior Services. 
 

 

State agency that would receive project funding 

Department of Health, Senior and Disabilities Services 

 

Have you received confirmation that the recipient agency has authorized this request? 

I have confirmed with Nicole Wery-Tagaban at Senior and Disabilities Services (DOH - State 
of Alaska) that they are willing and able to receive the funding. 

 

Sustainability plan for funding this project in future fiscal years 

Due to the long cycle (4 years) of creating the State Plan for Senior Services, there has not 

been long-range planning done in order to ensure that funding is budgeted. The State of 
Alaska’s budgeting system generally does not allow the accumulation of funds over fiscal 
years. However, ACoA’s Executive director will be discussing this strategy with Senior and 

Disabilities Services to explore how to prepare for this need in the future. 

 
 

Sha
red

 at
 P&P C

om
mitte

e 7
/31

/25

314



FY27 Request for Recommendations 

How will this request serve Trust beneficiaries? 

Due to the comprehensive approach of the State Plan for Senior Services, Trust beneficiaries 
age 60 and older will be impacted by the plan. Specifically, the plan addresses the needs of 

seniors with Alzheimer's and related dementias, traumatic brain injuries, substance use 
disorders, and mental illness. ACoA reaches out to organizations and care partners working 
with these beneficiaries to determine how they will be working to serve them effectively. 

 

Funding Details 
 

FY27 MHTAAR Requested Amount: $60,000.00 

FY27 GF/MH Requested Amount: $0.00 

FY27 Other Requested Amount: $0.00 

Other Fund Source: n/a 

 
Additional Information 

 

Primary beneficiary population served by 

this project: 

All Beneficiaries 

Geographic area served by project: Statewide 

Connection to Comp Plan: Area of Focus 2: Healthcare 

 

Sha
red

 at
 P&P C

om
mitte

e 7
/31

/25

315



FY27 Request for Recommendations 

Request Overview 

Advisory Board submitting project: Alaska Commission on Aging 

Project Title: First Annual Alaska Senior Summit 

Total Project Amount for FY27: $5,000.00 

Board Priority: ACoA 2 of 2 

 

Request Details 
 

Project Description 

The Alaska Commission on Aging respectfully requests $5,000 from the Alaska Mental 

Health Trust Authority to support the FY27 Senior Summit, a statewide virtual convening 
dedicated to advancing systems of care for older adults, especially senior Trust beneficiaries. 
This event aligns directly with Strengthening the System II: Alaska’s Comprehensive 

Integrated Mental Health Program Plan 2025–2029, and addresses the unique needs of seniors 
experiencing mental illness, substance use disorders, Alzheimer’s disease and related 

dementias (ADRD), and traumatic brain injury (TBI). Please note: We are omitting 
Developmental Disabilities as a focus because of the annual Aging and Disability Summit.  
 

The Summit will serve as a collaborative platform for state agencies, tribal partners, 
caregivers, providers, senior centers, and older Alaskans statewide—particularly those in rural 

and remote communities—to learn, share, and mobilize around Trust priorities. By focusing 
on community-based solutions and person-centered care, the event supports multiple Areas of 
Focus in the Plan, including Integrated Healthcare (Area 2), Substance Use Disorder 

Prevention (Area 4), Protecting Vulnerable Alaskans (Area 6), Services in the Least 
Restrictive Environment (Area 7), and Workforce Development (Area 9). 

 
Key objectives addressed by the Summit include: 
Expanding access to culturally responsive, trauma-informed care for seniors with behavioral 

health needs (Objectives 2.1 and 2.3). 
 

Elevating dementia-capable practices and community-based Alzheimer’s supports (Areas 2 
and 7). 
 

Addressing substance misuse among older adults, including polypharmacy, alcohol use, and 
medication safety (Objective 4.2). 

 
Raising awareness about TBI and cognitive decline in aging populations, with a focus on 
aging-in-place supports (Objective 7.1). 

 
Strengthening protective services and reducing isolation for vulnerable elders, including those 

at risk of self-neglect or abuse (Area 6). 
 
Related to these areas and objectives are several supporting topics for older adults' well-being 

such as falls prevention, cultural tools and traditional healing practices, supporting senior and 
disabled workforce development, and assistive technology. The four topics we repeatedly hear 

from older adults as priorities to address are: access to stable housing, access to food, health 

Sha
red

 at
 P&P C

om
mitte

e 7
/31

/25

316



FY27 Request for Recommendations 

and transportation. Protecting vulnerable Alaskans is a huge topic especially with MDTs being 
established statewide soon. Resource navigation as well; long term care needs and opening and 
operating assisted living homes. This just goes to show you how much there is to learn and 

share for hopefully many summits to come, and we recognize how interconnected these topics 
can be.  

 
This hybrid event will be hosted via Zoom, with funding supporting paid expert speakers and 
outreach efforts to ensure rural access and participation. Partnering communities will be 

equipped to host free local watch sites, creating opportunities for engagement in village and 
hub settings. This approach reflects the Plan’s commitment to equity, local ownership, and 

services delivered “as close to home as possible.” We hope to highlight in the Senior Summit 
innovate approaches that communities are using to successfully address senior beneficiary 
issues in Alaska, facilitating fruitful discussion, problem solving and sharing statewide among 

communities that would otherwise likely not interact with one another. 
 

We have experience with this model of local host sites, and we are prepared to organize the 
Summit. Just last week we hosted an estate planning workshop via Zoom during lunch time, 
and we had several senior centers set up Zoom for their community members and join us--

from Nome to Southeast to Kenai.  
 

In addition to serving Trust beneficiaries, the Summit will generate data and community 
feedback to inform future planning, aligning with the goals of Areas 10 (Data). The 
Commission will compile a post-event report summarizing themes, community needs, and 

policy recommendations that can guide the Trust’s ongoing efforts to improve the mental 
health system for Alaska’s aging population. 

 
Alaska’s senior population is growing rapidly, bringing with it increased complexity of care 
needs—particularly for older adults who are Trust beneficiaries. From our 2024 Senior 

Snapshot: 
 

There are now over 160,900 Alaskans age 60 and older, representing 21.7% of the state’s 
population, a 77% increase since 2010. The population aged 85 and older is projected to 
quadruple by 2050, and nearly one in three elders in that age group is expected to live with 

Alzheimer’s or a related dementia. 
 

This demographic shift is accompanied by escalating health and social challenges that make 
the Senior Summit both timely and essential. In 2024, an estimated 10,145 Alaskans aged 65+ 
were living with Alzheimer’s disease, nearly triple the number from 2000. Meanwhile, 25,000 

unpaid caregivers delivered 39 million hours of care to people with dementia in Alaska—
underscoring both the scope of the disease and the need for stronger caregiver support, 

education, and coordination. 
 
Behavioral health concerns are also prevalent among Alaska’s older adults. Data from the 

Behavioral Risk Factor Surveillance System shows that 7.1% of Alaskans age 65+ report 
frequent mental distress, and rates of binge drinking (6.9%), heavy drinking (6.0%), and daily 

Sha
red

 at
 P&P C

om
mitte

e 7
/31

/25

317



FY27 Request for Recommendations 

smoking (9.5%) remain persistent. These figures speak to ongoing unmet mental and 
behavioral health needs in later life, especially in isolated or underserved communities.  
 

The challenges are even more acute for seniors experiencing homelessness. According to the 
January 2024 Point-in-Time Count reported by Alaska’s HMIS system, 2,667 Alaskans age 

55+ were experiencing homelessness, with 67% reporting a disabling condition, and half of 
those also reporting behavioral health issues. 
 

The December 2023 Alaska Special Emphasis Report: Traumatic Brain Injury documented 
approximately 3,373 TBI-related injuries statewide, including 456 hospitalizations and 2,653 

emergency department visits, with older adults (aged 75–84) most affected by hospitalizations.  
 

 

State agency that would receive project funding 

Department of Health, Senior and Disabilities Services 

 

Have you received confirmation that the recipient agency has authorized this request? 

Yes, confirmed. 

 

Sustainability plan for funding this project in future fiscal years 

The Senior Summit is designed for long-term sustainability by leveraging a low-cost, high-
accessibility virtual format. By hosting the event via Zoom and supporting initial equipment 
needs in partner communities, we are building a reusable infrastructure that allows future 

summits and related gatherings to continue with minimal recurring expenses. Once 
established, participating rural and urban communities will have the capacity to join future 

events without additional technology investments. 
 
We anticipate that the success of this first statewide Summit will generate interest among 

organizations, foundations, and private partners to support future events through sponsorships, 
donations, or in-kind contributions—particularly to fund expert speakers or offer stipends to 

rural facilitators.  
 
Additionally, the Alaska Commission on Aging is committed to exploring partnerships with 

existing aging and mental health networks to embed the Summit as a regular, collaborative 
platform for advancing elder-focused initiatives in Alaska. 

 
If there are several internet connectivity issues in the future, the event may switch to a hybrid, 
large, in-person conference with Zoom accessibility for those who can join that way. We have 

discussed some creative solutions like coordinating with other events in Anchorage, when 
rural community members are already present, to help offset flight costs. 

 

How will this request serve Trust beneficiaries? 

The FY27 First Annual Alaska Senior Summit will focus on mental illness, substance use 

disorders, Alzheimer’s disease and related dementias (ADRD), and traumatic brain injuries 
(TBI) among older Alaskans. The event will provide a statewide, accessible platform, 

Sha
red

 at
 P&P C

om
mitte

e 7
/31

/25

318



FY27 Request for Recommendations 

delivered via Zoom with supported rural participation, to elevate voices, share resources, and 
coordinate strategies that improve quality of life and care for these populations. 
 

The Summit’s statewide reach will ensure that underserved rural and Alaska Native 
communities are included, through community-based watch sites and equipment support. The 

event will create space for beneficiaries and those who serve them—caregivers, tribal health 
representatives, and providers—to learn, network, and co-develop solutions. In doing so, it 
supports the Trust’s mission of improving the lives of beneficiaries through collaboration, 

innovation, and direct community impact. 

 
Funding Details 

 

FY27 MHTAAR Requested Amount: $5,000.00 

FY27 GF/MH Requested Amount: $0.00 

FY27 Other Requested Amount: $0.00 

Other Fund Source: Maybe donors/sponsors if big in-person gathering- 

 
Additional Information 

 

Primary beneficiary population served by 

this project: 

All Beneficiaries 

Geographic area served by project: Statewide 

Connection to Comp Plan: Area of Focus 2: Healthcare 

 

Sha
red

 at
 P&P C

om
mitte

e 7
/31

/25

319



Additional 
Documents

320



Audit and Risk Committee Report 8/1/25 

Meeting Summary: 

The Audit & Risk Committee met on August 1, 2025. The meeting was attended in person by 
Committee members Kevin Fimon (chair), Corri Feige, and Anita Halterman, as well as via 
telephone by Board Chair Brent Fisher in a non-voting capacity. Trustees Josie Hickel, Agnes 
Moran, and John Morris also attended.  

FY25 Audit Planning presentation by BDO: 

Bikky Shrestha, BDO Audit Partner, presented the FY25 audit planning document to the Audit 
& Risk Committee. The audit strategy follows a risk-based approach that identifies certain risks 
and develops an audit plan around those risks, which can then be adjusted during the 
fieldwork portion of the audit. Mr. Shrestha outlined the investment accounting approach for 
the commercial real estate assets where gains and losses are reported annually, but large gains 
or losses are unlikely in the year of the sale. 

Mr. Shrestha reported that as the Trust’s independent auditor, BDO is responsible for 
expressing an opinion on whether the financial statements have been prepared in all material 
respects according to government auditing standards. The audit is scheduled for completion in  
October.  

The next scheduled meeting of the Audit & Risk Committee is October 16, 2025. 

To: Brent Fisher, Chair 
Through: Mary Wilson, Chief Executive Officer 
From: Julee Farley, Chief Financial Officer 
Date: August 27, 2025 
Re: Audit & Risk Committee Report 

321


	MEETING AGENDA
	Wednesday, August 27, 2025
	FutureMeetingDates-Chronological_Update.pdf
	Future Meeting Dates
	Full Board of Trustees / Program & Planning /
	Resource Management / Audit & Risk / Finance
	(Updated – August 2025)
	Future Meeting Dates
	Statutory Advisory Boards
	(Updated – August 2025)

	TrusteeCommitteeList-Revised-2025-05.pdf
	Trustee Committee Assignments
	Updated June 2025

	Review of Guiding Principles.pdf
	PH_GuidingPrinciples-MissionStmt
	TrustGuidingPrinciples
	MissionStatement
	COMBINED BudgetFlowCharts-WordVersion-111524
	Annual Calendar Trust Cycles

	RMC Report.pdf
	Memorandum

	Below Market Lease.pdf
	aAlaska Behavioral Health Approval Memo
	Project Description
	Project Description
	PARCEL DESCRIPTION
	Who We Serve
	Alaska Behavioral Health is one of three agencies in Alaska designated as a Certified Community Behavioral Health Center.  Alaska Behavioral Health has two CCBHC locations (Anchorage and Fairbanks).  Alaska Behavioral Health provides comprehensive beh...
	Estimated Numbers of Beneficiaries Served Experiencing:

	bTrust Authority Suitabilty Request Letter
	Jusdi.warner@alaska.gov
	February 19, 2025

	cTrust Land Office Suitability Letter
	dAlaska Behavioral Health request less than fair market letter
	eAlaska Behavioral  Health Less than Fair Market
	Alaska Behavioral Health Request for Less than Fair Market Value Lease
	What We Will Cover Today:
	Overview Less than Fair Market Value Lease
	Overview Continued
	Alaska Behavioral Health Less Than Fair Market Value Lease Request 
	Alaska Behavioral Health Less Than Fair Market Value Lease Request
	Alaska Behavioral Health Request Continued
	Alaska Behavioral Health Request Continued
	Alaska Behavioral Health Requested Lease Terms

	Agenda-RMC-April Special 2025.pdf
	Meeting Agenda

	Agenda-RMC_Revised.pdf
	MEETING AGENDA

	Agenda-RMC 4-9-25.pdf
	MEETING AGENDA

	MEMO - RMC Summary_4-23-2025.pdf
	Memorandum

	Alaska Behavioral Health Approval Memo 4.22.25 Final.pdf
	Project Update
	On 4/9/25, the Resource Management Committee met to discuss the Alaska Behavioral Health Request to Lease Trust Land at Less than Fair Market Value. The committee requested that the Trust Land Office and the Alaska Mental Health Authority provide addi...


	FY27 Agency Budget Memo to Board Final 8-9-25 UPDATE.pdf
	2600 Cordova Street
	Anchorage, Alaska 99503
	Phone: 907-269-8658
	Fax: 907-269-8605

	FY26-27 TLO Expenditure Proposal Final 8-8-25 UPDATE.pdf
	Summary
	Travel Summary
	Services Summary
	Commodities Summary

	Agenda-FullBoard-Aug2025_DRAFT_notime.pdf
	MEETING AGENDA
	Wednesday, August 27, 2025

	Agnew Beck.pdf
	TLO Real Estate Cost Effectiveness Analysis
	Consultant Project Team
	Table of Contents
	Project Overview
	Terminology
	Current Real Estate Situation for Staff at TAO and TLO
	Project Methodology
	High Level Takeaways
	Property Condition Assessment
	TAB: Property Condition Assessment
	TAB: Property Condition Assessment (…continued)
	Immediate Concerns and Risks
	Scenarios
	Scenarios for Study
	Scenario 2: TAB Mechanical Equipment Replacement
	Scenarios 6 – 11: TAB Demolition and Relocate
	Comparables used for 11a and 11b: Buy for TAO + Lease Excess Space
	Key Findings: Cost Effectiveness Analysis
	Evaluation
	High Level Findings
	Capital Expenditures Estimates
	Average Annual Net Operating Income 
	Net Present Value (10-year Time Horizon)
	Model leaders
	Thank you! 

	Draft New FY27 Budget Format 8-8-2025.pdf
	FY27 Summary
	FY27 MHTAAR
	FY27 Authority Grants

	Agenda-FullBoard-Aug2025_DRAFT_notime.pdf
	MEETING AGENDA
	Wednesday, August 27, 2025

	Draft New FY27 Budget Format 8-8-2025_matching.pdf
	FY27 Summary
	FY27 MHTAAR
	FY27 Authority Grants

	Memo David.pdf
	2600 Cordova Street, Suite 201
	Anchorage, Alaska 99503
	Phone: 907-269-8658
	Fax: 907-269-8605

	TAB approval.pdf
	2600 Cordova Street, Suite 201
	Anchorage, Alaska 99503
	Phone: 907-269-8658
	Fax: 907-269-8605

	FutureMeetingDates-Chronological_Update.pdf
	Future Meeting Dates
	Full Board of Trustees / Program & Planning /
	Resource Management / Audit & Risk / Finance
	(Updated – August 2025)
	Future Meeting Dates
	Statutory Advisory Boards
	(Updated – August 2025)

	OBBBA_Presentation_Hedberg.pdf
	Slide Number 1
	Health Care Provisions in the �One Big Beautiful Bill Act (OBBBA)
	Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program
	Health Care Provisions in the �One Big Beautiful Bill Act (OBBBA)
	Medicaid: Alaska Impacts
	Medicaid
	Health Care Provisions in the �One Big Beautiful Bill Act (OBBBA)
	Rural Health Transformation Program
	Rural Health Transformation Funding Allocation
	Rural Health Transformation Timeline
	Rural Health Transformation Funds: Allowable Uses
	Rural Health Transformation Strategy
	Rural Health Transformation Goals
	Thank You

	Agenda-FullBoard-Aug2025_DRAFT.pdf
	MEETING AGENDA
	Wednesday, August 27, 2025

	Agenda-FullBoard-Aug2025_DRAFT.pdf
	MEETING AGENDA
	Wednesday, August 27, 2025

	DOH PPT_Hedberg.pdf
	Slide Number 1
	Health Care Provisions in the �One Big Beautiful Bill Act (OBBBA)
	Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program
	Health Care Provisions in the �One Big Beautiful Bill Act (OBBBA)
	Medicaid: Alaska Impacts
	Medicaid
	Health Care Provisions in the �One Big Beautiful Bill Act (OBBBA)
	Rural Health Transformation Program
	Rural Health Transformation Funding Allocation
	Rural Health Transformation Timeline
	Rural Health Transformation Funds: Allowable Uses
	Rural Health Transformation Strategy
	Rural Health Transformation Goals
	Thank You

	NAMI Anchorage FY25 Budget Amendment.pdf
	Amendment Details

	Valley Charities FY25 Budget Amendment.pdf
	Amendment Details

	Agenda-FullBoard-Aug2025.pdf
	MEETING AGENDA
	Wednesday, August 27, 2025

	Agenda-FullBoard-Aug2025.pdf
	MEETING AGENDA
	Wednesday, August 27, 2025

	Agenda-FullBoard-Aug2025.pdf
	MEETING AGENDA
	Wednesday, August 27, 2025

	Agenda-FullBoard-Aug2025.pdf
	MEETING AGENDA
	Wednesday, August 27, 2025




